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250,000

23,458,000.00

23,458,000

800,000.00 80.00

800,000
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2,333,000
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2,000,000
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56.96
474,487,714.73 56.96

REIT
138,406,386.98 56.96

REIT
57,036,886.16 56.96
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279,044,744 .32 56.96

REIT
396,938,482 56.96
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1,500,000

104,900.00

1,049,000
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210,389,499 100.00

216,198,318 100.00
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100.00

100.00
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260,000 100.00
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100.00
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100.00
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44/616



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

)
YTL ICHM 1,000,000 70.00
120,000 100.00
1,000,000 100.00

)
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100,000

90,988,000.00

90,988,000

PYP 250,000.00 96.64

250,000

1,050,000.00

1,050,000

1,000,000 96.64

500,000.00 96.64

500,000

28,454,000.00

28,454,000

8,000,001.00 96.64

8,000,001

12,632,000

12,632,000

5,000,000 96.64

5,000,000

614,000.00

614,000

2.00 96.64

129,128,000.00

129,128,000

96.64

11,742 93.64
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3,000,000.00 96.64
(
3,000,000 )
45,129,000.00
45,129,000
100,000.00 96.64
100,000
87,214,000.00
87,214,000
41,960, 680.00 96.64
41,960, 680
1,000,000 96.64
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100 55.57
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B.V.
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55.57
500,000 33.34
100 36.12
50,002.00 55.57

500,002

2,000,000.00

2,000,000
14,028 38.30
14,155 38.30
100,000 38.30
EV (S) 55.57
100 55.57
55.57
1,000,000 38.90
55.57

(
)

KJS 10,000 23.34
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P.T. 55.54
P.T. 500,000 55.01
P.T. 250,000 52.79
P.T. 2,500,000 44 .46
5,400,002 55.57
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GmbH
SC GmbH 100 55.57
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SIPP 100 38.90
55.57
55.57
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/
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10,572.1 10,275.1 627.7 233.6
4,093.5 4,095.2 562.9 2.4
1,514.5 2,316.0 217.5 194.7
366.6 995.2 (380.3) (282.8)
420.7 1,121.7 (153.6) 96.6
299.8 371.7 (240.2) 179.6
3.2 3.5 2.2)
17,270.4 19,178.4 631.8 419.3
10,275.1 10,572.1
233.6 627.7
54 56 61 99
4,095.2
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562.9
21 24
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HS (D) 3705 PT 1417" (2096 ) 1.46
HS (D) 3706 PT 1418 (2096 ) 14.55
4529 PN212336
HS (D) 2676 PT 1328 (2095 ) 8.20
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HS (D) 2678 PT 1330" (2095 ) 102.33
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HS (D) 2681 PT 1333" (2026 ) 278.24
HS (D) 4170 PT 1419 (2097 ) 30.06
HS (D) 4171 PT 1420 (2097 ) 3.54
HS (D) 8804 PT 1421" (2102 ) 13.38
PN 00108181 2764" (2886 ) 49.57
13,219 2 4
23849
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5 47
15
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80069 20091 0.643 YTL
55100 ”
205
1,596.206 22 5
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@ 2021 31
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2017 30 10.910.559.429 3’340’11?§3f158§
2018 30 10.910.559.429 3,340,11258?1689
2019 30 10.910.559.429 3,340,11?é8?i68§
2019 12 31,102,986 | 10,941,662,415 %gég?gég?gég; 3’375’56§égff68§
¥TL
2019 19 4,944,682 |  10,946,607,007 (?ég??ag?343§ 3'381'20zé??gég§ YL
2019 29 1,204,688 | 10,947,811,785 %égfgégfgé§§ 3,382,57?é§?gé2§ YL
2019 1,819,519 |  10,949,631,304 ié§?3éﬁ?éé§§ 3'384'65§éf?§ég§ YL
2019 798,912 | 10,950,430, 216 (22Tgé1?262§ 3’385’56§éf?é%é§ YL
2019 15 1,715,718 | 10,952,145,934 %ég??éngiii 3'387'51?§§?Zég§ YL
2019 22 3,555,341 | 10,955,701, 275 (iég?gég?gégﬁ 3'391'57%é§?gég§ YL
2019 29 17,456,575 |  10,973,157,850 %gé???ii?giig 3'411'47§égfg%2§ YL
2019 16,080,433 | 10,989,238,283 %iéi?%;g?iifi 3,429,802ég?;%g§ YL
2019 11 2,154,454 | 10,991,392,737 %ég?gég?gégg 3,432,2egég?gé%§ YL
2019 19 2,299,537 | 10,993,692,274 %58?%%3?551? 3'434'88%ég?;6§§ YL
2019 23 1,666,409 | 10,995,358,683 %éf?i;é?ﬁ;é? 3'436'78%é;?§ég§ YL
2019 30 10,995, 358, 683 3,436,78%é;?§ég§
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2019 10 1,575,523 |  10,996,934,206 %Aé?ﬁ%g?géii 3'438'57zé§?§é;§ YL
2019 10 13,225,079 | 11,010,159,285 %26278i5?2é2§ 3'453'652ég?gi2§ YTL
2019 10 14 186,778 |  11,010,346,063 (éfgig?gégi 3’453’862é§?gé8§ Y7L
2019 10 17 6,380 | 11,010,352,443 (Iéé?géig 3'453'87zég?gé8§ "
2019 10 24 753,297 | 11,011,105,740 (23??5;?gé2§ 3'454'73§ég?242§ YL
2019 11 1,735,005 | 11,012,840,745 %é???ig?gégg 3'456'64%égfgég§ YTL
2019 11 13 1,254,311 | 11,014,095,056 ié??gééfﬁéég 3,458,02%ég?gé%§ Y7L
2019 11 21 1,193,606 | 11,015,288,662 %éﬁfiég?gégg 3'459'33?ég?§é;§ YL
2019 11 29 674,261 | 11,015,962,923 (ngéigfzéég 3'460'07?é§?§é§§ YL
2019 12 811,040 | 11,016,773,963 (22?8?%?3699 3'460'96§ég?2i2§ YTL
2019 12 16 422,265 | 11,017,196,228 (lg?gég?éégg 3’461’43iég?iéi§ YL
2019 12 23 1,020,376 |  11,018,225,604 %éé?géiTiéig 3,462,56?55?2ég§ YL
2019 12 30 1,217,159 | 11,019,442,763 %ég??égfﬁéig 3'463'90?é%?2é§§ YL
2019 12 31 11,019, 442,763 3,463,902é§?2é?§
2020 440,080 | 11,019,882,843 (13?3ég?§ég§ 3’464’38§é§?é62§ Y7L
2020 2,841,161 | 11,022,724,004 iéi?géifgéég 3,467,51§ég?gég§ YL
2020 15 38,336 | 11,022,762,340 (1?%&%?2529 3,467,55?é2?gég§ YL
2020 31 11.022.762.340 3'467'55§§2?§é3§
2020 30 11,022,762, 340 3,467,55?ég?gég§
2021 30 11022, 762,340 3'467'55§§§?§é3§
0 2021 31
(i)
@
®
©
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31,582 1,333,192,952 12.16

360 5,813,590,305 53.02

8,850 1,852,667,424 16.90

899 1,964,637,709 17.92

41,691 10,964,088,390 100.00

67 A@)(c)
11,022,762,340 58,673,950

3,467,555,698.54
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55100 4,861,307,766 44.34
205
33
)
50450 636,267,852 5.80
165
8
SS0-DOC MY
HSBC 50100 507,657,017 4.63
No
RHB 50400 475,333,333 4.34
RHB
)
293,712,438 2.68
50400
201-A
23 PNB
048543 270,524,927 2.47
No. 06-01
048543 224,314,344 2.05
No. 06-01
048543 203,356,233 1.85
No. 06-01
048543 189,190,672 1.73
No. 06-01
10 59000 142,138,041 1.30
SA
No.1
11 55100 119,058,456 1.09
55
11
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2017 SC
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2021 4 28 SC
2021 12 31
2022 6 30
2021 30
2020
30 CG
www.ytl.com

www . bursamalaysia.com
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2019 29
www .yt .com
(www.ytl.com)
(_ABC )
2020 ABC ABC
2020
6 1 2009 MACC 17 A
ABC 2020 2 20
YTL MACC 17 A
) ABC
3 ABC
www.ytl.com
ABC
COVID-19
ABC

(integrity pledge)
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RC 2020 6 16
RC

- (2020 6 16 )
- (2020 6 16 )
- (2020 6 16 )

RC www. ytl.com

2021 6 30 RC 2

(M)

Giii)

RC

RC www. ytl.com

2021 6 30
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30

2020 12

Tricor Investor & Issuing House

38
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25
1954 23 67 1984
1988
(Executive Chairman) 2018 29
2004
2014
1988
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YTL L&D 2018
29
YTL
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YTL
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REIT
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YTL
YTL
2016
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2005 2012
25
2002
2010 CNBC
2006
(CBE) 2019 (KBE)
2008
2010 Primus
Inter Pares Honouree
2015

2016

2017

2017 Asian Power Awards
2018
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1957

17

64 1984
29
1981
«C ) 2017
1984
(UK)
YTL
YTL L&D
2018 29 YTL
YTL L&D
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YTL
YTL
YL
REIT

24
2018

REIT
YTL

SGX-ST
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2003 12

1956 13 65 1984 24

(Executive Director) C )
1990
12
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YTL
YTL
YTL
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(Executive Director) 1982
«c )
YTL
2010
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YTL
YTL
YTL YTL L&D YTL
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1960 10 20 61 1985 19
1983
(Executive Director)
YTL
YTL YTL L&D
YTL YTL
YTL

117/616



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

ooooodd
1963 10 58 1996 16
(Executive Director) 1986
YTL
1992
2012
YTL
YTL
YTL
AFCM
CNCA
YTL
WSF
WOSM WSF
1965 14 56 1995 22
LLB
(Executive Director) 1988
( ) 2014
1989 YTL
YTL
UK PT
YTL
REIT
YTL L&D YTL
YTL
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1950 24 71 2015 11 26
(Independent
Non-Executive Director) 1973
1973
Lembaga
Penggalakan Pelanchongan Malaysia, Malaysia
Industry- Government Group for High Technology
YTL
YTL REIT YTL
1954 14 67 1999 10 20
1977
( ) ( )
(Executive Director) 1984 1994
1994
11 1996
MIDF
YTL
YTL

119/616



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

ooooOoog
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Director) ACCA
1993 1999 1982
The New Straits Times Press (M) Berhad
NSTP 1999 2003
2003
2006 2007
YTL
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(Independent Non-Executive
Director)

1958 12 13

Programme

2018

Bank Berhad( CIMB 1B )

CIMB

Limited

2022 4 2

2008
(ICLIF)
30
2018 12 2015
CIMB
2007 2015 CIMB Investment
CIMB
CIMB GAM
CIMBMapletree
JP Morgan
JP Morgan
10

As-Salihin Trustee Berhad Ncell Axiata

62 2019

MARA Institute of Technology Twinning

MASCOT
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2021 30
)
149,844,946 1.37
58,508,722 0.53
56,101,999 0.51
54,173,305 0.49
58,087,165 0.53
23,232,200 0.21
9,911,955 0.09
2021
90,399,000 882,000
2020 2020 ESOS
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HLB PLT HLB
YTL
2021 30 HLB
HLB 244 2,231
HLB 16 73
HLB 12 310
28 383
YTLIA YTLIA
ACCA

37
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( )
244,000 16,000 244,000 16,000
9,872,000 1,585,000 9,326,000 689,000
10,116,000 1,601,000 9,570,000 705,000
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**
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2021 12

38 59

2021 2020

26.99

30

134

UFJ

132
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) 2021 2020
) 131
133
2021 2020 30
( ( 23 103 )
2021
193
100 3.7050
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(2021

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

30 )
2021 2020

4 17,270,419 466,128,609 19,178,449 517,626,339
5 (14,111,193) (380,861,099) (15,594,783) (420,903,193)
3,159,226 85,267,510 3,583,666 96,723,145
1,015,062 27,396,523 623,644 16,832,152
(496,336) (13,396,109) (470,836) (12,707,864)
(1,167,496) (31,510,717) (1,428,981) (38,568,197)
(719,138) (19,409,535) (284,651) (7,682,730)
6 (1,555,047) (41,970,719) (1,860,747) (50,221,562)
395,523 10,675,166 257,199 6,941,801
7 631,794 17,052,120 419,294 11,316,745
8 (959,178) (25,888,214) (414,636) (11,191,026)
(327,384) (8,836,094) 4,658 125,719
(367,664) (9,923,251) (189,221) (5,107,075)
40,280 1,087,157 193,879 5,232,794
(327,384) (8,836,094) 4,658 125,719

9 (3-38) (€D (1.78) )

10 — — 4.00 1
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30 o )
2021 2020
469,976 12,684,652 415,331 11,209,784
469,976 12,684,652 415,331 11,209,784
19,931 537,938 6,255 168,822
(76,310) (2,059,607) (73,645) (1,987,679)
(170,672) (4,606,437) (171,886) (4,639,203)
242,925 6,556,546 176,055 4,751,724
(3,073) (82,940) (6,462) (174,409)
239,852 6,473,605 169,593 4,577,315
239,852 6,473,605 169,593 4,577,315
239,852 6,473,605 169,593 4,577,315
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0 (2021 30 )
2021 2020
(327,384) (8.836,094) 4,658 125,719
354,623 9,571,275 (183,829) (4,961,545)
(91,770) (2,476,872) (35,344) (953,935)
208,870 5,637,401 (5.302) (143,101)
453,671 12,244,580 (149, 487) (4,034,654)
368,445 9,944,331 (17,419) (470,139)
(47,875) (1,292,146) (256,748) (6,929,629)
1,245,964 33,628,568 (648,129) (17,493,002)
918,580 24,792,474 (643,471) (17,367,282)
312,310 8,429,247 (657,305) (17,740,662)
606,270 16,363,227 13,834 373,380
918,580 24,792,474 (643,471) (17,367,282)

129/616



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
@) (2021 30 Y )
2021 2020
( ) 239,852 6,473,605 169,593 4,577,315
« )
— — 123 3,320
C ) - - - -
— — 123 3,320
)

( ) 239,852 6,473,605 169,716 4,580,635

« )
239,852 6,473,605 169,716 4,580,635
239,852 6,473,605 169,716 4,580,635
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®) (2021 30 )
2021 2020

11 32,120,318 866,927,383 30,475,254 822,527,105
12 1,712,517 46,220,834 1,636,035 44,156,585
13 1,976,498 53,345,681 1,811,126 48,882,291
14 1,067,428 28,809,882 1,128,221 30,450,685
15 — — — —
16 4,243,074 114,520,567 4,216,843 113,812,593
17 162,048 4,373,676 165,174 4,458,046
18 305,718 8,251,329 404,911 10,928,548
19 8,500,075 229,417,024 8,631,094 232,953,227
20 1,812,014 48,906,258 1,419,705 38,317,838
24 168 4,534 1,705 46,018
21 26,461 714,182 10,585 285,689
51,926,319 1,401,491,350 49,900,653 1,346,818,624

22 1,136,927 30,685,660 2,184,363 58,955,957
23 232,249 6,268,401 165,186 4,458,370
20 3,706,772 100,045,776 3,204,981 86,502,437
24 217,590 5,872,754 227,619 6,143,437
21 263,719 7,117,776 74,259 2,004,250
134,979 3,643,083 134,459 3,629,048

25 92,910 2,507,641 53,694 1,449,201
18 2,473,454 66,758,523 2,301,989 62,130,683
26 11,522,776 310,999,724 10,396,221 280,594,005
26 2,155,871 58,186,958 1,265,011 34,142,647
21,937,247 592,086,297 20,007,782 540,010,036

73,863,566 1,993,577,646 69,908,435 1,886,828,661
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©) (2021 30 )
2021 2020
27 3,467,555 93,589,309 3,467,555 93,589,309
28() 892,399 24,085,849 512,535 13,833,320
8,482,982 228,955,684 8,982,083 242,426,420
27(a) (54,451) (1,469,632) (501,837) (13,544,581)
12,788,485 345,161,210 12,460,336 336,304,469
3,549,476 95,800,357 3,149,593 85,007,515
16,337,961 440,961,567 15,609,929 421,311,984
29 1,464,641 39,530,661 1,257,300 33,934,527
24 31,958 862,546 31,326 845,489
30 20,756,133 560,208,030 19,655,639 530,505,697
31 14,654,414 395,522,634 12,596,167 339,970,547
32 1,303,867 35,191,370 1,443,868 38,969,997
33 661,614 17,856,962 596,669 16,104,096
34 3,060,349 82,598,820 2,164,004 58,406,468
35 481,682 13,000,597 910,898 24,585,137
36 27,752 749,026 — —
21 713 19,244 15,401 415,673
42,443,123 1,145,539,890 38,671,272 1,043,737,631
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OooooOodd
?) (2021 30 Y )
2021 2020

37 3,695,939 99,753,394 3,044,929 82,182,634
24 1,182,102 31,904,933 633,343 17,093,928
21 34,074 919,657 174,944 4,721,739
25 38,411 1,036,713 39,212 1,058,332
30 2,571,924 69,416,229 220,000 5,937,800
31 7,091,972 191,412,324 11,114,438 299,978,682
32 180,091 4,860,656 159,613 4,307,955
36 121,229 3,271,971 136,601 3,686,861
35 7,048 190,226 5,281 142,534
159,692 4,310,087 98,873 2,668,582

15,082,482 407,076,189 15,627,234 421,779,046

57,525,605 1,552,616,079 54,298,506 1,465,516,677

73,863,566 1,993,577,646 69,908,435 1,886,828,661
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OooooOodd
®) (2021 30 )(
2021 2020

11 3,720 100,403 3,852 103,965
12 15,580 420,504 9,069 244,772
13 — — — —
14 — — — —
15 7,764,294 209,558,295 7,764,014 209,550,738
16 564,021 15,222,927 376,235 10,154,583
17 — — — —
18 53,899 1,454,734 44,825 1,209,827
19 — — — —
20 — — — —
24 — — — —
21 — — — _
8,401,514 226,756,863 8,197,995 221,263,885

22 — — — —
23 — — — —
20 7,827 211,251 6,110 164,909
24 — — — —
21 — — — —
6,687 180,482 2,930 79,081

25 1,342,599 36,236,747 1,303,468 35,180,601
18 654,708 17,670,569 755,199 20,382,821
26 247,147 6,670,498 102,070 2,754,869
26 3,071 82,886 1,929 52,064
2,262,039 61,052,433 2,171,706 58,614,345

10,663,553 287,809,295 10,369,701 279,878,230
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(2021

27

28(a)

27(a)

29
24
30
31
32
33
34

35
36

21

30 )(
2021 2020

3,467,555 93,589,309 3,467,555 93,589,309
2,759 74,465 82,781 2,234,259
2,891,977 78,054,459 3,038,245 82,002,233
(54,451) (1,469,632) (501,837) (13,544,581)
6,307,840 170,248,602 6,086,744 164,281,221
6,307,840 170,248,602 6,086,744 164,281,221
3,240,000 87,447,600 2,500,000 67,475,000
_ _ 140 3,779
9,056 244,421 2,339 63,130
113 3,050 113 3,050
3,249,169 87,695,071 2,502,592 67,544,958
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®) (2021 30 )(
2021 2020
37 28,058 757,285 17,462 471,299
24 — —_ — —
21 — — — —
25 4,460 120,375 4,708 127,069
30 — — — —
31 1,066,995 28,798,195 1,751,065 47,261,244
32 6,716 181,265 6,843 184,693
36 — — — —
35 315 8,502 287 7,746
1,106,544 29,865,623 1,780,365 48,052,051
4,355,713 117,560,694 4,282,957 115,597,009
10,663,553 287,809,295 10,369,701 279,878,230

136/616



EDINETOOOO
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Oooooooo
30 )
28(a)) 27(a))
512,535 8,982,083 (501,837) 12,460,336 3,149,593 15,609,929
— (367,664) — (367,664) 40,280 (327,384)
482,902 197,072 — 679,974 565,990 1,245,964
482,902 (170,592) — 312,310 606,270 918,580
— 28,860 — 28,860 68,653 97,513
8,313 (8,333) — (20) — (20)
— — — — (271,239) (271,239)
— (477,700) 477,700 — — —
13,512 — — 13,512 — 13,512
(91,580) 91,580 — — — —
(33,283) 37,084 — 3,801 (3,801) —
— — (30,314) (30,314) — (30,314)
892,399 8,482,982 (54,451) 12,788,485 3,549,476 16,337,961
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Ooooooog
30 )IGEED
28(a)) 27(2))
13,833,320 242,426,420  (13,544,581) 336,304,469 85,007,515 421,311,984
— (9,923,251) — (9,923,251) 1,087,157 (8,836,094)
13,033,525 5,318,973 — 18,352,498 15,276,070 33,628,568
13,033,525 (4,604,278) — 8,429,247 16,363,227 24,792,474
— 778,931 — 778,931 1,852,944 2,631,876
224,368 (224,908) — (540) — (540)
— — — — (7,320,741) (7.,320,741)
—  (12,893,123) 12,893,123 — — —
364,689 — — 364,689 — 364,689
(2,471,744) 2,471,744 — — — —
(898,308) 1,000,897 — 102,589 (102,589) —
— — (818,175) (818,175) — (818,175)
24,085,849 228,955,684 (1,469,632) 345,161,210 95,800,357 440,961,567
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OoooooO
30 o )
28(a)) C 21(a)
907,066 9,466,735 (472,793) 13,241,119 7,597,274 20,838,393
— (189,221) — (189,221) 193,879 4,658
(366,176) (101,908) — (468,084) (180,045) (648,129)
(366,176) (291,129) — (657,305) 13,834 (643,471)
— 311,615 — 311,615 (3,820,251)  (3,508,636)
(46,825) (79,524) — (126,349) — (126,349)
— (426,770) — (426,770) (641,264)  (1,068,034)
— — — 127,444 — 127,444
19,343 — — 19,343 — 19,343
(527) 527 — — — _
(346) 629 — 283 — 283
— — (29,044) (29,044) — (29,044)
512,535 8,982,083 (501,837) 12,460,336 3,149,593 15,609,929
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4 (2021 30 )(
C D ey (  27@)
2019 90,149,596 24,481,711 255,507,178  (12,760,683) 357,377,802 205,050,425 562,428,227
') — —  (5,107,075) —  (5,107,075) 5,232,794 125,719
—  (9,883,090)  (2,750,497) —  (12,633,587)  (4,859,415) (17,493,002)
¢ —  (9,883,090)  (7,857,572) —  (17,740,662) 373,380  (17,367,282)
— — 8,410,489 — 8,410,489  (103,108,574)  (94,698,086)
IcuLS —  (1,263,807)  (2,146,353) —  (3,410,160) — (3,410,160)
— —  (11,518,522) —  (11,518,522) (17,307,715)  (28,826,238)
3,439,714 — — — 3,439,714 — 3,439,714
— 522,068 — — 522,068 — 522,068
— (14,224) 14,224 — — — —
— (9,339) 16,977 — 7,638 — 7,638
— — — (783,898) (783,898) — (783,898)
2020 30 93,589,309 13,833,320 242,426,420  (13,544,581) 336,304,469 85,007,515 421,311,984
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(%) (2021 30 )
27 28 213

2020 3,467,555 82,781 3,038,245 (501,837) 6,086,744

— — 239,852 — 239,852

_ — (477,700) 477,700 —

— 11,558 — — 11,558

— (91,580) 91,580 — —

— — — (30,314) (30,314)
2021 30 3,467,555 2,759 2,891,977 (54,451) 6,307,840
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oooooog
) (2021 30 )( )
. _2n ( 28()  21a)

2020 93,589,309 2,234,259 82,002,233 (13,544,581) 164,281,221

— — 6,473,605 — 6,473,605

— — (12,893,123) 12,893,123 —

— 311,950 — — 311,950

— (2,471,744) 2,471,744 — —

— — — (818,175) (818,175)
2021 30 93,589,309 74,465 78,054,459 (1,469,632) 170,248,602
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Ooooodo
©) (2021 30 )( )
 2n (_28(a) (21(@)
2019 3,340,111 66,676 3,294,895 (472,793) 6,228,889
— — 169,593 — 169,593
— 123 — — 123
— 123 169,593 — 169,716
127,444 — — — 127,444
_ — (426,770) — (426,770)
— 16,509 — — 16,509
— (527) 527 — —
— — — (29,044) (29,044)
2020 30 3,467,555 82,781 3,038,245 (501,837) 6,086,744
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(5) (2021 30 )( )
27 (28() (21a)

2019 90,149,596 1,799,585 88,929,216 (12,760,683) 168,117,714
— — 4,577,315 — 4,577,315
— 3,320 — — 3,320
— 3,320 4,577,315 — 4,580,635
3,439,714 — — — 3,439,714

— — (11,518,522) — (11,518,522)
— 445,578 — — 445,578
— (14,224) 14,224 — —

— — — (783,898) (783,898)
2020 30 93,589,309 2,234,259 82,002,233 (13,544,581) 164,281,221
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® (2021 30
2021 2020
631,794 17,052,120 419,294 11,316,745
(70,707) (1,908,382) 12,808 345,688
3,043 82,131 7,842 211,656
(5,924) (159,889) (5,209) (140,591)
(21,548) (581,581) (15,166) (409,330)
79,508 2,145,921 69,606 1,878,666
(3,930) (106,071) (2,949) (79,594)
1,327 35,816 10,901 294,218
1,641,525 44,304,760 1,554,423 41,953,877
183,038 4,940,196 193,895 5,233,226
(11,290) (304,717) (10,083) (272,140)
_ — 16,765 452,487
374,937 10,119,550 (25,976) (701,092)
(21,718) (586,169) 1,172) (31,632)
() (43,735) (1,180,408) (18,739) (505,766)
(407,641) (11,002,231) (258,506) (6,977,077)
(934) (25,209) — —
(575) (15,519) — —
49,822 1,344,696 183,203 4,944,649
1,555,047 41,970,719 1,860,747 50,221,562
(161,732) (4,365,147) (279,072) (7,532,153)
997 26,909 44,656 1,205,265
8,916 240,643 7,675 207,148
12,411 334,973 51,896 1,400,673
5,335 143,992 8,175 220,643
63,329 1,709,250 43,790 1,181,892
(7,304) (197,135) (4,437) (119,755)
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2021 2020

15,071 406,766 21,637 583,983
(395,523) (10,675,166) (257,199) (6,941,801)
(27,270) (736,017) (96,052) (2,592,443)
3,446,269 93,014,800 3,532,753 95,349,003
137,830 3,720,032 638,001 17,219,647
(67,063) (1,810,030) 481 12,982
(826,177) (22,298,517) 690,251 18,629,874
29,194 787,946 (39,277) (1,060,086)
544,271 14,689,874 (405,019) (10,931,463)
928,656 25,064,425 93,104 2,512,877
(40,017) (1,080,059) (12,666) (341,855)
4,152,963 112,088,471 4,497,628 121,390,980
471,677 12,730,562 399,216 10,774,840
(1,364,148) (36,818,355) (1,723,489) (46,516,968)
162,829 4,394,755 311,049 8,395,213
(136,007) (3,670,829) (129,759) (3,502,195)
(287,272) (7.753,471) (376,563) (10,163,435)
10,261 276,944 64,621 1,744,121
3,010,303 81,248,078 3,042,703 82,122,554
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2021 2020
— — (20,677) (558,072)
§ — — 18,977 512,189
(23,984) (647,328) (19,253) (519,638)
(31,745) (856,798) (92,311) (2,491,474)
90 544,576 14,698,106 (519,204) (14,013,316)
38,482 1,038,629 49,342 1,331,741
(80,808) (2,181,008) (94,651) (2,554,630)
419,136 11,312,481 (245,871) (6,636,058)
(301,958) (8,149,846) 176,000 4,750,240
87,443 2,360,087 42,521 1,147,642
216,563 5,845,035 238,148 6,427,615
4,766 128,634 4,129 111,442
(31,164) (841,116) (175,368) (4,733,182)
(37,065) (1,000,384) (559,216) (15,093, 240)
(1,910,842) (51,573,626) (1,579,690) (42,635,833)
(2,887) (77,920) (265,855) (7,175,426)
(1,109,487) (29,945,054) (3,042,979) (82,130,003)
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(2021 30 o )
2021 2020
— — (426,770) (11,518,522)
(271,239) (7.320,741) (641,264) (17,307,715)
(30,314) (818,175) (29,044) (783,898)
(38,047) (1,026,889) @ (54)
2,407,070 64,966,819 1,312,199 35,416,251
1,142,376 30,832,728 5,514,829 148,845,235
237,150 6,400,679 — —
— — (10,000) (269,900)
(2,901,744) (78,318,071) (6,097,544) (164,572,713)
(238,856) (6,446,723) (429,879) (11,602,434)
(7,479) (201,858) — _
298,917 8,067,770 (807,475) (21,793,750)
2,199,733 59,370,794 (807,751) (21,801,199)
352,797 9,521,991 143,990 3,886,290
11,100,066 299,590,781 11,763,827 317,505,691
13,652,596 368,483,566 11,100,066 299,590,781
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2021 2020
1,910,842 51,573,626 1,579,690 42,635,833
23,733 640,554 18,554 500,772
— — 91,836 2,478,654
— — 58,733 1,585,204
3,868 104,397 16,182 436,752
11,501 310,412 — —
1,949,944 52,628,989 1,764,995 47,637,215
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OooooOodd
(2021 30 o )

2021 2020
43,586,244 1,176,392,726 46,079,788 1,243,693,478
(1,360,225) (36,712,473) (1,723,489) (46,516,968)
2,407,070 64,966,819 1,312,199 35,416,251
1,142,376 30,832,728 5,514,829 148,845,235
(7,479) (201,858) — _
— — (10,000) (269,900)
(2,901,744) (78,318,071) (6,097,544) (164,572,713)
(3,923) (105,882) (6,405) (172,871)
110,363 2,978,697 138,134 3,728,237
(22,491) (607,032) 24,607 664,143
— — (2,736) (73,845)
(526,749) (14,216,956) (3,493,431) (94,287,703)
— — 4,906 132,413
1,448,839 39,104,165 1,797,567 48,516,333
1,202,162 32,446,352 47,819 1,290,635
45,074,443 1,216,559,217 43,586,244 1,176,392,726
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2021 2020
1,603,481 43,277,952 953,623 25,738,285
(238,856) (6,446,723) (429,879) (11,602,434)
115,874 3,127,439 1,032,704 27,872,681
(113) (3,050) — _
92,316 2,491,609 47,286 1,276,249
(44,286) (1,195,279) — —
(21,156) (571,000) (420) (11,336)
(30,485) (822,790) — —
7,183 193,869 167 4,507
1,483,958 40,052,026 1,603,481 43,277,952
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2021 2020
242,925 6,556,546 176,055 4,751,724
(50) (1,350) — —
781 21,079 809 21,835
6,719 181,346 4,535 122,400
(446,865) (12,060,886) (371,871) (10,036,798)
(7,191) (194,085) (823) (22,213)
10,055 271,384 — —
() 2 54 — —
(129) (3,482) — —
(194) (5,236) — —
170,672 4,606,437 171,886 4,639,203
(22,855) (616, 856) (43,200) (1,165,968)
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2021 2020
4,695 126,718 6,654 179,591
(41,435) (1,118,331) (55,955) (1,510,225)
(1,674) (45,181) 7,234 195,246
10,632 286,958 (40) (1,080)
(220,113) (5,940, 850) (237,265) (6,403,782)
(252,590) (6,817,404) (286,026) (7,719,842)
446,865 12,060,886 347,132 9,369,093
(170,108) (4,591,215) (171,591) (4,631,241)
22,855 616,856 43,200 1,165,968
(6.829) (184,315) (11,092) (299,373)
— — 23,971 646,977
40,193 1,084,809 (54,406) (1,468,418)
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2021 2020
(279) (7.530) 7 (1,269)
( _ — — —

)

90 « ) — — — —
; — — — —
« D _ _ — —
10 270 — —
88,554 2,390,072 42,642 1,150,908
(661) (17,840) 187) (5,047)
( ) 87,624 2,364,972 42,408 1,144,592
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2021 2020

— — (426,770) (11,518,522)

) (30,314) (818,175) (29,044) (783,898)
740,000 19,972,600 — —
— — 465,784 12,571,510

— — (10,000) (269,900)

(684,210) (18,466,828) (200,565) (5,413, 249)

(7,074) (190,927) (4,716) (127,285)

( ) 18,402 496,670 (205,311) (5,541,344)

¢ ) 146,219 3,946,451 (217,309) (5,865,170)
103,999 2,806,933 321,308 8,672,103
26) 250,218 6,753,384 103,999 2,806,933
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2021 2020
661 17,840 187 5,047
661 17,840 187 5,047
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2021 2020
4,251,205 114,740,023 3,978,521 107,380,282
(170,108) (4,591,215) (171,591) (4,631,241)
740,000 19,972,600 — —
_ — 465,784 12,571,510
— — (10,000) (269, 900)
(684,210) (18,466,828) (200,565) (5,413, 249)
ICULS — — — —
170,108 4,591,215 171,591 4,631,241
— — 17,465 471,380
30 4,306,995 116,245,795 4,251,205 114,740,023
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(2021 30 Y )
2021 2020
9,182 247,822 — —
(7,074) (190,927) (4,716) (127,285)
20,031 540,637 13,603 367,145
564 15,222 295 7,962
(6,931) (187,068) — —
15,772 425,686 9,182 247,822
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(b)
2020 2020
MFRS IC
MFRS
MFRS 2020
MFRS 2020
MFRS 2020
MFRS 101 2020
MFRS 108 2020
MFRS 134 2020
MFRS 137 2020
MFRS 138 2020
IC 12 2020
IC 19 2020
IC 20 2020
IC 22 2020
IC 132 2020
MFRS 2020
MFRS 101 MFRS 108 2020
MFRSMFRS MFRS 139 2020
MFRS 16 COVID-19 2020
IC
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©
MFRS MFRS 139 MFRS MFRS MFRS 16 2021
MFRS 16 2021 30 CovID-19 2021
MFRS 2022
MFRS 116 2022
MFRS 137 2022
MFRS 2018 -2020
MFRS 2022
MFRS 10 2022
MFRS 141 2022
MFRS 17 2023
MFRS 101
2023
2023
MFRS 108 2023
MFRS 112 2023
MFRS 10 MFRS 128
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2021 2020 2021 2020
17,067,803 18,504,298 256 260
202,616 674,151 469,720 415,071
17,270,419 19,178,449 469,976 415,331
@
2021 2020 2021 2020
5,876,292 5,837,626 — —
3,772,223 3,479,290 — —
182,630 171,900 — —
524,826 396,858 — —
216,146 389,427 — —
10,572,117 10,275,101 — —
4,076,215 4,077,724 — —
15,855 14,479 — _
4,092,070 4,092,203 — —
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2021 2020 2021 2020
1,514,505 2,316,005 — —
416,107 1,113,986 — —
8,054 18,529 — —
424,161 1,132,515 — —

— 11,132 — —

229,833 435,476 — —
26,501 — — —
14,485 48,651 — —
270,819 495,259 — —
3,175 3,500 — —

37 4 — _

3,212 3,541 — —
111,173 139,023 — —
66,326 19,853 — —
3,854 14,659 — —
9,566 16,139 256 260
190,919 189,674 256 260
17,067,803 18,504,298 256 260
88,491 481,471 — _
103,372 183,887 22,855 43,200
10,753 8,793 446,865 371,871
202,616 674,151 469,720 415,071
17,270,419 19,178,449 469,976 415,331
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2021 2020 2021 2020
4,683,512 7,819,342 — —
12,384,291 10,684,956 256 260
17,067,803 18,504,298 256 260

2021 2020

2,430,224 3,011,036
1,254,029 2,061,477
6,191,220 5,996,783
— 7,322
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2021 2020 2021 2020
797,732 874,796 139,188 116,028
674,840 946,231 30,920 55,563
13,892 15,894 — _
92,316 47,286 564 295
1,578,780 1,884,207 170,672 171,886
23 — (4,906) — —
11 (23,733) (18,554) — —
1,555,047 1,860,747 170,672 171,886
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oOoOooodn

2021 2020 2021 2020
( ) (

24 3,043 7,842 — _

19 79,508 69,606 — —

9,716 10,029 244 244

(146) 87 — —

705 1,601 16 16

1,327 10,901 — —

(60,144) 154,819 — _

11 1,641,525 1,554,423 781 809

12 183,038 193,895 6,719 4,535

36,484 57,993 4,092 6,032

1,840 1,821 890 822

762 1,106 204 70

2,869 16,210 — —

38(e) — — (194) —

38(e) 623 100 — —

19 1,269 1,723 — —

38(e) 6,596 153,645 — —

— 1,135 — —

— 898 — —

11 41,425 28,958 — —
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oOoOooodn

(

)

2021 2020 2021 2020
126,922 110,728 — —
13 8,916 7,675 — —
997 44,656 — —
73,935 84,967 161 634
2,797 8,683 — —
11,468 27,502 949 —
19,327 28,433 — —
— 20,122 — —
373,536 — — —
11 12,411 51,896 — —
175,657 133,510 — —
( ) (
13 70,707 (12,808) — —
5,924 5,209 — —
33 21,548 15,166 — —
3,930 2,949 50 —
— 258,506 — —
21,718 1,172 (10,055) —
43,735 18,739 © —
407,641 — — —
46,188 3,281 1,411 366
46,597 124,485 — _
934 — — —
575 — 129 —
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2021 2020 2021 2020
537 1,290 — —
29,089 26,947 — —
49,475 90,424 — —
8,312 4,015 — —
573 746 — —
— 3,357 — _
18 (1,401) 25,976 7,191 823
549 6,646 — —
11,681 10,166 — —
38(e) 91 278 — —
14 — 2,978 — —
36 7,304 4,437 — —
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2021 30 2020 30
2021
¢ 307 9,223 — 594 791 1 219 11,135
PSM  KBE ’ ’
193 3,901 — 390 789 1 242 5,516
— 2,855 — 298 789 1 63 4,006
— 3,029 — 319 789 3 59 4,199
— 3,285 123 338 789 1 54 4,590
— 2,441 — 291 789 1 37 3,559
— 2,736 — 284 789 3 62 3,874
— 648 — 26 79 1 26 780
) 230 — — — — 17 — 247
430 — — — — 23 — 453
460 — — — — 35 — 495
220 — — — — 12 — 232
1,840 28,118 123 2,540 5,604 99 762 39,086
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2021
(S pSl KBE — — — — 472 — 115 587
— 609 — 73 472 — 47 1,201

— — — — 472 — — 472

— — — — 472 — — 472

— — — — 472 — — 472

— — — — 472 — — 472

_ — — — 472 — 42 514

— — — — 47 — — 47

) 230 — — — — 17 — 247

210 — — — — 13 — 223

230 — — — — 17 — 247

220 — — — — 12 — 232

890 609 — 73 3,351 59 204 5,186

205/616
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oOoOooodn

2020

PSM KBE 289 10,969 2,477 1,090 1,114 2 148 16,089
182 4,969 1,521 632 1,114 2 679 9,099

— 3,681 1,244 547 1,114 1 36 6,623

— 3,913 1,331 585 1,114 2 37 6,982

— 4,100 1,333 596 1,114 2 56 7,201

— 3,232 1,212 533 1,114 1 29 6,121

— 3,523 1,184 521 1,114 3 41 6,386

— 648 120 31 111 1 80 991

) 328 — — — — 23 — 351
410 — — — — 21 — 431

439 — — — — 27 — 466

173 — — — — 7 — 180

1,821 35,035 10,422 4,535 7,909 92 1,106 60,920
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2020

PSM  KBE - - - - 667 — — 667
— 812 305 134 667 — 70 1,988
— — — — 667 — — 667
— — — — 667 — — 667
_ — — — 667 — — 667
— — — — 667 — — 667
— — — — 667 — — 667
— — — — 66 — — 66
) 220 — — — — 14 — 234
210 — — — — 12 — 222
219 — — — — 13 — 232
173 — — — — 7 — 180
822 812 305 134 4,735 46 70 6,924
2021 2020 2021 2020
( )

1,004,547 1,222,551 17,839 20,577

116,361 124,950 1,997 2,306

63,329 43,824 — —

7,998 14,557 1,344 1,922

44,173 34,647 646 1,406

1,236,408 1,440,529 21,826 26,211

207/616
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oOoOooodn

2021 2020 2021 2020
192,628 130,626 3,073 6,462
154,869 139,452 — —
611,681 144,558 — —
959,178 414,636 3,073 6,462
385,484 319,075 5,601 9,851
(37,987) (48,997) (2,528) (3.389)
611,681 144,558 — —
959,178 414,636 3,073 6,462
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24 )

19
30

17
30

24 (2020

25

19

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OoOoOoOoOodno
2021 2020 2021 2020

631,794 419,294 242,925 176,055
151,631 100,631 58,302 42,253
556,541 379,548 57,719 57,390

(180,967) (128,308) (110, 420) (89,792)
(65,632) (3,544) — _
540,507 162,410 — —
(811) (974) — _

(37,987) (48,997) (2,528) (3,389)
(94,926) (61,728) — —
(226) 362 — —
91,048 15,236 — —
959,178 414,636 3,073 6,462

540.5 2021
(2023 ) 30 2021
25
162.4 2020
(2020 ) 30 2020
19
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2021 2020
( ) (367,664) (189,221)
« ) 10,864,161 10,648,839
¢ ) (3.38) 1.78)
10
2021 2020
( ) ( )
2019 30
2019 11 13 - — 4.0 426,770
_ _ 4.0 426,770
2021 2021 30 2.5
2021 24 10 12

2021 30
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

Ooooooo
11
.
2021
2020 11,633,752 8,944,577 24,954,429 2,062,754 1,060,267 3,078,916 1,142,842 52,877,537
98,501 29 34,301 26,700 10,198 12,548 1,767,667 1,949,944
371,185 854,220 931,493 103,214 (14,160) — 122,020 2,367,981
(333,999) (7.175)  (906,219)  (11,352)  (62,453) (415) (60) (1,321,673)
(101,545) — (231,517) (1,945) (1,180) — — (33,187
25,767 — — — — — — 25,767
398,917 333,631 536,583 96,147 43,576 218,369 (1,627,223) —
— (30,290) — — — — — (30,290)
1 _ _ _ _ — — (1,890) (1,890)
) 12 (237,509) — — — — 86,695 — (150,814)
(6.,416) —  (311,261)  (25,148) — (10,176) (2,957)  (355,958)
2021 30 11,848,653 10,004,992 25,007,800 2,250,370 1,036,248 3,385,937 1,400,408 55,024,417
2020 3,814,964 781,062 14,952,357 1,033,909 735,870 1,084,121 — 22,402,283
248,953 87,566 945,669 153,558 70,034 145,016 — 1,650,796
66,953 73,275 538,504 38,496 (26,049) — — 691,179
(64,028) —  (204,014) (1,722) (921) — —  (270,685)
(318,262) (7.175)  (889,951) (9.119)  (53,377) (1) —  (1,277,965)
5,426 — 61,766 — — — — 67,192
¢ ) 12 (34,853) — — — — 19,699 — (15,154)
(6,792) —  (303,238)  (23,49) — (10,021) — (343,547)
2021 30 3,712,361 934,728 15,101,093 1,191,626 725,557 1,238,734 — 22,904,099
2021 30 8,136,202 9,160,264 9,906,716 1,058,744 310,601 2,147,203 1,400,408 32,120,318
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OoooooO
*
2020
2019 10,849,772 8,467,160 23,970,206 2,080,562 789,288 3,030,744 2,085,460 51,273,192
249,495 — 319,615 7,627 13,112 — 22,962 612,811
64,172 419 77,878 43,412 26,170 2,349 1,550,595 1,764,995
77,468 26,336 45,803 15,162 1,601 — 20,100 186,470
(440,020) — (47,200) (2,707) — — — (489,927)
(13,254) — (17,701) (32,807) (42,969) (741) — (107,472)
(26,005) — — — — — — (26,005)
14 542 — — — — — 89,960 90,502
13 270 6,133 — — — — — 6,403
23 292,380 — 56,281 — — — 8,375 357,036
345,402 444,389 1,558,573 58,494 30,161 104,401 (2,541,420) —
A 254,611 880 (753,005) 16,804 243,725 (56,635) (92,584)  (386,204)
(21,081) (740)  (256,021)  (123,793) (821) (1,202) (606)  (404,264)
2020 30 11,633,752 8,944,577 24,954,429 2,062,754 1,060,267 3,078,916 1,142,842 52,877,537
2019 3,289,118 686,166 14,614,240 1,001,960 563,088 1,001,751 — 21,156,323
107,076 — 156,008 5,482 9,816 — — 278,382
241,157 77,802 910,524 134,131 67,914 132,185 — 1,563,713
39,031 16,737 (1,563) 6,886 1,054 — — 62,145
(27,559) — (31,860) (2,626) — — — (62,045)
(1,776) — (13,931) (29,845) (37,921) @17) — (83,690)
— — 2,953 — — — — 2,953
A 181,984 487 (440,267) 10,847 132,704 (48,885) — (163,130)
(14,067) (130)  (243,747) (92,926) (785) (713) — (352,368)
2020 30 3,814,964 781,062 14,952,357 1,033,909 735,870 1,084,121 — 22,402,283
2020 30 7,818,788 8,163,515 10,002,072 1,028,845 324,397 1,994,795 1,142,842 30,475,254
2020

212/616



2020

2021

2021

2020

2021

2021
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2021
929,367 7,811,313 1,941,916 923,116
6,083 2,509 — —
935,450 7,813,822 1,941,916 923,116
52 4,601 2,098 91,750
15,979 418,081 (47,575) (15,300)
(1,586) (330,090) (1,931) (392)
_ — (101,545) —
— 25,767 — —
(3,789) 85,638 (3,434) 82,993
— (35) @31 (5,920)
30 946,106 8,017,784 1,789,498 1,076,247
940,023 8,015,275 1,789,498 1,076,247
6,083 2,509 — —
30 946,106 8,017,784 1,789,498 1,076,247
40 2,677,090 766,700 362,906
— 797 — —
40 2,677,887 766,700 362,906
— 172,111 47,439 28,696
— 130,864 (62,725) (1,186)
— (316,830) (1,040) (392)
— — (64,028) —
— — 5,426 —
— (17,213) (17,640) —
— an (428) (5,920)
30 40 2,646,802 673,704 384,104
939,983 5,369,318 1,115,794 692,143
6,083 1,664 — —
30 946,066 5,370,982 1,115,794 692,143

213/616



2020

2021

2021

2020

2021

2021

30

30

30

30

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2021 ()

19,448

11,625,160
8,592

19,448

(430)

11,633,752
98,501
371,185
(333,999)
(101,545)
25,767
161,408
(6,416)

19,018

11,848,653

19,018

11,840,061
8,592

19,018

11,848,653

7,431

3,814,167
797

7,431
707

427)

3,814,964
248,953
66,953
(318,262)
(64,028)
5,426
(34,853)
(6,792)

7,711

3,712,361

11,307

8,128,545
7,747

11,307

8,136,292
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2020
2019
1,054,959 94,740 314 7,334,743
6,083 200 — 2,478
1,061,042 94,940 314 7,337,221
199 — — 18,670
10,355 — — 47,084
(207,177) (94,940) — (111,748)
(3,006) — — (9,034)
— — — (26,005)
74,037 — (314) 568,854
_ — — (11,220)
2020 30 935,450 — — 7,813,822
929,367 — — 7,811,313
6,083 — — 2,509
2020 30 935,450 — — 7,813,822
2019
40 9,431 — 2,496,654
— 32 —_ 748
40 9,463 — 2,497,402
— — — 165,930
— — — 33,263
— (9,463) — (15,008)
_ — — (591)
— — — 3,255
— — — (6,364)
2020 30 40 — — 2,677,887
929,327 — — 5,134,223
6,083 — — 1,712
2020 30 935,410 — — 5,135,935

215/616



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
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2020 ()
2019
1,409,972 943,648 2,635 10,841,011
— — — 8,761
1,409,972 943,648 2,635 10,849,772
249,495 — — 249,495
11,213 34,090 — 64,172
11,451 8,578 — 77,468
(26,155) — — (440,020)
(622) (592) — (13,254)
— — — (26,005)
292,622 (58,952) 16,958 893,205
(6,060) (3,656) (145) (21,081)
2020 30 1,941,916 923,116 19,448 11,633,752
1,941,916 923,116 19,448 11,625,160
— — — 8,592
2020 30 1,941,916 923,116 19,448 11,633,752
2019
408,428 371,642 2,143 3,288,338
— — — 780
408,428 371,642 2,143 3,289,118
107,076 — — 107,076
46,867 27,640 720 241,157
4,445 1,323 — 39,031
(3,088) — — (27,559)
(593) (592) — (1,776)
209,204 (35,183) 4,708 181,984
(5,639) (1,924) (140) (14,067)
2020 30 766,700 362,906 7,431 3,814,964
1,175,216 560,210 12,017 7,810,993
— — — 7,795
2020 30 1,175,216 560,210 12,017 7,818,788

216/616



2020

2021

2020

2021

2021

2019

2020

2019

2020

2020

2021

2020

30

30

30

30

30

30
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

7,395 9,292 16,687
232 429 661
— (638) (638)
7,627 9,083 16,710
7,116 5,719 12,835
230 551 781
— (626) (626)
7,346 5,644 12,990
281 3,439 3,720
7,208 9,292 16,500
187 — 187
7,395 9,292 16,687
6,701 5,325 12,026
415 394 809
7,116 5,719 12,835
279 3,573 3,852
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©
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2021 2020 2021
1,641,525 1,554,423 781 809
24(c) 9,271 9,290 — —
1,650,796 1,563,713 781 809
2021 2020 2021
17,489 20,823 — —
2,544 3,384 973 1,096
20,033 24,207 973 1,096
2021 2020
157,962 168,961
1,229,752 1,171,728
1,387,714 1,340,689
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(D
23.733
(2020 97.1
( PPE
@
( cou
( FVLCD )
EBITDA
FVLCD
14
2021 30 olell
cou
(2020 )
)
(2020
(2020 )

EDINETOOOO

OooooooooooooooooooOonooOn(enss21)
OooooOodd
(2020  18.554 )
2021 30 5.3
)
)
) PPE
FVLCD
2021 2020
7.6 7.7
27.6 20.7
53.1 45.1
PPE
2.5 (2020 2.5 )
25 (2020 27 )
47 (2020 90
3.0 (2020 0.5 ) 168
100 ) EBITDA 12
60 (2020 43
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Q)
COVID-19
PPE

2021 2020

7.4 —

6.6 —

67.192
(2020 )
PPE
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2021
2020
13
11
« )
2021 30
2021 30
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

104,089 564,135 391,052 2,480 5,293 568,619 367 1,636,035
12,800 21,421 38,998 — 1,546 13,289 — 88,054
(19,041)  (106,987) (31,987) (926) (3.422) (20,518) (157)  (183,038)

305 — 21,806 7 331 3,968 — 26,417

_ — (99) — — (7,675) — @,774)
(6,981) (5.474) (59) (524) (615) — m (13,660)
(2,434) (9.868) @) — — — — (12,309)
— — (759) — — - - (759)
2,961 (66,996) 171,357 — — 28,338 — 135,660
— — — — — 43,891 — 43,891
91,699 396,231 590,302 1,087 3,133 629,912 203 1,712,517
128,440 1,202,943 668,145 2,965 12,942 923,573 209 2,939,217
(36,741)  (806,712) (77,843) (1,928) (9.809)  (293,661) (6) (1,226,700)
91,699 396,231 590,302 1,087 3,133 629,912 203 1,712,517
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2019

2020

2020

30

30

30

30

2020

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
122,117 666,781 94,207 4,674 12,378 572,621 — 1,472,778
6,446 11,885 314,447 260 — 10,199 2,096 345,333
— — — — — 6,482 — 6,482
(24,900) (114,136) (17,957) (2,461) (7,135) (25,575) (1,731) (193,895)
426 — 612 7 50 4,892 2 5,989
— (395) 57) — — — — (652)
104,089 564,135 391,052 2,480 5,293 568,619 367 1,636,035
130,728 1,327,862 411,161 4,942 12,403 848,623 2,114 2,737,833
(26,639) (763,727) (20,109) (2,462) (7,110) (280,004) ,747) (1,101,798)
104,089 564,135 391,052 2,480 5,293 568,619 367 1,636,035
2021 2020
9,069 —
20,031 13,604
(6.719) (4,535)
(6.,801) —
15,580 9,069
20,031 13,604
(4,451) (4,535)
15,580 9,069

2221616




30

13
525.083

12

(2020
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13

2021
12
2020
23
11
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

1,244,366 566,760 1,811,126
37,065 — 37,065
92,032 (3,281) 88,751
(8,890) (9,154) (18,044)

8,890 9,154 18,044
47,713 — 47,713
— 759 759
(8,413) (503) (8,916)
1,412,763 563,735 1,976,498
2,960,906 7,256,667 10,217,573
343,257 215,959 559,216
(1,633) (11,175) (12,808)
(12,741) (42,968) (55,709)
(1,979,583) (6,851,698) (8,831,281)
(51,787) — (51,787)
(6,403) — (6,403)
(7,650) (25) (7.,675)
1,244,366 566,760 1,811,126

224/616
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88.751
18.004
30 31 455
(2020 481 )
2021
— — 532,775 532,775
— — 679,100 679,100
— 44,460 720,163 764,623
— 44,460 1,932,038 1,976,498
2020
_ — 547,452 547,452
— — 672,000 672,000
— 34,610 557,064 591,674
— 34,610 1,776,516 1,811,126
77.970 (2020
527.278 )
11.320 (2020  91.735 )

8.506 (2020 11.251 )
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@
39(b)
()
© ( )
)
6.5 7.50
)
6.25 7.00
( (2020  6.00 7.50 )
) 6.50 7.00
(2020 6.00
7.50 )
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()
2021 2020
1.50
3.00

— 9.1

— 12 24

- 1.5 —

— 18-28
18-28 —
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)

2021

11
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oOoOooodn

420,278 226,453 260,591 907,322
94 2,910 10,428 13,432

— — (5,184) (5,184)
(70,822) — (11,033) (81,855)
349,550 229,363 254,802 833,715
(530) (24,789) (480) (25,799)
349,020 204,574 254,322 807,916
— 186,890 59,808 246,698

— — 18,313 18,313

— — (151) (151)

— (5,489) (1,749) (7,238)

_ — 1,890 1,890

— 181,401 78,111 259,512
349,020 385,975 332,433 1,067,428
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2020
@
412,956 232,403 242,096 887,455
— 4,948 18,827 23,775
23 7,322 — — 7,322
— (10,898) (332) (11,230)
420,278 226,453 260,591 907,322
(530) (27,767) (480) (28,777)
— 2,978 — 2,978
(530) (24,789) (480) (25,799)
419,748 201,664 260,111 881,523
®
— 177,057 91,503 268,560
— 3,867 64,669 68,536
— — (8,175) (8,175)
— 5,966 2,313 8,279
11 — — (90,502) (90,502)
— 186,890 59,808 246,698
419,748 388,554 319,919 1,128,221
31 354.225 (2020
327.064 )
PT PLN( ) 30
( TJPC )
2018 2020 TJPC

(Business Viability Guarantee Letter)
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2021 2020
3,470,029 3,470,029
4,300,538 4,300,374

104 —
(6,377) (6,389)
7,764,294 7,764,014
3,602,462 3,491,567
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2021 2020

100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

— 100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

+
98.04  98.03
100.00  100.00
(UK) 100.00  100.00
*
100.00  100.00
( ) ¥
100.00  100.00
( ) ¥
100.00  100.00
e
100.00  100.00
, ( ) 100.00  100.00
REIT 56.96  56.95
( YTL REIT )
100.00  100.00
SARLE

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00
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C )
2021 2020
100.00  100.00
96.64  96.60
55.57  55.21
( YTL )*
100.00  100.00
*
sV 90.00  90.00
2021 2020
51.00  51.00
( )
51.00  51.00
( )
( )
2021 2020
( ) 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
2021 2020
scl 100.00  100.00
t
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2021 2020

100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
93.80  93.80
o 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00

25 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00

70.00 70.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

93.80  93.80
« )
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
( ) +
100.00  100.00
®) *
90.00  90.00
100.00 —
¥
70.00  70.00
100.00  100.00
99.22  99.21
THP JV 70.00  70.00
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2021 2020

100.00  100.00

REIT 100.00  100.00
' REIT 100.00  100.00
i X 74.89  74.89
( ) 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
' 100.00  100.00
.
100.00  100.00
REIT X
100.00  100.00
REIT * SGREIT

2021 2020
X 68.61  75.46
98.04  98.03
(Sg. ) 98.04  98.03
X 98.04  98.03
49.02  49.02
X 68.63 —
68.63  68.62

.

98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
(KL) 98.04  98.03
& 98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
cheH 68.61  75.46
98.04  98.03
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2021 2020
98.04  98.03
*
98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
68.63  68.62
*
68.63  68.62
*
68.63  68.62
68.61  75.46
(
)*
68.61  75.46
)*
98.04  98.03
68.61  75.46
98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
68.61  75.46
98.04  98.03
68.61  75.46
68.61  75.46
68.61  75.46
98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
( 68.61  75.46
*
( 68.61  75.46
68.61  75.46
63.98  70.38
)*
( 63.98  70.38
63.98  70.38

235/616

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
« )
2021 2020
68.61  75.46
*
68.61  75.46
*

LCS * 68.61  75.46
LCS * 68.61  75.46
LMCB 68.61  75.46

*
98.04  98.03
* 68.61  75.46
M * 68.61  75.46
98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03

*
98.04  98.03

*
35.00  35.00
98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
PHS 98.04  98.03
PMCWS 68.61  75.46
*
68.61  75.46
( )*

P.T. 98.04  98.03

*
RC 98.04  98.03
68.61  75.46

*

98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
( ) 98.04  98.03
shC 98.04  98.03

50.00 50.00

98.04 98.03
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2021 2020
68.61  75.46
98.04  98.03
) 98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
) 98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
) 98.04  98.03
) 98.04  98.03
) 98.04  98.03
68.61  75.46
98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
) 98.04  98.03
©) 98.04  98.03
98.04  98.03
—  98.03
98.04  98.03

237/616



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2021 2020
80.00 80.00
80.00 80.00
2021 2020
56.00 56.00
70.00 70.00
MSC 60.00 60.00

100.00  100.00
( ) 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00
60.00 60.00

100.00  100.00
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( )
2021 2020
— 100.00
SA)( ) rn
REIT
( YL REIT )
2021 2020
( 56.96  56.95
) *
REIT( 56.96  56.95
) *
REIT( 56.96  56.95
) *
REIT( 56.96  56.95
) *
REIT( ) 56.96  56.95
*
REIT( 56.96  56.95
)
( ) 56.96  56.95
( ) 56.96  56.95
*
( ) 56.96  56.95
*
( ) 56.96  56.95
*
REIT( ) 56.96  56.95
*
REIT G.K.* 56.96  56.95
REIT MTN 56.96  56.95
2021 2020
100.00  100.00
* 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
*
90.00  90.00
80.00  80.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
— 100.00
B
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(
2021 2020
100.00  100.00
*
100.00  100.00
*
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
90.00  90.00
80.00  80.00
64.00  64.00
51.00  51.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
) 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
P.T. 1 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
RW 100.00  100.00
RW 100.00  100.00
*
RW 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
*
100.00  100.00
( 100.00  100.00
( 100.00  100.00
( 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
( 100.00  100.00
t
( 100.00  100.00
+

240/616
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2021 2020

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

* 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

t 100.00  100.00
( ) 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00
1CHM 70.00 70.00
( 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

2021 2020

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

2021 2020

100.00  100.00

70.00 70.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00
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2021 2020

96.64 96.60
96.64 96.60

96.64 96.60
67.65 67.62
96.64 96.60

96.64 96.60

96.64 96.60

PYP 96.64 96.60
96.64 96.60

96.64 96.60
96.64 96.60
96.64 96.60
96.64 96.60
96.64 96.60
96.64 —
SR 96.64 96.60
96.64 96.60
96.64 96.60
96.64 96.60

96.64  96.60
M H)

96.64 96.60

—  96.60
*
( YL )
2021 2020
* 55.57  28.16
46.04  45.75
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( YTL )
«C )
2021 2020
1 55.57 55.21
46.04 45.75
*
33.34 33.13
*
55.57 —
"
55.57 55.21
*
55.57 55.21
33.34 33.13
( )
* 36.12 35.89
55.57 55.21
* 38.30 38.06
38.30 38.06
*
38.30 38.06
X ) 55.57 55.21
* 55.57 55.21
( ) * 55.57 55.21
38.90 55.21
( 55.57 55.21
) %
KJS * 23.34 23.19
33.34 33.13
*
55.57 —
N
* 55.57 55.21
P.T. 55.54 —
T
P.T. 55.01 54.66
*
P.T. 52.79 52.45
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( YTL )
C )
2021 2020
P.T. 4446 4417
*
55.57 55.21
*
55.57 55.21
*
sC GmbH* 55.57 55.21
SC GmbH* 55.57 55.21
SC 55.57 55.21
*
SIPP 38.90 38.65
55.57 55.21
55.57 55.21
*
* 38.90 38.65
55.57 55.21
*
55.57 55.21
(
)*
55.57 55.21
T
55.57 55.21
*
55.57 55.21
T
* 55.57 55.21
55.57 55.21
T
55.57 55.21
*
55.57 55.21
*
55.57 55.21
T

55.57 55.21
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( YL )
«C )
2021 2020
16.34 16.23
*
33.34 33.13
( 55.57 —
) t
55.57 —
t
55.57 —
t
26.67 26.50
33.34 33.13
s
33.34 33.13
33.34 33.13
® *
55.57 55.21
(UK) *
55.57 —
t
33.34 33.13
55.57 55.21
(UK) t
55.57 55.21
55.57 55.21
T
55.57 55.21
*
( 55_57 55.21
) *
33.34 33.13
t
55.57 55.21
*
55.57 55.21
55.57 55.21
i
55.57 55.21
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( YTL )
2021 2020

55.57  55.21
55.57  55.21

*
31.75  31.55
55.57  55.21
31.75  31.55
55.57  55.21

*
55.57  55.21
*
55.57  55.21
*
55.57  55.21
(UK) *
55.57  55.21
55.57  55.21
55.57  55.21
t
55.57  55.21
*

55.57  55.21
55.57  55.21
55.57  55.21

t
55.57  55.21
55.57  55.21

*
(
)
( ) 55.57  55.21
55.57  55.21
)
55.57  55.21
(UK) *
1 55.57  55.21
55.57  55.21
SIPP 38.90  38.65
55.57  55.21
55.57  55.21
t

55.57  55.21
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( YL )
« )
2021 2020
55.57  55.21
t
55.57  55.21
t
55.57  55.21
t
55.57  55.21
t
55.57  55.21
t
55.57  55.21
t
55.57  55.21
S
. ®
55.57  55.21
®) *
55.57  55.21
(UK) *
2021 2020
100.00  100.00
( ) +
100.00  100.00
( )SARL*
100.00  100.00
® *
2021 2020
100.00  100.00
*
100.00  100.00
*
*
+
t 2022
I
# 2021 17
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2019

10,000

30 20

278,400,000,000
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( )
)
( )
69,000 46,000
( )

185,600,000,000

715,178

655,448

(141,450)

513,998

201,180
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333,293
3,394
872
180,291
282
40,539
24,973
101,640
36,823

(66,659)

655,448

715,178

(632,515)

82,663

(101,640)

18,977
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®
)
2021 27 ( YTL )

( ) 100
600,000,000 893
( ) YTL

66,731
7,819
18,288
6,551
40,373
65,906
64,353
697

(14,689)

(2,288)

253,741
58,620

257,620

569,981

569,981
(35,821)

(28,499)

505,661

(64,353)

441,308
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2021 28
( YTL

3.67
YTL

YTL

YTL

( 11.34
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100 1,000,000

100
946,598
74,233
25,262
(659,601)
(526,749)

(113)

(140,270)
1,592

(11,343)

(150,021)

11,343

(8,253)

3,090

(25,262)

(22,172)
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(c) SGREIT
2020 SGREIT
REIT
SGREIT SGREIT

60
9,244,013
2,030
45,571
2,349
245,871
(219, 235)
(3,493,431)
(2,053)
(19,348)
(54,814)

(9,639)

5,741,374

2,109,770
(256,748)

258,506

2,111,528

(245,871)

(245,871)
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@
( NCI )
YTL YTL REIT
2021
et 44.43 43.04 31.39
NCI 2,149,225 688,389 341,890 369,972 3,549,476
NCI 571,501 25,290 1,862 7,527 606,270
2021 30
38,217,030 4,722,499 2,947,059
13,857,305 149,375 711,630
(31,834,534)  (2,011,461) (449,738)
(7,332,376) (155,094) (667,482)
12,907,425 2,705,319 2,541,469
2021 30
10,784,730 326,276 1,369,508
« ) (103,128) 82,830 12,230
1,219,977 220,384 13,192
1,329,362 98,349 83,156
(1,126,263) (1,541) (39,165)
) ( 1,072,823 (142,007) 13,763
1,275,922 (45,199) 57,754
NCI 71,991 33,642 —

253/616
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Nel
NCI
NCI
)
2020 30
2020 30
« )
« )
NCI
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YTL SGREIT YTL REIT
44.79 — 43.05 24.54

1,884,214 — 696,741 208,172 360,466 3,149,593

(41,527) 24,603 17,276 (31,150) 44,632 13,834
35,685,632 — 4,499,243 3,044,454
11,452,503 — 194,293 585,797
(25,418,661) —  (2,037,464)  (243,197)
(9,676,720) — (100,173)  (1,095,706)
12,042,754 — 2,555,899 2,291,348
10,637,177 435,212 426,446 1,399,476
127,704 174,354 9,594 (133,136)
(130,651) 38,558 (66,811)  (134,534)
1,121,786 302,696 185,381 93,769
(1,517,957) (74,709) (8,624) (24,791)
(328,076)  (201,991)  (184,305) (49,640)
(724,247) 25,996 (7,548) 19,338
171,879 138,495 43,235 —
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16

2021 2020 2021 2020
2,136,563 2,111,715 358,780 170,994
1,329,763 1,324,168 205,241 205,241

843,574 849,170 — —
(66,826) (68,210) — —
4,243,074 4,216,843 564,021 376,235
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2021 2020
45.00  45.00
50.00  50.00
50.00  50.00
49.00  49.00
49.90  49.90
37.08  36.74
( 49.02  49.01
)
29.41  29.41
49.02  49.01
20.58  20.58
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2021 2020
30.00 30.00
Q
32.00 32.00
Q*
Q* 49.00 49.00
50.00 50.00
18.62 18.50
+*
t 16.67 16.56
P.T. +* 11.11 11.04
*
Q 12 31
t
+ P.T.
33.5 35.0
30
12 31
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@
P.T.

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
4,304,549 4,543,425 11,722,324 10,879,751 9,166,045 9,035,122
1,068,000 1,048,472 152,288 147,284 350,494 429,202
(584,005) (562,414) (8,216,984) (8,769,136) (3,530,898) (3,400,846)
(377,162) (282,964) (1,937,427) (923,519) (144,864) (627,963)
4,411,382 4,746,519 1,720,201 1,334,380 5,840,777 5,435,515
— — — — (307,842) —
4,411,382 4,746,519 1,720,201 1,334,380 5,532,935 5,435,515
« ) 883,965 1,159,080 155,880 79,229 173,297 (472,072)
« ) — — 143,973 (21,757) 68,660 (860)
« ) 883,965 1,159,080 299,853 57,472 241,957 (472,932)
2,233,971 2,296,168 1,287,212 1,088,992 555,862 113,671
377,463 349,682 — — 59,473 —
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(b)
P.T.

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
( ) 4,746,519 4,435,949 1,334,380 1,256,037 5,435,515 — 11,516,414 5,691,986
— — — — — 5,741,374 — 5,741,374
— — — — 24,939 5,807 24,939 5,807
— — — — 11,066 — 11,066 —
) ( 883,965 1,159,080 155,880 79,229 173,297 (471,044) 1,213,142 767,265
( ) — — 143,973 (21,757) 68,660 159,501 212,633 137,744
(140, 636) 150,581 85,968 20,871 ) (123) (54,670) 171,329

(1,078,466)  (999,091) — — (180,540) —  (1,259,006)  (999,091)
( 30 ) 4,411,382 4,746,519 1,720,201 1,334,380 5,532,935 5,435,515 11,664,518 11,516,414
35.00 35.00 33.50 33.50 37.08 36.74
1,543,984 1,661,282 576,267 447,017 2,051,612 1,997,377 4,171,863 4,105,676
18.554 (2020  18.554 )
71.211 (2020  111.167
) 52.415
(2020  36.176 )
54.537
54.537
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17
2021 2020
270,814 276,786
(104,480) (107,326)
(4,286) (4,286)
162,048 165,174
2021 2019
34.31  37.73
2 50.00 —
48.32  48.30
25.01  24.84
25.01  24.84
25.01  24.84
27.79  27.61
16.67  16.56
R
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2021 2020 2021 2020
8,737,246 8,049,694 10,493 9,290
53,470 61,145 254,370 337,590
(8,223,117) (7,880,832) — —
(545,007) (310, 466) (126,247) (132, 650)
22,592 (80,459) 138,616 214,230
) (37,795) (35,117) (68,885) 16,844
137,848 (253,294) — —
« ) 100,053 (288,411) (68,885) 16,844
— — 86,824 357,960
— — — 18,930
18,209 32,457 65,226 26,633
(2,838,900) (2,464,519) — —
(5,096,265) (4,976,577) — —
(280,124) (431,520) — _
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()
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
) ) (80,459) 206,109 214,230 232,158 133,771 438,267
) (37,795) (35,117) (68,885) 16,844 (106,680) (18,273)
137,848 (253,294) — — 137,848 (253,294)
_ _ — (42,087) — (42,067)
2,998 1,843 (6,729) 7,295 (3,731) 9,138
) ¢ ) 22,592 (80, 459) 138,616 214,230 161,208 133,771
45.0 45.0 45.0 45.0
10,166 (36,207) 62,377 96,404 72,543 60,197
(77,419) (79,762) — — (77,419) (79,762)
67,253 115,969 — — 67,253 115,969
— — 62,377 96,404 62,377 96,404
— (113,982) — — — (113,982)
99.7 (2020  69.0
) 70.1 (2020  42.3
) 8.0 (2020
36.1 )
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2021 2020 2021 2020
18(a) 50,783 362,195 44,300 35,226
18(b) 254,935 42,716 9,599 9,599
305,718 404,911 53,899 44,825
18(a) 2,473,454 2,301,989 654,708 755,199
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2021 2020 2021 2020
*
349,572 476,102 — —
1,402,883 912,940 — —
7,771 5,909 7,771 5,909
23,842 341,799 23,842 18,437
4,853 3,071 4,853 3,071
7,834 7,809 7,834 7,809
6,483 3,607 — _
*
720,999 912,947 654,708 755,199
2,524,237 2,664,184 699,008 790,425
) (1,401) 25,976 7,191 823
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()
2021 2020 2021 2020
9,374 8,097 4 4
15,214 14,141 1 1
209,887 — — —
20,415 20,066 9,594 9,594
45 412 — —
254,935 42,716 9,599 9,599
) (91,770) (35,344) — 123
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NCI

2021
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2021

30

161,090 8,239,623 545,647 89,996 9,036,356
682 — 30,482 — 31,164
(149) 56,238 41,148 1,561 98,798
— (60,226) — (19,233) (79,459)

— (97,109) — — (97,109)
161,623 8,138,526 617,277 72,324 8,989,750
(34,148) (122,040) (217,544) (31,530) (405, 262)
(8,506) — (63,304) (7,698) (79,508)
(1,017) (714) (13,087) (79) (14,897)
— 11,261 — — 11,261

— (1,269) — — (1,269)
(43,671) (112,762) (293,935) (39,307) (489,675)
117,952 8,025,764 323,342 33,017 8,500,075
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2020
143,995 7,960,260 — 89,869 8,194,124
13,266 — 162,102 — 175,368
— 243,332 — — 243,332
3,829 36,031 (2,659) 127 37,328
* — — 386,204 — 386,204
161,090 8,239,623 545,647 89,996 9,036,356
(24,720) (120,167) — (26,037) (170,924)
(8,883) — (55,230) (5,493) (69, 606)
— (1,723) — — (1,723)
(545) (150) 816 — 121
* — — (163,130) — (163,130)
(34,148) (122,040) (217,544) (31,530) (405,262)
2020 20 126,942 8,117,583 328,103 58,466 8,631,004
*
( cGU
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CGU
2021 2020
( A ) 4,604,676 4,559,493
( B ) 1,518,258 1,615,366
( c ) 818,770 819,972
( D ) 202,770 207,367
( E ) 199,151 197,941
) ( 301,381 299,586
380,758 417,858
8,025,764 8,117,583
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@
2021
A B c D E
( ) 6.30 8.00 3.11 7.40 7.40 7.60
2.00 2.20 0.31 5.10 5.10 5.32
3.46 19.00 0.04 4.00 4.46 2.28
2020
A B c D E
( ) 6.29 9.10 2.14 7.50 7.50 6.70
2.00 2.20 (0.76) 3.50 3.50 4.25
3.77 14.25 0.97 2.00 46.43 2.45
CcGU
CcoU
oell
U A
oell
U B
CoU
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CGU C
OFWAT
CGU D
CGU E 10
U F 15
()
CGU
2021
A B c D E
( ) 7.84 23.13 24.10 19.50 7.75 8.02
0.07 (41.37) 0.09 (20.70) 4.66 7.06
1.32 (28.40) (2.40) (1.20) (12.09) 1.93
2020
A B c D E
( ) 7.38 18.09 42.60 22.19 8.14 6.75
0.65 (16.01) (1.80) (40.78) 2.56 4.39
1.93 (17.81) (6.70) 24.88 (19.71) 2.42
CGU 1.269
(2020  1.723 )
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20

FVTPL

2023

32(a)

2027

2030 10

271/616

2021 2020

404 413

13,344 2,133

5,662 —

19,006 2,133

(332) (2,133)

18,674 —

8,049 16,670

6,257 66,345

7,586 11,693

230,533 220,318

1,273,933 1,104,266

(2,600) —

1,271,333 1,104,266

269,178 —

1,812,014 1,419,705

18.044

13.25
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Q PSC( APCO )
APCO
554 APCO
( NEPCO ) 30 3.5
) NEPCO ( )40
15.00 FVTPL
FVTPL
2021 2020 2021 2020
2,247,998 2,081,689 — —
17,240 23,742 — —
2,265,238 2,105,431 — —
(537,206) (557,230) — —
( ) 1,728,032 1,548,201 — —
*x 411,203 481,705 8,077 6,705
(87,524) (154,615) (1,765) (1,765)
( ) 323,679 327,090 6,312 4,940
946,467 766,106 — —
(8,191) (7.568) — —
« ) 938,276 758,538 — —
476,686 360,608 444 98
32(a) 4,107 4,193 — —
235,992 206,351 1,071 1,072
3,706,772 3,204,981 7,827 6,110
** 2015
2017 2018 11
2019 2019 70.7
(23.4 )
2021 30
( ECL ) 38(e)
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2021

1,327,465 282,959 7,313
1,456,748 6,799 12,220
140,091 380 15,215
519 — 1

2,239 42 38
290,180 34,787

263,719 34,074

26,461 713

290,180 34,787

273/616



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2020

1,343,133 51,469 171,622
1,427,691 24,663 5,148
92,613 8,712 13,388
2,672 — 48
2,068 — 139
84,844 190,345

74,259 174,944

10,585 15,401

84,844 190,345
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C )
2021
2021 -
1,083,003 256,005 524,520  (524,520)  1,360.6 o,
(HSFO)
244,462 19,641 18,548 (18,548) 271.5 o
(LNG)
4.1 2021 -
1,456,748 (5,421) (45,251) 45,251
2023 10
1.00
2021 -
140,001 (14,835) (25,263) 25,263 312.8 o
2020
2020 -
1,163,143  (130,493) (371,407) 371,407 1,195.5 2003
(HSFO)
179,990 10,340 11,993 (11,993) 151.0 T
(LNG)
4.2 2020 -
1,427,691 19,515 47,199 (47,199)
L oo 2023
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@

24 (2020 31 )
®

28 (2020 33 )
©

(2020 12 )

( SGX )
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2021 2020
53,722 72,086
146,659 174,013
47,380 59,734
93,064 4,477
107,623 1,284,204
212,450 228,483
309,145 341,342
166,884 20,024
1,136,927 2,184,363

1,143.395
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2021

74,397 80,856 11,401 166,654
58,085 — — 58,085
8,978 — — 8,978
141,460 80,856 11,401 233,717
(1,468)

(1,468)

232,249
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13
14(a)

11
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99,299 88,998 391,063 579,360
— — 27,155 27,155
— (5,290) (101, 469) (106,759)
51,787 — — 51,787
(7.322) — — (7.322)
(69,122) — (287,914) (357,036)
— (2,852) (20,425) (23,277)
(245) — 2,991 2,746
74,397 80,856 11,401 166,654
(17,423)
(7.322)
23,277
(1,468)
165,186

4.906
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2021 2020
106 540

62 1,165
(31,958) (31,326)
192,587 201,468
25,003 26,151
(1,182,102) (633,343)
192,693 202,008
(1,214,060) (664,669)
(1,021,367) (462,661)
25,065 27,316
(213,506) (187,272)
(63,502) 27,141
(716,553) (269,343)
(24,284) (29,934)
(3,127) (3,241)
(395) 12)
(1,021,367) (462,661)
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2021 2020
154,866 158,566
(1,483) (6,749)
1,070 2,771

91 278
154,544 154,866
342,138 314,053
(356,986) (313,562)
353,008 340,800
29,890 847
368,050 342,138
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(

(

)

)

OooooOodd

2021 2020
27,316 36,721
36,419 27,975
(3,043) (7,842)
(38,146) (29,669)
2,192 131
24,738 27,316

2021 2020
33 111
24,705 27,205
24,738 27,316

2021 30 359.1
(2020  357.2 )
10 (2020 11 )
MFRS 15
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()
2021 2020

27,141 (16,154)

235,488 420,087

(245,572) (376,549)

(80,563) —

4 (243)

(63,502) 27,141

17,118 28,638

(80,620) (1,497)

(63,502) 27,141

()
403.173
(2020  95.758 )
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2021 2020
(269,343) (604,463)
1,514,505 2,316,005
(103,630) 37,870
(1,858,085) (2,019,670)
— 915
(716,553) (269,343)
9.271
(2020  9.290 )
67.696 (2020  67.696
) ( KTMB
105.616
( SRSB )  SRSB KTMB 1993 12 (2000 12 21

KTMB ) KTMB
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(

)

(2020

58.2
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37.8

2021 2020

24,284 29,934
2021 2020

29,934 36,532

74,424 151,770
2020 2019

3,127 3,241
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25
2021 2020 2021 2020

@
24 17 — _
— — 1,338,469 1,299,910
22,080 23,389 4,082 3,498
39,614 27,549 48 60
31,192 2,739 — —
92,910 53,694 1,342,599 1,303,468

®
344 329 — _
— — 4,409 4,655
8,267 5,946 51 53
479 10,139 — —
29,321 22,798 — —
38,411 39,212 4,460 4,708

©
3.79 (2020 4.1 ) 26.6
(2020 21.4 )
(d) 40
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26
2021 2020 2021 2020
11,522,776 10,396,221 247,147 102,070
2,155,871 1,265,011 3,071 1,929
13,678,647 11,661,232 250,218 103,999
31 (26,051) (45,147) — —
90 — (516,019) — —
13,652,596 11,100,066 250,218 103,999
1966 3.930
(2020  4.682
2021 2020 2021 2020
0.01-4.90 0.03-4.25 0.01-3.35 0.03-3.35
365 (2020 365 )
62.012 57.846
) 31
RAM
P1
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27
2021 2020 2021 2020
11,022,762 10,910,560 3,467,555 3,340,111
— 112,202 — 127,444
11,022,762 11,022,762 3,467,555 3,467,555
11,022,762,340 (2020  11,022,762,340 ) 58,673,950
(2020 372,906,618 ) 2021 30
( ) 10,964,088,390 (2020  10,649,855,722 )
( )
@
2020 12
40,750,100 (2020 31,044,200 )
0.74 (2020  0.94
) 2016
127
2021 30 11,022,762,340 (2020  11,022,762,340 )
58,673,950 (2020 372,906,618 )
54,450,601 (2020 501,836,889 )
(b) 2011 ( 2011 ESOS )
2011 2010 11 30
ESOS  ESOS ( )
2011 ESOS 2021 31
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oooooog
2011 ESOS
( ) 2011 ESOS 10 2011
( ) 2011 ESOS ESOS
15
() ( ) ( )
2011 ESOS
a) 18
b)
c)
3.1C )
( )
( )2011 ESOS
10
() 13
( )
10 11

()
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2021 30
__________________________________________ >
2012 16 2021 31 1.65 119,495 (2,070) (117,425) —
2018 14 2021 31 1.21 * 247,973 (3.,221) (244,752) —
367,468 (5,291) (362,177) —

1.71 1.65

* 1.26 1.21

2020 30

__________________________________________ >
2012 16 2021 31 1.71 120,900 — (1,405) 119,495
2018 14 2021 31 1.26 252,294 — (4,321) 247,973
373,194 — (5.,726) 367,468
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2012 16 2018 14
23.6 22.1
4.5 3.6
) 3.1 3.4
2021 2020 2021 2020
11,558 16,509 11,558 16,509
3,517 5,133 — —
— — (6,859) (9,850)
(©)) ®) @ ®)
15,071 21,637 4,695 6,654
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@
ICULS
1
2021
97,170 27,023 480,495 111,351 19,692 (42,123)  (181,073) 512,535
_ _ — — — (90,447) 252,778 162,331
— — 320,571 — — — — 320,571
) ( — — 320,571 — — (90, 447) 252,778 482,902
— — — — — 8,313 — 8,313
— — — 13,512 — — — 13,512
_ — — (91,580) — — — (91,580)
— — — (33,283) — — — (33,283)
135 — 1,973 — (596) 2 (1,514) —
97,305 27,023 803,039 — 19,096 (124,255) 70,191 892,399
2020
97,317 73,848 749,375 92,881 19,042 (29,798) (95,599) 907,066
— — — — — (12,325) (79,685) (92,010)
— — (274,166) — — — — (274,166)
— — (274,166) — — (12,325) (79,685)  (366,176)
ICULS — (46,825) — — — — — (46,825)
— — — 19,343 — — — 19,343
— — — (527) — — — (527)
— — — (346) — — — (346)
147) — 5,286 — 650 — (5,789) —
97,170 27,023 480,495 111,351 19,692 (42,123)  (181,073) 512,535
1
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2020
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80,022 2,759 82,781

11,558 — 11,558
(91,580) — (91,580)

— 2,759 2,759

64,040 2,636 66,676

— 123 123

16,509 — 16,509
(527) — (527)

80,022 2,759 82,781

2021 2020

1,285,291 1,087,304

50,795 48,662

116,710 120,241

11,845 1,093

1,464,641 1,257,300
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30

2021 2020 2021 2020
30(a) 845,000 220,000 — —

.0 30(i) 1,726,924 _ _ _
2,571,924 220,000 — —

30(a) 9,768,631 9,652,636 3,240,000 2,500,000

52 30(b) 484,047 435,657 — —
75 30(c) 1,995,257 1,824,667 — —
375 30(d) 1,144,932 1,046,940 — —
-75 30(e) 1,302,127 1,171,955 — —
-369 1.374 30(F) 1,302,127 1,171,955 — —
489 1.4% 1.499  56¢0) 1,237,197 1,104,074 — —
-186 30(h) 399,300 360,010 — —
0 30(i) — 1,583,640 — —
5 30(j) 1,425,701 1,304,105 — —
.25 30(K) 1,696,814 — — —
20,756,133 19,655,639 3,240,000 2,500,000

23,328,057 19,875,639 3,240,000 2,500,000
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2021 2020 2021 2020
2,571,924 220,000 — —
5,158,957 7,079,115 1,240,000 1,000,000
15,597,176 12,576,524 2,000,000 1,500,000
23,328,057 19,875,639 3,240,000 2,500,000

2021 2020 2021 2020
4.69 3.98 4.25 4.69
3.82 4.40 — —
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2021 2020 2021 2020
52 309,401 292,651 — —
.75 2,871,768 2,763,282 — _
375 1,432,230 1,364,607 — —
-5 1,934,326 1,735,032 — —
-369 1.374 1,905,210 1,743,250 _ _
489 1.4% 1.499 1,897,627 1,737,765 — —
-186 470,366 424,060 — —
0 1,739,531 1,635,886 — —
5 1,138,740 1,327,959 — _
.25 1,558,430 — — _
10,882,630 10,460,962 3,118,920 2,475,974
26,140,259 23,485,454 3,118,920 2,475,974
@ ( MTN )
() MTN
a) ( cp ) ( MTN )
2019 17 50
500 cp (
)
2019 25 500 MTN
500 MTN MTN 4.60
(2020  4.60 ) MTN 2034 23
2020 24 3.65
500 MTN MTN 2030 24
2020 3.10

240 MTN MTN 2023
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b) 2013 26
MTN
2013 25 4.38 (2020 4.38 )
10 MTN
25
2016 11 11 5.15 (2020 5.15 )
500 MTN
2036 11 11
2016 11 11 4.63 (2020 4.63 )
500 MTN
2026 11 11
)
MTN
a) YILPI MTN 2011 11 MTN
MTN
4.99 (2020  4.49 4.99 )
b) YTLPI MTN 2017 20
) ) )
5.05 (2020 :5.05 )
) REIT MTN
MTN 2016 11
1,650 MTN
810 (2020 :810
a) 2017 23
65
MTN 2022 23
b) 2017 11 REIT
385 MTN
2024 11
) 2017 11 23 REIT
MTN MTN 2022 11 23

297/616

OooooOodd
20
MTN 2023
MTN
MTN
( YTLPI )
50
4.49
(
25
)
MTN
MTN
265
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d) 2019 24 REIT 10 MTN
10 MTN MTN 2022

23

e) 2019 28 W
85 MTN MTN 2023 28
MTN 3.31 5.05 (2020 :4.21 5.05 )
) ( YTL ) MTN
2016
500
( ) KCSB
KCSB
2017 13 KCSB  KCSB
( ) ( ) 180
4.80 2020
2017 12 13 2019 10  KCSB  KCSB
( ) ( )
100
2020 12 11 2022 5.00 5.06
2020
2019 10  KCSB  KCSB
( ) ( ) 120
4.10

2020
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2020 13 2020 2020 12 11  KCSB  KCSB
( ) (
) 180 120 100
2023 13 2023 2023 12 11
4.60  4.55 4.40
(b) 3.52 ( RPIG )
RPIG 30 30
3.52 2021 30
4.38 (2020 5.77 ) RPIG 2023 30
(c) 5.75
2003 10 15
( )
350 2033 5.75 (
5.75 GU ) 5.75 GU 2003 10 15
5.75 GU 350 346,717,774 (2020
346,532,441 )( ) 2021 30 5.75 GU
5.75 10 14 2033 10 14
(d) 5.375
2005 10
( )
( ) 200 2028
5.375 ( 5.375 GU ) 5.375 GU 2005 10
5.375 GU 200 198,955,933 (2020
198,830,197 )( ) 2021 30

5.375 10 2028 10
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OooooOodd
() 1.75
2006 31 (
) ( )
75 1.75 ( ILG
) ILG 2006 31
ILG 31 31 1.75
2021 30 2.61 (2020  4.00 )
2046 31 2051 31
(F) 1.369 1.374
2007 31 (
) ( )
2057 75 1.369
75 1.374 ( ILG )
ILG 2007 31
ILG 31 31 1.369 1.374
2021 30 2.23 (2020 3.62 )
2057 31
(g) 1.489  1.495 1.499
2007 28 (
) ( )
2058 50 1.489
50 1.495 50
1.499 ( ILG ) ILG 2007 28
ILG 11 29 29 1.489  1.495 1.499
2021 30 2.96 (2020 4.12 )
ILG 2058 11 29
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(h) 2.186
2009
)

50

) ILG

ILG 12
2021
2039

(i) 4.0
2012 24

4.00 (
199,933,431 (2020
GU

2012 30

4.00 (
100,155, 815 (2020
GU

4.00

2021 24
200

2039 2.186
2009
30
GU )
el
199,667,155 )(
GU )
el
101,090,703 )(
24
GU 100
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2.186
3.66 (2020

200
el 2012

200
) 2021

100
el 2012

100
) 2021

2012 24

2.74 )

OooooOodd
( ILG
ILG
2021
24
30
2021
30
30
2021 24
el



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
a 1.5
2019 17
( )
( ) 250 2029
1.50 1.5 GU ) (50 ) 1.5 6U
2019 17 1.5 GU 200
198,588,097 (2020 198,438,600 ) ( ) 2021
30 1.5 GU
2020 15
( ) 50 2029 1.5
1.5 GU 50 49,157,361 (2020
49,231,124 )( ) 2021 1.5 GU
1.5 17 2029 17
(k) 1.25
2021 12
( )
( ) 300 2036
1.25 ( 1.25 GU ) 1.25 GU 2021 12
1.25 GU 300
294,857,025 ( ) 2021 30 1.25 GU
1.25 12
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2021 2020 2021 2020

31(a) 30,864 28,726 — —
31(b) 26,051 45,147 — —
31(c) 1,542 16,882 140 411
31(d) 1,122 2,103 — —
31(e) 2,770,314 3,688,009 1,066,855 1,750,654
31(F) 4,262,079 7,333,571 — —
7,001,972 11,114,438 1,066,995 1,751,065

31(c) 1,905 3,484 — 140
31(d) 2,417 3,539 — —
31(e) 1,554,092 1,747,204 — —
31(F) 13,096,000 10,841,940 — —
14,654,414 12,596,167 — 140

31(a) 30,864 28,726 — —
31(b) 26,051 45,147 — —
31(c) 3,447 20,366 140 551
31(d) 3,539 5,642 — —
31(e) 4,324,406 5,435,213 1,066,855 1,750,654
31(F) 17,358,079 18,175,511 — —
21,746,386 23,710,605 1,066,995 1,751,205
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2021 30
30,864 — — 30,864
26,051 — — 26,051
1,542 1,905 — 3,447
ICULS 1,122 2,417 — 3,539
2,770,314 1,554,092 — 4,324,406
4,262,079 12,156,531 939,469 17,358,079
7,091,972 13,714,945 939,469 21,746,386
2020 30
28,726 — — 28,726
45,147 — — 45,147
16,882 3,484 — 20,366
ICULS 2,103 3,539 — 5,642
3,688,009 1,747,204 — 5,435,213
7,333,571 10,173,500 668,440 18,175,511
11,114,438 11,927,727 668,440 23,710,605
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2021 30
140 — — 140
1,066,855 — — 1,066,855
1,066,995 — — 1,066,995
2020 30
411 140 — 551
1,750,654 — — 1,750,654
1,751,065 140 — 1,751,205
2021 2020 2021 2020
3.92 4.01 — —
1.10 1.10 — —
ICULS 7.49 7.49 — —
2.45 4.16 2.72 2.85
2.02 3.21 — —
@
)
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OooooOodd
©
1.56 4.97
2.27
2021 2020 2021 2020
1,540 17,169 141 426
2,135 3,450 — 141
— 161 — —
3,675 20,780 141 567
(228) (414) 1) (16)
3,447 20,366 140 551
') ( ICULS )
2011 2021 ICULS
2011 10 31
( YTL ) 10 2021 10 31
( ) ICULS 0.50 992,378,023
2011 2021 ICULS
( )2011 2021 ICULS (
3.0 4.5
2011 2021 ICULS 6.0
( )2011 2021 ICULS YTL
1.32

0.99
0.66
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OooooOodd
( )2011 2021 ICULS 2011 2021 ICULS
( )2011 2021 ICULS
YTL
2011 2021 ICULS ( 15 )
®
347.905 (2020 288,209
)
®
)
a) 431,602,500 [75 1(2020 394,912,500
[75 D
0.72 1.21 (2020 1.21 1.27 ) 2021 22
b) 1,150.940 [200 1(2020  1,053.100
[200 D
50
2015 30 2.16 2.36 (2020 2.16 )
50 2015 0.74
0.94 (2020 1.27 1.41 ) 50
2015 1.99 2.19 (2020 1.99 )
50 2016 25 1.07 1.61 (2020

1.65 1.76 ) 2024 30 2025 25
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c) 1,104,902,400
[200

1,044,436,968

)
a) 1,038.575
[250
( YTLPI
D(
1.38 (2020
b) 830.860
824,761,488
1.50
9) 856
12 17
1.25 (2020
)

(2020 1,964.450

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

Ogoooood
[200 1(2020  1,053,100,000
D
1,097,047,188 [190,634,992 1(2020
[198,354,756 D( ) 2020 30
1.09 1.82 (2020  1.81 2.03 )
2026 31 60 40 2021 31
[250 12020 1,070
) 2017 31 1,035,850,635
[249,344,206 1(2020  1,063,537,133 [248,489,984
) 2021 30 1.29
3.60 ) 2022 31
[200 |
2020 11 25
[198.532 1( ) 2021 30
YTLPI 1.44
2023 11 25
[200 1 YTLPI 2015
1.20
3.36 )
1,925.206

308/616



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

Ogoooood
()
a) 6,006,549,854 [1,943,741,458 1(2020  6,064,279,851
[1,974,177,958 D
( YTLPS ) 2017 14
2022 12 1.55 1.84
(2020 1.55 3.16 )
2020 30
2020 23
30
2020 11 30
( )
2021 30
2021 30 2021 30
2021 30
2021 30
276.729
(2020 1,102,464 )
)

(vi)
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2021 2020 2021 2020
180,091 159,613 6,716 6,843
1,303,867 1,443,868 9,056 2,339
1,483,958 1,603,481 15,772 9,182
38(F)
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
2021

15,886 16,739

— 5,087

573 1,128
(4,766) (7,068)
11,693 15,886
4,107 4,193
7,586 11,693
11,693 15,886
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2021 2020
4,507 4,766
3,524 4,507
2,597 3,524
1,345 2,598

537 1,345

— 537
12,510 17,277
(817) (1,391)
11,693 15,886

2021 2020

596,669 560,828
48,011 1,665
(21,548) (15,166)
38,482 49,342
661,614 596,669
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2021 2020 2021 2020
3,060,349 2,164,004 113 113
2,164,004 2,073,139 113 113

611,681 144,558 — —
599,755 184,067 — —
(1,621) 692 — —
3,602 2,226 — —
12,711 16,550 — _
(167) 707 — —
(301) (20,625) — _
15,355 (21,677) — —
335 (3,575) — —
(17,988) (13,807) — —
179,819 10,234 — —
6,431 4,933 — _
98,414 (49,984) — —
— (18,876) — —
3,060,349 2,164,004 113 113
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2021 2020 2021 2020
(176,227) (168,899) — _
(108,232) (174,567) — _
(231,759) (229,587) — _

(5,612) (5,915) — _
(1,963) (8,166) — _
(102,999) (113,352) — _
(626,792) (700,486) — _
626,792 700,486 — _
3,619,999 2,800,277 113 113
47,077 38,825 — _
20,065 25,388 — _
3,687,141 2,864,490 113 113
(626,792) (700,486) — _
3,060,349 2,164,004 113 113
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35(a)

35(h)
35(c)

35(d)

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
2021 2020
1,379,207 1,390,181
2,682,431 1,300,968
167,565 170,634
(352,695) (620,424)
3,876,508 2,241,359
2019
2019 2018 12 31
2021 2020 2021 2020
7,048 5,281 315 287
21,764 21,937 — —
437,922 869,245 — —
21,996 19,716 — —
481,682 910,898 — —
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OooooOodd
@
®
)
)
2020
28
2021 2020
3.9 3.9
5.0 5.0
0.5 « ) 959,471 1,017,212
(2020 1,016,616 1,081,738
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2021 2020

21,937 55,346

901 (19,487)

(1,074) (16,261)

— 2,339

21,764 21,937
2021 2020

21,764 21,937
2021 2020

21,937 55,346

— 2,339

(1,074) (16,261)

70 (1,695)

— (17,879)

831 87

21,764 21,937




©

(

(

)

)

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

28

(c13

157.0

18

)

14.80
16.60
18.40
20.20
22.00
23.80

(903.5

2019

17

(c24

(85.2
(95.5

(105.9
(116.2
(126.6
(137.0
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30

2021 2020
70 (1,695)
831 87
— (17,879)
901 (19,487)
2019 30
2021 30
55
) (c24 )
2019 30
)
)
)
)
)
)
)



(

)

30

2022

30

14.80
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2026

24.6
7.4 2022
(85.2 )



30
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2021 2020
869,245 687,950
73,632 76,778
(120,782) (125,949)
63,158 1,063
(447,331) 229,403
437,922 869,245
2021 2020
4,722,344 4,424,366
(4,284,422) (3,555,121)
437,922 869,245




30
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2021 2020
4,424,366 4,081,555
407,168 9,610
75,574 95,364
55,850 57,175
— 530

556 —
(142,257) (143,046)
— (73,643)
(38,343) 321,589
(60,570) 75,232
4,722,344 4,424,366




30
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2021 2020
3,555,121 3,393,605
344,010 8,547
61,682 79,470
120,782 125,949
— 530
(142,257) (143,046)
(3,334) (3,709)
348,418 93,775
4,284,422 3,555,121
2021 2020
55,850 57,175
13,892 15,894
556 —
3,334 3,709
73,632 76,778
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2021 2020
54,165 45,663
5,575 15,221
13,892 15,894
73,632 76,778
2021 2020
1.90 1.60
2.10-2.90 1.90-2.60
1.90 1.80
RPI 3.00 2.70
CPI 2.50 2.20
2021 2021 2020 2020
60 25.9 28.4 25.9 28.3
40 47.1 49.6 47.0 49.5

CMI12018
1.0

S3P(M/F)A 105
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oOoOooodn

MFRS 119
18 ) 0.1 (1.9 84,594 4,722,344 4,806,938 437,922 522,516
0.1 (CPI
2.5 2.6 RPI 64,453 4,722,344 4,786,797 437,922 502,375
3.0 3.1 )
196,811 4,722,344 4,919,155 437,922 634,733
2021 2020
1,790,287 41.8 1,142,087 32.1
2,097,588 49.0 1,948,235 54.8
240,546 5.6 193,770 5.5
156,001 3.6 271,029 7.6
4,284,422 100.0 3,555,122 100.0
2021 2020
410,100 173,245
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30

)
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2021

2020

19,310

2,686

17,261

2,455

21,996

19,716

2021 30

14

2021

2020

17,261
2,209

(659)

(765)

1,264

14,021
1,924

(633)
534

1,415

19,310

17,261
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2021 2020
19,310 17,261
2021 2020
17,261 14,021
(765) 534
1,179 1,013
1,030 911
(659) (633)
— 1,698
1,650 —
(386) (283)
19,310 17,261
2021 2020
1,030 911
1,179 1,013
2,209 1,924




(

30

)
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)
2021 2020
2,686 2,455
2021 2020
2,455 2,329
478 503
20 32)
(158) (424)
(109) 79
2,686 2,455
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2021 2020
2,455 2,329
(109) 79
473 485
20 32)
5 18
(158) (424)
2,686 2,455

2021 2020
473 485
5 18

2021 2020
6.3 7.3
9.0 9.0
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2021

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2021 2020
(935) 1,044 (1,172) 1,303
1,778 (1,631) 1,701 (1,562)
36(a) 36(b) 36(c)
4,810 28,417 103,374 136,601
— 19,250 — 19,250
— 902 — 902
6 40 2,339 2,385
7 — (7,304) — (7,304)
(781) — — (781)
— (1,977) (95) (2,072)
4,035 39,328 105,618 148,981
4,035 11,576 105,618 121,229
— 27,752 — 27,752
4,035 39,328 105,618 148,981
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36(a) 36(b) 36(c)
2020
6,528 39,903 101,182 147,613
(6) 43 2,192 2,229
7 — (4,437) — (4,437)
1,712) (7,092) — (8,804)
4,810 28,417 103,374 136,601
4,810 28,417 103,374 136,601
4,810 28,417 103,374 136,601
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@

(b)

©

37

2021 2020 2021 2020
1,892,457 1,331,951 — —
380,589 605,750 1,102 879
9,266 8,138 — —
118,185 117,802 — —
* 1,295,442 981,288 26,956 16,583
3,695,939 3,044,929 28,058 17,462
*
30 180 (2020 30 180 )
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38
@
®
868
[278 12020 12 [408.1 D
1 : 1.2(2020

1:0.8)
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8.8

(2020

12.2
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

2021 2020 2021 2020
22,943,057 19,511,005 3,240,000 2,500,000
12,243,775 11,309,168 901,855 857,269
22,131,386 24,075,239 1,066,995 1,751,205
34,375,161 35,384,407 1,968,850 2,608,474
50
110.6
120.4 ) 5.3
)
10
(2020  11.3 )
(2020 1.0
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(D

1,789.730 (2020 1,422.160 )
12.687 (2020 10.880 )

2021
363,799 10 36,380
1,425,931 10 142,593
2020
487,270 10 48,727
934,890 10 93,489
2021
4,853 10 485
7,834 10 783
2020
3,071 10 307

7,809 10 781
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ECL
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ECL
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OooooOodd
13
GDP )
90 91 120 120
2021

1,132,272 226,779 37,135 869,052 2,265,238
946,467 — — — 946,467
192,712 — — — 192,712
2,271,451 226,779 37,135 869,052 3,404,417
(57,781) (18,349) (6,723) (454,353) (537,206)
(8,191) — — — (8,191)
(19) — — — 19
(65,991) (18,349) (6,723) (454,353) (545,416)
2,205,460 208,430 30,412 414,699 2,859,001
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OooooOodd
90 91 120 120
2020
1,045,367 169,582 45,814 844,668 2,105,431
766,106 — — — 766,106
202,118 — — — 202,118
2,013,591 169,582 45,814 844,668 3,073,655
(12,631) (21,203) (10,353) (513,043) (557,230)
(7.568) — — — (7,568)
(110) — — — (110)
(20,309) (21,203) (10,353) (513,043) (564,908)
1,993,282 148,379 35,461 331,625 2,508,747

MFRS
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ECL
ECL
ECL
12 ECL
90 ECL
365 ECL
12 ECL ECL PDx LGDx EAD
PD( )
LGD( )
EAD( )

PD LGD

338/616



2021
2020
2021 30
2020
2019
2020 30
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557,230 7,568 110 134 156,748 721,790
107,121 — — 623 4,752 112,496
(36,085) (78) (91) — (69,114)  (105,368)
(112,623) — — — (1,952)  (114,575)
21,563 701 — — 22 22,286
537,206 8,191 19 757 90,456 636,629
491,117 — 388 34 160,580 652,119
7,158 — — — 199 7,357
160,965 7,615 — 100 1,979 170,659
(12,285) — (278) — (4,629) (17,192)
(2,201) — — — — (2,201)
(88,238) — — — (1,699) (89,937)
714 “n — — 318 985
557,230 7,568 110 134 156,748 721,790
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2020

2021 30
2020

2019 2020 30

®
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116,859 1,765 118,624

(194) — (194)
116,665 1,765 118,430
116,859 1,765 118,624
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2021

3,686,673 179,350 — 3,866,023
10,742,683 21,586,915 25,260,213 57,589,811
288,825 871,706 1,096,338 2,256,869
38,411 — — 38,411
14,756,592 22,637,971 26,356,551 63,751,114
7,192 121 — 7,313
11,629 592 — 12,221
15,253 — — 15,253
34,074 713 — 34,787
2021
28,058 — — 28,058
1,208,125 2,155,560 2,035,200 5,398,885
7,074 9,432 — 16,506
4,460 — — 4,460
1,247,717 2,164,992 2,035,200 5,447,909
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2020

3,036,791 169,996 — 3,206,787
12,764,591 17,744,755 27,742,528 58,251,874
270,109 830,439 1,192,724 2,293,272
39,212 — — 39,212
16,110,703 18,745,190 28,935,252 63,791,145
171,711 13,299 — 185,010
3,094 2,102 — 5,196
139 — — 139
174,944 15,401 — 190,345
2020
17,462 — — 17,462
1,939,236 1,375,080 2,037,850 5,352,166
6,843 2,339 — 9,182
4,708 — — 4,708
1,968,249 1,377,419 2,037,850 5,383,518
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2021

18

20

21

18

21

20

25

26

26

— 50,783 — 254,935 305,718
1,536,579 269,178 — — 1,805,757
— — 26,461 — 26,461

— 2,473,454 — — 2,473,454

— 42 263,677 — 263,719
3,230,086 — — — 3,230,086
92,910 — — — 92,910
11,522,776 — — — 11,522,776
2,155,871 — — — 2,155,871
18,538,222 2,793,457 290,138 254,935 21,876,752

343/616
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2021

29 — — 179,350 179,350
30 — — 20,756,133 20,756,133
31 — — 14,654,414 14,654,414
32 — — 1,303,867 1,303,867
21 39 674 — 713
37 — — 3,686,673 3,686,673
21 — 34,074 — 34,074
25 — —_ 38,411 38,411
30 — — 2,571,924 2,571,924
31 — — 7,091,972 7,091,972
32 — — 180,091 180,091

39 34,748 50,462,835 50,497,622
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2021

18 — 44,300 9,599 53,899
20 7,383 — — 7,383
25 1,342,599 — — 1,342,599
18 — 654,708 — 654,708
26 247,147 — — 247,147
26 3,071 — — 3,071

1,600,200 699,008 9,599 2,308,807
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2021

30 3,240,000 3,240,000
32 9,056 9,056
37 28,058 28,058
25 4,460 4,460
31 1,066,995 1,066,995
32 6,716 6,716

4,355,285 4,355,285
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2020

18 — 362,195 —_ 42,716 404,911
20 1,353,360 — — — 1,353,360
21 — — 10,585 — 10,585
18 — 2,301,989 — — 2,301,989
21 — 8,712 65,547 — 74,259
20 2,844,373 — —_ —_ 2,844,373
25 53,694 — — — 53,694
26 10,396,221 — — — 10,396,221
26 1,265,011 — — — 1,265,011

15,912,659 2,672,896 76,132 42,716 18,704,403
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2020

29 — — 169,996 169,996
30 — — 19,655,639 19,655,639
31 — — 12,596,167 12,596,167
21 13,575 1,826 — 15,401
32 — — 1,443,868 1,443,868
37 — — 3,036,791 3,036,791
21 — 174,944 — 174,944
25 — —_ 39,212 39,212
30 — — 220,000 220,000
31 — — 11,114,438 11,114,438
32 — — 159,613 159,613

13,575 176,770 48,435,724 48,626,069
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2020

18 — 35,226 9,599 44,825
20 6,012 — — 6,012
25 1,303,468 — — 1,303,468
18 — 755,199 — 755,199
26 102,070 — — 102,070
26 1,929 — — 1,929

1,413,479 790,425 9,599 2,213,503
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2020
30 2,500,000 2,500,000
31 140 140
32 2,339 2,339
37 17,462 17,462
25 4,708 4,708
31 1,751,065 1,751,065
32 6,843 6,843
4,282,557 4,282,557
(b)
() ( )
) ( ) (
)
) ( )
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2021

— 42 — 42
— 2,505,067 — 2,505,067
12,687 6,483 — 19,170
— 290,138 — 290,138
24,588 45 230,302 254,935
37,275 2,801,775 230,302 3,069,352
_ 39 — 39
_ 34,748 — 34,748
— 34,787 — 34,787
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2020

— 8,712 — 8,712
— 2,326,334 323,363 2,649,697
10,880 3,607 — 14,487
— 76,132 — 76,132
22,238 412 20,066 42,716
33,118 2,415,197 343,429 2,791,744
— 13,575 —_ 13,575
— 176,770 — 176,770
— 190,345 — 190,345
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40

2021

2020

12,687 654,708 31,613 699,008
5 — 9,594 9,599
12,692 654,708 41,207 708,607
10,880 755,199 24,346 790,425
5 — 9,594 9,599
10,885 755,199 33,940 800,024
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()
2021 2020
95,053 82,874
( 3,150 6,300
61,221 54,040
10,813 21,626
6,716 17,602
26,370 24,271
21,190 7,420
P.T. 61,949 62,116
REIT 62,889 13,653
83,833 78,510
44,533 10,267
17,484 3,179

354/616
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2021 2020
4,043 8,820
IT

34,064 36,425

2021 2020
ICULS 8 9,731
7,698 4,716

2021 2020
— 78,766
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(b)
2021 2020
REIT
7,140 14,281
162,343 78,510
©
( )
2021 2020 2021 2020
45,101 59,882 1,558 1,985
2,568 4,616 73 134
971 1,294 — —
5,604 7,909 3,351 4,735
54,244 73,701 4,982 6,854

356/616
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2021 2020
644,980 782,205
711,181 1,088,500

2021 2020
74,912 75,174
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(b)
)

2021 2020
182,310 168,860
134,703 121,113
118,459 116,035
110,107 110,862
108,115 94,272

51,670 73,979
705,364 685,121
32(a)
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@
O e
©
(d
®
)

@
( MD CEO) )

MD CEO « ) C )

e MFRS

MD CEO
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2021

1,569,261 6,423 427,633 4,117,477
(54,756) (3,211) (6,921) (23,968)
1,514,505 3,212 420,712 4,093,509
15,227 2,239 969 25,192
(7,243) @ (24,568) (193,455)
_ — (6,803) 18,019
217,403 (2,159) (153,565) 562,886
— — 37,204 64,538
1,049,612 90,170 2,604,370 9,743,672
129,169 — 952,306 4,340,163
726,384 633 325,952 1,103,323
11,608 61 96,748 118,474
« ) — ) (9,279) 59,338
22,433 540 82,024 378,902

360/616
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521,167 541,685 10,590,970 17,774,616
(221,399) (175,089) (18,853) (504,197)
299,768 366,596 10,572,117 17,270,419
4,183 4,539 6,011 58,360
(536,961) (175,724) (617,095) (1,555,047)
(44,305) 61,499 367,113 395,523
(240,179) (380,299) 627,707 631,794
9,629 2,073,320 2,220,431 4,405,122
13,351,120 6,274,824 36,344,676 69,458, 444
14,376,067 3,202,830 22,073,908 45,074,443
987,113 1,285,480 8,022,277 12,451,162
34,923 23,235 1,733,705 2,018,754
3,479 (25,449) 21,738 49,822
19,134 147,703 1,262,606 1,913,342
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2020
2,345,514 8,361 1,134,146 4,117,832
(29,509) (4,820) (12,481) (22,658)
2,316,005 3,541 1,121,665 4,095,174
17,482 3,873 2,257 30,944
(5.199) ©) (22,940) (252,926)
_ — 4,041 13,417
194,681 41 96,563 (2,468)
— — 36,715 48,670
1,187,730 93,128 2,701,767 9,642,046
378,726 — 927,107 4,825,891
386,390 420 327,928 1,007,742
24,543 39 115,418 126,930
« ) — 1,744 (5,461) 31,954
18,772 648 81,018 407,618
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2020
612,702 1,206,981 10,341,524 19,767,060

(240,993) (211,727) (66,423) (588,611)

371,709 995,254 10,275,101 19,178,449

17,593 10,213 12,823 95,185

(615,938) (271,013) (692,729) (1,860,747)

(40,228) (173,286) 453,255 257,199

179,628 (282,769) 233,618 419,294

51,931 2,022,190 2,222,511 4,382,017

13,166,329 7,259,250 31,476,168 65,526,418

14,272,037 3,985,054 19,197,429 43,586,244

943,940 1,197,115 6,848,727 10,712,262

56,707 559,511 1,533,374 2,416,522

« ) 2,110 32,218 120,638 183,203
16,286 148,295 1,154,577 1,827,214
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(

)

)

)

2021 2020 2021 2020
5,775,438 7,430,763 11,850,527 12,305,103
3,852,723 3,647,137 21,373,358 18,786,918
6,450,301 6,841,129 8,135,788 8,243,533
1,191,957 1,259,420 4,017,163 4,346,176

17,270,419 19,178,449 45,376,836 43,681,730
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2021 2020
32,120,318 30,475,254
1,712,517 1,636,035
1,976,498 1,811,126
1,067,428 1,128,221
8,500,075 8,631,094
45,376,836 43,681,730

()
10
2021 2020
2,620,109 2,452,877
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43

30

31

26

()

40

366/616

2021 2020 2021 2020
23,328,057 19,875,639 3,240,000 2,500,000
21,746,386 23,710,605 1,066,995 1,751,205
45,074,443 43,586,244 4,306,995 4,251,205
(13,678,647) (11,661,232) (250,218) (103,999)
31,395,796 31,925,012 4,056,777 4,147,206
12,788,485 12,460,336 6,307,840 6,086,744
44,184,281 44,385,348 10,364,617 10,233,950

71 72 39 41
17/2005
) 25



2021 12

44
a COVID-19
b 2021 28
428.8
SIPP
2021
45

2021
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2021 30 COVID-19

COVID-19 2022 30

70 SIPP SIPP

500MW

30

30
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FINAMDIAL STATEMENTS B 9e

Income Statements

Ter the Ninancial year ended 30 June 2021

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020

Hote RMDOD RMDOO RMDOD RMOOO
Rewenie 4 17,270,419 159,170,449 469,976 415311
Lot of sales 5 (14.111.193) (15.594. /85 - -
Gross profit 3,159,226 3.563,666 469,976 415,331
e operating ncome 1.015.062 [RERLE 19,931 6255
Salling and dlistibution Losts (496,33E6) [ 70 8 365) - =
Admintstration expenses (1.167.496) {1,426,961 ) (7&,310) (73.645)
(ther operating expenses (719.138) (284651} -
Finance costs G (1,555,047} [LOGD747) (170,G672) {171,006
Share al results of ssocated companies and

joint yoniunes, nat af tax 395,523 257199 -
Profit before tax 7 631.794 119,294 242,925 176,055
IRE A thy Sxpins B {959,178) (A4 E3E) {3.073) {EAG
(Loss)/profit for the year (327,384) 4 658 239,852 169,593
Artributable to:
Uvpniars of the parent (367.664) |1BS,221) £39.852 169,593
Hon-cantroding INercss 40,280 183 87 - -
(327.384) 4,658 239,852 169.593

Loss par share
Basic it () g [2.38) (1.7}
Dvedand par ordinary shanes (sen) 10 - AL

The atcampanying actounting policies and explanatory motés larm an miagral part of the finarcial statements

AMNUAL REPORT 2021
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P00 FINAMDIAL STATEMENTS

Statements of Comprehensive Income

Tor the financial year ended 30 june 2021

Group Compamy
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM'OO0 RM'DOO RM'ODO RMOOO
{Loss)/Profit for the year (327,384) A R5A 239,852 159593

Other comprehensive Income/{loss):-

Mems that wll mot be redessifies subsequently
1o income statement:-
= renedsuiemend of post-employamnt
benatit chiigations 354,623 (183.829) - -
changes in the Far value of equity
Irwestmients at fair vahes through other
COMpreE nshE inGoima [91.770) (35,344} - 123
- foieigEy cutrency transiation 208,870 [5.302) - -

Nems that wil b2 recassified subsequently to
Fome STaTement:-
- cash flow hedges 453,671 (149487 -
foreign currency tramsbation, et of
imrestment hedges of foraign operations

fgairloss) IGB.445 {17.419) - .
- reclasslicatian (47.875) (256, 748) - -
Gther :mpuhmﬂw lMﬂm-fllﬂH] Tor
the year, net of tax 1,245,964 [B48,129) - 125
Tatal eamprehensive income/{loss)
far the year 918,580 {&43,471) 238,852 169,716

Tatal comprehensive income/{loss)

attributable toc-
Cwners of the parent 32,310 {RA7.305) 235,852 168,76
Moe-r antiedling inlemses GOG.270 19634 - .

918,580 1B43,471) 239,852 169,716

The accomparying atcouning palicies and explanatony nabes Todm an integral pat ol fhe fnancial statements.

¥TL CORPORATION DERMAD
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FINANDIAL STATEMENTS g0l

Statements of Financial Position

at at 30 June 2021
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Note RMDO0 RH'OO0 RMTDOO RMOD0
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Prapierty, plant and squipment 1 32,120,318 30475254 3,720 1,852
Right-af-use assets i2 1,712,517 1,636,035 15,580 5069
Ivepstment propertios 13 1.976,498 Ll B
Development cgpenditues 14 1,067,428 1128221 -
Imvastment in subsidiaries 15 - 7.764.294 7.764,004
Irwastment mn associates 1& 4,243 074 4 6843 54,021 376,235
Irvestmant in joing veniures 17 162048 165,174 - -
Inwpstments 18 305,718 404,911 53,899 A4 B25
intangibie assets 189 B.500,075 B.63L054 - -
Trads aiwl G redemables 20 1.812.014 LA419,705 -
Confract assets 24 168 L705 -
Detivative financidl nstroments £l 26,461 10.585% =
51,926,319 45900653 B,401,514 B8,197.995%
Current assets
Ireritories i 1,136,927 2.184,263 =
Property development cosis 23 232,249 165,186 -
Trade and other recevables £ 2,706,772 3,204,981 7.827 110
Comracl astets | 217,590 227519 - -
Derpvative financial instrmesnts 21 263,719 74,255 - -
income tax assels 134,979 134,455 6687 2830
Amounts dus from melated partios £5 a2.910 53,604 1.342.599 1,303,468
I sEmneT 18 Z2473,454 £.301,968% 654,708 755,159
Feued depasits &6 11.522.776 10.396.221 247147 102090
Cash are bank alances & £.155,.871 L265,001 3.071 L9239
21,937,247 20,007, 788 2,262,039 2171706
TOTAL ASSETS 73,863,566 62.000.435 10,663,553 10,369,701

The atcampanying actounting policies and explanatory motés larm an miagral part of the finarcial statements

370/616
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PO FINAMOIAL STATEMENTS

Statements of Financial Position
as at 30 june 2021

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Hote RM'ODO RMOD0 RMDOD RMOOO
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity atiributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 27 3.467 555 3467555 3,467,555 3.467,555
Dt résemes 20{a) 92,399 S1E535 2,759 og2.rol
Retained aamings 8,482,982 B, 952 083 2,891,977 036,245
Treasury shares, at cost 2Mah (54,451) {501.837) [54,451) [SOLA3T)
12,788,485 12460,335 6,307,840 B.086,744
Mon-controlling intemsts 3,540,476 1.149.,593 - .
Tatal Equity 16,337,961 15609929 6,307,840 G/086,Td4
Non-current liabilities
Long-term payalbes =] 1.464.641 1257300 e
Comtract liakslithes 24 31,958 11376 - -
Bands 30 20,756,133 19,655.639 3.240,000 2,500,000
Barrowings 1l 14,654,414 12,596,167 - 140
Ledse Hadrilities a2 1,303,867 1,443,868 9,056 2339
Crands and corfributions 33 661,614 596,669 - -
Deferred tax kabilities 34 3,060,349 164,004 113 113
Post-ermplayment benelil obligations 15 4Bl 682 010,826 - -
Prowesion for llabiities ard charges 36 27,752 -
Derrivatis Firancial insirumonts 21 713 15,400 =
42,443,123 I[ETLETE 3,249,169 2502592
Current liabilities
Tradhe anil athr payaliieg 7 3,695,939 3,004, 929 28,058 17402
Coniract liablities 24 1.182.102 [ZEEECE - -
Derivatre finandial instruments £l 34,074 114944 - .
Amoun s due 10 oelansd Rarhes ] 38,411 [z 460 & TOE
Boirds 30 2,571,924 220,000 - -
Borrowings =11 T.091.972 11,114,438 1,066,995 1,751,065
L liadilitias 32 180,091 159613 6,716 G843
Prowsion for liabilities and charges 36 121,229 136,601 - -
Post-emplayment benefit obligations 5 1.048 Lefl 5 207
Income tax lighilities 159,692 26,873 = -
15.082.482 15.627.234 1.106,544 1760365
TOTAL LIABILITIES 57.525,605 S 208 506 4,355,713 & 282957
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 73,863,566 HE.900.435 10.663.553 10,369,701

The accomparying atcouning palicies and explanatony nabes Todm an integral pat ol fhe fnancial statements.

¥TL CORPORATION DERMAD

371/616



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
ooOooood

FINAMDIAL STATEMENTS pg 103

Statements of Changes in Equity

Ter the Ninancikal year ended 30 June 2021

ossseimmsrsiesmeseiee ATTIDUTIHE 10 OWNGTS OF T PATBAT oomeocic e
4= Mogr-distributable -——-3 ¢ DistribuLasle -5

Share iber Treasury Mar-
capital reserves Retained shares. controlling Tatal
(Mote E7}  (Note 28{a)} eamnings  (Mote 2T{a)) Total interests equity
[Eroup RH'000 RM'0O0 RM00D AM000 RMODD RE 00D ‘REDOO
AL T uty 2020 3,467,555 512,535 6,982,083 (50L837) 12,460,336 3,149,593 15609929
fLossyPenfit for the yoar . - (367.654) 3 (367,664 40,280 [327.384)
D Compoher i InCom for The i - 482 502 197,072 - 679,974 565,990 1.245 964
Teal pomprebermve incomadfiads) for
e year = 482902 {170.502) - 312,310 506,270 918,580
Transactions with owners
(Charges in compositon of Thi Geoup - - 28,850 - 8,860 68,553 97,513
Rerlassificaton ugan disposal of
Irvestments desigated at PO . 8,313 {B.333) - (20§ - {20)
Divieng’s, pasd L - - - - [271.239) [271.239)
Shale thidend - - (477,700 ATT. 700 - - -
Shale CpLon enperses - 13,512 - - 13.512 - 13512
Shain option bpsed . [91.580) 1,580 - - . -
Tuteadianyy share opton Lpsod - {33,283) Erfi-t - 3,800 [3.801) =
Tieasuy $ares - - - [30,314) [30.314) t (30.314)
At 30 june 2021 3,467,555 B92,399  B.4B2.582 [54.451) 12788485 3545476 16,337,561
At 1 by 2019 130111 W00 Q456735 (ATETaR 13240189 b o 208339
{LossiPeofit fo the your ' : (89z1) 189221 193873 4658 |
Dty compretende kosy fof the year - [3B5.174) 1020, 208) - {468,084y [1E0,045) FEARE2T)
Tinal omptehaiae (I5s) ncome
figr the year - [36a1Ta) (HL129) - (851305 136834 [E434TL)
Transactions with owners
Thamgess i compoditon of the Geup TLEIS F11LE15 2820251} [1508,636)
Comeersion of ICULS - [46,825) (Fe524) - (125 345 - [26.349]
Deviencs pad - E 426770 - [T |baL o) [LibEO34]
kst ool shame Lapatal 127484 . 12T dadq . 127442
Shate oplior expenss - 19,343 - - M3 - 1933
Ssang option lepsed - 520 =7 - - - -
Sutridianys shirs ofition Lyriad . (35 ] = 3 - 283
Tipaiiiny dhares . . [E5 044y 29044 . (25044
At 30 June 2020 467555 512535 Age20E3 [GaLAIN  124607% 1144553 15605929

The attermganyng &iouring pobcies and caplanatory nates, borm an ntegrel pan of the Ansne ld sEtements
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P icd  FINAHLIAL STATEMENTS

Statements of Changes in Equity
for the financial year ended 30 June 2021

S — <ieee Attributabla to Ownars of the Parant - woe swsecead

s Hon-distributable -------- F geeremnnaen Distributable ---------- -3
Share Other Treasury
capital reTerees Retained shares
[Note 27) [Note 28{a)] garnings {Mote 27(a)) Total
Company RAM'DO0 RM'ODO0 RM'O00 RM'OO0 RM'OO00
A1 sy 2020 3,467,555 A2.781 3,038,245 (501.837) 6,086,744
Pralit tar the yea, repressntng total
Enffiphe hana iicomma o the yaar - - 238,852 - 230,852
Transactions with owners
Share dividend - - (477, 700) 477,700 -
Share cpiion Epenses - 11,558 = 3 11,558
Share option lapsed - {91,580) 91,580 - -
Treasury shares B - - (30.314) (30.314)
At 30 June 2021 3,467,555 2.759 2,891,977 [54.451) 6,307,840
At 1 juy 2019 3,340,111 B5.676 3,294,895 {A72793) 6228889
Profit for the yoar - - 169,593 - 169,593
Othar comyprehensive income - 123 - 123
Tatad compephaniive noome - 123 165599 . 169716
Transactions with owners
Issue of share capia 12T A44 127444
Divdends pald - - {426,770} - {#26,770)
Share option exjeses - 16,509 - - 16,509
Share opticn lapsed . {527 527 - -
Trasasiey shares . [ RRE T ] [ESLDuA)
At 30 Juna 2020 3467555 B2 781 3038245 (SOE37) 6086, 744

The accomparying atcounting palicles and eaplanatony nobes forrm an integral part ol the financial statements
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Statements of Cash Flows

for the financial year ended 20 june 2021

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM 000 RM OO0 RMO0O RMOOO
CASH FLOWS FROM DPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Prafic before tax 631,794 419294 242,925 176,055
Adjustments for:
Adustment on 1if value of mvestment propenices {70,707} 12,8048 -
Amortication of comract costs 3.043 7842 -
Amortisation ol defemad income [ﬁm} |5.20) - -
Amartication al grants ang contrbutions (21.548) {15.164) - -
Amaortisation of intangibla assets 79,508 &9 505 -
Bad diabts recowenad {3.930) (2945} (50)
Badd debts written oft 1.327 10501 - -
Deqreciation of progerty. plant and equipment 1,641,525 1554423 i i ]
Denreciation of right-of-use assats 183,038 193,695 6,719 4.535
Divithand income (11.290) (10.083) (446.865) (FTLATI)
Falr value chaiges of deslvatves - 16,765 = -
Fair value changes of financal assers 374,937 (E%975) {7.191) (823
Gain on disposal of imvestments {21.718) {1172} 10,055
[Cainiloss on disposs of property, plant and equipment (#43,735) (1a733) 2
Cain on dispesaliderecognition of subsidiaries (407 .641) [258,505) -
Cain on kease modification and reassessmont (924) -
Cain & kease tormination (575) - {129)
Impairmant losses - net 49,822 183203 {194) -
Intanast expansa 1,555,047 LBED AT 170,672 171,885
Intera<t income {161,732) [2Ta077) (22.855) [43,200)
InvRniTres written down - net 997 Ad 555 - -
Imvestment propertes wiitten ofl B.916 AT -
Praperty, plant and equipmen? written ofd 12,411 SLESH -
Prospective expenditure written off 5.335 ai7s -
Provtson for post-employment benelits 63,329 43,750 -
Wiltir back ol Babidties and dhaiigis {7.304) {4.437) - -
Share oplion expenses 15,071 71,637 4,695 6,654
Share of results of assoclated companses and jaint
VEVILIES (395.523) {257,199) -
Unrealised gainon foreign cechanga - net (27.270) {96,05) -
Dperating prefit/(loas) befare ehanges in
working capital 3,446,269 3532753 (41,435} {55,955)

The atcampanying actounting policies and explanatory motes farm @n alegrsl part of the finarckal statements
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P06 FINAMDIAL STATEMENTS

Statements of Cash Flows
for the financial year ended 20 June 2021

ﬁ"_ﬂili '-'-ﬂ'l_lﬂﬂll'
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM'O0D RM00O0 RM'O00 RM'O00
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES (CONT'DL)
Changes in working capital:
Iuenioies 137,830 R3H.001 - -
PFroperty development costs (67.063) 4H1L - .
Hecalvabies (826,177) 590,251 (1.674) T.234
Contract asris 29,194 (¥.270 - -
Contract labdities 544,271 [405,019) - !
Paryables 020,656 03,104 10,632 Aoy
Rolated parties balances (40,017) {12.666) (220,113) (2IRT6T)
Cash flow generated from/{usod in) operations 4,152,963 4,407,628 (252.590) (286, 026)
Dradenits receed 471677 9216 446,865 EEFAEE
Enfenest paxd {1.36:4,148) [LTEdang) (170,108) {71351
Intedin] received 162829 L0489 22,855 43.200
Payment to post-employment benelit obligation (136,007) [129,759) - -
Enconmir Laoe pedid (287.272) (FPE.G63) (&,823) (1L.08E)
Income tax refunded 10,261 64,641 - 23481
Hat cash flow fromfjused in) operating activities 3,010,303 042,703 40,193 [54.408)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTIMNG ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of additions shares in exdsting subsidiaries. - [2O.6TH (279} (47
Aequisitien of new subsidiories (net of crsh acquined) - 18,977 - -
Additional imestmon? in assodated companies and jont
wenture (23.984) 19,253) - -
Davekapment axpanditurss incunmed {31.745) (92.311) - '
Decreasaf{incraasa) in deposits maturing more than
S0 days 544,576 (31204 - -
Grants recahed in respscl al infrastic bise assets 38482 45,342 - .
Increase in sharehoder koan (B0,808) [%4,651) - -
et deipeeal/dstecogiition of wabaidiaties (net of cash
and cash coquivalonts) 419136 (2458715 -
{Platementlatusities of income funds {301.958) 176,000 - -
Procoeds lrom dinposal ol prapeny, plant ard equipment 87,443 42521 pii] .
Process from dspasal af investments 216,563 #3H.148 BE.554 a2 647
Proceqds Trom Hinande lease moevablies 4,766 129 - -
Purchuase of imanqgitle pissts {31.164) (E75368) =
Puichase of ivestment properties (37.065) [559.216) - -
Purchase of property. plant and equipment {1.910,842) (1,579,680} (B6E1) (&7
Mmwchase of vestments [2.887) [265,855) - -
Net cash flow (used in)/from investing activities {1.109,487) [3,042.979) B7.624 42008

Thee adcompaiying aicouming palicies and explanalony nobes Todm an integral part ol the insncial Statements
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Statements of Cash Flows
for the financial year ended 30 June 2021

Company

I';nup
2021 2020 £0EL 2020
RM 000 RM OO0 RMODO RMOOO
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividenes paid = (A2ETT} = 4267700
DOividends paid to non-contreding mtenests by
subsdiares (271.239) [Bd1.264) - -
Repurcheme af own shares by the company (at nat) ﬁﬁ.m} [P 044) (20.314) (9,044
kegurchase of subsidaries’ shames by subudiaries (36.047) (2l - -
Fropeeds from bongs 2,407,070 LAZ193 F40,000 -
Frovaedts from borowimgs L142.376 5514825 - 465,764
Proceeds from issse of shares in subsigianes 1o
non-Contralling inenests 237,150 - - 2
Reoayment of bonds - (1000} - (1000
Reaayment af bamowings (2.901.744) [6,097,544) (684.210) (200565
Repaymant of koo Kabilias (238,856) [420.57%) {7.074) (4,715)
Upfront fees and discounts on bormowings [7.479) - - -
Net cash flow fromd{used inj financing activities 298,917 (BOFATS) ig.402 [fUA,311)
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,199,723 {BO7,751) 146,219 (207 30
Effects of exchange rate changes 352,797 143990 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11,100,066 1763827 103,993 321308
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
[Mote 26) 13,652,596 1L 10006 250,218 102994
NOTE TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Analyss ol acquisitsan of propey, plant and sguipiment;-
Shosp Sanpny
2021 2020 2021 2020
RMO00 RM000 RMO00 RMO00
Canhy 1,910,842 L579.690 GEL 1ar
interey] pepenie paid/payabie 23,733 18,554 - -
Tramsfar of assets from customers - LA -
Tramdar from prepayments - 8,733 -
Payatles 3,868 16182 -
Pravision for Mabilities and charges 11,501 -
1,949,944 1L7E4.005 BEL 1:Fg

The atcampanying actounting policies and explanatory motés larm an miagral part of the finarcial statements
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P08 FINAMDIAL STATEMENTS

Statements of Cash Flows
for the financial year ended 20 June 2021

MNOTE TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS ICONTD.]
Reconclliation of labilities arising from financing activities:-
1. Bonds and borrowings

Graup Company
2021 2020 20El 20z0
REDDO RMIOIDD REFOOO RMOD0
At july 43,586,244 45070, Ted 4,251,205 3578531
Changes from financing cash flaws
Interest paid [1,380,225) [L723.48 (170,108) fAFLSa)
Proceeds from bonds 2,407,070 I FAL 740,000
Procesds from bommwings 1142376 E5l4.829 - AE5TH4
Lipdront fees on bomowings (7.479) L * %,
Repayment of bands - {10000} - (1000
Rapayrent of bomowings (2.901.744) (BO9T 544} (BB4,210) [200,565)
Transactons costs pakl {3.923) |B.405) - -
Othae changes in berds ard barrswings
Amartisation of Ksuancs costumsinding of pramum 110,353 138134 = -
Bank averdrafts (22.491) 2407 - E
Comersion of FOULS into ordinary shares - {2.1396) - -
Disposalderecognition af sursidiary (526,749) 2493431 - -
Firance conls capilalbed in propesty dendlopment oosts - 4,906 - g
Interest gaparees 1,448,839 L797.557 170,108 17551
Foreign eachange movemant 1202162 4T.H19 - 17,465
At 30 June 45,074,443 A3 566244 4,306,995 4,751,205
2. Leasa liabilities
Graup - Company o
2021 2020 20l 2020
RHDOO RMOOO RMFOO0 RMBO0
At 1 july 1,603,481 953,623 9,182 -
Crangss from finanding cash flows
Repayrent of lease fabilties (238,.856) [E Ry (7.074) [41E)
Oeher changes in leasa abiities
Additior 115874 1032704 20,031 13603
Desposal al sulvldiary 113) - - H
Interest eaperses 92,316 47206 564 295
Madification (44.288) - - -
Expiry/Tedmination {21.156) (420} (6.931)
Tramsler 10 payabes [30,485) - - -
Foreign eachange movement 7183 167 - :
At 30 June 1,483,958 LEQIAEL 15,772 ‘O18:

Thie ccomparying Jocounling polces and explinatory notes loim an infegral pbm of 1he finandial statements
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS pg 09

Notes to the Financial Statements

= 30 June 2021

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal activities of the Company are thase of an investment halding and managemant comgamy. The prindpal activities of
the subsidiaries are set out in Note 15 ta the finandial staternents.

Thi Company is a limited Ralality company, incomarated ard domiciled in Malaysia and Bstad on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia
Seourities Bermad and the foreign section of the Tokyo Stoce Exchange.

The addness ol the woistemd ntfice and prncipsl pace of busingss af the Company & a5 Tollows:-
3rd Floor, Marara YTL

205 Jakan Bukil Bitlaig
55100 Kuaka Lumpur

2. SUMMARY DF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

[a) Basis of preparation

The linancial statements of the Group ard the Company have boen prepaned under historical cost comvention (unlss stated
athansse in 1he signilicant accounting paliciet below] and in accordance with Malaysian Financlal Repaning Staniands [MERSTL
Intematianal Financial Reporting Standards (WRST) and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

The preparatian of finandal statements in conformity with the MFRS and the Companies Act 2016 requires the Dérectors 1o
mate estmates and assumptions that atfact the repored amounts of assets and labites and dischoswe of contingent assets
and liabiktes ot thee date of the linandlal statements and the reported amounts of fevenue and expendes during the reported
penod. It also requires the Directors to exerclse their judgements in the process of applying the Group's accounting podcies.
Although these estinates and judgomants are s ob Directoes’ beo! knewledge of current events and actions, actual results
ey differ

The areas irmvoling 4 higher degree of judgament of complesity. o areas whade assumptions and estimates e significant 1o
the financlal statements are disclosed In Mote 3 to the financdal statements.

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM] and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RM000)
except as othenwise indcated,

(b} Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted ase consistent with those of the praviows financial year except as follows:-

On 1 July 2020, the Group and the Company haée adoptad The following MERSS, IC sterpretations and amendments. which an
mandatary for annaal financial pariods beginning on ar after 1 july 20200

Effective for annual

periods beginning

Description on or after
Amangdments to References. 1o the Cancepiusal Frammsock in MERSS Stamdaeds-

- Amendment 10 MFAS 2 Shate-Based Paymaent 1 janusay 2020

= fmendment to MFRS S Finandal instruments: Prepayment Features with Negatve Compensation 1 jamuary 2020
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Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june £021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{b) Changes in accounting policles (cont'd.}

Effoctive for annual
pariods baginning
Description on or after
Amendments o References to the Condepual Framework In MPRSs Standards- {cont'd)
= Amendments bo MERS G Exolorateon for ard Evaluation of Mineral Rescarces L january S0e0
- Amendment tn MERS 101 Presentation of Finandal Statements 1 January 2020
Amendment to MERS 108 Acoounting Palides, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emors 1 January 2020
= Aanencdment to MERS 134 intarim Frewncial Repoming 1 Jowary 2020
- Amendment to MERS 137 Provislons, Contingent Liabilites and Contingent Assets 1 January 2020
= Amandmant to MERE 138 Intangible Adsets I Jarary 2020
- Amendment 1o 1T Interpretation 12 Service Concession Aranpements 1 January 2020
= Amendment to IC Interpretation 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Eguity nsftruments 1 janwary 2020
- Amendment to IC Interpretation 20 Suwipping Costs in the Producbon Phase of a Surface Mne I [gnuary 2020
- Amendment to IC Intarpratation 22 Forzign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 1 January 2020
Amendment o IC Interpretation 132 Biangible Assets - Web Site Costs 1 January 2020
Amendments 1o MFAS 3 Business Combination - Definition of 3 Business 1 January 2020
Amendmants 1o MFRS 100 and MFRS 108 Presentation of Financial Statements and Acoourting
Priicies. Changes in Accomiting Extimates and Errors - Definition of Matenal 1 January 2020
Amendmants o MFRS 9 Fnandlal imstruments, MFRS 139 Financial ins trumants: Recognition and
Maasurement and MFRS T Financlal instruments: Désclosures on interest Rate Benchmark Reform 1 January 2020
Amendiment 1o MFRS 16 Leases - COVID-19-Related Rent Conoesséons 1 june 2020

The adoption of e above new standands, K swerpretatkins and amendments to pubilshed stardards Mave not given rise t
any matarlal impact on thie financlal statements of te Groun and ihe Company.

{e) Standards issued but not yet effective

Thi standards and interpriotations that are ssued but nat yet etfective up 1o the date of suance of th Croup’s and the
Compary's financial statements ane disclosed balow. The Group and the Company intend to adopt these standands, i applicable,
when they berome effactive,

Effective for annual

perieds beginning

Description on or after
Amendmants to MFRS 9, MFRS 139, MFRS 7. MFRS 4 and MFRS 16 Interett Aate Benchmak

Refoem’ - Phase 2 1 january 2021

Amendment to MFRS 16 ‘Leases’ = C0VID-19 Related Rant Concessions Bayond 30 june 2021 1 Apail 2021

Amendmaents 1o MFRS 3 Aelerence 10 thir Concepiual Framwonk 1 january 2022

Amendmants tn MFAS 116 Property, Plant and Equipment - Procesds before intendad Us' 1 jariary 2022
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MNotes to the Financial Statements

= 30 June 2021
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
(e} Standards lssued but not yet effective (cont'd.)
Effective for annual
periods beginning
Description on of after

Amondmenis to MFRS 137 Provésions, Contingent Liabdithes and Contingoent Assots - Onerous
Contracty: Cosis of Fulfiling a Contract’ I January 2022

Annual improvements to MFRS Standards 2018 - 2020
Amondments o FFRS 1 First-time Adoption of internatisnal Financial Reparting Standards

Subsidiary a5 A First-time Adopte’ 1 january 2022
- Aminaments 1o MFRS 3 Financlal MsTruments - Fiees in thie 109 1es1 for derecogrition of
financial Uabiiites’ 1 january 2022
= AMENGMBNS 1o MFRS 141 Agricufturd - Taxation i Fair Yalue Mogsunemanis’ 1 January 2022
MFRS 17 nsurance Contracts 1 january 2023
Amendments o MFRS 101 Prosenation of Financial Statements’
= Lassihcaton of Liabilities as Cument or Nomcurrent 1 january £0d9
- Dischosure of Acoounting Policies 1 january 2023
Amandments to MFRS 108 "Acconnting Palicies, Changes in Accoanting Estimates and Errors -
Detnition of Accounting Estmates’ I January Ad3
Amandments 1o MFRS 112 Income tax - Defered Tax refated to Assets and Liaksities arising from
a Single Transaction' 1 january 2023
Amendmenis to MERS 10 and MFRS 128 Sale or Contribiuton of Assets between an Imesior and
Is Associate or Jaint Venture' Defarad

{d)} Revenue recognition

Revenue Is recognised To the exient that 1 is probadle thar the economic benefits will figw 1o the Group and the resens can
De reflahly measired, The specilie recognition crtera for revernue ane ay Tollows -

(i} Revenue from contracts with customers

FevEriE: wWINCT FEpesints incoms ans ng n he course of the Grougrs ondnary actrities i recognised by refernce 10 each
digtinet parformante abligatian promiked it thie contract with customar. R Tram ooniracTs with cus i iS meadinsd
at s trarsaction price, being the amount of comiceratian which the Group espacts to be entitied in earhange for transferming
promised goods of serices to a customer, net of goods and senace ta, retums, ehates and dscounts. Transaction price
i afacated o each performance obligation on thie bass of the moelathe stamd-plone selling prices of apch drtinet gand or
senvices promised in the contract. Depending on the substances of the respective contract with the customer, revens ks
recognsed whin the performance obligaton is satisfied, wehich may be at a poirt in tme of over Hime.
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Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june £021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{d) Revenue recognition [cont'd.}
(i) Rewvenue from contracts with customers (cont'd.)
o) Sehe of electricity

Thee Grougr's elecwricity s generated and sokl into natonal eectricity comgany or maiket i he respeclin (oumines
i il thie Group operatis,

Revenua from the sale of electricity s recognised over time as customers simaltaneously recelve and cansume the
bemafins provided by the Group's performance whan electicity & dalvered based an contractual terms stipulied in
raspactive agreaments with customers.

Reveruz are presented, net o goails and sarvite tax, penalties. iebates and discoumts. Collectinn of the contre
romsideration fram customens s considerad pohahie. No element of finanring i deemed prasent as tha Group has
adapted the practiea’ expadient available in MFAS 15 wihere the intenal bebween transter of the promised goods
oF sarvicos and papmant by the customar B oxpected to be loss than 12 menths.

Electricity fevenue includes an estimatoed value of the eectricity consumed by customer from the date of the last
mater reading available and reportng period end, Aconsed wnbiled revenue s recognised as receivabiles and is
raversad the followsng month when actual bilings occur,

b Epie of cloan water and the troatment and désposol of warsto wiror

The Groasp, under the lkoma granted by the United Kingdom (UK™) Gowernment, has the right to supply water and
SEWEIIGE SENdCES 10 msiomars, tgether with an obligation o mantain and deselog the nietwork and ercure its
contimued avadability,

The natwe of the water indusiry in the UK s such that reverue recogaton s subject to a degree of estimation,
Thex assessment of water sales to customess is based on internal data whese Hnal ssttlement data is ot yet avaiable.
At the end of each period, amounts of water dalivered 1o customers ane estimated and the comespanding billed and
uribilled revenue is assessed and reconded in revenus. For the purpose of the judgement, variows facton are consldered
such s spsonality, histonic billing proflies, akage datie and general egonamic condliom.

For metered customers, revenue (s determined by he meater reading. For unmetzred customers, the amaount 1o
wiileh the Group has a right 1o recaive |s determined by the passaqe of Tme ouring which B CUSICmer oLoupies &
PrOpETy within 1he Group's Rrontad ragion, Revernie repeowents moome recelabia in the ordinany course of business.
excluding WAT, for sendces provided. Revenue Is recognised to the extent that it s probeble that economic benefits
il Thavat 1 thas Glej.
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
= 30 June #021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
(d} Rewenus recognition (cont'd.)
(I} Revenue from contracts with customers (cont'd.)
b Sule of deon waoter and the rerment ond disposal of woshe water feonrid )

Davisiopir services related o the obhigaton under stalule to dlow propely developers 10 esfablish an authoiised
cofinection fo thi wated and/or sewesage nitwark. In abitaiting e contection, el dewsEoper imyy ieguing the Group
to undertake one or more of the faliowng:-

) Connections and meter instakation in exchange for payment;
1y Requsitians of water mains in exchange for payment; and
lily  Adoptions of water and waste waler mains.

Thit dovilafar 5 also mqueed 1o pay iInfrastuciun changes Beng a cortibution i notwoek rmafoienman,

These activitias are not separable nor distinet and instead form a buredie of activities necessary to establish an
thorsed comned taon from swhich the nerwark access can b ohtained. Alo, the Group has an additional ohligation
virelsr sttt 1o keep the connection in place for 8 cuent and fubure acoupes and Facilitale ongosing atcess 16
the network for as long as the property requines service provision. Conseguently, revenue from daveloper sarvices
il b deferred over the shortes of expected period of service provisan or the noed to replaoe the assets &t the
end af their useful life (typically in the angs 80 10 125 years),

Mo elament of fnanting is doomod prosent as the Graup haes adepted the practical oxpedient available in MERS 15
whare the Interval botween ranston of tho promised goods of servioss and paymont by the customer s expocted
ta be less than 12 months,

Linbilind receivables are conskdened to ba o varioble contidenation which is not comtrained a3 the Group consicdens
It to be highly probasle that a significant amount will not be reversed after year end. Unbiled recesvables and the
variable censideration are estimated using the most Bkely ouloame appeoach.

¢} Sale of cement ond related products
Revenue from sake of cement and related products |s recognised at the point In time when control of the goods is

Bratsleiigid 10 e Lo

A contract with customer exdsts when the contract has commeicial substance, the Croup and thes oustomers have
approved the contract and intend 19 perform thed respectivie obligations, the Group's and The CusTomed's rights
regarding the goods or sendces to be transfemed and the paymen? terms can be demified. and It Is probable that
the Croup will coflect the consideration to which it wil be enfitied in exchange of those goods or senices.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{d) Revenue recognition [cont'd.}
(i} Revenue from contracts with customers (cont'd.)
€] Sofe of cement and feined products (oo )

i cistemming 1he amsesion price Tor the see of cement and refated products, the Group consaders. the elfects
ol wadlalile consideration

il the canshderation in @ conract includes a varlable amount, the Group estimates the amown of consikderation to
which they wil ba enlitied m exchange far transfermg the goods to tha customer, The variable comideratan s
estimated a1 contract moepticn and constraired untl it is highty probable that a significant revenee reversal in the
ML CF CLmuative FsEnu reCognised will mat eoour when thir 3Ssocated unoortainty wath tha varible comsidenaton
& suibmequently resoleed, Some ¢ omtracts lar the sale of cefment and related products provide oustomers with pRomgp?
payment rebates aned wokeme rehates. The early payment iehates, prompt paymeant rabates and volume rebates give
i ta variable corskderation,

d} Hotel operotions
The Group generates revenue mainly from providing the senace of room rentals to tenants within the hotel and
rental of spaces for functlons and banguets. The Croug also generates resende from the sale of goods and senices

such a Tood and beverage, as well as mingd services such as telecommunication, laundry, intemat and ather mine:
SEMVICES.

Rowgnue |5 recognised when the tefms of a confract have boon satisfied, which ooturs when control has boen
transferred to customers and performance obligations are satrsihed. Far room revenue, this eccurs evenly throughout
e curation of the Tenam’s wie on a straight-line bass. For functions and DOnguets. mevenue i recognsed at a
point in trme when the perfomrance obfigaticn is satinfd, generally ot the proviskan ol the space.

&) Constrachion cantrocts

Under such contracts, the Group s engaged 1o comsbuct busidings and retrted Infrastructure and in certaln instances
to qupply equpments. These contracts may neclude multiple promises to the customers and therefare accounted
for as separate performance obligations, In this case, the transaction price will be allocated based on relative stand-
alomié wiling price of He considevations of eacly o e s st porl cimasic e oldigation. Whe (D aie ool dinsc iy
observabile, they are estimated Based on eapected cost plus margn.

R TIom CenSTIUCTEN CONTSCTS IS measured a1 1he fixed [ransacron pricg agneed under Thit SOredment.

The Groug determines the transaction price of & contract &lter considening the effect of variable consideration,
conswairing estimates of varable (onsideration, effect of significant Tnancing component. nen-cash consideration
and corsideration pagabie 1o tustomer,

Wihar B Ear ki o wariabie coosideraion is unesetain, (e Group astimates this amount of canddpevion by tising

tha mast likely amount mathod and anly recognises to tha axdant that is highly probabia that a significant reversal
o cumulative revenus will nat aoour.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
(d} Rewenus recognition (cont'd.)
(I} Revenue from contracts with customers (cont'd.)
@] ConsTrucnion oviaces o)

Revenue is retognised as and whien contiol of the aset & trarsieored to e customes and (@ s probalde that U
Groug woild collec! the (onsidiration (o which (1wl be entited in exchange Tor thie 25500 that would be tamfermed
to the customer. Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract, conrol of the
asset may transfes over tire or at 3 pont in tme. Comtrol of the asset k ransfemed over time If the performance
of the Group does notl cheale an ass21 with s altemalive use ta the Group and tha Group has an enforceable rght
to payment for performance completed o data,

It eontiol of 1he assel iranlers over tme, evenue & fecognised over the pariod of the contract by merence 1o
the progress iowands complete satisfaction of that pedfarmance obdgation using the inout method, which is hased
o e total achual constructian cost incurmed to date & compared 10 the total Budgeted costs far the respoctive
EonsStruETion projects.

It gantrol af the asset transfers 3t a poant in time. revenue (& recogniced at a point in time when the customar
ehiaing control of the asset.

- Broodband ond [elecommunierians

Thi Crawp gonoratod reverud from providng teletommunication senices, suth o4 scets 10 the netwolk, airtme
usage, missaging. and intomot sorvices as woll oo from sales of products, Products and seivices may be sald
separately or in bundled packages. The tyoical length of a contract for bundied packages ks 11 manths to 24 manths.

Far bundled patkage, the Gioup acceants Tor mdaddhual produets and senices separatoly # they ane dasinet, Le. if
a product of s2rvice |s separately identifiable from other ftems in the bendied paciage and i a customer can benetit
fram It The consldaratian is allocated betivecn séparate products and services |n a bundie based on their Relative
Starwd-alone Selling Prices (R55P7. The RSS9 are determined basved on the Iist prices at which tha Group sells the
products and telecommunication services. RS5P ame based an ohiserable salas prices; hawever, where RS5® are not
directly obrseryabie, estimates will be made maxmising e use of observabio nputs

i} Telecommunicorion senices
Telecommunication revenue from postpaid and prepakl services provided by the Group is recogised over time,

a5 thit benefins of telecommunication Sendoes are simulianeousty recetved and corsumed by 1he Dusiomer,

Revenue from prepald services IS recogrisad when sendces are rendered. Startes packs with & sim card and
refoad voucher |5 soouniad for as 4 singe performance oblgation as thi sem cand can only be used together
with the services providad by the Group, Prepaid credits ate recognnad s cantract hability in the statemants
ol tinancial position. Revenue |s recognised when the aedits are ublised or up to the point of customer charm
aF upan explry, whichaer s earlien.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{d) Revenue recognition [cont'd.}
(i) Rewvenue from contracts with customers (cont'd.)
f1  Broodband and tefecomrumications fooet)
i Telerommmicaion senvices [confih)

Posjaaic] sedvices ane piovidisl in posipaid packages wiich consist ol variows seodces (e call minales, inlamit
whala, sitvs arud L), As s Seodoes ane siipal aledy idenbiflabbe sl the oustomse s can Denefin Trom each of ths
sarvices on its own, each service [s atcounted fof as a separata performands obigation

Postpad packages are either sold separately or bundiad togather with the s¥e of devica 10 3 customes. As
posipall pactages and device are capable of being distinct and separately identitiable, there ane twa performance
abRgMians within a bindied Iranacton Accordingly, thi Group Allacatis the transaction pice based on the
RESP of the posinaid packnges s device,

il Devices

D e, may he sold spparataly of in unled packages. The Group reccqgnises rosenus whisn comtml of the
dewica has transferred to the customer upon delivary and acceptance of the device a1 the paint of saa

For dovices soid soparatoly, the comsideration i reciived in tull a1 the pomt af le, The ameunt of revenue
rmeognised is magwred a1 the consideration spedifiad in the conract. For devices sold in bundled packages,
the customers usualy offered o pay a1t a dscounted price on the cevice, The amount of revenue recognised
Tor devices <08 in bundled packages is measured a1 the allecated corsideration based cn tha RSEP as explalned
previouely.

Dewices that thie Group promises 1o iramsfer 35 part of the bundied package with netwark service plans ane
corsiderad distinet and thus actounted for & a sepaate performance obligation. Devices that are transfered
as part of a fixed line telacommunication senvices bundled package which can oty be wsed together with the
services provided by the Group, ane considened a3 a singhe perfoimance obligation in felecommunications senice
TEVEE.

A contrad ! a3 oo oginmed whien e Groug: delivers thir dedcis lelode Bhae jsayiient 5 due. 1 e payiment
happens belore the defivery of device, then a contract lobdity s recogrned. Contract assets and contract
lsbliities are mesented In the statemants of lirancial positon.

The Group generates revenue from telecommmication infrastructure busness, Teecommunication infrastructure
bisiness reyenue is genarated from the leasing of space on the Ghoup's tBlecommunication towers. where the
custoimers irstall and masntan their indhvidual communication netwark equipment, The mevenue 5 recogniged
an a straght- ke basis aver the Tiked and non-cancellable term of tha kase agreement, Frespective of when
peayment @ dus,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ICONT'D.)
(d} Rewenus recognition (cont'd.)
(I} Revenue from contracts with customers {cont'd.)

4l ProperTy development projects
Cantradis wilh Cuslomers may Inghude ﬂ'll.l]liliﬂ Liul'llirﬁ': 1o customers and Therelore socounied T s sEparale

perfamance olfigaions. The transadton pice will Be allocated to eadh performande chbgation based on the Stand-
aane seifling prices. When these are not drectly obsarvabla, they are estimated based on expected cost-phs margin,

The revenue From property deveiopment 6 maasuied at Fied ransaction price agreed under the sale and purthese
agreement.

Revanie from property development is neongnised % and when tha control of the assat is transfetred to the ¢ustomer
and it is prhable that the Group will mllact the considaration tn which it will be entitled in gachange for the asset
that weill be transterned o the costamaer, Depending on the terrs of the cantract and the s that apply 16 the
contract, contrel ol the asat may transler cver tina of a1 a peint m time. Camral of the mset is ranslermid cvar
time i the Croup's performance does not create an asset with an altemative use to the Group and the Group has an
enfarceabla right 1o paymant for paformance completed to dato.

The promised propestees are specifically identified by its lot and unit number and its attributes {such as its size and
lecation) in the sale and purchase sjreements and the amachad layout plan The purchasers could enlaece s fghes
to the promised proporties i the Group socks to soll tho wnit 1o anethar purchasas, The comfractual restriction on the
Growp's abdity 1o deect the promised proparty for another use is substantive use 1o the Group. The Group = entitled
£ continue 1o transler 1o the (ustomes the devidopment units promised and has thi rights 1o comgplete the corsinsction
ol the properties and orforce it rights 1o Tull payment

It the control af the asset transiers over Time, revenue s recogrised over the paried of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complate satisfaction of that performance obligation, Othenwise, revenue is recognised at
3 paoint in time wihen the customer obtains control of the asset.

The Grouj retoghised revenue over e using the npul inethod, which & besad on the actusl cost inourmed 1@ date
o the properly development projects a5 compared to the total budgeted cost for respect ive development pojects

Thie Group recogrised Sales ot a poirt n time for 1he S8 of completed properties, wisn Tha contrl of the poperties
has besen transferred to the puthasers, being when the properties. have been completed and delivered to the
Customens and it i5 probabde that the Droup will collect the consaderations 1o which 1 will be entitled to in exchange
far the assats soki

The Grodip has cetermined that it has a significant fimancing component relatedd 10 the sales af ds propeety units
baing developad undar the deferred payment schema, As a resull ol this the amount of the promined corsideration

Is adjursted for the significant financing companent and the related intenest income Is recognised wsing the eff ective
Intorest mathad avee tha teem of the doleman.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{d) Revenue recognition [cont'd.}
(i) Rewvenue from contracts with customers (cont'd.)
) Soie of stemm

Tiwr Gronsd’s sede af steam 5 mairdy cerieed [Tom wholésalg maked cusiomers, Revenue liom sdes of sieam is
recognned a5 and whin th Giougs cislamirs simollaneously feceie aid consume the benelits (Le. the customem
are abie 1o utllise the steam for thelr benefit as and when the s1eam s being supplied) arising fram the Group
performing its obgations based an the 1erms of the contracts with the customers. Accordngly, revenue from the
supply of steam is recognised over tima, Le. a5 and when tha steam supplied 5 consumed by the customers,

o elpment of Tinancing kS desmed presoent a5 thie Group Mas adopied the practical expedient dvailalio in MFRS 15
wheme intenal behween trarster of 1he pramised goods of services and payment By 1he custamer is expected 1o be
less than 12 months

i} O
Oher incoms eammed Iy the Group is moognresd a5 the Tolloedng hagec.

i Sade of fuel ol

Sale of fued o & recogsed when cormnol of the procucts has trans? erred, Being when the products oo deliened
o the customead ard there is no unfulfilled obligation thal coukl affect tha customer’s atceptance of the
products. Delveny orours when the products kave been ransported to the spectic lacation, the rsks of
obsclesoance and lass have beanh transierned 10 the costomer. and aither the fistomsr has adcepiod This
products in accordance with the sales conract, the acceptance provesions have lapsed, of the Group has objective
ayidence that all oriteria for atceptance have been satisfied.

favenue from these sales is recognised based on the price specified in the confract and revenue & only
recognised to the extent that i is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur, Mo element of
financing ks deamed prosent as the Croup has adopted the practical expedient avallable in MFRS 15 where the
mterval batween transfer of the promised goods or sevvices and payment by the custome: B expected to be
kpss than 12 manths.

A meoclvable is recognised when the goocs are defivered as this is the point in tme that the comideraton s
uncendtional because only the passage of time is reguired befone the payment s due.

il Saie of natural gas

Revenue from sale of natural gas ks recognésed as and when the Group’s customers simuftaneously receiva and
comsume the benefits (e the customers ane able 1o utilise the gas for thelr benefit as and when the gas i
beng suppied) arising from tha Group parforming s obligations baséd on the tems of the contracts with the
customers. Accordingly, revenue from the supply of gas s recognised over time; |2, as and when the gas
supplicd 5 comsumed by the custamers, No element of Tinanzing is deemed presen a5 the Group has adopted
the practical expediont available in MFRS 15 whent the interval between ramifor of the promised goods o
sarvices and payment by the customer ks expected to be less than 12 months,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
(d} Rewenus recognition (cont'd.)
(I} Revenue from contracts with customers (cont'd.)
i} Others (comid)
i} Dperation and mainlenance Tees

Muhaiednant loes 15 reioghised over the paricgd @ owhich the seraces ane rendered.

Wy Tank leasing fees
Tank leasing fees from operating leases ae recognised on a straight ine basks over the lease temm

¥] Rendering of services

Revenue iom contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services is transferred to the (ustamer
ot an Amdunt that reflects the comidaration to which the Group and the Company expect 10 e entithed in
exchange for those services. The Group and the Company have genevally concluded that it (5 the principal in
I PEverLE dTenpements because |1 Dypically controby the services before irensleming them (o the customer,

vl)  Rewvenue from sales of lard

Revenee from sales of land is ecognised when control of the assats b transfered 1o the customer and the
collectability of the related receivables s reasonably assured.

wil) - Hiring incame
Hiring incame ts recognised on an acorual basis.

wil) Commission incoma
Commission incoma & recogrisad on recesved and receivabile basis,

(i) Revenue from ather sources
Specilic revenmie recadnition criteria far other reveres and incoms saresil by the Grouip ard the Company ane b follimees:-

@) WEEFDST Ancome
INCEERET INCOME IS recngnised a5 the iNTerest Ncome scrues, taking o account The effeciive yiekd on the asset,

& Onadend inomme
Dividend Incame s recognised when the sharehalders right to freceive the payment is establshed

) Rentol income

Rental iIncome from opevating feases (net of any incentives given to the lessees) Is recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease lerm,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{e) Employee benefits
{iy Short-term employes benefits
\Wages, salanes, soual security contrbulions, pakl annal leave, paid sick leave, bonuses and non-moanetary benefits ane
recognised a5 an expenms in thie Ninancial yes wisisn snpleyees have rendired heir serices 1o the Group aod The Comany.

BONUSas 30@ reCognused a5 an Epence when there js a presant, legal of consructive ohligation 10 make Such Rayiments,
@ fesult ol past esents and wihen a relalle eRtimats can be made of the amount of thie obligaton

{il) Pest-employment benefits
Thee Groug has various post-employment terefit schemes in acoondance with local conditions and practices in the industries
i whiich i1 sperated
These banefit plans are erthier defined contribution or defined benefit plans.

a)  Defined comtritwtian plan

A gefined conmmtiunkan plan is & pension plan under which e Group and thie Company pays Pled contribumions imo @
sapargte entity (& fund]) and will have no legal or constructive ohiigations o pay further contributions if the fund does
il hold suffickent awsets 1o pay ol employees Devs o melating o emgEloyee service in e corrent and prion periocs.

The Geoup's and the Company's contributions to a defined contribution plan are charged to the Income Statement in
the priod ta which they relate.

b)  Dofined bencfit plan

A cefined benafit plan & a pensian plan that defines an amount of pension benedi 10 be provided, usuaily 35 a function
off gne or miohe Tactors Such o age, years of senite or compemsation.

The latdity in respect of a defined benafit pan s the present value of the defined benelit obligation at the reporting
date minus the fair vaiue of plan assets

The defined benefit obigation is catoulated annually by Independent actuaries using the projected umit credit method
Thig present value af the defined benofit abligation B determned by discounting the ootimialed fiture cath autflows
wsing ntenest rates of high-gualty corporate bonds that ae denominated in g curmency in which the berefits will
e paid, and 1hat have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related persion chligation

Ra-measurement gains and insses of post-employment benefit obligations ae recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income,

Past-senice tosts @ne recognized immediately in the Income Statemsnts,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
(e} Employee benefits (cont'd.)

(iEl) Share-based compensation
Thit Company and (ertain sulsidanes opam@ame equity-seTtied, share-based compensation plan Tor the employess of The

Group. The falr value of the emoloyes sendces recefved in exchange for the grant of the share options is recognied as an
expaise in the moome Statement oves tha vesling panods of the grant with a cormesponding increase in equity.

The total amount ta be expersed over the vesting period s determined by reference to the fair value of the shane options
grantisd ard the rumber of share option to be vested by westing date, At each reporting date, thie Group revises its estimates
af the number al share options that are expected 1o vest It recognises thee impact ol the revislon af origingl estimates, il
any, o the ncome Statement, with & comrespanding adjustment to equity, For options granted by the Company fo its
sulmidiaried’ omployoad, the aupoiia will b recog rised in the subsidianiod inancial tatomonts over B wisting padods of
the grant.

Thit precoss recetved net af any diesctly artnbutable trarsaction costs are ered tod 10 -shans capital when the options s
muprcioad
[t} Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalsed as part of the cost of a qualitying asset it thay are drectly attnbutable to the acquisition,
cansiruction or prodiaction of That assel. Borrowdrg costs are capifalised wmd the asse1s ane substantially compieted for thair
intercled use or sale

Al other barrowing costs are recogrised (n Income Statement in the perled they ae inturred. Bormowing costs constt of
intarest and other costs that the Group and the Company irdumed in connection with the Borrowing of Turi,

() Income tax and deferred tax
Incodma t&x an the Incamo Statement for tha financial yoar comprises cuntent and delorred @

Current tax is the expectad amount of income tawes payable in respect of the taxable profit for the financial year and 1s
measirned uung the ta rates that Rase been onacted of substantely enactod 4t the ieporing date.

Deferred tax Is recognised in ful, using the liablity method, on temporary differences anising batween the amaunts attributable
1o assets and kabilities fo tax purposes and their carying amounts in the financial stalements. Howevet, dofened 1 s not
accounted for iF it arses from initial recegnition of an asset o Nability in o transaction that at the tima of the tramaction
affects reither accounting nor taxabde profit or loss

Defermred tax assets are recognsed oaly to the extent that if b probable that taxable profit will be avallabile agaimt which the
deductile temporary differences of unused tax losses can be utlised

Deferred tax bs detarmined wsing 1a« rates (and tax laws) that have been enacied or substaniively enacted by the reperting
date and are expected 10 apply when the related defered tax asset s reallsed or the deferred tax lability |s settied.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.}

{h] Property, plant and equipment, and depreciation

Praperty. plant and equipmant except for certain freshold Land and bulldings s stated at cost ks accumulated depreciation
and acoumulated imparment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attnbutabie fo the scquisition of the ters. Cost
alsa ineludes bomowing cos1s incurred for praperty, plant and equipment urder corstnictlion. This cost of certain paperty,
plant and equipment mclude the costs of dismantling, removal and restoration, the obligation of which was incwemed as a
consequence of Installing the asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carying amount or recognised a5 a separale asset, o5 appropriate, only when it
is probable that futue economic benafits assodiated with the item wdll flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
miaured ridiably, THo carying smount of the reploced part s gorecognisad. Al othor iepairs and maimonaite ane chamed
ta the Inopme Stement duting the financal yea inowhich they are incumed.

Cortain freehold nd and buldngs wene revaked by the Directors in 1983 Based on valuationd camed out by independent
prafessionz] valuers on the open market basis. in accordance with the transitional provishons issued by MFRS 116 Troperty,
Pant and Equipment’. tha waluation of these properties, plant and equipment have not bean updated and they mntinues to be
stated at their previcusly mevalued amounts less depreciation and impairment losses.,

Prapaty, pant and ecquipmsont retined fram active e and beid for dsposal ame stated an the lowor of mat beok value and nm
realisahie valie

Freehold fand and freehald od palm plantation are not amortised

Assats undar construction are staled At cost and are not depradated. ipon completion, ass2ts under construction ate ramiemad
fo categories of property, plant ard equipment depending on nature of assats and depredation commences when they are
Ty for thist intonded L,

Deprediation on all ot propeny, plant and equipmeit B calusated on Mie stiaight Ins basis ab rates isgued o wie ol
thee cost of the propery, plamt @nd eguipment over telr estimated useld lile

The principal annual rates of depreciation used are as follows-

Y

Buildings 1-10
Leasehold tand 1-3
Infrastracture & site Facilities na - M
Plant & machinesy 4-20
Furmiture, fixtures & equipment 10 - 50
Vehicles 10 - 33%
Tepammunication equapment 4-20

Residual vaue. usetul Iife and depreciation method ot assets are revsewed at each financial year end to ensure that the amourt,
method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the eapected pattem ot consumption of the
future econamic benafits embaded in the items of property. plant and equipment.

Gains and kssas on dsposals ae gotemined by companing net dkposall proceads with nat Carning snaunt and ang wocgniued
I 1hes Incamie STaterent.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
(i} Investment properties

Imvestment praperties include those portions af buikiings that are held for long-tem rental yields andror for capital appreciation
and freehold land andiar land under leases that is held for long-term capital apprediation of for 2 cumently Indetesminate use,
Investmant properties incude properties that are baing constructed or develaped for future wse as Imvestment proparties.

Wwestment propertles are maasured infbally at cost and subisequently at falr vatue with any change therain recognised in
Income Statement far the period in whith they afse. Whera the Tair value of the investmant properly undar comstne tion s
nab i liably detenmnatibe, thi s imed propety oo comstuclion i misgsunad Jf cost will athier its Lail sake beconmss
ruliaby determinalile e conmstregtion is comghele, whichivern is earliern,

Cont inchucid @ xpendituee that & directly atinisutable 1o the & guisition of the investment property. The cast ol seil-constructid
IS property indudes the cost of matedials and direc labour, any other costs directly atiributabie 1o brnging the
Imvestiment property 1o 3 wawking conditian for their intended use ann capitalised borrowing costs,

An myestment property |s derecognised on its disposal, or when it ks permanenty withdraan frim use and ne futre Bconomic
benefits are expected from its disposal, The difference betwean the net disposal procesds and the carmying amount is recognésed
in the Incoms Statement in the peniod in which the item B derecognised. The amount of consideration 1o be incuded in the
gain or lass arising from the derecognition of imestment poperty kB determinad in accordance with the requirements for
detasmiring 1he ransaction price in MERSLS Reverue (om Conirets with Custamg.

Translers are made 1o [or fram) invesiment property only whon thome 15 6 change in use. For a trantfer from invesiment
PropeTy 10 owner o oupled propertypdAmentonces, the doemed cast far subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of
change in use. If owner-ocoupsed prooerty becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such property In accoedance
with the policy stated wider property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use.

il Dewelopment expenditure

(11 Land held for property development

Land held tor property development consists of land where no devalopment activities have been carmied out or wheme
deselopment actinles e not sxpedted o be completed within the normal operating cycle, Such lnd is classtied within
noft-currant assets and is stated 0 the lower of cost and net realisabio valua,

Cost comprives cost of land and all relatad costs inturred on activities necostary o propare the Lnd for its intended uwe,

Lad held for property development i reciassilied as praperty dovelopmient ¢osts and intluded under cument assets when
devilopment scthvities have commenced and wheoe It can be demomitrated that the development activities can be
comgleted within the narmal operating cycle,

(i) Project developmaent expenditure

Divalapmant axpaadiung intured It capitalised whon it mapts comain citeda that indicate that it i prababibe That 1he
ot swill ghvir risie 1o futune egonceic banafits and o amartised ovor the period of the projects. Thiry ane wriitton dewn
i their recoverable amounts when there & insufficeent certainty that future etonamic benefits will Tlow to the enterprise.

Development corsts previcusly recognised as an expense are not recognsed as an asset in subsequent perods.

Capitalised devedopment expanditure Is stated at cost less accumulated amoetisation and impaiment losses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.}

(k) Impairment of non-financial assets

Thee carrying amourts of assets are eviesed ot each reponting date ta determine whaether there is any indication of impaiment.
IF any such indication exists, an asset’s recowerable amount & estimated to determine the amownt of imparment loss.

An impalmment koss is recognised for the amount by which the camying amount of the asset excesds s recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount 5 the higher of an asset's fali value less cost of deposal and vakue-In-use, For the purposes of
Fisessing impament, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separatsly emifiable cash Nows (2sh-
gererathig wiets). Non-linandial assets athir than goodwall at sulfered impainnent s reviesed lor posalile isverzal of the

il wacl: eporting datee.

An impaimmant lowy B charged to the nosme Statement mmediotely, uiess the aset b carled ot revalued amount, Any
impairrnend loss of a revalued asset is treated as o revaluation decrease to the extent of previously recognised revaluation
swrphes for The same @sel

Impairment osses on goodwill are not reversed. in respect of other assets any subsegquent increase in the recoverable amount
ol an assel is redted as reversal of e predous iimpalment s @nd s ecogosed o the extent of the canying amount of
thie assetl thal would have been detenmined [net of amortsation and degeedation) had no impaiment koss been recogaised,
Thet sevesal i e ogiised i e hooime Stalement inmediatedy, didess the asset is canied ol ievausd aimiuind. A reversal of
in Empainsent o ona mevalued asset 5ooedited deectly 1o mevaluation suiplus. Howeved, (o the extent 1hat an imgainment
Trsty womn W2 Saarmee irdahuadl st s (i e ogr s as o epmere i e o Staterned @ deverssl ol Bl ingalimmen
lorss i% mecogrisid o Ingonm i Uhe InConm Slatesen],

{1} Basis of consolidation

The consolivated finsnclal statenents comprise the finandat statements of the Comgany and s subsidisries as at the reporing
date, Thie linancad statements of the Ssubsdiaries used i the pregaration of the consobdated linancial STatements an prepand
far the samé reparting date ot the Company, Control is athievid whan the Ghoup 5 expoied. or has dghits, 10 variable returms
from its invakement with the investes and has the abity 1o affect those retums thiough s power over the investes.

Thit Grp controks an invesues 1 and only if vhe Grows s all te following-

= Power over the Imvestee [Le. existing nghts that give it the cutrent abidty 1o direct the relevant activities of the investes)
+  Exposure, of rights, 1o varabie returms from (s myessiment with the imsesies; and

»  Tre abllity to use is power over the investes to affect its retums,

When the Group has less than o majorty of the vating rights of an investee, the Group considers the Tolleaiyg in essessing
whether or not the Group's vatiog dghts in an urvestee are suffckent Lo give it power oves thee Investes:-

+  The contractud arangaments) with tha athor vate bolders of the inwestee
= Fghts aising from cther costraciud aimangeinents; and
= The Grong's wating rights and patential vating rghts.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
(I} Basis of consolidation [cont™d.)

The Caoup re-asseswes whethsl or not 1L controls an lnvestes (f faors and crommstances indicate that there are changes 1o
one of moie of The theee elements of control Condobdatian of & subsidiany begid when The Groug obtalng comrol over the
sulmsidiary and caases when 1he Group loses control af the subsidiary, Assets, liablities, intome and expames of a subsidary
acquined o disposed of during the year are included in the consoldated financial statemems from the date 1he Grou gains
control until the date the Croun ooises 10 contrml Fe subkidary,

incoeme Statement and aach companent of 001 ae atnbuted 1o the equity hakders af the parent af thie Group and ta the
nan-contmiling interests, euen i his results in the non-ontrolling interests Raying a deficit balanca, When necessany,
atjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their acounting polities into ine with the Groip's
accounting policies. Al intra-group assets and liabllitles, aquéty, Income, experses and cash flows relating to warsactions
betwean members of the Group ang aliminated in Tl on ¢comalidatian

B change in the cwnership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of contrel, is sccounted for as an equity ransaction. If the
Gioup kset cantro! cvor a sulsidiany, it
«  darecognises the assats {incudng goodwilly and labdities of the subsidany
+  dorecognises the carying amount of any pon-controling intergsts,
derecognises the cumdative ranskation differences recosded in eguity;
o recognisas the fair vahe of the comsideration recated
recogrizes the fair vale of any investmeant retained;
«  recognises any suipius or deficit in intome Statement; and
« feclassifies the parent's share of components previously recagnised in other compeehensive income 1o Income Statement

of fetained carhings, a5 appropate, as would ba required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
llabdtios.

Beruisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for by applying the purthase method, dentifiable assets acquired and Eabilties and
eantingent Eablities wmsumad in a bisiness combination are meaured initially af thess Tair walues o the acgusition date,
Adjustments o those fair values relating to previpusly heid imterests are treated as a revaluation and recognssed in other
comgrehiEnsive income

The cost of a business combination k= measured as the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of the assets
ghven, laldlities incumed or aysumed, and eguity Fstruments ssoed, plus any costs diectly atiribelstie  the business combination.
Aay excensy of the oot of business combination over tha Gioug’s shane in the mat Fair valee of the scquined sulmidian®s identiflable
assets, labiities and contingent liabiithes is recorded as goodwill in the statements of financial position. The a¢counting policy
for goodhedll Is sat out in Nate 2{q) to the financlal statements. Any excess of the Group's share inthe net fair value of the
acouined sibsidiany’s identifable sssets, Eahilitios and contingent kabilities over the cost of business combination s recogiised
a5 income n income Statemoent on the date of acguisiton. When the Growp acquines a business, embedded derivatives. separated
fram the host confrect by the scquiree are reassessed on acquisition unless the business combination resutts in a change in
the tamre of the cantract that significantly modifias the cash flows that would atharwise ba reguired under the cantract
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= 30 june £021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{m} Transactions with non-controlling interests

Tha Group treats framsa tons with non-controfing interests a5 transactions with eguity owners of the Group. For peichases
from non-tantrolling interests, the ddference between any comideration paid and the elevant shares acoured af the carying
vaiue af net assets af the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or kosues on disposals to noan-controlling interests are also
recomdied in equity,

(n] Investmant in subsidiaries
A subrsidiany Is an entity over which the Group has ol the followeng -
+  Power over the investee (Le existing rights that give it the cument ahility 1o direct the relevant activitles of the investeey
»  Ewpeviing, of rigfts, 16 vadahle potum Troem iFs imeestment with the imaestea; and
= The ability to use its power over the investes to affect its retums,

In the Company’s separate Tinancial staloments, irdestinents in subsidianes ate accounted for a1 cost bess accumulatod
Impairment losses. On disposal of myvestments in subsidiaries, the difference between disposal proceeds and the carmying
amounts of the investments are recogrised in Income Statement,

(o) Investment in asseclated companies

Assoclated companies are entithes in which the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence but which is nelther
sulriadiany nor an interedl i a joint ventuie. Significant infleenco is the power 10 participats in the financial and oporating
palicy decisiors, but not central ever thelr palicies The cedstence and effect of potential votng rights that we curmantly
cxarcitabio or convertiblo are consadorod whon aasessing whether the Group has significant influence aver anathar ontity.

Imvestments in asscoated companies are accounted Tor in the consolidated financial statoments wsing the equity mathod of
acoounting and are Inthally recognised at cost, The Group's investment in assocdated companizs includes goodwill demtified
on acquisition, net of any accumuated iImpalment loss

In applying the equity method af accounting. the Group's share of S associated companies post-acquisition profits of losses
are recogrised in income Statsment and 15 shae of post-acquisition Mowements in reserees 5 regognised in ather comprehorive
income. The cumulative post-acquisition mavements and distributions recehved from the asodated companies e adjusted
against the cairging amount al the investment. When the Group's shane of lasges inan rsotiated company cquals o caceods
its interost in the rmsociyiod company. ncluding any ather untecwod obligations, the Group doos not recegniso further lesscs,
uniass it has chligations or has made payments on behalf of the associated company.

Tha most recent dvalable audited finandal statements of the associated companies are wsed by the Group In applying the
equity method, Where the dates of the audited financial statements used ane not cotenminous with those of the Group, the
share of mesuls ks arreed at from the last sudited financal statements availabie and management financial statements 1o the
cnd af the accounting period Where nocessary, adjustments are made 1o the financlal statements of assoiated companies
1o erute consistency af actouniEng policles with thase of the Groug.

Lnrealined gains on transactions betwesn the Group and its avodated companies ate eliminated to the catent of the Group's
intorast in the associated companies, Unrealined bosses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidente of an
Impairment of the aset wansferned.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

(o) Investment in asseciated companies (cont'd.)

Gaing and lovies arising from partial disposals or diutions in innestments in assacisted companies are meoognised In ncome
Staterment,

Iyerstments in assedated companles are derecognised when the Group loses significant influence. Any retalned aterest in
thee enlity Is remeasured at its falr vadue. The ditference between the carmying amount of the eianed investmant at the date
wihen signifcant influence i kst and s feir vilue @S recognised o Incoms Slatément.

Tan e Company's separate Tinancal statemints, imastments i assolkated companies afe stabed al cost sy scounulabd
impainmaent losss. On disgonal of Enaestimeirts o esocated companids, the diffenerce between disposal piodeeds and the
camying amaueits of the imestments ane recognised in noome Stalement,

tp) leint arrangaments

A joint arrangement s an arrangement of which there |s confraciually agreed shating of contral by the Group with one ar
mare parties, where dedsions about the relevant sctivities relatng to the joint arrangament requie snanimous tonsent of
the parties sharing contral, The ciassification of a jeént arrangament as a [ont operation or a jsint veniure depends upon the
rights and oblgatiors of the parties to the arrangement. A joint venture |5 a joint amangement whereby the joint venturers
hawe rights to the net assets of the amangenment. A jont opedation = a joint arangement wheneby the jolist operators have
rights 1o the assets and obdgativns foe the labdlites, relatng to the arrangement.

[oint vemture
The Grougfs interests in joint ventures are atcounted for by the equity method of sccounting based on the audited Fnancial
Maternents of the jonl venures made up 10 the end of the linanoal year,

Equity accaunting imaobees recognising In the income Statement the Crous's share of the results ol joint ventures lor the
ftinanclal year. The Group's Ivestments In joint veniunes ane camed in the Statements of Financlal Positon at an amount that
reflects its share of the net assets of the jint ventwes and intudes goodwdll on atquksition.

Unrealised gairs on trandacticns betwean tha Group snd itx jeint ventutes aré sliminated o the axtent of t Groug’s intedast
I the jaint ventunes undealmad Basses are alyo efiminated uniess the transaction providas evidence on impairment of the asset
transformd, Whare necessary, in apphdng the squity methed, adjustiments ae made (o the financtal statemants of jont ventunes
o answe comsiency of stcounting poliches with those of thi Group

In the Company's saparste finandal statements, Inestmants in joint wentures ae stated 3t cost lbss impsiment |nsses.

On dsposal of suich imdastments, the difterance between net dispasal proceads and thew camying smounts s Bcluded in
InComms STAement,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{q) Intangible assets
(i) Contract rights

Cantract Aghts compire acquired conlracts and fghts to contracts from business cambination, These are amonised ovid
the contractual pariod a0 a straight line basis and ame assessed a1 each reporting data whathar thare s any indication
that the contract rights may be iImpained. See accounting policy Note Alk) to the financial statements on mpalment of
ran-finarial assers

(i} Goodwill

Coadwill |5 initially measured a1 cost. Following the inlilal recognition, goodwill is measured &0 cos1 less accumulated
Impairment losses,

For the purpose of Empairmant testing, goodwill aquired B allacated. from the aqunition date, to each of the Group's
rash-enarating units that are sxpected o henafit from the synemies of the cembimation

The Carsh-generating unil 1o which goodvill had been alacoted i wested for impairmant annually and whapever thede &
arl indcation that the cash-generating unit may be Impaitred, by compering the canylng amount of the cash-genserating
wnit, incuding the allacated goodwill, with the recoverable amourt of thie cash-generating unit. Where the recoverabile
amount of the cash-generating urét i less than the carmying amount, an impairment lass is recognised In profit or kass.
Impairmient lpsses recognised for goadwil ae nat reversied in subsequent peviods.

\where goodwil Tormes part of a cash-gererating unit and part of the operation within that cash-generating unit is disposed
o, thie goacwill assecianed with the opsration disposed ol i5 intued in the carrang amaunt of the aparaton when
determining the gan of lass on disposal of the aperation. Goodwill disposad of in this droumstance is measured based
on the Telative Talr vatues of the operations dispesed of and the partion of The cash-generating unit retalned

{ill} Software assets

Saftware assets compniss in-howse computer softerre dovolapment and speclalised compater software. Softearne assots

ari amartied over 5 1o 10 yoars and ang assessed at pach ropening dato wieihos thes is any indcation that the sof tware

wssets may be impared See atcounting palicy Note 2(k) to the financial statements on mpaiment of non-financal assats,
{iv) Ovhars

o) Camdomer iy

Customer lists are amortisad over the contractual pericd on a straight line hasts and are assetsed at sach mparting
date whether there is any indication that the other inTangibile assets may be impaired. Sea accounting policy Note
2k 1o the Tinancial statemants on imgakment o non-Tnancal assets.

bl Quarry tighs
Quarry rights are amortised on the straght ine basis over the laase tam leds mpainrant kssas,

©)  Fmbsion righrs
The emission rights that ae acquined By the Group are measured at cost less any accumulated irgairment ‘osses

The palicy far the retognition and meaturemont of mmpalmment osses is n accordanie with Nete 2(k).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{r} Financial assets
(I} initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised in the Statements. of Financlal Pasition when, and only when, the Group and the Company
becoma a party 19 the contrsiual pravisions of the Ratrument.

Financial axaets ame clossdicd. at inmtial regognition, and subsequently measened a1 amartised cost, (i value throwgh
athef (ampeehantiag neome (00T, ar falr vahss hiough profit of leos.

The dassifcation ot financial assets at nitlal recognition depends on the finandal asset’s contractual cash flow chamedstics
and the Group’s and the Company's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do
not cantain 3 significant financing componeit ar Tor which the Group and the Company hava appliad tha practic d expedient,
the Croup and the Company Bitialy measure a financial assed at irs Tair value plus, in the case of a Tinanc il asset not
at falr vakie through prafit or loss. ransaction costs Trade recervablos that do not contain a shonificant finarcing component
ar for which the Group and the Company have appled the practicsl expedient are measured at the transaction pice
detarmined under MFRS 15.

In order for a financial assal 10 be dassified and measwred at amortised cost or FVOLL # needs 10 gve rise to cash flows
hat ane sclety paymeants of prnogal and inlerest [SPPT) on the pncipal amount outstanding, This assessment s referred
&5 the SPR1 tes1 and is performad J1 an irsirument kvel

Thee Grous and the Campany’s business moded Tor managing Tinancial #55ets relers 1o how It manages 1ts financial assers
in ofder 10 generate cash flows The business medel determines whether cash flows will result from coflecting contraciual
cash Mows, selling the financla assets, or bath.

Purthases or sales of fineicial sssets thal require delivery of assels within a tme frame established by requlation or
comvertion in the market place (regular way trades) e recognised on the trade date. |e. the date that the Group end
e Company comemits o purchase or sell the rset.

(i) Subsequent measurement

For purpases of subsequent measurement, Financial assets are classified in four categories:-

= Financial assets at amartised cost (debt instruments)
Finanoal ssets at tair vaie through O with recyding of cumalative gains and osses (debt mstiemsms):

« Financlal assets designated at far value through 00 with no recyding af cumulative galrs and kersses upon derecognition
(equity imstuments) and
*  Financial assets at fair value through polit or loss,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{r} Financial assets (cont'd.}

{ii} Subseguent measurement [cont'd.)
o)  Fnonciel pssets ot omortised cost (deltr instruments)

This cateqgory Is the most relevant to the Group and the Companmy. The Group and the Company measures financial
assets at amonmsed cost if both of the following conditions ae met:-
The financial asset is hald within a businass mode with the objective to hold financal assets in order to coliesy
contractual cash flows and
Thar cantractual tenrs of the finamtis’ assit geve rise on spedified datis to cash Aows that ae solely pagmeis
ol printipdl ard infemst on te pringical amount outstanding,

Financlal assots af amartised cost ae subsequently measined wsing the effective interest rate (EIR") method and
are subjact to mpairment, Gains and losses ane recognised in the income Statement whean the assat is denecognised,
maddied or impanad

The Groug’s and the Comparny's financial assets at amortrsed oost incdude fecatvables dmd amounts dus from asociates
and joint ventures inclisded under ather non-curent financial assets,

) Fnaniol ossets designated af fair volue thraugh 00 jequily instruments)

Upn initial recognition, the Group and the Company can olect 10 classidy imevocably its equity investmonts as
equity nstruments designated at fair value through 001 when they meet the definition of equity under MFRS 132
Financlal Instraments: Presentatian and are not held far tading. The dassitication 5 determined on an instrument-
by instiument basis

Cairs ard lovies on these financial assets are never redycled to Income Statoment. Dividends aro recognised s
ather Income n the income Statement when the rght of payment has been established, except when the Group
and the Coimpany beilits liom such proceeds & a recovery of part af he cost of the fnanclal asset, in whids
L, SuLls gairs are secorded in OCL Equity insinaments dessgraled at Tas walus 1eough Q0 ane nal sulifec) o
litgairimiEn dssessiment,

T Group and 1he Company eectod 1o classily iminozably It non-lsted squity mwestments woes hes category.

£)  Fanoncie! assers of foir value through profit or foss

Finantlal ssets at falr value through profit or loss include fnancial assets held for tradng, financa) 2ssts designated
uptn iretial fecogndtean At Tair value thiough pealit of loss, of Tinanoal assets mandatlony nequired 1o be madsaurad
at fair value. Financial assets ara classitied as held for trading it they are acquired for the purpose of seling or
rapurchasing in this near term. Dervalives, including separated embedded dervatives, ame ateo classitied as hald for
tracdng uridess they ae dessqmated as offective hadging instrumente. Financial assets with cash fows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, imespective
of the business moded. Motwithstanding the criteria for debt instrumeants to b dascified at amortised cost or at far
walug through OCL & desoibed above, delit instrumants may be desighated at fair value through profit of loss on
initial recognition if dong so ebminates. or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{r} Financial assets (cont'd.)
(i) Subsequent measuremant (cont'd.)
¢)  Finonoial assets o folr volue through profit ar boss (oont'd )

Financlal gssets at fair value through profit or loss dre catred In the statement of financal pesiion at far value
with net changes in fair value recognised [nthe Income Statomant

This category inthudes dedivative instruments and listad eguity nvestments which the Group and the Comparty had
not imevocably electad 1o classify at falr viaue through OCL Dividends on equity imestments are also recngnisad as
athar incoma in the noomae Staiament when tha sght of paymeant has been established.

A dervative ambedded in a hybrid comrect, with a Tnancia Rability or nan-fimarcial host s separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derdvative [ the cconomic characteristics and risks are not closely iolated to the
hmstz & separate instrumant with the same terms as the smbedder dervative would mest the detinition of a
derfvativa; and the tybnd contract i not measured at Fale yahue thrmugh peofit or ioss. Embedded desivatives ame
measured at fair value with changes in tair value recognised inincome Statament. Reassessment only ocours iF these
Is gither a change in the terms of thi confract that significantly modidias the cash flows that would otherwise be
reqquined of a reclassification of a inancal asset out of thee fair valee theough profil or 1655 cilagory,

A detivatha erbedoed within a hwbrid conmract containng a linancial asset host is not accounted far separately.
The finandal asset host together with the embeddad derivative s required 1o be classifiad in its ertirety a5 a financial
msset at falr value through profit of loss.,

{iii} Derecegnition

A financial asser (or, whene applicabie. a part of a fnancial asset of part of & group af similar financial assets) & primarily

derecognised |Le, removed fiom the statements of financial pasition) whearn-
Tha rights 1o recaive cash Thwd from tha asset have expired; o

- The Group and the Compary have transfemed 1ts rights to receive cash Mows from the 355st of has assumed an
ohligation 1o pay the received cash Nows In ful without materal delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangament: and edther {(a) the Grows and the Company have transferred substantally all the risks and rewards of
thie asset, or (b) the Goup and the Company hase neiher transfemed nor retalned substantialy all the risks and
nivwaich ol thie aidel, but has tarsleined contiol oF Dhe assirl.

when the Group and the Company have transfermed (ts dghts to recelve cash flows from an assat or has entered info a
pass-through amangement, [t evaluates f, and to what cxdent, i has otained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it
has reither transferred noe retained substantially all of the risics and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the
aset, the Gioup and the Company continuees o recognse tha tramsfenmed asset to the axtent of its continung ireolement.
In that case, the Groug and the Comgany aka recognises an assaciated Rbity, Tre ransterred dset and thir pssocated
liablity are measured on a basis that reflects the nghts and oblgations that the Greup and the Company haw retained.

Continuing imvobvament that takes the form of a guarantee over the transfesrad asset B maasured at the lower of the
ariginal camying amount of the assat and the masimum amoant of corsideration that the Group and the Company could
be requited fo repy
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.}

(%) Impairment of financial assets

The Group and the Company recogrise an alowante Tor expected credit logses (TECLST) for all debt instrumeants not hesd o
Fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash Tlows due in acoondance with
the contract and 3l te cash flows that the Group and the Compary expect 1o recelve, discounted at an approximation of the
oniginal effective inerest rate. The expected cash Flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral hedd or other oredit
enharcements that are integial 1o the contractual temms

ECLS aie iecogivised b twi stages. For credit expasiies Tar wisch there has not baen 2 signilicant noease in oedit ik syice
il reognition, ECLs ane provided For oredit ossas that iesull Trom defaul eeents Bl aoe possdbe willin e et 12-moniis
["a 12-manth ECLT) For those coedit exposures Tod sebich thige has been a Sgnificant indresse 0 ciedil risk since indtial
recoiition, 4 ns allowance s reguired Tor oredil Iovses expeciod over the remasning ie of he exposure, imespective of the
Rirmiiigy of the delfault (" lifetime ECLT),

For trade recefvables and contract assels, the Group and the Company apples & simplified approach In caboulating ECLs.
Therefore, the Group and the Company does not Wack changes in oedt risk, bul Instead recognises 3 loss alowance based
o lifeleme ECLs &t eath reporiing dote. The Groug and the Companry has established a provison matis that is based on its
historical credit loss experience. adjusted for forward-looking factors specific 1o the debtoes and the econamic envirohiment.

Thit Caoup and the Compary considens & financal asset in defaull when comsa tus payments are 90 days past due, Howevi,
I ertain casims, e Growge and e Comglary may abd carmsiden o Finomiel asset o Be i default wisin ivernad o et
inloemation indicatis (hat Dse Groag and Bie Comjlany is unliely 10 moee The outstanng contrac beal amuants in full befone
Rakleig into aocouwl any credit enbarcaments beld by te Group dand the Comgany, A financkal assed s wiltten off when thee
I oH3 reasonabibe expectation of recovering the contractual cash Mowe.

Furiher desclosures elatng to impainment of financial assets are aiso provided m the loliewing notes-
Hote

Trade and other receivablas. 20
Frwwniclal ik managerant £l ]

{t} Contract cost assats

The Group Capitalises salot commistont a5 costs to oblain o contract with a customor when they are incromental and oxpected
fo be recovened over mare 1han a year. The Croup expacts 10 moowed thisse costs in the Tutufe through tefecommiumication
sonices revonue carned From the austomer, The Group alsoe capitalises the oxpendituio on arssots Such 25 water mans/sowens
of niew connections relating to tontracts as they ane incurred to Tl the contract and are expocted to be reteived over mane
than one year,

Sales commissions are amortised on 3 stralght ling basks over the term of the spedfic contract to which the cost relates o,
Amortisation of contract costs are indluded as part of direct cost within “Cost of s38es® in the income Statements. While, the
capenditure on acsats ane treated as cost of salos when the contract ks complete.

An Impaimment ko k racogrised 1o Ineme Statement 1o the extent that the carrying amaunt of the tentract £os1 asuots

recognized ouceeds tha femaining amount of consdoration that tho Group capedts to recoive for the wpecific contract that
the cost rolatos 1o Joss sdditional costs roguired 1o caomplete tho wpacific contract,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{u} Contract assets and liabilities

Confract assel Is the right to consideration in ekchange for goods and sarvices that the Group has transfemed o a cistomer,
i the Group ranshers goods or services 10 @ customes before 1the customer pays conskieration or belone payment is due, a
CORIFMCT dS401 |5 pocognlsed fod the caimdd condideratian that 1S conditlonil CoNract Assets are sulject 10 mpasment
assessment based on the ECL model

Comtract liability 5 the wnsatisfied obigation by thie Group 1o trensfer goods or sarvices [o 8 customsr for which the Group
has receved consideration (or an amount of consideration is dee) from the customer, § a customer pays consideration before
Thay Giroaup Transfors Qoo of Senioes 10 10 custom, & contract Banility is recognised when tha payment s mace of the
pugmment i due (whichevar is parfier), Contract liabiities afe fecngnsed 4% revane when the Groap pertons under the comrc,

(%) Derivatives financial instruments and hedging activities

Dervatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a demvative contract < entened into and are subsequent ly re-measuned

at thelr fair valep. The method of recegniing the resulting gain or less dependy on whoether the dedvative s designated as a

hedging irstrument, and i so, the nature of the item beng hedged The Croup designates certain derivistives as eithaer:-

(i1 Hedges of thie Tair value of recognised assers o R0 Ges of a fimy commiment (s value edge); or

{ily Hedgas of a particular risk associated with a recognised assat or Hability or & highty probable forecast transaction (cash
fhow hedgel ar

{iil)  Hedges of a net imwestmant in a foreign operation.

The Ceoup documents at the inception of the transaction the refationship between hedgng instruments and hedged (tems,
a5 wiell S 5 ISk Managemen obpectves and Srategy Tof undertaking variows hecging transactions Thie Group alse documents
It% assessmen, hath at hedge smoeption and om an ongaing hasds, of whethear the dertvatives that are ised i hedging fransactions
am highly effective n offsetiing changes In falr values or cash flows of hedged items.

The fair valses of varous derivative mstruments used for hedging purpeses are dinclosed in Note 21 Movemants on the
hiedging resone inather compirehenshne Incom ane shswi in Note 28, The full far value of a hedging dervative is classitiod
&t 3 pdn-cufrent adset of liabdty whan the remaining hadged Hem js mora than 12 manths, and a5 a cumont et of llability
wihen the remaning maturity of the hedged kam Is bess than 12 months. Trading derivatives ane dassified as a cement asset
o kability.

(I} Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that se desigrated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
Statement tagether with ary charges in e Fair value of the hedged aswit ar liablty that afe strrutable 10 1he hedged
risk. The Croup only applies Tair value hedge sccounting for hedging Fived interest risk on borrowangs. The gain or loss
relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings B recognised In profit or loss within
Tinance costs. The gain of koss selating 19 thee ineffective portion is meoogniied in the Income Statement within ‘ather
gains/flosses) - net’. Changes in thix Taie value of the hedge foed rate borrowings attributable to intenest rate ik ame
recogaised in the Incoma Statement within “finance costs.

I the Bl no Jorges mests e crilenia Tor hedge scouunting, The scdpstment e e cerying amant of @ hedged ilem

for which the effective interest method |s used s amortised to Icome Siatement over the period 1o maturity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
(v} Derivatives financial instruments and hedging activities {cont'd,)

{ii} Cash flow hedge
T Fair walue changes on the gffective porlion of the derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash Now hedges
are g ognived in other comprebermive income, The gain or loss relating 1o the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
In Income Statemsent,

Amounts accumuated In equity are reclassifisd to ingome Statement in the financlal periods when the hedged tem
affects profit or kass {for example. when the farecast sale that i hedged takes place). When the forecast transaction
that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financizl asset (for example, inventory or fixed assets), the gains and
Iosses previowsly defemed i equity are ransfemed from equity and included in the initisl measuremrent of the cost of
thi @sset. The deferred amounis are uitimately recognised in cost of goods sold inhe case of irventory or in depreciatian
In the case of propeny, plant and equipment.

When the hedging mstrument expires or B sold, or when a hedge no langes meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain o loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and i recognised when the forecast transaction
is ultimately recognised in the ncome Statement. When a forecast transaction Is no longer espected fo occw, the
wumidlative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transfemed to Income Statement.

{iil) Hedges of net investment in foreign operations

Thee Group applies hedge acoounting by designating a non-denvative finandal llability as & hedge of a net investment in
the forelgn operation, with the corresponding foreign cumency differences arlsing on the wansiation being reclzssified
o the Group's foreign cwrrercy transhation reserve. To the extert that the hedge s inefective, such differences are
recogmised in the ncome Statements. When the hedged net mestment i dispousd af, 1he relevant ammaunt in the Toresgn
cutrency ramslation resenve is rransfened to 1he IRCome Statements retun as part of the gain of less on disposal

Thar Group uses o loan o o hedge of 1% caposure 10 foreign exchange risk on its imestments in foreign Subsdianes.

{w)] Inventories
Inentones ane stated o1 thi lowser of cosl and et reafisable value,

Cost is determined on the welghted avevage or first in. first out basis and includes the cest af purchase and other costs incumed
In bringing the imwentaries to their present location and condtion,

Thie post of finshed goocs and work-In-progress consists of raw materials, direct labour, other direct charges and an appropriate
prapartion of production overheads {based an noimal operating capacity).

Fused aned dliesisl il hisdd Ter gennratkon af eleciricity dng nat writlen down Below cos? (1 the alecticity generated i oxpectied
1o abtain @ gross margn a1 of above cost, Cast Tor this purpose incudes the applcable cos1s required 1o enable the fuel and
diesel ool to be used for the generation of electricity.

Irvenboties for cil trading are acquired with thie punpose al seling n the nsar Futune snd generatng o profil from e iustions.

In price, These are at far value bess costs 1o sell with changes in fair value less costs to sell recogrised in the income Statements:
in the period of change.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIMG POLICIES [CONT'D.)
{w) Inventaries {cont'd.)

The cost of developed properties comprives costs msseciated with the soquisition of Land, direct costs and appropriate proportions
of comimon costs

Met reafisable value is the estimated sefing price in the ondinary course of business, kess the costs of completion and applicable
warlabia selling expansas,

(2} Property development costs

Property development costs compaise all costs that are directly attributable 1o development activities o that can be allocated
o & reasenable basis to such activities. Propety development (osts ane recognised whisn incurmed.

when the linandal outcomi of 1he development actisity can bie reflably estimated and the salg of th devilopment unit is
alfecind, property devlopment resenue and expenses ane ecognibed in the Income Statement by reference 1o the stage ol
complation of development activities at the reporting date in accofdance with MFRS 15 Revenue From Contracts with Customers.,
The stage of completion is detenmned by the oroportion that property develapment costs incurred for work performed 1o
date to the estimated total proparty development costs.

where the financial outcoine of 3 developient sClivity carnat be relably estimated. property development revenue ks iecognlsed

onily 1o the extent of propeny development (o515 inourmed that ts probable will be recoversbie, and propeny development
Costs on Eoparties sold are recognised as an expendse in the period in which they are incumed.

Any expected loss on a devioament project, including costs (o be nturred over the delects labdlity peticd is recognised as
an expenss mimediately.

Property developmant costs not recognized &5 an expense are recognised a5 an asset, which s measured at the lower of cost
and net realisable valua,

whaie revenue recognised in the income Statement exceed billings to purchasers, the balance s shawn s contradt assets
{within coment assetsh Where billings to puchasers excesd revenue recogised in the inoeme Statement, the balance ts shown
a4 comiract liabdithes (within cument Babilites).

{¥) cash and eash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents consist of cash and bank balances, bank overdratts, depasits hefd at call with financlal institutions
aitel highly liquid inyestments which have an insignificant risi of chamges in value, For thi purpose of the Statements af Cash
Flores, cash and cash equivabnts ae presented met af bank ovendral ts

{z) Share capital

Orclimary shares afe equity irsiruments and recorded at the profeecs recernsd, ned of diectly attributable incremental Transaction
conts

Drvidends an ardinary shares ore scounied for in dhaehalders’ equity ot an appropriation af retained earmings and stcrued
a5 llabiity in the financial year in which the obligation to pay is established
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{aa) Treasury shares
Where the Company puichases ils own shares, (he consideration paid, including any directly attibutable incremedntal costs.

nel of Tax, 5 deductod From equity avrdutable 1o thee owrers of e Company o6 Treasury Shanes until the shares ane
cancelled, raissuad

Should such shares be cancefled. the costs of the tteasury shanes s applind in the reduction of the profits othenwlse
avallable for distribution as dividends. Should such shares are subsequeatly ressued any consideralion received. net of any
directhy attnbutabile incremental Tansactkon (osts and the elated ta etfects. is incluced in equity attribatable e memers
af the Campary,

Wwhere the tieasury sharas are subsequently distriibuted as dividends 1o shareholdars, the costs of the treasury shares on
the arkpnal purchate ane apalied in the reduction of the funds atherwise ivailable for deimbition m dividends,

{ab) Irredeemable Convertible Unsecured Loan Stocks [“ICULS™)

Thee ICULS ane regarded @ compolnd insruments, consisting of a lablity component and an squity componeat At the date
ol s, th Lar value al the Bability componént B astimated weing the prevading market intemast rite fod a seiilar instrumant.
The difference betwesn the proceeds of tssue of the ICULS and the fair value assigned to the Gabedity componant, representing
thee comversion optian s included in equity. The latslity componaent s subsequently stated at amprtised cost using the effective
Interest rate mothad urtd extinguished on comersion or concalation, whilst thavalue of the equity camponent is rot sdjustod
n subsequent periods. Attributable transaction costs are apportioned and deducted drectly from the debility and equity
componants bated on ther cafiying amaunts at the date of Bsue.

Under the affective interest rate method, the interest expense on the liablity componant is calculated by apolying the
presailng market interest rate for a simias non-corvenible mstrement at the date of ssue The difference between this
amaunt and the interest paid |5 added to the camying amount of the ICULS,

Thie watluie o this ponversion ogtion is not adjusted o subisegquent periods, except in tones of ITULS comrsion ifo ordnary
shares. Upon comession of s imtrument oo adinary shaces, the smount credited 1o shaa cagital is the aggregate of the
amaurits classified within labdity and equity &t the time of corvarsion. Mo gain or loss |s recognised in the income Statemant.

{ac) Deferred income

Tra deferred intome i in reldion 1o dssers ransfomad from osiomers in respedt of senvices which are yet 10 e provided,
Such amounts are recorded as dabilities in the Statements of Financial Position and are amortied to the ncome Statements

oy T ExpecTid useul econoamic Ives of the related assets.

{ad) Bonds and borrowings.

Bonds and borrowings are mitially recognised based on the proceeds recetved. nat of transaction costs inourred. Sutsequantty,
bencds ao borrowinags ane stated m amndtined cost using the elfectie yold mothod: any diflarence botwoon procesds (Ret
of transarton costy) and the redemnption value i moegnisad nothe income Sttement over the pariod of the hends and
DoeroRings
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{ad) Bonds and borrowings (cont'd.)
Interest relating b @ Minand imtument dassified as a latelity & repored within Tience cost in the Income Slatemenis.

Bonds and bomowings &e cladsified as current Babdities unless the Group and the Company have an unconditional right 1o
faler settiement of 1hie liabsty for ar keast 12 months after the reporting date.

Boarowing cast incurmed 1o finance the construction of property. plant and equipment that meets the definmion of guatying
Asset @ne captaksed as part of e cost of the assets during the period of Time that s required 10 get the asset reacy for
its ntended ke,

[ae) Leases
{iy Accounting as lesses

Leases ane recognised & tghi-of-use (ROLR assets and a raresponiding lability a1 the date an which the leased asset
i awailable for use by the Croup and e Comparry (Le. tha commancament data),

Canracts may contain bath lease and non-kase compononts. The Group and the Company allecates the corcdaratian
in the tontract to the lease and non-lease components based on thewr relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases
of propertias for which the Group and the Company ame a lesses, it has elecled the practical axpadient providad i MFRS
16 et 10 sepafate lease and nan leaso componants. Bath compondnts are scounted Tof a5 a single lease companant
ard payments lor bath companents ane incheded in the momurement af kease lablity,

o) Leose fesm

I cetermining thie lease 1erm, the Group and the Comgany considers all lacts and ciigumstances that oeate an
eoonomic incenthie to exercise an extension apton, of Nl 1o exorcise a termination aplion. Extentian oplions {ar
periods atter termination cptbors! are only Included in the lease term if the kease is reasonadly certasn o be
exterdad [ar oot 1o be lerminsted).

The Group and the Company reassess thie kease term upon the occurrence of a significant event or change In
circumstan e Wt B owithin the control of e Gioup and the Company and affects whether the Group and the
Comipaany abe iwasonably veslain to exercise 40 option not previowsly inchiuded B determination of leas erm,
or not Lo eercse an option previcusly Induded in the determinztion of lease tem A revision in l2ase term results
i remeasurement of the ease llabiltes, See acounling policy 2(ae i) on reassessment of kase Tabllines,

bj  ROU agssefs
ROU assets are initialy measured at cost comprising the fofiowing::
+  Tha ameunt of the initisl meaurement of lease labiity;
+ ANy lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any kease incentive received,

+  Any initial deect costs and
»  Deepommissioning of restorstion cosis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{ae) Leases [contd.)
{l} Accounting as lessee {cont'd.)
) ROU assers foontd)

ROU asaets Mgl are nol Eevestingn | propenies are sulsequently measured af cosl, less aicumuaied depretialion
aervid irnpairmier loss (57 oyl Thie ROU assets are generally deprociated over the shortied of the ssser’s usel lile
and the lease term on & stralght fine basis. I the Group and the Compary are reasonably certain 1o exerche a
purchase option, the ROU assets are depreclated over the undedying asset's uselu Bfe. in additian, the ROU assets
e adiusted for cartain maaswamant of the leasa labilities,

Thir Croup and the Company presents ROU assets within which the coanespanding underlying asseis would be
prasented i they ware owned thoswe assets ae presented in the Statements ol Financll Position as property,
plant ard equipment. RO assets are presentad 35 a separate ine item in the Statements of Financlal Position
et for ahen

¢} leose labhes

Lease Mzbilitkes ame nitially measured at the presant value of the pagmerts that are not pakd at that date. The

leasa paymemts incude the folicwdng-

+  Flaed payments (including In-substance fised payments], less any leass incentive recelvabile;

= Varlable loase payments that are based on an index ar a rate, initlally measuod wsing the index of @t at the
commancement date

= The exercise price of a purchase and extension optian (F the Croup and the Compadny are teasshably cenasn
o enroie that aptiars and

«  Payments of panathes for terminating the lease, if the lease term refiects the Group and the Company exercisng
that aptian.

Lease paymants are discounted using the intenest rate imphclt in the Bease. I that rate cannot be readily determined,
wihich is generally the case lor leases in the Group and the Company, the lessee’s incremental borroswing is used.
This Is the rate that 1he indvidual lessee would have 1o pay 10 borrow the Funds necessany 1o obtain an asset of
simitar ya'ue o the ROU in & simiar economic endmonment with similar temm, security and conditions,

Lease payments ae alotated between princpa and finance cost, The finance cost is dumged to inoome Statements
over the lease petiod 50 a5 to produce a constant pedodic rate of Interest on the remaining balarce of the datslity
far each period,

Varlable lease payment that depend on sales are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the
pericd i which the cancition that triggers those Dayments acnes.

The Lioup and the Company presents lease Labllities as a separate bne itern in the statemant of financial position,
IRtoeRsT expa e on e lease Haliity is presnne wirhin tha finance cos in the Intame SEATemeL
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
(2] Leases (cont'd.)
(i} Accounting as lessee (cont'd.)
) Regssessment of keese Saldities
The Groug and (e Compsany ane abio exposel to potential lutue inoedses in vanable lease payments (al depend

an an indied or tabe, whith are st indhuded in the lease Rabiity untl 1hisy Gk elfed). Whon adjusiments to lsne
payments based on an index o rate take effect, the lease labiity ks remeaswred and adpsted against the ROU assets.

Leae [abilites B also remeassed it there i3 3 change in the Croup's and the Company's assessment of whether it
will exemise an extension option and there are modifications in the scope or the consideration of the laase that was
ok part af e angnal term.

8} Shorf-dern leases ard leases of ow wolue asssls

Short-term laases ane leases with a lease term of 1.2 months or fess. Low-walue assets comprise IT equspment and
small [tems of offee fumiture. Payments associated with short-tenm leases of equipmant and al leases of hme
wilus assats afe recodqgried on a straight line baet 05 an expdnde 0 income Stements

(i) Accounting by lessor

hs & lssor, Th Growp ard 1he Company determing at lease Incoption whothor sach liase s & Dinanoe lease of an
operating lease. To dassify each lease, the Group and tha Company make an overall ssetsment of whather the laase
trarsters substantia®y all of the risks and rewerds incidental to the ownership of the underying asset to the lessee. As
part af this assesument. the Sroup and 1he Comparny consider dertain indicators such &5 whether the base B for the
majar part of the economic e of the aswet.

o) Finonce iooses

Thie Graup and the Company classdles o leate &5 3 linance leage If the lsase transfees substantially a1 the risks
arel rewards incidental to ownership of an uncerlying asset to the lessea,

Thie Craup derecognises thi underling Fsset and recogrises o redevable a1an amournt equal to e mel imestment
im a finance kease. Met imesiment in a finance l2ase is measieed ot an amomnt equal to the sum of the present
value of lexse payments from lesses and the unguasantesd residual value of the underlying asset. Inital deect
costs e Ao inchedid in e initial meassement of i net investment. The net nvestments |5 subject to MFRS
9 impainment (iefer 1o Mole 2s) onimpainnent of Tinancial esets), In addition, the Group eviews equlaly the
estimated wigesantzed resibul yalus,

Lease incomea |5 recognised ower 1he term of tha lease using the net investment method so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of retum. The Group revizes the ieate Inoome allocation i there is a rediction in the estimated
unuaranteed residual value,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{ae) Leases (cont'd,)
{li} Accounting by lessor (cont'd.)

bl Operating feases

Thie Group ehessiflies o lexse 35 an opesating lease if the lease does not transler substantially all the risks and
ressards inckdental to ownership of an undedying asset 1o the fossee,

The Group recognises laase payments recefsed under oparaling lkease a3 lease moome on 3 straight-Ine batis over
the lease term,

Rental intoma on operating Eeases i mcognited over the tem of tha lease on a straight-ine bass. Rertal intame
Is shown net of rebates and discoines, Rental income Includes base rend. perceniage tont and other ent nelated
income from tenants. Base rent is recognised on & straight-line basls over ths lease term Percontage rent i
recognised based on sales reported by tenants. When the Group provide Incentives or ehates 1o the fenanis. the
ot of incentives or rehates. i capifalsad as deferred lease incentive and s recogrised over the lease term, on &
straight-lina basis, a5 a reduction of rental income. Initial direct cost incumed by the Geoup in negotiating and
amanging an oparating lease i moognised a5 an asset (deferred lpase incantive) and amontised over the lease
Term on Ehe Sme Dasis as the rental income,

€} Subkease ciessifootion

Litil the fnancial yead ended 30 Jume 2019, when the Goup was an nlermediate lessor the subleases ware
Uassilied as finace o operaling leases by reference 1o the underiying asets.,

Fram 1 juby 2009, when the Groug b an intesmaediote ledsar, it assesses the lease chmsification of o sublsase with
reference to the AOU aeset arising from the head lease, not with refemente 1o the underlying asser. If a head lease
Is short-term lease to which the Group and thie Company apoles the exempton described above, then It dassifies
the subleass as an operating kease.

d] Seponating lease and non-lease companents

If a1 AFFANgEMmenT ConTainG kaase mnd non- ase mponents, the Group and the Company allscates the consdoration
In the cantract 1o thee lease @nd ron-lease components based on the stand-sone sellng prices in accordance with
the principles in MFRS 15 “Revenue from Cantracts with Customars™,

{af) Grants and contributions

Crants and contributians are benelits recelved In respect af specific gualitying experdinae, and bwestment tay oedts and
tax benetits in reopert of qualifyng property, plant and equipment. These ae released to the income Statement over the
experted economic wseful ives of the related assats,

(ag) Provisions

The Growg and the Company recognises prostsions whisn It has 3 present lagal or constnictive abligation arlsing as a result
of @ past event. and It is probable that an outfiow of economic benefits wil be reguired 1o serthe the obligation and a reflable
estimate can be made. The recording of provisions requires the application of judgements about the ultimate resolution of
these obligations. As a result, provislons are reviewed at each reporting cate and adjssted to reflect the Group's and the
Compary's carrenit besl estimabe
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
= 30 June #021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{ah} Financlal labilities
(i} Initial recognition and measurement
Financlal llabliies ae classified, a1 initial recognition, as financial Kabilities a1 1ak value theowgh ot or loss or a
amoriksied Cast, ab appropiiate.

The Group's and the Company's financial labiiities include frade and ofher payaties, amounts due 10 refated parties,
Donds an bommsings and derlvitive Tinanclal msirumenis

i} Subsequent measurement
Ther measiremant ab finandial Rabivties depends on their classification as describgd Doow:-
o) Finonci labilees af fair woiae tvaugh prafit or foss
Finencial liablities a1 tar valie tuough profit or kss indude financial liatilities beid for trading and financial ialdlities
designated upon mitidl recognition as at tad value through pofit o loss

Financial Hanilities ane elassifiod 2% hakd for rraing i By am ine U for the purpose of surchasing in this near
term. This category also inchudes derivative financia instruments entered into by the Company that are not
designated as hadging Instruments in haoge relationships as defined by MFRS 9. Separated embadded derivatives
arr also classiliod as hold Por trading wiless thoy are designatoed as of fective hedging instruments,

Gains or losses on kabilivies held for trading are recogrised in the Incoma Statement.

Financial liabifitses desgnated upon initial recognitian at far value through prafit or loss ae designated at the
Imitial date of recognition, and ondy o the critera in MFRS 9 are satisfied. The Group and the Company have not
destignated any financial Kahility as at falr valie through profit of loss.

b} Finonciol lisbilites af amortised cost

This is the category most relevant 1o the Group and the Company. After Initial recognition, all finandal labdties
are subriequently measuned at amortised (oSt wsng the EIR misthed. Gains and lasses are recognised in the income
‘Staternent when the labiites are derecognized a3 well as through the EIR amartisation process.

Amartised cost |5 calcubated by taking into stcount any discount of prsmium an scquisition and fees of costs that
are an integral part of the EiFL The BIR amortikation bs inthuded & finance costs in the income Statemsant,

{ili) Derecognition

A Tinancksl lability s disdcogrised when (he oblqaton urder the lalidity B dncharged of cancelied of eapires. Whin
ar exdsting financial bty s replaced by another from the same lender on sutrstantially different 1enms, or the tesms
of an existing Mability are substantially modifed, such an exchange or modificaton s reated as the derecognition of
T i rad Eabifiny and tha recegnition of a now Sability. The diffedmnce in 1 FeSpCTe COrying EMounts is reoogrised
I the Income Slatement
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{al) Foreign currency
{l} Functional and presentation cumrency
Hems irdbuded in thi Tinanoal statements of the Grown ae measuned using e camency of thie primary economic

e CrmnTE i wich U entity operates (The Turctional cuenency™) Thie corsalidated finandial statermants e el
In nggit Malaysia (AM), which s skso the Company’™s functional and presentation osrency.

(I} Foreign currency transactions
Foseign cumency transactions are translated mto the funcbonal currancy using the exchange rates prevading at the
dates of the transactions. Forelgn exchange gains and iosses resulting from the settiement of such transactions and

feam the translation a1 year-gnd onangse mies of monotary assets and Kablities denoeminated in Toreign ourmendies
e recognised in the Infome Statement

{lll) Group companies
Thie results and financial pasition of all the Group entities [none of which has the curency of @ hyparinf lasanany
efanomy] 1hat have a Tunctionsl oofrency dilferant iom the pretentation cumoency are translated into prewentation
curmrency as folimws-
= asses and labilities for each stmement of financial posivson presented ane translated at th chosing rate an the dare

of that statement of financla position
o Incomd and oxponses lor ach incamms stTatoments ar translatod a1 waragn oxchangs fabos: and
= all resulting exchange differences are recognised as separate componants of other comprehensive income,

On comsalidation, exthange differencis arsing from the transdation af the net imvestment n foregn oparaticns ane
Taken 1o shareholders' equity, Whan a lofeign operation ik partislly daposed af or soid, exchange difterences thal ware
recordad in euity are recognised in the Income Statement as part of the gain o IS mn disposal,

Goodwill and fair value adustmants. atising on the acquisition of a forelgn antity on or after 1 july 2011 ame treated s
assets and llabdites of the farekgn antrty and translated at the dosing rate. For acquisition of forelgn entities completed
prar 1 1 july 2011 goodwil and fair valug adustmants continued ta be recarded at the exchanga rate a1 tha respective
date af acquisitions. This is In aotonlénce 1o the adoption of MFRS 1 First-time Acoption of Malaysian Sinancial Reporting
Standards”,

{al) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the Intemal reporting provided ta the managing dinoctors/chiof
exerutive officers who e responsible for allocating resounces and assessng performance of the operatng seqments
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{ak) Financlal guarantes

Financkal guarantee wntracts are contracts that requie the Growp ard the Company Lo make spedlied payments to reimburse
the haaler for @ hoss 0T incurs because a specified deblor Tails 1o make payments when due, i aciordance with the terms af
4 debt imstrument.

Finangial guarantee cantracts ae recagnised s 4 financial llabilty a1 the tme the guarnies is sued. The [abday is intially
maasdred 3t Talr value and subsequently measured at the higher of the amount detenmened in accordance with the expacted
redit Inss model unter MFRS 9 Financial instruments’ and the amount initially recognsed less cumudatve amount of income
meengnised in arcontance with the principles of MFRS 15 Revarm@ from Contracts with Customent, whars appropriate,

Thee fair value of financlal guarantaes k& determinad a5 the present value of the difference in net cash fiows between the
cantractual paymants unider tho dabt instrumant and the pryments that would be required withaut the quaranies, of the
estimated amount that would be payable to a thind party for assuming the obligations.

\Whara financlal guarartees in rolation 1o lears of payiblies of subsidiates are provided by tha Comparty fod na comparmation,
the falr values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of Investment in subsidianes.

{al} Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Th Greaip and the Company do not recognite a contingent lablity but distlose its esdstonce in the linandal stitements,
except In @ business combination,

A contingent kability 15 o pesaible obligation that aives from past events whose adstence will be confirmed by uncertan
futwre events beyond the controf of the Group and the Company or a present chibgatkon that is not recognised because it ts
rat probable that an outfios of resaunces will be reguired 1o sette the chligation, When & change in the probabifity af an
eutflow of etonomic resources ocours and the outfloe is prabable, itwill then be recognised as a provision,

A contingent assel s oa posallle asset that @bes fiom past events whioss exstence will be confirmed by unteradn Tutue
evants beyond the control of the Group and the Comgany, The Group and 1he Compary do mot recognibe coilingant assets
but disclose thelr existence where inflows of economic benafits ae probable. but not virtually certain, When inflow of
BONAmIE eSO 15 virually comain, th a5l 15 recognised,

In the scquisition of subsitiarsas bjl thie Groaug under 3 Business comisnation. tha I:E\TI'II'@.I'IT liatilities assumed are maasuned
ity &t Thes fair value a1 the acguisition date, imespectae of the extent of any non-controling interests.

The Group recogruses separately the rontingent bahdities of the acquirees as part of allocating the cost of 3 business
combinathon where the falr vabues can be measuned relishly, Where the fair values cannot be measured refiably, the resutiing
effect will b reflacted i the goodwill arising from the atquasitions,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{am} Offsetting financial instruments

Financid assets ant labiilies e offsat and 1he nel anos pesented in the Siatemeants ol Financlal Position when there
B a legally enforceabie fght to alfset e recognised amounts &nd thene IS an intention 10 sertle on a et bask, or reallse
the atsat and setile the Habdty simultanacusly, The legally enforceable right must not be contingant on future eyvents and
must be enforceatie in the nemal course of business and In the event of detault, insolency or BankTumcy,

(an) Contract costs
(i) Incramantal cost obtaining a contract

The incremental costs of obtaming a contract are those costs that the Groep inours fo obtain a contract with 2 oustomer
Rt it wisild noT R ncumid i 1he contract had mot boen obtansd [Tor pxample, @ saos commisson) Thise Costs
W erogned in contrect assets I the Group expects to recaver Ehase costs.

(i) Costs to fulfil a contract

Thee ncremantal costs of abtaning & contract are those costs that thie Gromp inours o obraln 8 contract with a oustomer
kit it would Rot have ncuimed i the condract had mo! been obitaned [Tor example, 3 sales commiseon) Thess cowlt
are recognised in contract assets if the Group espects to recover those costs

Thesa contracts Costs are initialy measurad at cost and amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattem
of reveme recognition to which the assets melate. An impairment loss s recognised i the prafit or loss when the carrying
amaunt ol the eantract ol extoeds th expecied lovenue kess pxpociod cotl that will be incured Where the impairment
condition no longer oxists of has Impaired, the mpairment loss & rovessed 1o the cutent that the carmying amount of the
contracts co5t does not excesd the amount that would have been recognised had there been ne impairment loss recognised
priviously.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuasy evaluated and are based on histodcal experence and ather factors, inclsding expeciations
of future events that are belioved to be easonakle under the ticumstancas,

Thie Gromg and the Campany make estimates a0 sSsumptions oonceming the futune, The resulting accointing estimates il by
definition, rarely equal the ralated dctual results, The pstimates and assamplions that ave & sgnificant risk af casing o mataerisl
adjustment 1o the camying amounis of assets and llabiithes within the next financial year are disoussed below:-

{a) Estimated assessment of goadwill

Tha Group tests goodwil for impasrmment anfually, inaccordanca with fs accodnting policy, The recoveratle amounts of cash
generating units have been determined based on vaue-in-ise cakulations, These calodations require the use of signidicant
jutgamonts ard elimates oL <01 ool in Note 19 10 the financial statements

Manageiment has factored in the potentizl impact with respect to the COVID-19 outbreak wathin the impalment assescments
haved an thi best cstimato on he trajectory of rocovery Trom the COVID-19 cutbreak. Skgrificant judgement b imased ot
thoro may be patential uncertaintios on the full axtont of impact as 3 result of COVID-19,
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D.)

(b} Capitalisaticn policy of property, plant and equipment on infrastructure assels

The infrastneture aosets af the water and sewarage seqmant comprised cost incuered 1o meet the development and reguiatoy
requirement of the business and this includes employee and averhaad costs that are directly atiributable 1o the construction
of the assat,

Estimates and judgements are imvolvied i determining whether cost mconed, specifically employes and cverhiad costs, maet
tha relevant criteria lor cagatalisation of property. plant and equipment.

(e) Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipmoent

Determining whethar the property, plant and equipment are iImpaired requices an estimation of value-in-use of the property,
plant and aquipment, The value.in-use caloulation requres 1hi managemant 1o astimata tha future cash Mo and an appiropate
discounit rate in ordar o calcutate the prasent value of fulure cash flaws, The mansgemant has evahwated such estimates and
Is confident that no allowance far imparmeant is necessarny.

The Group management folioers its ancounting pabey set oot in Mote 2(k) in-detemmining when proparty, plant and sgepment
are consdered impared

Impairmant 15 recognisad when events and cicumstances indicate that these assets may be impaired and the camyng amount
of thitse FseTs exieeds e recoverable amaunts. in ditemining e reosoerable amaurt of thede FSsels. cortain istimates
reganding the cash flowes oF thiess asels are made

{d} Assessment on allowance for impalrment of trade recelvables of water and sewerage

The expected credit boss on sutstanding recehvaldes s a key estimate undes MFRS 9, The Group estimate of recoverabsity by
grivuping customsrs into simiar stonomic profilies and applying 4 percentage loss rate basied on forwand loaking judgements
on the future collecton rates that are likefy to be achimwed. This has ncluded additional consideration of the possible impact
of the COVID-19 pardemic an the expacted collection rates of autstanding recehables.

(e} Estimated useful lives of property. plant and equipment ("PPE")

The Group reviews the uselul lves af 1S PPE st each repertng date and any adjustinents sno made oh J prospective bask as
changas in accounting estEmatas, The wielud ives of the tolecommunizations oquipment are assested poriadicaly based an
thix conditions of the cqupment, maroot candtions and other requlatory regulremenns.

(f} Fair value estimates for investmant properties

The Group carries imsstmant proportos al Tair valus, which roquires extenshig vie of soounting estimates and judgoments.
wihile sicnificant componens of fair vaiie morsurement wore determned wsing vrifiable objectie evdencs, thi amaunt of
changes in falr value would differ i the Croup uses different valuation methodelogies. Any changes in fair vahse of these
investment propeeties would #Tect onme s1atpmenT

{g) Assessment of lower of cost and net realisable value
The GFoup recognises irmentones al ks of (ose and met malisabie vihes,

Signiticant judgemeant is required in detemmining the net realisable vaius which is the estimated seling price in ordnary course
of business less tha estimated cost to sale.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D.)

{h) Assumptions used in determining the post-employment benefit obligations

The prasent valee ol the post-employment benelit obligations depends on a nuimbel of factors that ae defemmined on &n
actuarinl basis wsing @ number of assurmplions, The issumgticns used in diteimning e net cestmoeme ane disciosed in Note
35 to the finandal statements. Ay changes In thesa assumptions wil impact the camying srount of pension obiligations.

{i} Construction contracts

Thit Group Firs significant ongoing corsImuction contracts. For thise (OmsIrUCTic conircli RVenue i recognined o tme
by referance to the Group's progress towands completing the cormstruction. The measure af progress is determmed based on
the: propartion of contract costs mourmed fo date to the estimated total contract costs Cinput method™),

Managament has To estimate the total ronfract costs to complete, wheh aze used in the input method 1o determine the
Growp's recognition of construction revende When (1 is probable that the total contract costs will cxceed the total constructon
iR, 8 provsion fof onefous contracts i recognised immadiataly,

Significant judgement (s used to estimato these total contract (osts to complete In making these estimates, management has
refied on the expertise of the internal experts 1o determing 1he progress af the construgtion snd alia on past experenca of
compdated projects.

(i} Revenus recognition from accrued income

The inbilied ircoma aconual from meternd wator sonvicos ol the water and sowerage segment regquires an estimation of the
amumt of unbilied charges at the pariod end. This is cakculated using system generbed information based on previouws oustomer
volume Lsage,

{k) Leases
The measurement of the “nght-af-use” assers and lease Bability for leases where the Group is a lessee requires the wse of
significant judgements and assumptions, such as lease term and inoremental barrowing rafe

In determining the kease tenm, the Group and the Company consider all facts and cecumstances that oeate an economic
g endisng Do eooeooR o extemion optior, o Pt 10 EnecEe 4 e mination oplin Extinsion optioes (or peciods alte eomination
opliom) aie only inchoded i the haee tenm 7 the ease b neasonaldy cortasin (o be exlended [or mob termimated).

Thit ldass 18rm 15 eassessed i1 an oplion |5 exenised (ar nal exerdsed) or the Group and this Company become obilgaied o
pxoroie (rat 10 eoercke) I The dsessment af reasonabie coranty s only revised if o significant event of 3 significant change
In circumstances ocourredd which affect this assessment. and that s within the control of the lessee.

In determening tha incremental bomowng rata, the Group and the Company first Setenmne the closest borrowng rate belore

using significant judpament to determine the adjustments required to reflect the term, sacurity, value or economic emeranment
ol Th respiee tive s,
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4. REVENUE
Group Company
2021 020 202 2020
RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000
Revanue comprise the following
Boyemine [mm Comraits wath Customas 17.067. 803 F8 504 200 256 SEO
Reyenue from other sounes 202,616 B7LI51 469,720 415,071
Total revanua 17.270.419 19.178.449 460,976 415341
[a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customaers and other sources:-
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM OO0 RM' OO0 RM OO0 RMODO
Utilitias
Sale of electricity 5.B76,202 5837626 -
Sale Al clegin water, thsimen] and drnessl of
wiste watar 3,772,223 3,479,250 =
Sale af chesm 182 630 171.8C0 -
Broadband and t2lecommunications revenus 524 826 396,558 -
Others 216,146 369,427 =
10,572,117 10,275,101 -
Cemaent and building materials industry
Sale ol cement and relatod products 4,076,215 4077724 -
Others 15,855 I4.472 -
4,082,070 4,092,203 -
Construction
Construction contracts 1,514,505 2316005 -
Hotel operations
Mot room and food and beverages 416,107 1,113,986 -
Others B.054 18,529 -
A24.161 LIF251S -
Proparty
Sale of developrme prop e - 11132 -
Salie al Complebed propenies 229,833 A35 475 -
Sala of lands 26,501 T
Qthers 14,485 A0E5] -
270,819 495,259 -
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4. REVEMUE [CONT'D.)

{a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers and other sources:- (cont'd.)

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM'OO0 RM'O00 RM'OOD RMOO0
Information technology & e-commernce
related business
Medka and adwirtising seriies 3175 1500 =
Cthers ar 41 -
3,212 4,541 -
Management services & others
Cpecation and malMeninds senicas 111,173 135073 -
Prapaedty manager fees 66,326 19853 -
Food and beverages operations 3,854 14,659 - -
Chers 9,566 L. 1a4 2l
190.919 189674 256 260
17.067.803 18,504,298 256 260
Revenue from other sources
Rental intome 88,491 401,471 -
Interest Income 103,372 183,BE7 22,855 43,200
Cividend Income 10,753 B9 446,865 ITLETL
202,616 574,151 468,720 415,071
Total revenue 17.270.419 19178440 469,976 415331
{b) Timing of revenue recognition for revenue from contracts with customers:-
Graup Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM'GO0 RM'000 RM'OO0 RMO00
at a point in time 4,683,512 7,819,342 %
- gwar fime 12,384,291 10,684,556 256 260
17.067,803 18,504,298 256 260
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COST OF SALES
Wncluded in cost of sales are the follgsing::
Group
2021 2020
RM'000 RMOO0
Cost of mveniores 2,430,224 AOLDIE
Construction contracts costs 1,254,029 2061477
Cost of fsel, raw materials ard consumabile 6,191,220 5,996,783
Pioperty dovelopment costs - T2z
FINANCE CO5TS
_ﬁ'nﬂp _f.ﬂﬂ'll-lll'll'
2021 2020 2021 2020
Note RM°000 RM'000 RM000 RMOD0
Interest eapense
- Donis 797,732 074,796 139,188 116020
Barrweings 674,840 946,231 30.920 55,563
Post-employment benofit obiligetmns 13.8492 15,894 .
= Lovgse labilities 92,316 A7 286 5G4 205
1,578,780 1884 207 170,672 171,885
Loss: Aumounts capitalined in
- Property develogment osts 23 « (4,506 -
- Property. plant and squepment 1n (2£3.733) [1H.554)] -
Interest expense of financial
liablligles carried at amortised cost 1,555,047 LBETAT 170,672 171886
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Graup Campany
2021 2020 2021 2020
Hote RMO0D RM'DOO RM'OOD RMTOOO
Profit before tax is stated atter

chargingf{craditing) (other than

those disclosed in Note 5 & 6 to the

Finaneial Statemants):-

Amoriisation of (oniTact oosts 24 3,043 1042 - -
Amoriisation of intanolble assets 19 749,508 69,606 - -
Auditory' remuneration
statutony audit
- current financial poar 9,716 10,029 244 244
- |oweri/undar provision in prioe financial
yeal (146} &7 - -
others 705 1601 16 16
Bad debts written off
receivabies 1327 10,5901 -
Corsdy [ Peividcpioss, ool krssi (aiad Prom Dadipng

resene to cost of sales (60.144) 154,819 - -
Depradiation of proporty, plant and oquipment 11 1.641 525 1554473 71 Bog
Deprgiation of rght-ni-use assets 12 183,038 19369 6,719 4,535
Ciresiors' remuneration

= molurmeants 36,484 575993 4,092 6,032

- T 1.840 1821 290 azz

- benefits-n-kind 762 1106 204 m
Hedge ineffectiveness recognised in profit

of less 2,869 16210 = 3
Impairmant losses on

- amgunt due from subsidiaries I6{e) - - (194} -

- amoun due from related parties JHie) G623 100 -

- fesdwill 19 1,269 1,723 -

- iecetvablss - net of reversal I8(e) 6.596 153645 - -

- investment in associates - L135 - -

- AneEtriend i joint vaationn - A998 -

- ey, plant and equipment 11 41,425 26,958 - -
Infrastruchire maintensnce eapenses 126,922 110,728 - -
Imstinent proporties writton off 13 8.916 675 -

It ories writton ciwds a9a7 44 556 -
Liprse expense not recognisad in ipase Gabiilies
- shoit-term lease 73.935 84,957 161 634
= low value assots 2,797 B6E3 - -
Lot on Torgign axchangs - not
- rivafisid 11,468 f7509 49 -
- unrealsed 19,327 26413 - -
et fair value lzss on derivalives = 20122 -
Mot fair walue bews on Tinanclal assots, a1 FYTPL 373,536 -
Property, plant and equipment written off 11 12,411 S5LED9G - -
Hates 175,657 144510 - -
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Motes to the Financial Statements

= 30 June 2021
PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONT D.}
Graup Campany
2021 2020 2021 2020
Hote RMO00D RM'OD0 RMOOD RMOO0
And crediting/[charging) [other than
those disclosed In Note 4 to the
Financial Statements):-
Adjustmont on Lair vaue aof nwestmont
properties 13 Fo,m0F {12,608 -
Amantisation of deferrod income 5.924 5209 -
Amonisation of grants and contributions EE! 21,548 15166 -
Bad debts recovesed 3.930 2949 Lo
Gain on derscognition of subsifiany - 2EAS0E -
Gaind(lass) on disposal af
- inyesimants - nat 2118 L1172 {10.055)
- propodty. plant and equipment 43,735 18,799 (2
- Rulsitianas 407,641 - -
Gain on forelgn exchange - net
- realised 46.188 1281 L4a11 EL
= Urdesisix A6 597 124,465 - -
Gain on lease modiication and
FEASELIE 934 - -
Gain on lease termination 575 - 129
Gross dividend from guoted insestments,
witthin Malaysla 537 1290 -
Hiring ircorme from plant, machinery and
equEIment 29,089 26,947 -
interest income from financial assets
measured a1 amartised cost
fixad deposits 49,475 O0.424 -
others B.312 4015 =
Interest income - net investment in leases 573 B - -
et fair walue gain on derlvatives - 3.357 - -
Mat Talr walue {lotsligain on iwestronts 18 {1.401) 250975 7191 823
Operating lease incoma 549 B, B4d6 - -
Rental incoma
- other progerties 11681 1h1EE -
Write hack of impairmant less on
- CONraCT assets Fae) a1 s -
- devalopment exsenditures 14 - 29/ -
Writes back lor Nabnlies il (g E 7.304 4,437 -
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P iS5z  FINAMDIAL STATEMENTS

Motes to the Financial Statements
- 30 June 2021

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONT'D.)

Directors’ remuneration

Destaks af e Lotal remunerstion of esch eecton of e Companvy recesved lrom YTL Corporation Berhiad Group of Comganies.
cilpgarised into apprapnate (omporents tor e Tinancial yiar ended 30 June 2021 and 30 jume 2020, @@ a5 Tlkws:

Dafined Share- monay walun
contribution barsed of benefits
Fees  Salares Banis plan  payments Others In-kind Total
EM000  RHO00  RMO0D EMO02  RMO0D RM002 RMOO0 FM000

Group - 2021
Executive Directon:
T Sei (5] Framis Yeuh Smk Ping, 754, KBE 307 2223 - 594 T8 1 218 11135
Dy’ Yeoh Seok Gan 19 3.5m - %0 it ] 1 24z 5516
Dt Yeoh Soo Min - 855 - 294 ki ] 1 &3 4,006
Data’ Yeoh: St Horg L 3,029 - k] fl:: | 3 54 4,133
[iafa’ Sri Michael Yooh Sock Song - 3,285 13 18 bt i 54 4,550
Eang’ Yech S0 Keng 2,441 I 2 789 1 ] 3,559
D’ Mark Yaoh Seck Kah - FAE - 284 e E L'H ER
Sprd Abeull i Syed Al Kae - 648 - F 7 1 E 780
Non-Expoutive Directors
Tue’ [hong Kaap Thal @ (heare K2ap Ta 230 - - - - 17 M7
D’ Rhmad Fusausd Bn Miohd Duralin 430 . - - - 3 . 53
Faz Bn khai 1] - - - - 35 455
Rz hooema Bt B Oshman - . - - 12 3

1,840 28,118 113 2,540 5,604 a3 762 319,086
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Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 June 2021

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONT'D.)
Directors’ remuneration joont'd.}

Detalls of thee ot remerdtion of each Director of the Company recelved liom YTL Corpoiatian Beihed Groip ol Companmes,
categorised into approgriate components Tor the Tinancal year ended 30 ure 2021 and 30 fund 2020, ane o5 Foliows:- (conTid)

Estimated
Dafined Share- meny valoe
niribartion based of benedits-
Fees  Salaries Bonus plan  payments ihers Inirined Total
RH000 RH000 RN 0G0 RH000 RM000 RMTO00 FMO00 REG00
Campany - 2021
[Executive Directors
T 5 S Francrs ol Sock Pingg, PSML KBE - - - = a7 115 S&T
Do’ Wisah Sint Kian - 2] - 7 a7z . 47 101
Dalr’ ¥esh Soo Mn - - - . in . - in2
Du1e’ ¥esh Seot Hong . - - . an . . a2
Dt T Michuel Yeoh Socl Sioeg 3 - z e &
Dt ¥oah 500 King - - - a7z - dTz
Duate’ Mark Weoh Seok K2k - - - i 42 ci4
Fyoud Abdallah Bin Sped Abd Kadi - - - 47 5 7
or-Executive Direciors
Hiair' (han Taap Thai § Cheoan Kep Tal 1] - - - 17 . 47
Rate’ Bhmad Fuad Bn Mo Dahadin [4l] - - . - 13 "
Fair B ki ao - - - 17 247
Fia Roorma Binddl Riaga Othman - - - - 12 R
B30 603 . 73 3351 58 204 5188
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Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june £021

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONT'D.}
Directors’ remuneration (cont'd.)

EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

Detals af the total remurerstion of each Diecton of the Company recesved ltom YTL Corporation Berhad Group of Companies.
citegartsed into apprapnate companents for e Tinancial year ended 30 |une 2021 and 30 june 2020, &e as Talkss:: (contd)

Estimated
Befined Share- manay iwalun
contribution based of benefits
Fees  Salawes Bonus pla  payments {Oihers In-kind Tatal
RMO00  RMO00  RMO0D RMO00  REMO00  EMO000 RMOO0 RMO00
Geoup - 2020
Executive Directon
Tan 5 (5] Framis Yuh 5ok Ping, P34, KEE i) 10%9 24T k-] L4 i L] 16089
Dy’ Yeoh Seck Gan I 4559 L5 £ L4 i arg 2098
Diata' Yeoh Soa Min - 1661 L EN Lil4 1 % 6621
D’ Yeoh Seqk Horg a3 L3R E (RIES 2 ) B
Dusts’ S Michael ¥ooh Sock Song A0 1133 = L114 : E Tam
D’ Yeoh Soo Keng . EFEty 1212 53 L114 1 Fa 121
D’ Mark Yaoh Seck Kah - 1583 Ll 5 L4 ] 4 E3E
S Abdullat Bin Fyed Abd. Kade . 48 5] i m 1 L] £
Non-Exeoutive Directors
Tate’ Theng K Thai @ (heong Kezn T4 Er . M =
D’ Ahimad Fudisd B0 Mobd Dutalin 4 il L3l
Faz Bn Bhai LE] - - & 45k
Rig hooima Bnil B (man 13 # T 150
L& [0S FiL R 4535 e s L106 Lik:Fi
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Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 June 2021

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONT'D.)

Directors’ remuneration joont'd.}

Detalls of the 1014 remunerdtion of each Director ol the Comgpany received liom YTL Corpoeation Berhad Grolwp of Companes,
cateqorised 1o approgriate components for the finanoal year ended 30 ure 201 and 30 [ure S0E0, ane a5 Tolows:- (ConT'd)

Estimated
Dafined Share- meny valoe
niribartion based of benedits-
Fees  Salaries Bonus plan  payments ihers Inirined Total
RH000 RH000 RN 0G0 RH000 RM000 RMO00 FMO00 REG00
Campany - 2020
[Executive Directors
Tarn S Sin) Franecs ¥ieof Sock Ping, PSM. KBE : : [ [y
Qe Wisgh Seok Kl BlZ W 134 {r) fe 1=
(e’ ¥esh Soa M - - (73] B&Y
m:“mm"w L E&T
Dt e’ Sl Mkl Yieohs Sotlk Siong a7 B&T
D' ¥oah 500 ey fiir) 647
Dt Mark Weoh Seolt Esh E&7 EGT
Syt Abcholah Bin S AbdL K 5 &
or-Executive Direciors
Datr’ (hong Tnan Thal @ Theosn Kep Ta ] - . s ~ LT] o FeT ]
Rae’ Rhmad Fuad Bn Mo Dahakin 210 . . : . 1 y 22
Falr Bin kidk 213 - - - - bE| - &2
R hoorma Binst Rzia Othman 113 - . - - 7 . &
B2z B12 05 154 s Ll 0 924
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pal56 FINAMDIAL STATEMENTS

Motes to the Financial Statements
- 30 June 2021

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX ICONT'D.)

Employee benefits expenses
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM‘OOD0 RM'DO00 RM'DO0 RM'OO00
Employees compensation
(excuding Directors’ remunaraton)
Wages, salaries and bonus 1.004,547 1222551 17839 20577
Dafined contnbution plan 116,361 124,550 1,997 2306
Dafinnd benelit plan 63,329 LEREE - -
Share option expenses 7.958 14,557 1.344 Lazz
Crthar benafits 44,173 34,647 G646 L40G
1,236,408 L 440529 21,826 26,211
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Hote RM'OO0 RM'000 RM'DO0 RMOO0
CAmrent income ti
- Malaysian Income tax 192,628 130,626 3.073 6462
Fareign income tix 154,869 135452 =
Dl 1o 34 B11,681 144 558 -
953,178 414,636 3,073 6,462
Curent irtome tox
Current Finamcial year 385, 484 Fo0s 5,601 §.a851
- Do prosision in prior finencial yoars (37.987) (AE,997) (2.528) {3,389)
Dafarmad fax
- Relating to orgnatson and reversal
of Temparary ditferoncos 611,681 144 558 -
959.178 414,636 2.073 B.4R2

¥TL CORPORATION DERMAD
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
= 30 June #021

B. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT'D.)

A reconciliation of income tax expeEnse applicable 1o pofls befors 1ax at the statutony NCeME [ (218 (0 NOmE 1ax Experse at
the effective indame tax rate af the Group anid the Company 5 o Folows:-

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RMODO RM'ODO RMODO RMO00
Prafit hefore 1o 631794 410,294 242,925 176,055
Tawation at Malaysion statutory fax e of 24%

{2020; 24%) 151,631 100531 58,302 42,253
Hon-dedurtible expemes. 556,541 7540 57.719 57,380
Income not subject 1o tax {180,967) (120.308) {110,420} (89,792)
Different tax rabes In other countries (65.632) (3.544) -

Re-meamaremant of defered tax® 540,507 162410 -
Doubio doductible axpnios (B11) (574) =
Over-prowision in prioe years (37.987) [48,397) [2.528) [3.389)
Tax affect on share of profits of sssocated
companies and join ventures [94.926) (B1.728) -
Tax effect of [overyunder prowision of defermed tax {226) 362 -
Taw oflect al wnrecognised dsferrsd tas st 91.048 15736 -
Income tax expense 959,178 414536 3.073 eAbs

* T re-mpasuepment of cefenred fny durng B fnonckal weor of RMS0LS mmillon wars Gue 10 o0 incrsase iR nited Enganm (orponadion fow e from
T o 25wt frenm 1 Al 2023) felcwdng e Mench 2020 Budker 0 he Linted Kngdoes The defend s Dalsiry or 30 june 2021 Mt Boen
o b Bonad ooy e oty of 25% subrtontily enocied durig e finoncoul oo eoced 30 juse 2021
Titap ro- st st O Wheyfint el B dluning v (oo finon il oo Of MBS 4 walion was ouss [0 000 i Tese i i Lo ingoonm J§oeeolion foy
redn from 175 o 19% effective fram 1 Apnt 20000 following th Morch J000 Budget in the Unified €ingom Fhe defomed tox Sstiity of 30 una 2000
Futy e crotrLitatedd Biosed! on (e e off [ sbssomiby enocted dunng the finonce e dvied 20 fune S0
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FINANDIAL STATEMENTS

Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june £021

9.

10.

LOSS PER SHARE

Baslc/diluted loss per share

Batic/diutod lods per shane of the Group B calculated by dividing the (o3 or thie year attributoble to owners af e parent by the
weighted awerace rumber of ardinary shares in issue during 1he financal year,

| -
2021 2020
Lows far the financial year attributabde to ownars of the panent (RMO00) {367.664) (1B9.221)
Weighted merage number of ondinary shanes n issue [DDO] 10,864,161 10,648,839
Baste fdiuted loss per share (sen) {3.38) [L.7E)Y
DIVIDENDS
Group/Company
2021 2020
Gross Amount af Grass Amount of
dividand dividend, dividend dividend,
par share net of tax per share net of tax
{sen} RM‘DO00 [sen} RMOO00
Dividend paid in respect of financial year
ended 30 june 2015:-
Intoeirm dividond of 4 sen per odinary sham
paid on 13 November 2019 - - a0 42670
Dividend recognised as distribution to
ordinary equity holders of the Company - = 40 A26. 770

On B September 2021, the Board of Ditectors declared an imtedm dividend ef 2.5 sen per ordinary share for the finarclal year ended
30 |une 2021, The book closure and payment dales in respect of the aforesald dividond aee 24 September 2021 and 12 October
2021, respectively,

The Hoard of Dwettors do not recomenend a final dvdend in respect of the fimancial year ended 30 une 2021,

¥TL CORPORATION DERMAD

4271616



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g 159

MNotes to the Financial Statements
- 30 June 2021

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Infra-
Tt Farnitare, Teleion- Risety
Land & st Flasth  fates & musication nder
balidiag®  faibties  machinery  equipment Vehiches  equipment  ceastractien Teasl
Hate 000 000 L] FMno00 RiC000 RN RH000 RI000
Eeawp - 2071
oVl
AtLT20E L6375 A4S MSaEe 22T L6026 10PASIE LR SRATLSH
Adiitors esa po | I 25,700 10,158 125468 LTGTEET L4054
Cumurcy rarsditien Sittiranies arn.1as 854,220 e 13z [IT81] - 123,009 Bi67oEl
D (12199) s je219) (L3R [BZ453) [415) [E0]  fLI2LET3}
Drrsat ol surriery [162,545) : [E1517) [1.345) (1180} [336.187)
Feyersd of ImpaTent T Fat - . - 5767
Tiareli o mmsssrg 06817 313531 536,583 96,147 #1576 718,384 ﬂm}ﬂ] -
Trarsglt 12 Fveniones - {20,290 - - - - £ |3.290)
Trarrhe %2 ceveeprart Egendire; “ - . . . . - [LESd] {LE30)
Trarmfier fajytrem right-ch v el 2 [237.505) - . . . BEES © [samE)
wicen of ' (6.416) - L) 146 = [0S} [Z957)  (55.656)
LIE ¥ e ILBSEESD 10055 25000808  ZIS0OT0  LOBEIME  REEGSN  L400M408  SRO24427
Raxumilated Segrecation ind
impairmst
A% B E ] TELDEZ 149823 L TIEEM  Lned121 - WA
{harge o the firenna yer 85953 7,566 45680 153,558 034 145,016 = LESATS6
Cumengy prarstshen dittersnges BE,953 ans 530504 4% |04} - - AL
Dl o subsdary (#0E = Ro4Die) (L7 [t = s I
Dot (318,268 LIS peEase [9.19) =377} ] [1.277,965)
ImpiTEn s ! 5426 - 1,766 - [INE
Terosfen (i frem rgh-of e scseis (=} [34.853) - - - 1569 - [15.154)
e of T 1732 PO3EE)  (EG = e - [T
LI a0 R FE SunE I510LDE L1SLEE TEEE LT - EMbE
Met baok value
LLE % BIEZIR  OLE0aR4  G3ETIE  L0S044 A0EEL  RMI2D 400400 3R120308
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Notes to the Financial Statements
= 30 June #2021

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT [CONT'D.)

Infea-
prati Fumitwe, Telerem- Assets
Lard & Gsite Blaeth  firhees b municItion under
bulfing®  faclites  machiery  equipment Velices  equipnent  cominxtion Tt

Motz RH000 RMDOG R0 R0 R0 R 000 RM00D RM00D
Giowp - 2020
CostVabaation
L] il B4ETIGD  BSMO 20S05E TRE 10NN IeESED LR
Regusiton of mbsidarey B - 19535 i) Az : el i Gl2gtl
Addtory B 43 i nu b A b Lo i 2 =
Cumeney Trarsiztion Sffereaies Bt ] X% 4561 1182 Lt - Fuilins] 186470
Dervoagtion of sy gt = 700 [l = s . pHR e
frpein k] - [ 32807 (42585 ma * 7 ATE
PgdrTen b 7 (=008 - - - - - - [EE0%
Trarede: From dvsiooment apendtuss. ] EH - . - . . L] s
Trarede hom il propertien 13 m [AtEd . E . . & B4R
Travefe e [randny SPaioomier e i | Rk ] - ¥ ] - - - (- ffic 1
Tréesfer or commesioning R s LT L] E x| AN Rl -
Trarefe o targrtie et 2HEL = (TR0 IBHH s [EES [R5y 3R
T ot T il ] Ty [BEm| E e L2 BOE: A
LT AP apMEy  MEMLS RORM 1o MWt Lhipg  Laney
Rerurmisied depreciabion and

impairnent

MLI2m 1aLE BEEISE  MMEMZE LOmL 063 551038 Lo - AlsIN
Aogeston of subodire; i - 156008 S48 ags - - bk
[harge for the frarcia year HL Tae RO JECAE | ] Bis - (Lohit]
Cumency Tarsiition Alferwees = 1675 il BB8S Li5e . - G205
Derwagnion of sy @) - pay) : : - R
T LT = [lae) el (3821} @ - FARY
nparren v T . . 299 . . ' . EL ]
Tranefe tn mtangble s 1ELEH ar (057 el TR ik S - [IGETE ]
Wittt 1 [E0aT [0 [man (B3 T i3 . (e
A0 IS MR [y L0aas TREN  1oean = IRz
Nt boak valua
M HEHED 81420 BIGANS  l00020m  LMeeBdE R LB Lgag nanam

* The Droay refineed 21 crestviet of kot o ket vy f 8 e o P ot b emlfnd o PRt e, Follominy 1 et B el B o P Wit ey Berrferd om ey et
e O rmrglie . Leng B okl e 0T
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  pg 6l

MNotes to the Financial Statements

= 30 June £021
11. PROPERTY., PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTD.]
* Lo G i e thee Croup ane i |-
Building an Buildingon  Bwildings en Factory
Freehald treehekd lomg-1erm sheri-temm B ailer
lamd land leasehold land  leasefold End buildings Toital
RH 000 RH 000 AM'000 RH'00Q RH'000 L]
(Growp - 2021
CostiValzation
AL L7200
At st 929,367 T.H1L313 1.941.916 923116 19.448 11635160
At yalisation 6083 2509 - - - 859
935,450 pER 1,941,916 923,116 13448 11633752
deifinang 52 4,601 2098 91,750 - 96,501
Cuemency transaton &R eseances 15.979 418,081 [47.575) {15.300) - I7L185
Dhparsaly (1.585) (330, 000) [1.93) {352} = [EEERLL
Digarsal of wtridiry . - (101,54 5) = - {100, 545)
Bevrsal of mipairment - 2,767 - - - 5,767
Transters (2789 85,638 (3.434) 82,953 - 1EL408E
‘wirinan of| = . (35) ) _ml ﬁ-ﬂﬂ} i_'l_il} ) W}ﬂ
At 362021 046,106 8,017,784 L7as A58 LOT6.247 19,018 1L848.653
Rapresenting:-
At gt 540,023 8,015,275 1789458 1076247 18,018 11,840,061
AT yakgition G083 2509 . - - B552
At 362021 946,106 6017784 LTa9.458 LOT6.247 15,018 1L848.653
Agoemulated depreciation aad impaimmaent
At L7.2020
AL st 40 2,677,090 TG, 700 362,906 7431 3814167
At vaksation - a7 - - - 797
4a 2677, 887 TEE, 700 352,906 AL 814,064
Charge far The financa e - 172111 47,439 28,606 707 248,953
Curmency transixton dfeeoces - 130,864 [62.725) [L186) - 66,953
Dipasals x (315.830) (LO40) [El-H] - [318.262)
Dinposal of wilndiery - - (64, 028) - - {64, 028)
Impimment loss - - 5426 - - 5426
Transhers - (17.213) (17640} i 3 [34.853)
wittpn oft o {17} (48] {5.920) [427) {B.792)
At IE2021 40 2,646,802 673,704 384,104 bl | 312361
et boak value
AL rost 939,983 5,365,318 L115.7594 652143 11307 8,128,545
AL bt 6083 1,664 - - - 7. 74T
At TA2021 046,065 5370962 L1574 692,143 11307 6,136,292
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PG FINAMDIAL STATEMENTS

Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june £021

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D.)

' Lt hulires of the Croup @06 folows-
: . ﬁiﬁ: I = . ~ .....,...“ o i_

Freahall lazseheld Baxsehald Tresshold langtem L5421 ] ther

land land land land  leasafigld land  Bersehald land buildingy Tt

00 EM000 RHO0 000 MO0 AM000 EM000 RMOO00
Group - 2020
Costi¥aluation
K172
Mot il 040 ) T3a3 Lass 343648 fiz: iek: [ {a
M wiaton fvam %0 4T : . BTl

1081382 450 i 13Em lamaEy 4358 iz} 1082772
Regustion o bodizie . - - - S - - HU4%
Addto 14 - E 12600 jikat] Hi [EAEH
Cotveney Tarmaton fifeeon ek - ] 70ed Lz L5 Tiss
Derwoation of sueeiry [RITLm) L * [IL7E] L] * ]
O 8] " = AN B 558 L2
ngiirmee| o L . - R0 s f . (BB
Trarhry Mo . ) SEEA ot B 16368 LG
vt - - [z fA] RS 5 [ILIET}
i NEAR AR . K TR L3S ezt 12448 n&r=
Repeeseating:-
Mo e = = TELEI 1MLES TG 12448 LLEX180
M wiation RE . E LEG . : . G
M IETEDY LEE * - TEIABE LSLES A6 12448 IL63m=
Accermutaied depreciation asd

inpairment
1120
i 4 49 - L4EEH Lrite] Rl 14 188
M vaiaton . B * T - + . &
4 BdE - Laan e AL e 1143 EE ]

Aegmiton ol subsdariey . - E - iora% . . 100
Dhinege T it il o - - + [t L ] T iy
Lumeney varmaten difeeos - - - frk. 1 4445 13 E FaE
Diseragntion of wesidry - [B4E3 - a0eet s - = k]
Disposas . - - 550) o (550 . L
Trarshers. . . . 5 A (B0 W TR
Wi o - - - Lt i3] L2y M pasen
 NEHRN 4 - LT TEET E =] ] T4l AEAEL
Wl ek walue
ot A B S1MIn LSS SE00 12617 10
1 wiaton b3 - - in2 - - 7%
M NEI 535410 . E fAE:2 LiTilN S0 (He i TEETEE
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g9 163

MNotes to the Financial Statements

- 30 June 2021
11. PROPERTY., PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTD.]
) Furniture,
fittings &
equipment Vehicdes Total
HNote RMO0D RMOO0 RMOO0

Company - 2021
Cost
At 172020 7,385 9,282 16,687
Additions 232 429 661
Disporsals = [(B38) (638)
Al 306,207 T 9.083 16,710
Accumulated depreciation
At 172020 7.116 5.719 12,835
Chargs Toe thir Mnandlal year 7 230 551 TEL
Disposats = [G26) (626)
Ar 002021 7.346 L.G44 12,990
Met book valua
At 3062021 281 3,439 3,720
Company - 2020
Cost
At 172019 7208 9,242 16.500
Additions, 187 - 187
At 306,200 1395 9,292 16687
Accumulated depreclation
Ar 172019 6,701 5.325 12086
Chargs for the fimandal year 7 415 354 BOa
Ar 30.6.2020 fllb 2719 12835
Net book value
At 3052020 273 3573 3,852
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D.}

(0] Demedation charge for 1he finaial year is sbocated as follows:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Hote RAM'O00 AM'D00 RM'O00 RAMO00
Recognised in Income Statement 7 1,641,525 1554423 7a1 0o
Constiuction contract 24(e) 9,271 3200 -
1,650,796 1563713 781 ang

(b} Assers under finance lease

Tha nat bosk value of the poparty. plant and equipment as at Rporting date beld under financa eanes are 25 Toliows:-

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM'O00 RMOO00 RMOO0O RMO00
Planit ancl g hintry 17,489 0823 - -
Wihichey 2,544 3,384 973 LOoE
20,033 24,207 973 1096

{ty Sacurity

The net boak value of the Group's property, plant and equipment that have been pledped as security for the bank fadlities
and bonds by way of feeed and floating changes are as follows!-

Group
2021 2020
RM'OO00 RMOO0
Lt 157.962 16H.561
Buildings 1,229,752 L1717 eE
1,387,714 L340.685

() Bomwig cost

Bomowioiy costs of RM23.733 million (2020 RM1BS554 milion) arfsing on financng specifically entered into for the constructon
ol propery, plant and equipment were capltalised during the financial year,

Thie Group revised e uselul lves ol certain propesty, plant and equipment dlng the linanceal year. The revison was sicouifed
for as a chamge i accounting estimate and as o resall, th depreciation charge Tor The Tinoia pear anded 30 June 2021 has
dirrirased approximatily by BM53 mdlion (2020: RMA7.1 milion).
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11. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D.I
Impaimmant assessment for proporty, plant and equipment ("PPE”) of subsidiaries
(a) Utilities

Tha recoverable smount of the PPE asceasad a5 part of  cadh ganerating unit (CGLM) i dotermined based on tha (air walw
lerss costs of disposal (FYLCDT) calculation

The folicwing are the key assumptions applied in the FVLLD calculation Tor impainnent assessment of PRE of a subsidiary in
e Tlew o atioers Dusiness divisin:

2021 2020
Discount rate 7.6% 7.7%
Average revanue grovdh rate Z7.6% 20.7%
EBITDA margin 53.1% 45]1%

The discownt rate appled to the cash Tlow projections are dedived from the cost of capital at the date of the assessmeant.

The cash flow projectians used in the FVLCD calculation were based on approved financlal budgets and forecasts coveni'g a
5 year period, adirited to reflect market participants assumptions, Cash flows beyond the 5 year penod were extrapolated a
further 14 years representing the estimated useful lives of the PRE of the subsidary, using the estimated lang-term growth
rate of 259 (20200 2.5%).

Fair vitlua is hald within Level 3 in Fair value lararchy disciosires.

The canrying amaount of the CCU as at 30 june 2021 s RM25 bllion (2020: AM2.T billien). Mo impairment chanmge was recogiised
a1 The recoverable amount of the DOU was in excess al 1 carrying amaunt,

IT the discount rals intreased by 436 (2020 1%, the carmying value will be reduce by soprosimataly AMAT millon (2020
RMS0 milon). If e averags revenue growith rate reduced by 3,0% (20200 05%), the (arrying value will be reduce by
approximately RMIGE millan | Z020: RMLOD millipn), And, if the EETOA margin rdued by 12% (2020 2%) 0 carmying valw
will be reduce by approoamately RME0 milon (2020 M43 million)

(b} Cement
The recoverabie amount of FPE of a foreign subsidiary company was reviewed for Empairment dunng the financial year due
11 Insses incumed a5 a4 ety ol O0VET-19 pandemic and change of politesl landaeape.

The recoversble amount s determined from the value-in use calcu@ation by discounting future cash flows using pre-tax discournt
rate. The eash Nlow projections induded specific estimates for § years and 3 termingd growth rfe thersatter.

The kay assumptions usad |n the estimation of value-in-use caloulations ae 5 lolows-

2021 2020
Priz-tux dncount tate T.4%
Terminal growth rate 6.6% -

Hated on management's assessmant, impairment charge of AME7.192 million (2020 BM N ts requined as the recoverabio
amaunt af these assets was lower than the carmying amounts. There are no reasonably passible change in any of the above
key assumptions that would result in additional material impasrment charge on the PPE
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12. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Telecon
munications
netwark
site and Mastor Plantand  Leasshold
Land  equipment fuddings vehichs  machingry fand (thars Total
Hobe BM00 RMO0D RMDOO RHDO0 MO0 ANO0D RMDOO REDO
Groap - 2021
Rt Bk Wit
M 17200 104,089 $4.135 L 480 5253 568,618 w/ LB
Lidtiors 12800 4 L) - 1545 13289 . BE054
Dharge For g fmartis yor fa04y  [l065ET) (AL} (328} [EL] 24,518 57 (183,0%)
Cummey saraaion dlfemos 0 - 11,806 1 m 3,968 AL
Dl of ey - - {59} - - el 7] .74
Egp Trminaticn (E:581) 5414 53 sz (15 3 m (13,650
Hadfciten (2434 (3865 m ' = - fle3m)
Trrelsr In PWESTENT, [Tperiies 13 - - (1] - 1]
Trareder Brom{iz) grogenty. pant ind
enupEn i 7,961 (166, 596] LI - 1,338 . 135,650
Trareter brom receymet Y = = P s 181
At 3062021 aLeas 396290 0302 Lt 1133 £29012 Fooi ] 1712517
At 3062081
i ] 126440 L2023 B58145 2963 ez SRS M s
Ketumdated dryrevigtios PEMY  [EoeTRY .84y Lz} (808  RadEsy #  (Lzer)
Hart ook e aLess 63 0302 Laar 115 28002 o] LTILED
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12. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONT'D.
Teleton-
muriCT e
netwerk
e and Motar Plant and Leauebold
Land  squipment Buldings whides  machinary lard ury Tetal
Nate REDDY RM00 000 RMD0D RHDO RMDOO EM000 MO0
Graup - I0E0
Mt Beok Valoe::
ALLT20E T BE6 T P LE X7 MmE - R [rr )
Agiitors G448 T ] 314447 =0 - s 2058 Mz
A of sy . . L . . Bl : B
[harge Yo the frureial year 1 (24500 IENE 7] Jer L 7] e [Ta%5 ratn] LT (e
Currenry frasishion déferanes % - LH ¥ ] 4552 P L1
iy Termitice : T ) : : - : 5
RtI0E20E0 1088 £ b M| L&l ix S5HRL9 ) LEKLE
Rt3I06.200
Kt hE 18 Erp). 1] L jri ] BeeE Ll LI
Airsmuad deprn ulion {5 [ram rokli] [RAE2 [TAEG [28000d) 1kn] (Ll
Fiet bock wila 104065 L5 s ] i Ll w LEXRLH
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12. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONT'D.)

Building
2021 2020

Hote RM'O00 RM'000
Company
Het Book Value:-
AT Juby 9,069 -
Addstiars 20,031 13604
Charge for the fnandal yea® T (6.719) (4.535)
Expinys/ Termination (6,801} -
At 30 June 15,580 a.068
At 30 June
Cost 20,031 13604
Accuimulated depreciation [4.451) (4.535)
Met book wakie 15,580 Q060

The Group and the Company have lease contracts lor various tems of land telecommurecations network st and equipment.
busldings, matar vehicles. plant and machineny, leasehold land and others used in thelr operations. Leases of those assets gensraly
e lnasi termd e tween 1 10 30 years.

The Group and the Cempany ako have terain eases with ease temms of 12 months of less and leases that haye been determined
1 bt by wslue, Th Group and the Company apaly the ‘shor -term kease’ and "ease of Iow-value assets’ recogition exemstion for
thesa lmases.

The right-af-use asses ralating to commaedcial proparties presanted under investmant proparties (Note 13) i stated a1 Fair value
and has a ¢amying amount at reportng date of RM525,083 million (2020 AM547.037 million).
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Lang-term
Frechold leasehald
land & land &
buildings buildings Tatal
Note RMTODO RMODO RMO00
Group - 2021
At beginning of the financlal year 1,244,366 566,760 1,811,126
Additions 37.065 - 37.065
Changes in Tair vakie:-
- Por valuaticn repons 7 92,032 (3.281) BE.751
- Unhilied lease incoma 7 (8.890) {9.154) (18.044)
Unhillied Bedse income B.H30 9,154 18,044
Curmency wandlaton diffetendes 47,713 = 47.713
Tiansfer from night-of -use assers 12 - 759 759
written off 7 (2,413} (503) 18.916)
At end of the financal year 1,412,763 563,735 1,976,498
Group - 2020
Al begunieng of the financial yess 2960906 F256.667 IR27S73
Additions 343257 £153,759 559216
Charges in fair valie:
= Por wiluation ropons 7 (LG L175) {12808
Cumency translathon differences {12.741) {42,96H) {55.709)
Derecognition of subsidiary {1.978,583) (BE51,656) [RE31.281)
Traridar to property development costs &3 (5L7E7) (51.787)
Teamider to property, plant and oquigment 1 {6403 {6403
‘Written off ! {#650) (5] (155
Ar end of thie financial year 1.244 366 566,780 Lalllas

The changes in falr value of indestment properties of the Group of RMBE.TSL millicn in the current financial year is after offsetting
unbilled iease income smounting to AMLE.O04 million,

Investmant properties with carmying amount af RM455 million (2020 RM4E1 million) are charmed as security for a berrowing granted
to the Group &s desclosed in Note 30 and Nate 31 1o the financial statemants
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D.)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tetal
RM'0OO0 AM'000 RM'Q00 RM'000
Group - 2021
Racurring fair value measuraments:-
Imvestment praparties
- Commancial properties - - 532,775 532,775
- Hotel properties - - 679,100 679,100
- Dther properties - 44.460 720,163 TB4.623
Total = A4, 460 1,932,038 1,976,498
Group - 2020
Recurring fair value measwrements:-
ISt propartios
- Commencial praperies - . 547,452 547,452
- Hotel properties - - BJ2.000 72,000
- hef proparties - G610 S57.064 591,674
Total = 34,610 1,776,516 1811126

Rental irscam from imactment propories of he Giaup during the finascial yoas amoauntod tn RMT7 970 milisn (2020: AMS27_278 milice)

Dirait operating expenses from iméestment properies in respect of income and non - income generating properties af the Group
duting the financal year amowntéd 1o RMLLI20 million (2020 AM31.735 million) and RMBS0E milon (2020; RM11.251 million),

i iy
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13, INVESTMENT PROPERTIES ICONT'D.)

{a) Falr value information

The Caoups (mestment propeies are valued based on sale compaiiaon appioach and wabssivabia inguls and dassified in
Ll @ and Lewed 3 nospecthvely of tha Tair value Dlerarchy, Thia @iTerent benets of the fair vivue Berarcty are defined in Bote
I% b} to the finandal statements

Duing thir cument financial year, thore was no ransher botween Loved L Lovel & and Leved 3 Fain vilue massurements.

(b) Waluatiom technigues used to derive Level 2 fair values

Level £ tar values af the Group’s propertss have been generally denven using the sales compartson approach. Sabes pnces of
eompakatia propecies in ot phaximity am scdpeted Por citfersnees in ey aftrilutes wuch 8 propany <im. This mod gnifican
inpust intn this valuation appmach |5 the 'ﬂ“‘] IS PAT SUAME MEter,

{c} Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Thi Tollowing tablo thows the valuation tachaigues wed in th detormination of fair valuet within Lovel 3, o5 well ot the
significant umobservable inputs wed in the valuation models

(i} Commarcial proparties

Inter-relationship between significant
unobservable inputs and fair value
Valuation technigue Significant unobsarvable inputs  measuremant

Disgonanted cash (baw approach which  Discount rdte fiom 6.5% 1o 750%  The higher the discount rate, the lower
Irvlees the estimation and prajection thee fair valug:

of income stream over a period and

discounting the fun InCome St

1o arrve at the present valis,

Estimare rental vaiue per square feet  The higher the estimate resviad per squate
pier month Py, thir Migher the valuation,
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D.)

{c) Falr value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) (cont'd.)
(i) Hotel properties

Intersrelationship betwoon significant
unabsarvable inputs and fair valua
Valuation technigue Signiticant unobservable inputs  measurement

Income approach which capitalise the  Discomnt rate of b25%% to F00%  The higher the discount rate, the kower
LTiEnalE mental incamo Stream, net (P00 GO0% 10 7500 this air sk,

projacied operating costs, using a

discoln rate dedved from market yield

Capitalisation rate of B.50% to  The hgher the capitalisation rate, thie
F.00%% (AN BOD 10 7.50%) lawar tha Tair valus,

(i) Other proparties - UK

Range
Valuation technique  Significant observable inputs 2021 2020
Hangars Capitalised incoma .Eﬂummmemal value :I-Efsq-r-l e anum - £15I:I - IEDD
Kot yiekd percentage : 019
'u"l:ll;:l-l.'.‘lerl;:ds- . - 12 - 24 months
Ditecaurnted cash fiow 'u_ﬂ;unl -nl;rr'-l::n;q 1 - L5 million p.a. =
Alrtieid Trmia-cuurl :;tes = Lﬂ1demt1‘rper e SEEE 18 - 28

Discounted cash llm: Unit density per acre 18-28

The mvestment properties are valued using the income capitaksabion method. whene a property’s fair value s estimated
based an the nomalised net operating noome generated by the property, which Is divided by the capltalsaton (discount)
rale based on cument market-cerived yield rates which meflect the expecied retum on nyesiments commenswate witls
the risk exposure assocatad to the assat

Th significant unobsanvable input is the adustment for Tactors spetific 1o the properties, The adent and droction of
this adjustment depends on the number and tharactertstics af the obsenable market transactions in similar poperties
that are usid as the crarting paint lor valuation, Althaugh this input s & subsctive juEdgement, managemant consders
that the overall valuation would not be materialy attected by reasanably possible alternative assumptions
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14. DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES
The movement In development expend tures of the Group dwing 1he fnancal year is & Toliows:-
Fr&huld -I.nuthdd Development
land land oosts Tatal
Group - 2021 Note RMO0D RE'ODD RMODO RMO00
{a) Land held for property development
Cost
At beginning of the financial year 420,278 226,453 260,591 907,322
Halditions a4 2,910 10,428 13,432
whritten off - - (5.184) (5.184)
Tramsfer 1o imventary (70,822) - (11.033) [B1,855)
At ard of the financial year 249,550 229,363 254,802 833,715
Accumulated impairment losses
AT bediningiond of The financal yooe {530} (24.789) {480) (25, 799)
Tatad land hakl for property
deveRapment 349,020 204,574 254,322 807,916
(b} Project development expenditure
At beginning of the finandial year - 186,890 59.808 246,698
Addibiens - - 18,313 18,313
Charge to Income Statement - - {151) {151}
Currency translation ditforonce - |5, 489) {1.74a) |7.238)
Tratvster from propsrty. plant and
Equipment n - - 1,850 1890
&t erd for the financial year - 181,401 78,111 259,512
Total development expenditures 346,020 385,975 332,433 1,067 428
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14, DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES ICONT'D.)

The myement in development expendinses of the Group during the financial year is a5 iofiws-

Frechold  Leasehold  Development

land land Cosis Total
Group - Z020 Hote RM'DOO RAM'D00 RM'O00 RM'O00
{a) Land held for property development
Cost
At beginning of the finandal year 41956 232,404 242006 BET.455
Additions 4,948 18827 23775
Transter from peoperty development
[£:5 1 23 7z . - 1322
Transfer to (rmeeniony - (10,3598) (332} [11.230)
Al etid of the financlal year 420,278 226,453 260,591 907,222
Accumulated impairment losses
At beginning af the Firancial year (530 27,767} (A8 28777
Rewdrsal of impalrmen 2978 2978
&t end of the financlal year {530 24,789) [480) {25, raay
Total kand held Tor peoparty
dewslopmant 419,748 201664 2b0L111 Bg1.523
(b) Project development expenditure
At baginning of the financial year . 177057 51,500 268,560
Additians . 3857 GAERT BBSIE
[hadge o kcome Statemonl {B.17S) [8.175)
Currency trandation difference - 5,966 233 82714
Trarsfor to prapsrty. plant and
equipment 11 - - {20.502) (20.502)
At end af tha Tinandial yosr - 186,890 58,808 26,698
Total development expenditures 419,748 308554 319,919 1Lim221

Lanl Wik lar praperty deviloament with carying ameunt of RMIS4.225 millan [2020: AM3Z27.064 imllan) ate chasged a4 seourity
for bomowing granted 1o the Group as disdosed in Nate 31 1o the inencal statements

Progec L development exgpenditue conssy of land acguisition costs, professiona fees and relatind (osts, The land alguisiion cosls
rielates to the construction of thee power plet Iy BT, Tamjng ol Power Compeeny CTIPCT) under a 30-year powed purchase
agreement with PT PLN (Persero), Indonesia’s state-ownead electic utility company, a second amended and restated version of
wihich wias executed in March 2018, In February 2020, T|PC obrainegd the Businegss iabilty Guarantes Lettedr from the Minlstry of
Finance of the Repubdic of Indomasia and B working towards achieving financial cose.
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
i n
2021 2020
RMOD0 RM000
Quoted shares, at cost 3,470,029 470,029
Uniuinted shares. a1 oot 4,300,538 4,300,374
Uniunoted ICULS. a7 cost 104 -
Less; Accumulated imparment (osses 18.377) [
7,764,294 7,764,014
Market vahse
- Quated shares 3,602,462 3491567
Detalls of the subsickaries are as follows:-
Effective Equity
Intergst
Place of 2021 2020
Mame of Company Incorporation Principal Activities L L
Hald by the Company:
Arah #sars Sdn, Bl Malaysia Property deselopmint 100,00 10000
Business & Budget Hotels Sdn. Bhd Malaysa Management & irsestment holdng 100,00 10000
Cane Creatiors Sdn, Bhil Malysia Irvesiment halding 100.00 10000
Cornerstong Crest Son Bhd. Malaysa Irmeestment holding 100.00 10000
Diviree Wiew Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Commarcial trading, propedty daading & 100,00 D000
Imvestment holding
it elloc tual Mivsion S4n, B Malaysia Education & training using sdvanced 100000 10000
teChnolongy
Prisma Tulin Sdn Bhd, Malaysia Hotl aporatar 100,00 1300
Spectacular Comer Sdn. Bhd Malaysa Darmart - 100.00
Syarikal Pambenaan Yeoh Tiong Lay Marlaysin Ciwil enginearing wosks, constrection, 100000 JO0O.00
Scdn. Bl property developmant & real estate
Irnsestment, nyesiment hoidng & related
SREVIE i
Titiwiangsa Development Sin. Bhd Malaysia Irvestment holding 100,00 10200
¥TL Cayman Limited’ Cayman siands  ivesimint hakling, ownoership B chartodng 100000 10000

of yachts & vessels
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Dtz of the subsidiaries ae &5 folkowsc- (contd)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Hame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities W £
Held by the Company: (cont'd.)
TTL Cement Berhan Malaysia mEsImEnt holting, maragement company 98.04 98,03
& hiring ol vehidkes
¥TL Chariers Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Chartaring of arorafts, helcoptess, ships & 100000 100,00
wihitles
YTL Corporation [UK) Pic* England ke Wales  Inattive 10000 10000
¥TL Corp Finance {Cayman) Limited’ Cayman Isiarkls Inac tive 10000 10000
¥TL Corp Finance {Labuan) Limded' Malayzia Specla purpose vehicle for issuance of 100000 10000
securilles B investment halding
¥TL &-Sohtions Berhad Malaysia Investment holding, provision and 100000 10000
maintonanca ol nfarmation technalogy
hardwiare and soltware 5ys b, network
and inteymiet connecthaty infrastructure,
with hosting services, cantent
davelopment, provision of o-commonco
Systems, hardwane sales and other relaned
Lorvices
YTL Ensrgy Sein. Bhul Malaysia Ivstmant halding 10000 10000
YL (Cussisey) Lioited" G ey iwestimil & maperty hldog 100000 10000
YTL Hospitality REIT YTLREITY Malaysla Ivestment in real estate 56.96 56.95
YTL Hotel Management Saint Troper France Hatel operator & managameant senices 100,00 100000
SARL!
YTL Hotels & Properties Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia nvestrent holdng B management senices 100000 10000
YTL industries Berhad Malaysia Investment holding, property development 100000 10000
and peoferty s tmant
YTL Land 540, Bhd. Malaysia Propermy iInvestment. property and profact 100080 10000
managemaent
YTL Land & Deverlopment Berhad Malaysia Investment holding & provision of  96.64 96,60

management, financial, treasury &
SECretans senies
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Hame of Company

Held by the Company: (cont'd.)
¥TL Poweer intemational Barkad
{FTL Powar®

¥TL Singapore Mo, Ltd.”
¥TL-5¥ Carban Sdn. Bhd,

Held through Business & Budget
Hotels Sdn, Bhd.:

Dusine=s B Budgel Hotels (Penang)
Sdn. Bhd,

Hisiness & Budger Heels
{Seberang jaya) Sen Bhd
{Under members’ yoluntary
Fuidlatian)

Held through Cane Creations
Sdn. Bhd.:

Canie Croathars (Marioeting) Sdn, Bhd

Naitural Adventure Sdn. B,
Niche Retaling Sdn. Bhd

Prestige Lifestyles & Living Sdn Bhd
Star Hill LivngCom Sdn. B,

Teandy Retalliig Sdn Bhd

Held through Divine Wiew
Sdn. Bhd.:

SC1YTL Hotels Saint Troper!

Place of

Incorporation

Malaysa

Singapore

Malaysia

Malayala

Mataysia

Malayua

Malaysia
Malaysia

Malaysia

Malay s

Malmysla

Franie

Principal Activities

Investment holding & provision of 5557 5521
administrative & technical support

SV
Ivestment holding & management company . 100000 10000
Provdslon of consultancy senices 90.00 50,00
Hotel aperator 51.00 51.00
Inactive 51.00 5100

Tradeng i cane fumiture, lecal Mandiorafts,  L0OLDD 10000
aressones b related senices

Inactive 100.00 10000

Hetailing of fashion appaels and related 100000 10200
B CEs50NEs

Trading of fumiture and accessoes 100,00 100200

Progect misnadimant Senvices, rading of 100,00 1000
paintings, fumiture, scoessonies & nelabed
LBV EL

mactive 10:0.00 10000

Acquesition, management. renting & 100,00 L0000
admintstration andror resale of real estate
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Dtz of the subsidiaries ae &5 folkowsc- (contd)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Hama of Company Incarporation Principal Activities % %
Held through Syarikat Pembenaan
Yeah Tiong Lay Sdn. Bhd.:
Austasia Matal Sdn, Bhd.* ﬂ-‘lalay-saa InsCineg 100.00 10000
Aistanla Timbers Maliyida Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia (] 100.00 100,00
Builters Brickworks Sdn, Brul Malaysia Inarive 93.80 9380
Construction Laase (M) Sda Bhd, Malaytia Lirarfang, hite puirchass & crodit 10000 10000
Dayang Day Development Sdn, Bhd. Malaysia Property investment and development 100.00 10000
Layang Bumling Resorts Sdn, Bhd, Malaysla Property immestment and development 10000 10000
Dryneamic. Marketing Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Trading of bulding & constrection materals  100.00 10000
Hotel 25 Sdm. Bhd, Malaysia Hated eperator 100,00 10000
First Comemacial Development Son. Bhd Malaysia Property inwvestiment 10000 10000
Eampung Tiong Dayelopment Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Property development Jo.00 0.0
Lay Seng O Palm Flantations Son, Bhd. Malaysa Cultvasion of ol palms 10000 10000
Mortrwestem Development Sdn. Bhd. Malayzia Property Imestment and development i00.00 10000
Pl Prapormy Manademant Son. Shd. Malayiia I 100.00 10000
Sued Travel & Tours Sdn, Bl Malayzia Rental of motor vehicles, air ticketing & 100000 10000
olh relabod sonnes
Transportabile Camps Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia Trading & rental of transportable cobins & 100000 100,00
wiold hased roducts
o Yew Hup Brickwarics (Perak) Malysia st Trep G3.80 o380
Sdn. Bhd
Yeah Tiong Lay Realty Sdn Dhd, Malayiia Realty, irvestment B masagement serdoes 100000 10000
YTL Corstruction internationzi Cayman |siands. iwestment halding i construction related 100.00 10000
(Cayman) Limited' ACtivities
¥TL Corstruction [5) Ple. Lid.* Singapone Construction mlated acthities & e estate 100000 10000
developer
¥TL Crdll Engneering Sdn. Bhd. Malaysla Ciwil enginearing workes & construction 90.00 50,00
Y7L Dustiansara 3 5dn. Bnd! Malaysia Praperty imastmant and devropment 100,00
YTL Development Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Froperty developman T0.00 0D
¥TL Project Managemen! Sendces Malaysia Provision of managament servicas for 100000 10000
S0, Bhd, COrsration pofects
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15. INVESTMENT IM SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of ihe subsidiaries are as follows:- (contid.)
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Mame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L T
Hald through Syarikat Pambenaan
Yeoh Tieng Lay 5dn. Bhd.:
{cont'd,}
¥TL Technoiogees Sin. Bhd, Malaysa Senvicirg & hirng of equipment a9.22 99.21
¥TL THP |V 5Sdn, Bhid Malaysia Inactive T0.00 70,00
Hedd through ¥YTL Cayman Limited:
st Heritage Sdn, Bhd* Malaysia Managemant wenaas 100,00 10000
Saihill Calaal RETT s Dimssins Cariian Balatich Irneissitrnici] Dllinig 100,00 {2 i
Limitud'
Starhill Chobal REIT Managemant Cayman islands  Imeestment holding 100.00 10000
Limited'
¥TL Construction (Thaiand) Limited* Thailand Construction activities 74.89 74.89
¥TL Perier Sorices San, B Malmysia Opiratian B mantenanco of powes station 100000 1OOU0
¥TL Progerty Investments Limited” Cayman lands  Imeestment halding 100,00 10000
¥TL Starhill Gobal Property Singapore Properly management services 100,00 10000
Managemant Pte. Lid."
¥TL Stachill Clobal REIT Management Singapare Imvesimenid halding 100,00  [0000
Holdings Pte. Lid*
¥TL Stanhill Globsl RETT Matasiwenl St pure Pwestmunt advisor, piopeerty Tuid 100.00 ([t n ]
Limited* maragpmeril serioes aikl e ot o the
Manager of SCREIT
Held through ¥TL Cement Berhad:
Azsociated Pan Malaysiz Cement Malaysa Manufacture and sake of clinker and cement 6B.61 46
Sddn Bh*
Batu Tiga Quarry Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Quatry business & trading of granite  §0.04 S8.03
gregates
Batu Tiga Quiarry {55 Bidoh) Sdr. Bhid Malaysia CQuiarry business & related services 98.04 Sa03
Beljirg Dama Snosource Trading The Feapie’s Trading of mechanical, electrical equipment 9804 SE.03
Co. Lg* Fapubilic of China and parts, and technology tramsfae,
develogunant and o tancy
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Dtz of the subsidiaries ae &5 folkowsc- (contd)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Hame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities %% %
Held through YTL Comant Berhad;
{eant'd.)
Bentara Cemilang industries Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Quarry business & related servioes. 49.02 4002
Ben Tre Fiwo-¥TL Cement Limiisd® Vietnam Manufacturing & sale of cement 68.63 -
Birh Duong Fico Comant Single Mamber Vietnam Manutacturing cemant, lime & plaster 68.63 GH.B2
Limitet Lisbility Comparmy™
Buildcon-Cimaro Concrete Sdn, Bl Malaysia Manutacture & sale of ready-moed concrete. SE.04 g8.03
Buildcon Concrete Enterprise Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Inwestment holding 90.04 98.03
Buildcon Congrete Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Marutaciure & sale of mady-moed concrete. S04 98.03
Buildeon Congrate (EL) San, B Malaysia I Theet 908.04 98,03
CL Quarrying & Marketing Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Quarry business & related services 98.04 98,03
CL Readymix Sdn. Bhel, Malaysia Marulactune B b of mwady-moed (oncrete SE.04 oe.03
[MCM Permiagaan Sdn. Bhd* Malaysia Distriruton of cement & bullding materals 8861 7546
Competent Teamwork Sdn. Bha Malaysia Imestment holding 98.04 a98.03
Conerete Industries Pre. Lad ® Singapore Dormant 98.04 9A.03
Conerete Star Limitea' Cayman Islands Imestrent holding 98.04 98.03
Equity Conporation Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Quarry business & related servioes 98.04 88,03
Fica Tay Ninh Cement jaint Siock Vietram Manafactise & taie of ordnary porfland  GELB3 b, Ge
Company® cement & tiended coment
Fico-¥TL Cement Sales and Marketing Vietnam Safa b marketing of cementibous products GBLGE 6.6
Compary Limized®
Caemilang Pintar Sdn Bhd Malaysia Quarry business & related servioes 6B.63 BE.E2
Gen Alam Emvircnmental Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Waste management insupphang, dedvening G861 7546
(farmaty known a5 Gecyt of altermative Tusls & raw matanial for
Erveanmental Servikes Sin, Bhd)® usa i cement manufactunng activities
Geo Alam Scn, Bhed, Malaysia Trading of any type of cementitious 5861 T340
{formarty known & Geocycle materials for cement or concrete use

Malaysis S, Bhil)*
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15. INVESTHMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of ihe subsidiaries are as follows:- (contid.)
Etfective Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L L
Held through ¥YTL Cement Berhad:
{ront'd.)
Green Enable Technalogies Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Consultancy services in relation fo the  98.04 SH03
promation ol the gasktication of manitpal
a0l weate for dispeasal in cemant lioing
Halckm [Malay<ia) Sdn. Bhd.* Malaysia Marfactue and sale of camernt GA.GL 154G
Hapalleld Enterprises Limited® Hong Keng Irvesimen1 holding 98,04 G803
Indistial Procurement Limited' Cayman BKiands Ireostmeand bolding 98.04 SiL03
Jaksa Quarry Sdn. Bhd, Malaysa Quamy business & related servies 98.04 S8.03
Jumiseraby Shipping Sen. Bhd * Malaysia Shipping of hulk cement and vessals BA.GL 4R
chartering
Jurong Cement Lirmited® SingApCrE Imeestment holding, importess, deslers of 98.04 .03
roady-mix concrete, dry-mie mortar
products, business of owness of storage
terminal facilities & sales of gemant
Kadah Cement Haldings Berhad* Malaysia Irvesiment holding GH.EL 546
Kedah Cement Sdn Bhad* Malaysia Marulacture ard sale of cement, Cinker BE.EL e
and retated products
Kedah Cement jetty Sin, Bhi* Malaysia Licensed jetty oparator BH.EL TEAE
Karmalson Construction Materals Malaysia Inactive 48,04 Sa03
Sdn. Bhd.
Kermeisun Hooibeny Qusry Sdn, Brid Muslay s Manufecturing, selling & distribution of 98,04 S58.03
premx products, construction & ulding
materials
Latarge Agoregates [Kota Tingod Malaysi Cuiarrying and trading of granite and quary BREL 546
Sem Bl * prodicts
Lafamge Aggregates [Pantai Remis) Malaysia Leasing of quarrying rights of agoregate GB.EL 7546
Sdn. Brwl.* B reld1ed miaierisls
Lafame Agoeqates Sdn Bhd* Malayeia rvisiment halding, tradng and guesrying GAEL 7545
of aggregates and related products
Lafarge Concrete (Cast Malaysia) Malaysa Darmari 63.98 030
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Dtz of the subsidiaries ae &5 folkowsc- (contd)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Hama of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities % %
Held through ¥TL Cement Berhad:
{eont'd.]
Latarge Concrete [Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.* Malaysia Manufacture and sale of ready-mixconcrete 6358 fo.38
Latwge Cancrote ndustiss Sdn. Bhd.* Malaysia Manufacture and s of roady. ik (onom i E3.98 038
Lalarge Drymix Son Bhd.* Malaysia Manuf zcture and sale of cement and drymix. 68,61 7546
products
Lafarge Marketing fa, Lie.* Singapore Ivvestment holding 6A.61 T5.46
LES Pee. Lid® Clrxpapare Bulk krpoet snd Lo of cement and trading  GHEL 7546
of other bulding materials
LES Shippng Pre. L. Singaporn shipgiing of bk cemant and chatering of  BEEL 7546
vesseh
LML Holdings Pre. Lid* Singapore Ivestment halding 68.61 7546
Makat Selcka Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Quiarry business & related services 98,04 98.03
Maliryan Comont Borhad® Malaysa inerstment halding [4: K51 7546
M-Cement Sdn, Bhi* Malaysia Irwestiment holding 68,61 7546
Minl-Mix Sedn Bhel. Malaysia Manufactude & sale of roady mix conciote  9B.D4 ge.03
F hiring ol vehickss
Mabijack Sea Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Quarry business & related servioes 9004 96.03
Muual Praspact Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Quarry business & related servioes. 98.04 98,03
Maryang Cemant Pie Lod* Eingapane Cement torminal eperation, bulk beaking 9804 gg.03
activities and troding in coment
Mhas Anih irvestment Joint Stock Vietmam Iwestment holding GE.04 98.03
Company*
Casis Vision Sdn. B Malaysia Production, selling & distribution of  35.00 35.00
corstruction B bulding meter i
Pahang Cament Marketing Sdn Bhd, Malaysia Inesctive 98.04 g98.03
Pahang Comant Sdn Bhd, Malaysia Manuf acture & sale of ordnary periland  9E.D4 98,03
cament, clinker k& related products
Perai-Hanjoong Simen Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Manufactiee B sae of ordnary poriland  DE.04 3803
coment, dinker & rolated products
Pesmodalan Hitec Sdn. Bhl Malaysia Quarry husaniss & related senioes G004 g8.03
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15. INVESTHMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of ihe subsidiaries are as follows:- (contid.)
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L L
Held through ¥YTL Cement Berhad:
{ront'd.)
PHE Trading Sdn, Bl Malaysia Management af plam oB.04 S0
PHCWS Entedprises Pe, Lol * Singapore Imeestment holding BE.EL 7546
Probuilders Centre Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Darmart 6E.6L 46
{Under membars voluntary
Baquidatsan)*
P.T.¥TL Semen Indonesia® Indonasia Marufacture & sale of odinary partland 9804 S803
cement & ready-mxed concrete
RC Anarerates Sdn. Brd. Malaysia Handiing of construction waste materials 98.04 a3
and sales of the recycled concrete
Ejegane
Simen Unama Marketing Sdn. Bhd.® Malaysia Marketing, trading & manfscturing of GE.EL 75AE
cement re‘ated products
Sing Mabsa and Heavy Equipment Malayia Trading & maimenance of trscks & parts 88,04 Ga03
Sdn. Bt & haavy equipment
Slag Cement Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Manufacture & sale of odinary portland  98.04 SEDI
cement & biended cement
Slag Cement (Southern) Sdn. Bhd. Mallaysa Manufaciure & sale of oodinary portland 98,04 S8.03
cement & blended cement
ML Mux Sdn. Brd. Malaysia Manufacture B sale of ready-mixed corcrete 9804 Qa0
Salaris Concept Sdn. Bhd. Malaysa Production, seliing & distribution of 50,00 50.00
comstruclion & bulldng materials
Sraats Cament Sdn D, Malaysia Production and seles ol cement 98,04 Snm
Syparme Cononete P, Lid * Singapore irmeestmient halding BE.GL 56
Tugas Sejahilera Sdn. Bhd Malaysa Ivestmend holding 98.04 S8.03
¥TL Cement [Cambodia) Hoidings Singapore Darmarnt 98.04 SR.03
Pie, Lid®
¥TL Cement Enterprise Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Irvesimien holding 98.04 QR0
¥TL Cement [Hong Kong) Limited® Hang Kong Investment helding 9804 0803
¥TL Cement Marbating Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Sale & marketing of cementitious products S804 QR03
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Dtz of the subsidiaries ae &5 folkowsc- (contd)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Hameo of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities ¥ L]
Held through YTL Cement Berhad:
{cont'd.)
YL Cement Marketing Singapon Singaponn Sale L matketing of comont, comentitions DELDE 90,03
Pie, Lyd* products & other rolated condtruction
peoducts
YTL Cement Myanmar Comgany Myanmar Manufacture & =ae of ordnary portland  98.04 98,03
Limnitest* cament & redated products
YTL Cement [Myanmar) Haldings Singapare Inastiment halding GB.04 0e.03
P Lid.*
YTL Cement (Phlippines] Holdings Singapore Drarrmaant S804 98,03
Pre. Lid.*
YIL Cement (Sabah) Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Imestment holding, manufacture and sale SE.04 9H.03
of ardinary portiand cement & blended
cement
YTL Ceminil Shared Serwios Sdn, Bho* Malaysia Accounting shared services, and [7: K5 TRAE
managemeant consulting services
YTL Cement Singepote Phe, Ltd” Singapore iwestiment haliling 90.04 98.03
Y7L Cement Terminagl Services Singapore Operation of port ferminal ke handling of  SE.04 9A.03
Pre. Lid.* cementitious produrts
YTL Cement (Vietnam) Pte. Lid.*® Singapore Imestment holding 98.04 98.03
YTL Corciete (5] Pie. Lid® Singapore Manufaciure of ready-mixed concrete, S804 98.03
wholiesale of structural day & conirete
e oducts B mixed comstruction activitles
YTL Promis Sos Bhd, Malaysia Trading of busldng matorlals & related 98,04 98.03
SOnCEs
Zhejiang Hargehou Dama Cament The People’s Manufactre & sae of ordeary portland - 98.03
Co. Ltd* Republic af China cement, dinker and related products
Zhajiang VTL Cemant Markiting This Peaphe's talp b maikating of cementibous products DELDA  0HO3
Lo, Lid Republic of China
Held thraugh YTL Charters
Sdn. Bhd.:
Island Alr Sdn. Bhd, Malayzia Chartering of aircrafts 80,00 BO,00
Musantara Sakm Sdn. Bhid Malaysia Camiage ol passengers & alr camiers B0.00 B0.00
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15. INVESTMENT IM SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of ihe subsidiaries are as follows:- (contid.)
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Name of Company Incorporation Principal Activities Yo W
Held through ¥TL e-5olutions.
Berhad:
Alrpod Sendces Sdn, Bhd, Malmysia nactive SE.00 55,00
Alrped Broachand Sin. Bhd. Malaysia Prowsding wired line & wirdess roachand 7000 70,00
Intemet aocess senices & developing,
producing. marketing, selling &
malntaining sof tware applications,
research & developrent, censilancy &
relatid senvies
Bizsurf MSC Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Inactive 60.00 G000
infoscrmen Netwarks Lid" England & Wales  Imvestment holding 100.00 10000
Propertyhle thsia [Malaysia) Sdn, Bhd Malaysa Inactive 100.00 10000
¥TL Infa Screen Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Creating, praviding advertising contert. 100,00 100.00
medis wobh media & up o dale
inlcrmatan vid clectrenic media
Yax Sdn, Bhi Malaysia Inactive 100,00 10000
W M Notwodkes Sdr. Bhd Malaysia Provadding computer nubwarking & rolated 60,00 G0.00
Informaton technology services
¥ M Solutions Holdings Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Imeestment holding 100,00 10000
Held through ¥TL (Guemsey)
Limited:
¥TL Constretian (SA) [Propoistary) Sonitli Africa Irartivie - [[iadie]
Lt
Held through ¥TL Hospitality REIT
("YTL REIT"):
Starhill Hospltalty (Australla) Pry. Lid ® Barstralla Trustee compary 56.96 56.95
Starhill Howpitaity REIT (Ausiralia) Australia Redl gstata investment 56,95 56.95
Trust*
Staihill Hospilaity REIT (Brisbane) Austrafia Hisat! gslale ives it 56.96 56.95
Trarse*
Starhill Hospitalty REIT (Melbowne) Australia Rieal estate mvestment 56.95 56.95
Trust*
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15, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Catails of the subsidlanies e &5 fallowss: (Contd.)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Hame of Company Incarporation Principal Activities L %
Held thraugh YTL Hospitality REIT
{"YTL REIT"):
Starhil Hispitality RET [Sydinoy) Australia Rl patate irvestment 56.96 56,95
Trust*®
Starhill Hiespitality REFT [Austradia) Malaysia ivestment holding 56.96 56,95
Edn, Bihd.
Starhill Hotal {Australia) Sdn. Shd. Malaysla Imestment halding 56.96 56.95
Searhil Hotel (Brisbane) Pry, Lid* Augstralia Hated cpertor 56.96 56,95
St il Hoel (Miloumne) Pry, Lid* ALt lralia Hated operatod 56.96 56,95
Starhill Hotal (Sydneay) Py, Ltd* Australia Hatel oparator 56.96 56485
Starhil REIT [Australia) Pry, Lid= Australia Trustes company 56.96 56,95
Starhill REIT Niseko Gic* |apan Purchasa, poassession, deposal lease snd 56.96 56.95
managemeant af real properies
YTL REIT MTN Sdn, B, Malaysa Ta urdertake the istuance of medium torm 56,56 56,95
naes
Held throwgh YTL Hotels &
Proporties Sdn, Bhd.:
Autndome Sdn. Bhd Malaysla Operator of food & beverage outlets & 100000 10000
sub-letting of promises
Bath Hoel & 584 BW.* Hetherlands Investmant hl.'llrﬂnl; 100.00 10000
Hathi Hntal and SPA Limited* Fodlanid b Walss Hatnsl dovilapar and operator 100.00 10000
Barmen Cosmeceutical Sdn Bhd. Malaysia Dewvelmament of holiday resors 90.00 90.00
Barmen siand Willas Sdn. B, Malaysia Darrman B0,00 B0,00
Cameron Highlands Resort Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Heated B reson opedator 100,00 10000
Deamrond Aecipe Sdn. B, Malaysia Dperstor of food & beverage outkat 10000 10000
Elite Dinning Sdn. Bhd" Malaysia Operator of food & beverage outlat - 100,00
Gansborough Hotel (Bath) Limited® England & Wales  Hotel operations 10000 10000
Casshouse Hotel [Caymar] Limitad® Cayman islands  Invastment holding 10000 10000
Glasshouse Hotel Limited® England ks Wales  Investment halding 10000 10000
Happy Steatiboal Sdin. Bhd. Maldysia I i 100.00 10000
Magna Bruindary Scin. fihd Malaytia Hatel & msort operatne 90,00 an.nn
Marhle Valley Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Managerient & nvestmant hokding 20.00 a0.00
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15. INVESTHMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of ihe subsidiaries are as follows:- (contid.)
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L L
Held through ¥YTL Hotels &
Properties Sdn. Bhd,: {cont'd.)
Marbile Valley Two Sdn. Bhi Malaysia Hial aperator 64,00 B4.00
M Hatel Managemdnt Plo Ld.* Singapare Hotil sianadgemsant son ik Ci.00 S0
Monkey sland Propediies Limited* England & Wales  Invesiment & propeny hoiding 100,00 10200
e Architec e (Beay) Limited® England & Wales  Hovel aparator 100.00 10000
Nisekn Village KK apan Owning, managing, mainiaining and 100,00 10000
e loping the Nisekd Villege Resart
Misekn Village (S) Pte Lid™ Singapore Imeestment halding 100,00 10000
NV, Land &' apan Comstretion, development, sale & punchrse 100000 10000
of real properties
P.T. pepun Bl Indjcarsar il Mananing fe aperatng a hotel 100,00 (0000
Restoran Kisap Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Inactive 100.00 10000
RW Cowar Stoea Limited® Engfand & Wales  Hotel opurator 10000 10000
W Creenside Mace Limited® England & Wales  Hotel operiator 100.00 10000
Rw Threadneedie Street Limitod* England & Wales  Hotel operator 100.00 (0200
Samul Hoted 2 Co,, Lid* Thailand Hotel aperatar 100.00 10000
Sarul Park Kol Contre Sdn, Bhd. Malmysia Breeders, whalesalers, retailers & 100.00 10000
distriutors of kot fish
Staildll Hobed [Peithy Py, Lk Astralia Truslite Compidry 100.00 ([t n ]
Starhill Hoted [Ferth) Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Invesiment holding 100,00 10000
Starhill Hotel [Perth) Trust® Australia Rinal estade investment 100.00 10000
Siarhill Hotel Dperator (Perth) Pry, Lbd.® Australia Hotel aperatar 100,00 10000
Starhill Ofice (Perth) Py, Lid" Aastridia Trusteo compary 100.00 10000
Statill Retal (Peitl) Py, Lid Barstralia Trustes comparmy 100.00 10000
Star Hill Hotal Scn Bhd, Malaysia Hotal aparatar 106000 00
Thermae Development Company England & Wales  Lience to operate the Themnae Bath S5pa 100000 10000
Limated* coamphrg
Threadnepdbes Hated Limited* England & Wales Ireestmiend holding 100.00 | {wwi ]
¥TI. Hevitage Hotois Sdn Bhd, Malaysia Diarmuart 100,00 10000
¥TL Hotels B! Nethertands IrmeesTmies halding 10:0.00 Lieli i
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Dtz of the subsidiaries ae &5 folkowsc- (contd)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Hama of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities % %
Held through ¥TL Hotels &
Properties Sdn, Bhd.: (cont'd.)
¥iL Hotets [Layman) Limited' Layman tsfands  Hotel operator & hotel management 100000 10000
SOVIES
¥TL Hotets Contral Servces Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Dicarrraant 100,00 10000
YL ICHM Sdn, Bhi Malaysia Providing prafessional & commergial 70,00 TOL00
education & training in ospitalty
YTL Hotets [Singapare) Pt Ltd* Singapong Travel and hospitakity related business 10000 10000
YTL Majestic Hotel Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Hated operator 10000 10000
Held through ¥TL Industries
Berhad:
Yeah Tiong Lay Brickwods Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Inesc thva 10000 10000
Yeoh Tiong Lay Manasgement Son. Bnd “alaysia Management and other seriies 100,00 10000
Held through YTL Land Sdn, Bhd.:
Katagresn Development Sdn Bhd Malaysia Property leasing and management 100.00 10000
Pirtar Prodek Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Management of real estate investment  T0.00 000
trust funids, lieensing of trademarks &
Ibrand management
Puncak Serunding Sdn. Ghd, Malaysia Darrmant 10000 10000
Hivitage oy Son Bhd. Halaysia Oparator of Pood and biwerage 100,00 10000
YTL Deshgn Sendces Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Dormant 10000 10000
Held through ¥YTL Land &
Development Berhad:
Amanresorts Son Bhd. Malay=ia Droarmant 96.64 96,60
Bayumiqu Development Sdn. Bhed Malaysia Property developmen 9664 96,60
Budayq Bersatu Sdn. Brd. Malaysia Froperty development BE6.64 O/ED
Emarald Hectlares Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Darmant 67.65 BT G2
Lakedioin Pre. Lwl® Slrpajol e Riral estate deveiopiieiil 9664 O6.60
Lot Ten Saurity Sen. Bhd Makaysia Inactien 96.64 9660
Mayang Sari Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Inaclive 96.64 96,60
Moriwasa Sdn. Bnd. Malaysia Dormant 96.64 96,60
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15. INVESTHMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of ihe subsidiaries are as follows:- (contid.)
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L L
Held through ¥TL Land &
Development Berhad: (cont'd.)
Pakatan Perakbina Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Property develoomant 96.64 96,60
Prnacke Toand Sdn. Bk, Maliy=id Property dovalopment and property 9,64 0660
imyestmient
FYP Sendirdan Berhad Malaysli Property disveioqimnent 96,64 9660
Sandy kland Pre. Lid.* Singapore Real estate development 96,64 96.60
Catis SEwira S Bhd, Malayaia Drrrart 96.G4 .60
Santl Raya Sdn. Bhi Malaysa Property davelopment and property 9664 96,60
irvpsTment
Sartul Raya Colf Club Berhad Malaysia Inactive 96,64 96.60
Sertil Raya Oty Sdn Bhid Malmysla Proporty divelanmin 96.64 96.60
Santul Park Managament Sdn Bhd, Malaysia Park maragemant 96.64 96,60
Spectacylar Comer Sn. Bhd Malaysin Darmart 96,64
S8 Property Managemant Sdn. Bhd Malaysa Prowisian of propecty management serviees 96.64 S6.60
Syarikat Memajuan Perumahan Negara Mualaysia Property disselopment 96,64 96,60
Sdn. Bhi,
Tronil ACTs Scn. i Malaysa Froperty diveopinent 96.64 S6.60
Udapakat Bina Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Property deselopmernt 96.64 96.60
¥TL Latwd B Davadapmmend (MM2H) Malaysii Esriirdiil 96,64 9660
Sdn. Bhi
¥TL Lared B Developmaent Management Singapore Provision of financial and management 9664 96,60
P, Lid* consultancy senvices
¥TL Wastwood Proparties Pre. Led* Singapare Real estate devaloprant : 96.60
Heid through YTL Power
International Barhad
["YTL Power"):
Alhion Water Limited® Englnd & Wales  Water supply and wirste water senvices 5557 cale
Bel Alr Den Hasg Beheer BV Netherands Imvestment hoiding 46,04 a4575
Brabaron Estates Lmited Englind & Walet  Darmari LE5T 5521
By, Hoel Bal Al Den Haag*® Methelands Hote] Dusness 46.04 #45.75
Cefular Structures Sdn. Bhd.” Malaysia Inactive 33.34 313
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Dtz of the subsidiaries ae &5 folkowsc- (contd)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Hame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities W £
Held thraugh YTL Power
International Berhad
{"YTL Power”): (cont'd.)
Deals At Brabaron Management England ke Wales  Domant 55.57 -
Compary Limited'
Enterprise Laundry Sendces Limlted® England & Wales  Laundry services 55.57 521
Eauinix Solae Fasm Sdn. Biwd, Malaysia Development. ownership. oparation and 5557 55.21
mantenancs of solar phatovaltalc power
plants and related angin@ering,
procurement, construction and
commissioning senvices
Extiva Cammunications Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Inactivee 33.34 3313
{uinder Member's Yoluntary
Winding-Ugp)*
Fippsr Limited* England & Wales LNty switching senvices. 3612 3559
FrogAsia Sdm Bhd Malaysia License resedler Necused on prowding vinual 55.57 55.21
learmiryg education platform
Fiug Education Limited* Edigjlanil B Wales  Sales o e education market and funbies 38.30 3006
devidocpment of the wel environmeng
product
Frog Edication Group Lmited® Englamd B Wales  Investmant halding 38.30 ID0E
Frog Education Sdn. Bhd Malayzia License reseller focused on prowiding viriual 38,30 30,06
Nt edim atianal plationm
Canara FY (5} Pte, Lid* Sirgapors Electric wehicls charging s1ation 5L.57 5621
Capnartn Limitod® England B \Wales Fond witdte Wes|mesn 55.57 521
Genaca (South West) Limited™ England & Wales  Food waste treatment 55.57 56.21
Clotiad Infrastrusture Assels Scn, Bh. Malaysia IS tmnt halding I8.90 £5.21
Crailte Irvestments (Cayman fubas) Cayman lslands Duoiriiaan 55.57 55.21
Lisnigeal’
KIS Abunan Sdn. Bhd." Malaysia Imestment holding £3.34 £3.19
Konsortum janngan Selamgor Malaysia Panning implementation and maintenance 33,34 3113
Sdn, Bhd.® of talecommunication towers and

telecommimication related senices
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15. INVESTHMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of ihe subsidiaries are as follows:- (contid.)
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L L
Held through YTL Power
International Berhad
{"¥TL Power”): (cont'd.)
Nanigator AT Brabagon Managoment Engiand & Wales  Darmarit 55.57
Campany Limted'
PeircSeiaya Pre. Lid Singapare Tank leasing and sales of fued oll 5557 5521
P.T. YTL Harta ndonesia’ Inlorsasia Industrial estate 5554
BT ¥TL [ Timur ® Indoarsia Construction managemaent, consuitancy  BS.0L 54.66
services amd power station oparation
SRIVCES
PT.YTL Poswies Seervives Inconesia’ Il bial Dapmant 52,79 5245
BT, Tanjung Jatl Power Company* Indlonesia Design and constrection of a coal-fired 44,46 4417
piwar gonarating faciity
Seraya Energy and Imeestment Singapore Imeestment holding 5557 55.21
Ple, L
Saraya Bnangy Pte. Lid* Singapare Sale of electricty 5557 5521
5C Technology Deutschiand Gmbk* Gisrmaty Watte treatment 5557 5521
5C Technology GmbH* Switzerdand investment holding 5557 5521
SC Technology Mederland BW.* Nathertands WasT oAt 55.57 5521
SIPF Powrer Sdn, Bho Malaysa Darmart 38.90 3865
Suna Salar Farm Sdn Bhd, Malaysia Davwlopenant, awneesnlp, operation and 5557 5521
maintenance of salar photovoitaic powar
plants and related engineering
procuroment, construction and
commissanng servicas
Taser Pawer P, Lid.* Singapore Generation and sales of slectricity 55.57 5521
‘Water 2 Busiress Limited® England & Wales  Non-household wialer rataller 3i8.590 -
Wessex Concierge Limited® Englond B Wales  Imvesiment helding 5557 55.21
Tumbull Infrastructure & Lilkties England & Wales  Engineenng semices 55.57 5521
Limsited (Formerly known a5 Wessex
Enginearing & Construction Senvices
Limmated)®
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Dtz of the subsidiaries ae &5 folkowsc- (contd)

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Hame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities W £
Held thraugh YTL Power
International Berhad
{"YTL Power”): (cont'd.)
Wirssa Water Enginaing Sondces England B Wales  Dormmant 55.57 55.21
Lienigest®
Wessey Water Enterprises Limlited® England & Wales  Power generatsan snd waste treatment 55.57 521
Westax Waler (ntemational Limitad' Cayman Islands Diirriiasnt 55.57 55.21
Wirsoe Waler Limited® England & Wales  Imaerstment halding 55.57 55.21
Wessax Water Pension Scheme Trustee  England b Wales  Domant 55.57 5521
Limitest’
Wesax Water Senvices Finance Pie® Englamd ke Walas  lsue of bonds BE.57 55.21
Weste Waler Senvices Limited® England f Wales  Water supply and waste waler services 55.57 £5.21
Wessey Wiler Trustee Company Englamd & Wales  Dormant 55.57 55.21
Limnitesd’
Wtz Uity Salutions Limind* England ke Wales  Enginearing sarvices 5557 55.21
Yakin Telese! Sdn. Brad ® Malaysia Flarmning, deseofimsnt, implementation and 16.34 1623
managemant of Teletommunications
infrastructure and information
ammunication technaogies serices
Yesiine Sdn. Bhd, Malaytia Inartivee 33.34 3313
¥TL Arena [Filoi) Limited! England k& Wales  Doirmant 55.57 -
YTL Arena Holdings Limited England ke Wales  imvestmant halding 5557 -
YTL Arena Limited” England f Wales  Dormant 55.57 -
YTL Broadband 5dn. Bhd Malaysia Pravision of wited line and wireless £6.67 2650
broadband access and other refated
LS
YTL Commairdcations ntermatonal Cay'man Isiands Ivastment holiting 33.34 3313
Lismizg’
YTL Commamications Sdn. Bad Malaysia Prowision af wired line and wireless  33.34 3313
roadband acoess and ovher refated
Vi
YTL Commaunications (5) Pre. Led® Singapors Computer systems integraton activites.  33.34 3113

and system enlogration sonses
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15. INVESTHMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of ihe subsidiaries are as follows:- (contid.)
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities L L
Held through YTL Power
International Berhad
{"¥TL Power”): (cont'd.)

¥TL Davlopmaents (LK) Lanitod* Engiand B Wales  Housing deviopmont 55.57 5521
¥TL Digital Capitad Sdr, Bhd" Malaysia Irvesiment halding 55,57
YT Diginad 5n. Bl Malaysia nactive 33.34 EENE]
¥TL Education (LK) Limited' England & Wales  Dormart 55.57 5524
¥TL Eregy Hoklings Sda. Bh, Malarysia rvestrmen holding S5E5T 5521
¥TL Engineening Limited" England & Wales  Dormant 55.57 5521
¥TL Events Limited* Englnd & wWales  Conoert framation 55.57 5521
¥TL Finance (Cyprus) Lid* Cyprs Financlal services 55.57 5521
¥TL Global Networks Limited! Cayman klands  Darmant 33.34 EERE
¥TL Homes Lid * England & Wales  Housing development 55.57 5521
¥T1. iInfrastrurtirs Hokdings Sdn. B, Malaywia Irvestmiend haolding BE.57 5521
¥TL Infrastructure Limited! Cayman Blands  Imeestment holding 55.57 55.21
TTL jwwin Emengy BUY, Nethesrtands Inwestment hoiding. financing and 55.57 5521

management services
¥TL s O ks M Holdings BV, Nothedandy Investment halding and managamant L5557 5521

SenviEs
WTL frwun O Fe M Holdings Limdled® Cyjmus it Ialcang 5557 |
¥TL jowa Power BV, Mathertands Investment holding and managemant .75 31.55

SEVRES
¥TL jpwa Power Finance Limited Cayman islands  Financlal services 55.57 5521
YL fawia Power Holdings B, Netherands Irvstmient oldng 375 4155
¥TL jowa Power Holdngs Limited*® Cyprus Imeestment holding & financing activities 55.57 5521
¥TL. Jardan Pdwar Holdings Limined* Cypius Irvestmel holding & firancing activities 55,57 55.21
¥TL jordan Services Holdings Limited* Cypnis Imeestment holding 55.57 5521
YTL Land & Propedty (%) Lid~ England & Walis  imeestiment halding 55.57 5521
¥TL Places Limited' England & Wales  Darmart 5557 5571
¥TL. Power Awrstralia Limited Cayman mlands Irmeesiment holding EE.57 5521
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

Dtz of the subsidiaries ae &5 folkowsc- (contd)

EDINETOOOO
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Hama of Company

Held through YTL Power
International Berhad
{"YTL Power”): [cont'd.)
YTL Poweirr Finanoe (Cayenan) Limined
YTL Powoer Generaton Sdn, Bhd,*

YTL Pawer Holdngs San. Bhd.
YTL Powir Invostmonts Limited

YTL Power Intermational Holdings
Limitest’

YTL Power Resoirces Sdn. Bhd
YTL PivweerSeraya Pie, Limited.*

¥TL Power {Thailznd) Limited'

YTL Pawer Tradng [Labuan) Lid,
YIL Property Holdings [UK) Limited®
YL Serays Limined’

YTL Servives Limitad'

YTL SIPP Pawer Holdings Sdn. Bhd,
TTL Uhiitees Limnited

YL Uniimies Finance Limited”

YTL LHilities Finance 2 Limited

YTL Uniiviess Firance 3 Lirited'
¥TL Liiithes Finance 4 Limited"
YTL Lhifities Finance 5 Lirited'
¥TL Lhiites Finance & Limited
¥TL Lhifities Finance 7 Limited”

¥TL CORPORATION DERMAD

Place of
Incarporation

Caymuan Isiands
Malaysia

Malaysia
Cayman |siands
Cayman Islands

Malaysia
Singapone

Cayman tslands
Malaysia
England b Wales
Cayman Islands
England ke Wales
Malaysia
Cayman Isiands
Layman siands
Cayman Islands
Cayiman Islards
Cayman lsiands
Cayman |slands
Cayman sands
Cayman Islanids

Principal Activities

Dearrmant

Developing, constructing, completing,
inautalning and operating power Kants

Diirriiasnt

innerstment holting

Investiment holding

Imnvastmant halding

Own and operate enedgy taciites ard
simvices (full vanse chain of electricity
generation includng trading of physical
Twels and fusl related deflvatlye
mstruments, tank keasing actiities and
sale of by-protucts from the eleciricity
gEiealion pocess)

Dermant

Drarrmiaent

Howwng developmeant
inspstiment holding
Dourant.
Irvairstimsant halding
imestment holding
Impestment halding
irestiment holiting
Finandal sendes
Financial sendces
I Thve

Fimancial senrdces
N tive

463/616

Effective Equity
Interest
2021 2020
% %
5557 5521
5557 552
ESE7 552l
S5.57 55.21
5557 552l
E5E7 5
S5.57 55.21
5557 55
55.57 5521
55.57 252
G587 5521
EsE7  feam
I|moa0  I06s
5557 %521
A
S55.57 5521
5557 5521
55.57 5521
E557 5521
55.57 55.21
E5E7 552l
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15. INVESTHMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Details of the subsitanies are as follows:- (contid)
EHqﬂiun-;:ﬁtj_
Interest
Place of 2021 2020

Name of Company Incorporation Principal Activities L W
Held through ¥TL Power

International Berhad

{"YTL Power"): (cont'd.)
¥TL Utilities Hodkdings Limied' Caymman slands Irrepstmient holding 5557 5521
¥TL Utilities Holdings {5) Mo, Limited® Singapore Imeestment holding 5557 5521
YT Uiiities {5) Pre, Limited* Singapore IrvesTmen halding 5557 5521
¥TL Utilities (LK) Limited* England & Wales  Investment holding 55.57 5521
Held through YTL Power Services

Sdn. Bhd.:
¥TL Power Services [Cayman) L' Cayman islands  Inactive 100.00 10000
N¥TL Powinr Sorvices [Lot) SARL® Labanen Operatsan b maintenance of power station. 10000 10000
¥TL Power Services [5) #e. Lid.* Singapore Operation & maintenance of power station 100000 10000
Held through YTL Singapore

Pta, Ltd:
Guengrhou Autodome Food & Beverage  The People's Inactive 100.00 10000

Management Co. Lod*® Republik of Thina
shanghal Autodome Food & Beverage The People's Inartive 100.00 10000

Co. Ld* Fpubilic of Chinis

* Gibakfores raf Gualtiod by WL Liv Luvs Chewy PLT

Déssafvea durng the financial yoo

(TS oy ovthey oy iten of of STAfeandy neuiriT fa Se ouckTed

T Dunkted finonc! Hotemenss n S22

Frevimaly wes @ sulmifiny ond Beoome 0 oia! venfure dening e firancal yeor
Commoncod winding i on 17 August 2057
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

{a) Acguisition of subsidiaries
(i) Acgquisition of Fico Tay Ninh Cement joint Stock Company

On 2 August 2012, Concrete St Limited ("Concrete Star™) and industdal Procurement Limited ((Incustrial Procurement’),
Lagh are wholhy-cned Subsidiories of ¥TL Cemrent (Hang Kong] Limited which in tem is a wholly-owned subsitiany of
the Company, acquired 30% and A0% of lssued and pald-up share capital of Mhu Anh iInvestment joint Stock Company
[N ARCY Comgutsing 69,000 and 45,000 ontinary shares af WND10,000 each for Cash conskieraton of VNDO2TE 400,000,000
ard WMD] B85 600,000,000 respeciively, AS 3 resuit, Nhi Ah became an indrect subsickany of -t Compary,

Fafowing the aqusition, Fico Tay Ninh Cement jaint Stock Comgany (Foo Tay Ninh Cement®] and 115 subsidary. Fico
Bird Mg Cement Sangla Mamber Limited Liakilty Company becams mdeact <ubdidianies af the Company thmogh the
sharshplcings by Mt Anh and Industrial Prooursmant

Duatails af thi cormxderation Tramifaned s as follows:

RMOOO0

Furchase considesation 5178
Lirkis Shunfo af mel 455015 acuined

Fair value of net assats atquied 655448

Share to non-controding Inberests [141.450)

513,098

Frovisional goodwill 201180

¥TL CORPORATION DERMAD
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15, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)

(2] Acquisition of subsidiaries (cont'd.)
(I} Acquisition of Fico Tay NMinh Cement joint Stock Company [cont'd.)

Thie provisionally deteamingd 1ali vaues ol the assets and lalilites as sl e date of aoquisition are as ol -

Falr value
RM000
Progerty, plant and equipmsant 333,283
Intengitile assels 1.394
Irvestment in assocated company arz
Other vestmeants 1802491
Defermed tay assets a2
IFta e 40,539
Aecefvatles 24,973
Cash and cash eguivalants 101640
Other sty I6 A2
Payables and accrued Bxpanses [66,659)
IdeAitifiable ol assets soquired BA5, 448
Detais of cash flow arising from the acquisiion ane as falkews:-
RMO00
Purthase comideration NsiM\
Transfer of cost of investment i former assodiates now became subsidiaries [632515)
Adcitional punchase condideration B2.G663
Liss: cash and canh eguivalenis in subsiiany scguied {100, 6400
Megusition of a subsidary, net of cash aoguired la977y
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15. INVESTHENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
{b) Disposal of subsidiaries
(i) Zhejlang HangZhou Dama Cement Co. Lid.

On 27 Aprill 2021, ¥TL Cement (Hong Kong] Limited, 4 wholly-owned subsidiary of YTL Cement Berhad (“WTL Cement)
disposed it GE0O00000 ordnay shares, representing 100% e equity inteast in Zhajlang Hangtou Dama Cement
Co, Lid {Dama Cement’) for a total cash consideration af CNYES3 milion. As a result af the disposal, Dama Cement
eased (o be subrsidiary of YTL Cement (Hong Kong) Limited and indiect subssdiary of YTL Cemant and the Comgany,

Detalls af the dispasal and the nst cash Tlow on disposal were a5 follows:-

At date of
disposal
RM OO0
Froperty. plant and equipment 66,741
Right-of-use as5ets .819
lintaii bler assals 18,788
Defened tax ansels 6551
Inwentories 40,373
Retehables 65,900
Cash and cash equisalents &4,353
Oaher assets G497
Payables and coiued oxpensis 14.689)
Income tax liabilities {2.286)
NHat assats disposad 253,741
Transaction costs nourmed 5H,R20
Cain on dsposal 1o the Group 257620
Total proceeds consideration 555,981
Todal proeeds (onsiteration 60,081
Less: Expenses paid [35,821)
Lizsss Retembon (2, 455)
Met proceeds from disposal 505,661
Cash and caszh equiealents disposed (B4.353)
Met cash inflow to the Group en disposal 441,308
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15. INVESTHMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
(b} Disposal of subsidiaries (cont'd.)
(i) ¥TL Westwood Properties Pte. Ltd.

On 28 pung 2021 ¥TL Land & Development Bemad (YTL LandT), 4 subsidary of the Comgrany disposed its 1,000,000
oninary shars, iprosanting 1005 of equity interest in YTL westwood Properties Pue, Lid, ("YTL Wiestwood”) Tor a total
cash consideration of SGO36T milion {aporcaimately AH11.34 million). As a result of the disposal, Y7L Westwood ceased

1o he subsickary of ¥TL Land and indirect subsidlary of 1he Company,

Detals of the dsposal and the net cash flow on disposal were as toliows:-

At date of

disposal

RMDOO

Aight-of 1fe assets 100
Irvetaries 946598
RerLirhyadilis F4.233
Cash anid cash equivalents 25,268
Payables and aicrued expanses [65%,601)
Barrowings {526,749
Lease labilites 113
Mot labikres divpeted {140,270
Recbassilication of Toreign exhange reserve 1,582
Neet diiporial proceeds (1.243)
Gain on disposal to the Group [150.021)
Procesds from disposal 11243
Liess: othar teceivadle {253
Procesds received from disposal 3,000
Cash and cash equivalents dispered (25,267
Het cash outflow to the Group on disposal (22178
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15. INVESTHENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
{c) Derecognition of SGREIT

Curlivg the year 2020, The Group hae provided an undertaking bo e trustes of SCRETT 1o giant e olher witholders the
Aght 10 endorse o re-andarse 1he appointment of diectons of YTL Starkel Chatsl RET Management Limited a1 e annmal
general meetings of SGREIT. The Growo has detenmined that il does not have cantrol over SGRET but continues to have
sinificant influence over e InVesTmeant

Letails of the derecognition and the net cash Tiow on derecognition wene as follows:-

At date of
disposal
RMDO0
Property, plant and equipment B0
Ireeiment proparties 9244013
Righi-of-use assets 2030
Trade and other receivabiles 45571
Cerivative financial instruments 2,345
Cash ard cash éguivalents 245,871
Trade and other payatdes 1219,235)
Bonds and bosrewings [3.493.431)
Lease llabiitos [2053)
Defemed fax Iabadtias (19,34E6)
Cervative financial imstruments (o 814)
Imeom tax okt (9,530)
MNet assets and liabilities BLAT
Share of net assets terecognition of 2108700
Fareign exthange reseng [hb, Fal)
Gt on defecognition of the Group 250,506
Total consideration/recognition an associate company 2111528
Tha met cash Nows on derecognition is detemined as follows:-
Cash and cash equivalents denecogrised (245.871)
Cash outflow to the Group on derecognition [245,671)
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15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
[d} Non-contrelling interests in subsidiaries
Thie Gioup's subsidiaries that e matedial non-oontioling interests ("NCT) are 45 Tolows!-
Other
HMalayan  Individually
¥TL Power YTL REIT Coment immaterial
Group Group Berhad  subsidiaries Total
RMO0D RM000 RM'DOO RM'DO0 RM'000
Group - 2021
NCT affoctive aquity inleest 44 43% 43.04% 31,399
Carrying amount of KO 2,148,225 BRA, 359 341,890 369,972 3,549,476
Prodif aflseated 8o N1 571,591 25,290 1.862 7.527 606270

Summarsed financal Information before inter-company ebmination are a5 folows:

As at 30 June 2021

Mon-cusrent assets 38,217,030 4,722,499 2,947,059
Current ansets 13,857,205 149,375 J11.630
Masi-cusront Kibiltios [ILB34.534) (201L461)  (440,720)
Current liatalites {7.332.376) {155,10:94) [BGT.482)
Mt asseTs 12.907.425 2705319 2.541.469
Year ended 30 June 2021

Aevanua 10,784,730 326,276 1,369,508
(Lo=skProfit for the year {103.128) 82,830 12230
Total comprehensina intome 1218977 220,384 13.192
Cash Now fram operating activities 1,329,362 98,349 B3.156
Gl Dhorww s iy vy e Bt (1,126.263) {1.541) [33,165)
Cash fhow tromiused in) Financing acthities 1.072.823 {142,007) 13,763
Mot changes in cash and cash equivilents 1275922 (45, 159) ET754
Dividend paid to B 7La91 33,642 -
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15. INVESTHENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
{d) Mon-controlling interests in subsidiaries {cont'd.)

The Griup's sutsiliaties sl have material son-contmolling @nerests (N0 & 45 follown:- {tontd.)

Other
Malayan  individually
YTL Power SGREIT YTL REIT Cement  immaterial
Group Group Group Berhad subshdiaries Tatal
RMOOB0 RM'O0D RM'000 RM'DO0 AM'DO0 RMO00
Group - 2020
NI effectivn equity inforest 44.79% -2 4205% 2454%
Camying amourt of NI 1AB4. 204 - £85 M1 20172 0455 1149583
Prefit/{Loss) allscated tn MO {21,527} 24605 13.2%6 EALIS) &4 /32 13534

Summartsed financiad information before inter-company elimnation are as folloss::

As an 30 fune 2020

Kon-tument Jssels F 585632 - 4499243 A044,454
Current assaty 11452503 - 194,253 SHG.TET
N cuirent Rabdities {25 A1B,E61) . (2DITAEA) (243,107)
Correntt babiktios [3E78,720) - (100173 [L095,705)
ft assis 12042754 . 2355893 2291343
Year andad 30 june 2020

Resveniue 10637177 435212 AFGALE E390475
Profit(loss) for the year 127,704 14354 G554 1133.135]
Tatal comprethansive (iess)intome [130.851) E L (668111 134,534)
Cash Tlow From aperating a2ty 1121786 H2EN6 185,381 BIES
Cash Mow usind 0 imeesting acthlins (L3I7.557) (F4.709) (B,624) [24,781]
Cazh Plow used i financing afthites [I2E.07E) [200.991) [184.305) [A9.64T)
Nat changes in cash and cash equivalents  (T24.247) 25,5906 {7,548 19,333
Dividand paid 1o NCI 17LET 138,455 43,235
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16. INVESTHMENT IN ASSOCIATES
Group Company
2021 020 2021 2020
RM00O0 RM'0O00 RMODO RMO00
Quoted shares, at cost 2,136,563 2111715 358,780 170,994
Uniuinted anfinary shanes, at eost 1,329,763 1.324 168 205,241 205,241
Share of Post-3CIRISITON FESEVES B43.574 B4t - -
Accumidated impaimment losses (66.826) |21 -
4,243,074 4. 716843 564,021 376,235
Dhetails of the Maooiate oo a5 fallaws
E?lﬂilll Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Mame of Company Incarporation  Principal Activities L W
Hald by the Company:
Expross Rail Link Sdn. Bhd.* Malaysia Operation & maintenance of the Exprass 45,00 45,00
Rail Link ralkwiy system between Kuala
Lurnpas Intesmatiansl Airpart and Cusls
Lurmpur IMlemationa Alrport 2 in Sapang
with Kuala Lumgis Sentral S1ation
Trand:Palilic Rpsorts S4n. Bhd Maliytia Inactivie 50.00 50,00
Held through Business & Budget
Hotels Sdn. Bhd.:
Business & Budiget Hotels (Kuantan] Malaysia Hotel operator 50,00 50,00
Tdn Bhd,
Held thraugh Syarikat Pembenasn
Yeoh Tiong Lay 5dn. Bhd.:
Narth South Development San. End. Malaysia Realty, vestment & maragement senvioes 49,00 4900
Held through YTL Cayman Limited:
¥TL {Thailand) Limtad® Thiatland Irmeestmient hilding 49.90 4990
Starhill Chabal Real Estate investmant Singapare Irmeestment in prima real estate 37.08 3574
Touse®
Held threugh YTL Cement Berhad:
Cementitious Products Pe. Lid® Singapore General wholesale trade (inciuding general  48.02 49,01

IMpartess and exporiers)
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16. INVESTMENT IN ASSDCIATES (CONT'D.)

Detaids of the associate are as Tollows - (contd )

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2021 2020
Hame of Company Incarporation Principal Activities % %
Held thraugh YTL Cement Berhad:
{cont'd.)
Hanigehom Linan Hevun Construction The People'y Quarry tusinerss, B related servioes. 29.41 29.41
Materats Co. Lid* Republic of China
Superdh Apgregates Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Extracticn, removal, processing & sale af 49,02 4901
sand
Tan Son Company Limited® Vietmam Quarrying of stone, sand & iy £0.58 2058
Held through ¥TL e-Solutions
Berhad:
Enclless Momentum Sdn Bhd,® Malaysia Ivestment holding 30.00 30,00
Held through ¥TL Hotols &
Properties Sdn, Bhd.:
Eastorm & Oriontal Expross Ltd Bermuda Dwmership & management of the lusury 32,00 2040
train services mown as the Eastem &
Orlental Expresy
Surin Bay Company Led. ®* Thalland Hoted operator 49.00 49,00
Trians-Pacific Hotels Sdn. Bhd Malaysla I thve 50.00 50,00
Held through YTL Power
International Berhad:
Blctiraiet Pry. Led.+«* ALGIala Principal ooty ransmission 18.62 1850
Erstit jordan B4 Netherlands vestment holding and financing actvities  1B.BT 1656
P.T. jawa Powar+* Indonesia Operating a oal-fred tharmal powser station i 1104

¥ Fompeviees Aol ouckted by S8 L | om Cley BT

& Componses with fronciol peor end of 31 Decomber

! Enbites one avihe sapopded o nof sioruondy seguend fo bo ocodeg

*  The Lioies reay mbvest i Bkt Py, L ond BT, Ene Pover orp 335% on 3509, resgeciively

A Indicatesd above, the financlal year end of cemaln assoriated companies ane nat co-teminous with the Group For the purpose
of applyirg the equity mathod of sccounting, these companies’ unaudited financial stataments mada up to 30 june were used in
conjunction with their audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December s the case may be
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16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONT'D.)

The summarised financial information of matens) associates adjusied Toe any Gflerences in alcmmiing policies Ehween the Group
and) B associales snd retoncllition 1o the carmying amownt of 1he Groug’s inferest in the assocites ane a5 Tollows:

[a) Summarised financial infarmation:-

Starhill Global Real Estate
P.T. |awa Power Elecirabet Piy. Lid Investment Trust

021 2020 2021 2020 202 2020

AM00D RMO00 RHQ00 ] 000 RM'000

Noricunpel. dusety 4,304,545 4543455 1.722.324 IATS TS 9,166,045 012
Cuarent a5sets 1,068,000 Lo4d4r2 152,288 7284 350,494 daapne
Hon-ument babiities (584,005) mEAlY)  (BZI6S8M)  (AI0AI3  (530.696) (1400845
Camant Rabilties (377.262) [2R2564) [L937.427) (523519 [144.864) 27953
Net amets 4,411,382 4 MBS0 170,201 1334380 5,840,777 LEE AL
Lews: Pempetsal wecurties holders” Tunds - - - - {307.842) E

4AILMZ  aMESS LT 13ME0 G208 4TSS

Frof aiess) for the finandial year 83,965 159,080 155, B8O a2 173.297 {T207E)
(thes comprehansive incomeicss) - - 143,573 |2LTET| [0 By
Tatal momgrehessheg InCome) ms| HB3,965 1158 ) 209, 653 E X R 241957 [ERFLER]
Included in the tatal comprehensive

incoma is:-
Rirve i £.233.971 L296.168 L7212 Eic kT 555,862 [ ELT ]
hes infarmation:-
Deadends Ieoehred from Jssoates 377,463 #3662 - - 59,473
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16. INVESTMENT IN ASSDCIATES (CONT'D.)

The sumimarised financial infonmation of materlzl assodates agjusted for any differences in accounting poiicies between the Gooup
and the sssociates and reconciliation to the carrying amount af the Group's interest in the asoclates are a5 folows:- (tonTd)

{b) Reconciliation of net assets to carrying amount:-

Starhill Global Real
P.T. |awa Power Electrabet Piy. Lid. Estate Investment Trust Total
202 2020 M2l 2020 2021 2020 o 2020
RHOOO  RMO0 RHGOO  RMOQ0O RMO0D  RMO0D RMO0D  AM'O0O
Do nel et 1 judy A TH6518 423540 LIMIM0 LGSR0 SANSNS - NS4 SEELEEE
Effect of a lomer subsifzry

e an asyoated

Ty - - - = Braiiia = SMLIT
Maragemant fees payable/paid

In ity - - - 24,939 LE: i) 14939 5807
Distriuticn eirvesiment pian - 11,066 - 11,066 -
Pealit/[lasa) lof B Frdndial

e 883,965 LKA 155,880 feFrs 29 (o4 L33aR 01205
[ether camprehecsh indome/

(L] = . 14397 ek 66,660 15501 212633 157,744
Coreecy traiidatien dfferences (140,635} 150581 05,964 2087 2 ez [54.670) 1=
Dviciend v jLOTe.486)  (D22001) - (180,540} - LS00 (oo
Dioréng net assets. 30 juna HALLIEE ATESHD LTa0R0l LiME0 5532935 GAIRN15 ILGG4SIE. 11516414
IEtevEs] B rsidiates diact okl

by wabrsiiary F5.00% Bl 3350% 3350% F08% BT
Carryirsg amcnnt 1543084  LEELE? 576.267 AT ZESLEIR.  LSTATT 4TTLBEY  AIRETR

Goodwil amounting to RMIBSS4S million {2020 AM16.55%4 milllon) was inchuded in the carmying amount of investment in
assnciated companies.

The imdrddually immatenal swsocates carying smount s RMTL211 million [2020; AML1L16T million) and the Group's shee of
total compiehersive 05y |s AMSE.415 million (2020 RMIG1TS milion)

Tha Group heas mvat recognised its share of profit of an assocated company ameantg to BM54.537 million bacause he Group's
cummulative share of losses exceads I8 Interest In that enity and 1the Growd has no cbigatian in respec of ihowe lsses. The
CumulTive Lnfecogrised oS5 amounied 1 RMSE.537 milion an Tha mporting e,
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17. INVESTHMENT IM |OINT VENTURES
Group
2021 2020
RM00O RMDOO
Unquoted ondinary shares, at cost 270,814 276,786
Share ol post-SCquisiton resenes (104, 480) 107, 385)
Arcumidated impaimment losses {4.286) {4 285)
162.048 165174
Datalls ol 1ha joint ventuied o as ol
Effective Equity
Interost
Place of 2021 2020
Mame of Company Incarporation  Princlpal Activities W B

Held through ¥TL Cement Berhad:

Alllarce Conorete Sirgapore Phe, Ltd, Singapore Production and sale of ready: mix concigte 3431 Ir72
Hald through YTL Hotels &
Properties 5dn. Bhd.:
Elite Dinirg Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Oporater of food & boveraga autlet 50,00 -
Held through ¥TL Land &
Development Berhad:
Shonefront Development Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Property developmant 48.32 A48.30
Held through ¥YTL Power
International Derhad:
Attarat Mineg Company B.Y, Methertands Mg & supply of ol shae 2501 24,64
Artanat Oparation and Maslenangs Motherands Operatien B mantcrance of Powe: Plant 25.01 24,84
Company BV,
ArTaan Povaer Hobding Comparny BY. Nehertands Imeestmant hakding and fnancing acthties 25.01 24,84
Brstol Wessex Billing Services Limited  England & Wales  Billing sarvices 7.9 216l
Xihanging Malaysa Sdn Bhd Malaysia Mabile inTemi] and cloud-badsed techrdogy 16,67 16.56
sofuliom

" Prevousty was o subsdiany 0ng beoome 006 venrure durmyg B fnoncisl yeor
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17. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES [CONT'D.)

The sumimarised flinancial mformation of material joint ventures adjiusied for any GAerences in sooounting policies batween the
Group and 1he joint semtuies and recandliation to the camnding amount af the Growp's mlemest i 1he [oind ventunes ane as ol

{a) Summarised financial information:-

Attarat Power Holding Attarat Mining
Company B.V. Company B.V.
2021 2020 2021 2020

RM'DO0 RM'OO00 RM'OOD RMOO0
Non-cument assets 8,737,246 B.049604 10,493 9,200
Current assets 53.470 b1.145 254,370 337,590
Kor-tumaint |labditses -Imll?} |7.880.832) - .
Curreat linhilithes {545.007) (A0.466) 126.247) {132,650)
et assels 22,592 [B0.459) 138,616 2l4.230
[Less)'Profit for the financial year (37.795) (F5.117) (68.885) Ib.H44
Ciher camprefiensive intameois) 137.848 (54,294 -
Total comprehenshve Income/{loss) 100,053 [2E8.411) (68.885) 16844
Included in the total comprehensive

income is:-

Revenus - - 86,824 357,960
Other information:-
Cividends recetvad from joint venture - . - 18.930
Cash and cash equivalents 18,209 457 65,226 26633
Shareholder’s loan and related Interests (2.838.900) (2464519 - -
Bank homow ngs |5.096,265) [4.976,577) -
Corfvative Tinancial irstrumants {ZB0,124) [430.520) =
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17, INVESTMENT IN |DINT VENTURES (CONT'D.)
The summartsed financial infomatkn of material |oint venlures adjisted for any differencas in scounting policies betwesn the

Group ard The join venlunes. and retoncliation 10 the carrying amaunt of the Croup's imerest in ihe jaint venbores are o6 Tolloes::
{contid)

(b Reconciliation of net 35sets to carrying amount:-

Attarat Power Holdings Attarat Mining
Company B.V. Company BV, Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
AM000 BMO00 RMO0O RHD0O RM000 AM000
Dpering nat (labditiesiaisots, 1 july [B0,455) 06009 214,230 irls 133m 4382467
[LorsxjPren fior th Tinsncidl year {37,795) (e |&0,BE5) 156 {106, E80) 18275
(ther romprehensie inccmefloss) 137,848 [253.204) - - 137,848 (532
Dptbord aad - < = [42.06T) = (421067
Cuemancy tasadaton difmedes 2098 1043 [6.729) 1295 {3.741) 913
(Oating ned asstafifiablities),. 30 Line 22592 (B0.45% 138,616 £14.230 161.208 (EERGE
Interest in oot vertures diedt hoid by
wisidary 45.09% 4504 4500 LT
Group's nberest 10166 |F.20m 62317 Sh44 12,543 BLLa?
Efrnination of umealied profity [77.419) (73762 - - (77.415) [ra7aa
Unrecognised share of neq osses 67253 13969 - - 67.253 15964
Carmying armoun - - 62377 BEAD4 E2377 5404
Urrecognised shars of reults durng the
finarcial year = 13962} = - = HVER<Fa]

The Individually immaterial jalnt wentures' camng amownt £ 3M99.7 milien (2020: RME2.0 millon), Group's share of prafits i
RM0] million {2020 RMAZ 3 milllion) and 1he Growp's share of total comproberiae income it RMED milion (2020 tatal comprahomibe
loss of BM36.1 millon).
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18. INVESTHMENTS

Graup Company
20Z1 2020 Z0E1 2020
Naote RMOOD RMOOO RM OO0 RMO0D
Hon-current assets
Fmancial assets at fair value thiough
profit o jos 16]a) 50,7683 362,185 44,300 35,225
Financial aswets al fair valse thaough
other comprehansive income 18h) 254,935 42,716 9,599 0539
305.718 4044911 53,899 44,575
Current assets
Financlal assets at fair walse though
prof o ks 15} 2.473.454 2300989 B54.708 755199
{a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
The ivestments ara in relation to the fellowdng:-
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM'ODD RM'O00 RM'O00 RM'ODO
Income funds®
= Wiithin Malsysia 349 572 476,102 -
= Duttide Malaytia 1,402 883 12940 -
Equity funds
Within Matxysia 7.7 5,000 7.7 5,800
- Outside Malaysia 23,842 J41,799 23,842 1847
Cumled aguilly imestments
= Within Matayis 4,853 3,071 4,853 3071
- Cutside Malaysla 7.834 F.a0g 7.834 F.809
Uinmpmted enisty investments
= Dutsioe Malaysla G483 3.607 - -
Unguated unit trusts®
= Within Mataysia T20,9599 Gl2.9a7 654,708 755,159
2.524.237 2664184 690,008 Ta0425
Net falr value [loss)gain on imestments (1.401) 26,976 7,191 a3

Financhal cresers of o volee Mncwgh ofic o s ConmT of VSIS i income furds ond UnNT TSI pheced ith Foensod finanvial insTineions
T inenr foreh ad A U one gty g o el dovnesellEg 1o foals
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18. INVESTMENTS [CONT'D.)
{b)} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
The livestmedils are In retdtion to the olawnig:-
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM000 RM0DO RM000 RMODO
Quiated cquity nvestments
- Within Malaysia a.374 6,097 4 4
- Dutside Malaysia 15,214 14,141 1 1
Enuity funds
= Cistsicla Makaysia 2009 807 - -
Unguated equity investments
= Within Malaysia 20,415 210,066 9,594 55594
- Curisicke Malyysia 45 41z =
254,935 42716 9,599 9,599
Mt fair ke (less)Qain o ivestments (91.770) (35.344) - 173
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The details of intangible asseis ae as folows:

Contract Goadwill on Software
rights  consolidation assets Others Tatal

Naote RMO00 RAMO00 RMOD0 RM'O00 RHTO00
Group - 2021
At cost
Al beginring of the financil year 161,090 8,239,623 545,647 B9,996 59,036,356
Akl EBZ - 30,482 - 3,164
Cumency translation cifferences (149) 56,238 41148 1561 98,798
Disposats - (B0, 226] - {19.233] {79.453)
Rt b asficaticen from NCI - {57,109] - - {97.109)
At end of tha financial year 161,623 8,138,526 &1r.277 T2324 8,989,750
Accumulated amertisation and

impairmant

Al beqinring of the nancul yea (34,148) {122,040] (217.54:4) {31.530) (405,262
Amortisation foe the year 7 {8,506} - (63,304) {7.698) (79.508)
Curmency translation oifferences (Lo17) [r4) {13.087) [ra) {14,897)
D¥iposal - 11,261 - - 11.261
Impakment ks ¥ - [L.269] - - (L269)
AT o af thar Tinancial yoar (43,671) (112, 762] (293,935) (39,307) [489,675)
Het carrying amount
At 30 june 2021 117952 B.025.764 323342 EER 8,500,075
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D.)
The details of intangible assets ae & folows- {conl)
Contract Goodwill an Software
rights  conselidation assets Others Total
Hote AM'DOO RM'O00 RM'000 RAM0D0 RM'000
Group - 2020
Al cost
At begirning of the fnancial year 143995 7,960,250 - 89,659 194,124
Addtions 13,265 - 62102 - 175368
Acquisition of subsidianes " 41T - - 2423132
Cumency trarslation differences 3529 36,031 (2659 127 b
Transfor From proporty, plant and
soulprmient * - - 3BE.204 - 385,204
1 gnd of ik Frantial yea 151050 B239623 S45.6a7 B9.996 2036356
At begianing of the financial year (24,720} (120187) . (26,037} {170,824)
Amertisation for the year 7 (ELBA) . (55.230) [543} (63506
v pastment sy T . .77 . - L7233
Cummency transianon diferences {545 {150) 15 - 121
Transfer from property, plant and
EnLEpment * + . (163,130 - (163,130)
At end of the Fnantial yesr {34,148) {122.080) (217.544) {3L530) (#0526
Nt carrying amount
At 30 na 2020 126,947 B117.583 328,103 58 465 B63L,094

* i itfw previoo finerciod peor, e Grooy refined it onolyas of oosebsond identified efemonts of i mseet wtock thot bould be clossified mrintorgisle oot
Pl Uit euasThe Bioses dndefs M7 ded e dhefTrl liow wad Provofosienl [l ot grossd i, (Mol o euaivimtii] M midtiraplis cnoets,

Far the purposes ol impairment testing, goodwill is allecated to the Sroup's cash-genarating unets [O0UsT) identified accardeon 1o
the Tollowing business seqments-

The GO unoertakes an annoal w51 for impaiement of 15 cash-Qenaranng unrs

AMMUAL REPORT 2021

482/616



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

padl4  FINAMDIAL STATEMENTS

Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june £021

19, INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D.)

The foliowing TG, being the iowest level of asseis for witch there are separaiety identifiatie cash Mows, have camying amaunts
of goodedll That e comdidered sgnificam in comarison with the Group's total goodedll:

P
2021 2020
RM'OO00 RMOOO
Multi utlities business division A7 4,604,676 4509493
Listed cement dywision in Malaysla ("0 1,518,258 1615366
Water and sewerage division [T5) 818,770 a19.972
Cement division in Vietnam (T 202,770 207.367
Compnt division in Singapare [£7) 199,151 197,341
Managemant services in Singapone {F7) 01381 299,588
Cithers 380,758 417.858
8,025,764 LERBIEATE]

The amount of goodwsl nitialy recogreed i dependent on the allecation of the puichase prste to th Tair elue of -t identifistle
asets acquired and the liabiities assumed. The determnation of the fair value of the assets ard liabilities is based, 10 & comiderable
EXIEN, 0N MERSgEmEnt's udgemant.

{a) Hey assumption used in the value-in-use calculation

The fullowing dssumptions have been apoled in (he value-n-use catulation -

2021
A i C o E F
W L L L L %
Pre-1ay disoounts 6.30 8.00 an 740 7.40 160
Terminal growth rate 2.00 2.20 0.31 510 510 532
Rowerise groth ran: A6 19.00 0.04 4.00 446 2.28
2020
A 8 C o E F
L B L L ¥ %%
Pri-tan. disOounts 629 210 214 750 7.50 6.0
Teminal growth rate 200 220 1076) 350 350 4.5
Revanue growth rate EN 14.25 os7 200 4643 245
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D.)
{a) Key assumption used in the value-in-use calculation (cont'd.)

The recoverable amounits of the COWs are datermined based on value-in-use cabiulations. The value-in-use caltulations
apply a discouned cash Tk model wsing cash Dow projecrions based on financial budgets and forecasts appoved by
managament.

The descount rates used are pre-tax and meflect specific risks relating 1o the TG The decount rates apphed 1o the cash
i projections are desived from the cost of capital plus & reasonabe risk premium at the date of the assessmant of the
respective (LU

For EGU °A°, cash flow projections used in the value-in-use calculation were based on approved financial udgets and
forecasts covedng a fee-year period. Cach flows beyond the The-year pariod wers extrapalated ising the estimated growth
rates stated above, The growth rate did not exceed The kang-tesm avaraga growth rate in which the COU operates,

The torminal growth rate indgates the expected growtn of cash Nows alter the forecast poriod of five years.

Thi revenase growth rate Is calodated wsing the Compound Anruzl Crowth Aate method and applied on the current year's
sales figuies over the foiocast period.

For COU °8, cash tlow projections wsed In the value-in-use calculation were based an approved financlal budgets and
forecasts covering a five-year period

The discount rates wsed are pre-tax and reflect specific risks refating to the CGUL The cement selling price and sales volume
iri preparieg the cash flow projections wisti determined based on past business perfarmance ahd MERAQemEent’s expectation
an the cuttent market conditian,

Thie tetrnilngl growth rate wsed is corsistent witlli the average long-tenn amdal gowth e o e reevait idusires,
For 06U °C%, cash flow projections used in the value-in-use calculation were based on approved financlal budgets and
forecasts covering a four-year peried, to confonm the final determinations approved by OFWAT, the sconomic reguiator of
The wiater sector in England and Wales.

For CGU "D, cash How prajections used i the value-in-use calulztion were based on apgraved finansial uedgets and
Tonecasts covaring a liva.yoar pesion

Far CGU “E", cash flow projections asad in the value-in-use calculation wore based on appeoved financial budgers and
forecasts covaring a ten-year paricd

For CGU “F", cash fiow projections usad in the value-in-use calculation were based on approved financlal budgets and
foracasts covaring a fiftean-yaar period
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Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june £021

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D.)
{b) Sensitivity to change in key assumptions
The ciroumstances wihare a change in key assuimgtions. will resut in the recoverabile amaunts of goodwill oo the LGS 1o el
Thix COMESPOMIInG Camying EMmaunTs Fssumirg no cnange in the oihed viciables are a5 Tolows:-
2021
] [ 1] E F
B %% ] % ]

7.84 23.13 24,10 19.50 .75 B8.02
007  (4L37] 009  (2070) 456G 7.06
132 {28.40) {2.40) (120} {12.09) 193

Pro-tax discounts
Temingl growth rate
Revenue growth rate

2020
A B [4 [+] E F
¥ a % L] % o
Pre-tax discounts 738 18,09 4260 2213 a4 6,75
Terminal growth rate 065 (1600) [Le0) [40.78) 256 4,39
Rowirns grosedh tato 193 (1781} [LoRE ] 24.88 (1971} 242

Curivsg this Tinancial year, an imgairmient loss on goodwill aimounting to RM1269 million (2020; RML723 milion) was wcognined
In the Income Statements @ the carmying amount of the COUS was in excess of its reoverable amount.
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MNotes to the Financial Statements

- 30 June 2021
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
: P
2021 20z0
Note RMOO0 RM0OO
Mon-current

Trade meaivaties 404 413
Orhes recelvables 13.344 2133
Unbilled Bease income® 5.662 -
19,006 2133
Lesss: Adarwsance far impaimment {2133

Onher recetvables (nat) 18,674
Deposits B,049 1EET0
Frapaymaits 6.257 Bh6,345
Nat investmant in leases s} 7.586 1LES3
Rocowables from associatio company ™ 230,533 Znta
Hecenatles from a jont venture” 1.273.933 1104266
Lisss: Allonwrci far imnpalnment {2.600) H
Recehaties from a joint venture (net) 1,271,333 1104 266

Dbt recervabies, FYTPL 269,178
1,812,014 LA19, 0%

* T unbilied iveae income of the Group one ofter offseltng the ctonpes in /oe ol of massment propevhios amocting fo AR B 044 nifion. The wntised
et o e papecred 1o be billed from fronool year S02T ra SOST.
fereirnbies from ossonofe rempnse thiee doon nafes to an oxsociofe The nofes hove béen e iy o0 @aocoote 0 aoondarce (3 @ ioon note fookty
mpEemant. Ttete ranentles Wil mariee in Orisder A030 CONTMGRNT ITAMET CNF Manasnbie on &0 aofes fo the avfent that e & affiriens owainhils
toafh i e ever I00E ddnd & sl fichent. dntofest el be oecrued. Tl infeneil iobe of e o noles dvéroges of 1 0.26% por' ornum

@ Revetrubies from o jeint weniune compree shahoky Don (o Ao Power Holding Compary 8 wha adaly onns ARoron Powey Company PSC (APTOT)
APCT A dlevibloginng o S50 megawat T oil ke fins? powey penendtion fooject in M Medimite Kingdom of jordan APCD wpned o 30-yar powe purthas
ogrmaTeNt SNCLENg @ constnabon pevisd of 35 peond iwith the Satonal Elecine Pover fompony FNEFCDT jorslan's s2nhe-cvned Uity for the enfre
wheving coponity ond enegy of he power plaRE with an cote for SERCD fe extend ihe pevwe fust hose agreerent 19 40 yoors (from e commerceal
appration dete of M pofecls seond unitl The shareholder inan ond e inferest o mpgyobie on demand The infeess e of the soreholder
Fooe® F of 15.00% per avvurm, The shassholder koon N il @ (0B opiion 10 eguly ol sl masiorest of FYTRL The covmersar oplion was
wniverd MiFing the preiou fironcoe yeor. Tihes rypreseted o significont modfleofion of conmoet tems. Thaneforn, (e staefnkder kon or FYTAL was
B OGP I we Sulsaruely Fecogivae of [ el 0n eduie OF STOeT fouL
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES [CONT'D.}

2021 2020 2021 2020
MNote RM'ODO0 RM'00O0 RM 000 RM'O00
Current
Irade recetvables 2,247,998 £1081.589 -
Sharehoider amounts hield oy solicitons 17,240 23742 -
2.265,238 2105431 g .
Less: Allowance For impaimist {537,206) [557.230) - -
Total trade recelvables jnet) 1,728,032 1548201 -
Dther recalvanies** [ anzos AELFOE 8,077 B, 70
Less: Allowance for impasment (87.524) (154.615) (1.765) {1.765) |
Total ather receivalies (rat) 323,679 427,090 6,312 4,940
Linbiiliod recalyabies i 946,467 766,106 -
Less: Allewance for impairment . {Bam) (@S6R) =
Total unbdled receivables net) 938,276 755538 -
Prepayments 476,686 360,608 444 98
Met irvestment in leasas 3a) 4107 4193 - -
Deposits 235,992 206,351 1071 Lo72
3,706,772 3,704 961 7.827 G110

=* im SOUS o fersign sufsclary of dhe Croug fos recognesed otter peoeavobies, sriung from lgesdaieg domages ffor serly Termenanon of M sleceioty el
OIS Desed on e enforreaiie rights Sl in anpfootie CoNMocts The ol wes heord af the ond of 2007 folowed By o further feding in
Rovember 2078 AN ofowonce for srpoirment of syt of RM70.7 milion (60224 milion wrs iecognaed i 2015 brsed pn the cechion of Mhe High
Courr on 7 feauony JOIR The oliewence for impoemend of rdovebien wot fully wetten Dok By the uiiliony dning Ine fineiol e fodowng o
successfiul cppenl ond fhe full anaunt oy been recened by e whsidiory &5 of 30 ume S021.

The fair value of recevables approsmates thew carrying amounts

Expected Credit Loss (ECLT) movement analyzis s disclosed under Note 38{e) to the financial statements
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MNotes to the Financial Statements

- 30 June 2021
21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The owp's derivative financial instruments are analysed as folows-
Contractualf F.ilr values
notienal
amount Assets Liabilities
RM'O00 RMO00 RM000
Group - 2021
Cash-flow hedges
- fuel oil swaps. 1.327.465 202,958 7.313
- EUMREY larwanis 1,456 748 6.799 12,220
- electricity tutwes 140,091 380 15.215%
Falr walue through profit or loss
- cuirenty Tonsaids. 519 - 1
- electricity fulures £.239 42 38
290,180 34,787
Curnént portian 263,719 34,074
Man-curreént partion 26,461 na
290,180 34,787
Group - 2020
Cash-flow hedges
= fuel ofl swaps 1,343,133 51469 171,622
- cumency tonwands LA25691 24,663 9,148
Fair value through profit or loss
Tuc] ol Swwiapd 32E13 8712 13388
- currency Torwands 2672 - L]
ol ity fulwes 2068 139
B4.A44 190,345
Cument portion 74,259 174,944
Nan-turment porbon 10,585 15,401
Ba.044 180,345
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Motes to the Financial Statements
- 30 June 2021

21 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.]

Hedging instruments wsed in the Group’s: hedgeng stratedqy-

Changes ini fakr value used
feor caltudating hedge
Carmying amoumt ineffectiveness
Camtractual Fimantial Weighted
ntianal Assers/ statemant Hedging Hedged aerage Hatarity
amaunt  [Lizbllitles) Ene ftem  Instrumsent Item hedged rate date
RM0O00 RM000 RHG0Q RM'OCD
Group - 2021
Cash flow hedge
Fuel of price risk
- Fues ol 5wap i hedge highly Lod3.003 256,005 Derivative 524,520 (524,520 RMLIBOE  Jully 201 -
eobable Tamsactions (HSFON limancial pef metric ton June 2023
[rstrumsents
- Fue o S i hidge heghly 244,452 19,641 Deshvative 18,548 18,548 RM2TLS  July 2021 -
protable framsactions (LG fimancial per bbbl  June 2022
Imstruments
Forelgn exchange rigk
Forwanl contr st bo Fedge highly  L458,748 (5.421)  Derivative [45,251) 45,251 RM4L:  July 2021 -
peokatés tramsaction fimancial USDLOD Dctober 2023
Imstruments
Electricity futures price risk
- EleCticiny futusiss 10 hedte Righly 140,091 (14,835) Dedivative [2%5.2E63) 25,263 RMIL2ZE  |uly 2021 -
prtable Tamaltion Timancial per MWH  March 2022
Irstrumsents
Group - 2020
Cash flow hedge
Fuel off price rigk
- Fue' ol %map &0 hotkge highly L163143 [LEEE] Dtreatrar 740 ITLAOT RHMLIZS July 2020 -
protable frarsactioes (THIFOY financial pef meTh lon.  jamery 2023
etrments
Fue ml S ko hadge heghdy 1,590 HL#0 Demathe 11,593 (L9935  RMISLO per bl |y 2020
peatabli 1rtrag e (LN Tantal Jurab 2022
rRfruments
Fareign exchange rigk
Forwirrd contracts to hedge highly Lazteat 19515 et 4199 (RIS R USOEDD juy 2000
peoikatle ramactionn Tinancal March 2023
rtiumsnts
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= 30 June #021

21. DERIVATIVE FIHANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.)

{a) Fuel oil swaps

Fusl oll wwidprs a0 2ntered mio to hedge highly mobable forecast lusl puichases that ae expetiad 10 oo @ varous dates
within 24 manths (2020; 31 months) from Tinanial year snd Thi foed od Swags have matuity dates hat match the axpected
occumence of thase transactlions. Gans and lossas miognisad in the hedging reserve prior to the ottumende af théss tramsactions
are yransferred (o the inventory of Tuels wonacouisiton o cost of sales upon consumgprion of natural gas. Thee gairs and losses
redating 1o fusd of Fvenion e subseguednily recognsed in The Income Stalemens upon codsumption of 1he underiying fues,

The far value af tusl oil swaps s determined using 4 benchmark fusl price index 3t e reporing date,

(b] Cumency forwards
Currency fnreaeds are entered into to hedge highly prebabile forecast fransactions. dencminated in foreign cumenry expected

to occwr at varlous dates within 28 manths [2020: 33 months) from financial year end. The currency forwands have matunty
datas that match e expected occurrance of these transacbons.

Gamns @ horkses relating to highly probable forecact fusl paymonts are 1ecognised 0 1ho hedging resane plior to e oCumance
al these iransscior and ara transletiod to the imentory of Tuals upan acquisition of cost ol Sales upan fonsumption of
natural gas, The gains and losses refating to fuel ol inventary ame sutsegeently transfered to Income Statements upon
comsumptian af the underying fuele

For thase currency farwands used to hedge highly probable forecast foreign ourmency payments of purchase of property, plant
and eauipment, the galns and kasses are indluded (0 the cost of the assets and recognised in the Infoms SLMBmERLS oo

their estmated wielul lives as part of doprediation capens

Fo thipse currency Tonwards wsed to hedge highly probable forecast fereign cumency transactions for maintenance coniracs,
e gains and losses ae incleded inopayments and recognsed in income Statements over the pericd of the contracts,

The Tai walues of Torwand forsgn exolanges comracts 5 detemined wdng guoted Tomeand ecchangs rates at the reporiog
data,
(e} Electricity Tutures

Eleciriciny futwes ame entemed into 10 hedge highty probable Torecast sale of electricity thar ane expectiod 1o ogeur at various
dates within 9 months (2020 L2 mantie) from financial year eni. The electricny futunes have maturity dates that match the
pxpected oecurience of these transactions. Gains and losses recognised in the hedging reservie prioe 1o the ooourrence of these
Tramsartions e anstemd 1o th INcome SERements upon sae of th sleciniciy.

The fair value of electricity futures s calculated by reference to the agreed notional meartity, clearing through Singanore
Exchange Limited [5G & a1 reporting diote osing matsity dates prics,
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Motes to the Financial Statements
- 30 June 2021

22. INVENTORIES

Group
2021 2020
RM'OO0 RM'O00
Consumable stoses 53,722 72086
Finishid goods 146,659 74,013
Fusl 47,380 Bt E D ]
Land held for sales 93.064 441
Propesty held Tor sales 107,623 L2B4.204
Rz materials 212,450 228,483
Spara pans 309,145 J41.342
Work-in-progress 166,884 20,024
1,136,927 2164.363

Duwrin) Ehit prisinas financial year, inCuded 0 the invenoofies of the Growp with carrying value of BM1.143.395 milian pedged a5
security for @ borrowing granted to the Croup,

£3. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT CO5TS

Freehold l.liSIllIl.l.i Development

land land cosls Total
Note RM 000 RM'DO0 RMOOO RMO00
Group - 2021
Cumulative property development Costs
A1 baginning of the finandal year 74397 80,856 11,401 166,654
Cast incurrnd during the Financial yaar 58,085 - - 58,085
Cumrercy transiation differences 8,978 - - B.978
A1 el al the Finandial year 141.460 BD,B56 11,401 233,717
Cummiiative cost recognised N inoeme
Lralement
At beginning of th financial year (1. 468)
Retognised during the financial year 5 -
Al il ol thee Tinaistial yeai {1.468)
Property devalopmant costs =t end of the
finanicial yea 232,249
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MNotes to the Financial Statements

- 30 June 2021
23. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS (CONT'D.)
Freehold Leasehold  Development
land land Costs Tatal
Mot RMO0D RMO0D RMODOD RMO0O
Group - 2020
Cuimuldtivg proje by dissogiment Costs:
At beginning of the financlal year it B8998 391,063 579,360
Corst incurred during the financial year . . 27,155 27,155
Trarsder to invertorioes - (5250 (100, 453) {106,755
Transter from vestment properies 13 51,7687 - - 51,187
Transder to land hold for property
development 14{a) (7.322) (7322
Transdor to property, plant and equpment n {68.122) - [287.914) [357.036)
Roversal of completed projects (2852 (20,425 (£2277)
Cutrency translaton diff srences (245} - 2991 2,746
At ond o the financial your 74,397 BOESE 11,408 166 554
Cumulatvwe cost frecognksed in Incomas
SlaAtemEn.
At beginning of the fnancial year (17429
Recognised during the finandal year 5 [#328)
Riversal of completed projects e r
At end of the financal year {1.ABE]
Property develapment costs at ond of 1he
fimanciad year 165,186

inciuded in property development costs of the Group s interest capitalised doring the previous. financial year amaunting fo
RM4.906 million
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- 30 June 2021

24. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Group
2021 2020
RM'O00 RMOO0
Hon-current
CARBFACT ARLES 106 Sk
Contract cost assets 62 1165
Contract kahilities {31.958) [H1.3eh)
Current
Contract assels 192,587 0LAGE
Cantract cost aswers 25,003 26,151
Contract kabilitles (1.182.102) (633,343)
Group
2021 2020
RM'OO00 RMOO00
Representing:-
Cantract assels 192,693 202anng
Contract kabllities {1.214.060) (o6, BET)
(1.021,367) (AG2EE])
Contract cost asiots 25,065 27316
Group
2021 2020
RM'OO0O RMOD0
Representing:-
Utilities {213,506) NBT2T8H
Propierty devalnpmant (63.502) 27141
Construction [716,553) (€69, 343)
Hutel (24.284) {29,934)
Cament [ERFHT 13,241)
Oulirs (395) 132)
(1.021.367) (462561)
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MNotes to the Financial Statements

- 30 June 2021
24, CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)
[a) utilities
Shgaificant changes in contract assets and abilities:-
Group
RMTODO RMO00
Contract assets
At beginning of the finanoal year 154,866 158,566
Teansfer 10 trade reoeivables [1.483) [6.74%)
Adiditions @rsing from revenue recognised during the Gnanclal year 1,070 2771
wite ack of Iimpairment of contract ssets a 27d
Arand of the financial year 154,544 154,066
Group
2021 2020
RMO0D RMOOD
Contract liabilities
At heginning of the financal year 342,138 314,053
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract labliity batance at the
eginring of the fnancal yoad [356,986) 313,562
Increases due to cash recetved, extluding amounts recognised as revenue during 1he
Tiruaiic all yirat 353,008 280,800
Curmeniy Warslation dil ferences 29,890 BT
At end of the financial year 368,050 ECTAEL]
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24. CONTRALCT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)
{a) Utilities (cont'd.)
(i} Assets recognised from costs to obtain or fulfil a contract

T Gronafs cagltaiises costs to obitasn or fullll & contract which indlude sakes commissians when they ane onciementsl and
expecTig 1o D recoventd over moane than g year, The Group also Capiralises expe nditung on asssts sl &5 waler mains’
SEWErS OF NEw tonnections ralating to contracts a5 they are incurmed to fullil the contracts. This §s presented within
CONIIACT 06T A55ats within "coAtract assets” in the statements of financial positian.

Graup
2021 2020
RM'O00 RM'O00
Al boginring af tha fmancial yoar 27,316 ECE
ASSETS recognised from Costs to oblan or fulfl @ contract during the financlal
yiar 36,419 27.975
Amortisation recognised dunng the financlal year {3.043) {7.842)
Chamed 1o cost of sales during the financlal year (38.146) {20.6659)
Currency trarslation differencas 2,192 131
At end of the financial year 24,738 27316
Thea closing balonce of contract cost assets consists of:
Group
2021 2020
RMOOD RMOO0O
Contract acquisithon cost 33 m
Cantiact fdlilmant €ast 24 705 29005
At end of the fanancial year 24.738 21318

{il) Unsatisfied performance obligations

As ot 30 Juno 2021 the aggrogate amount of the transaction price sSocated to unsatisfied performance obligations
resiilting from contracts with oustomers ks AM359.0 million (2020 RM357.2 milion). This will be recognised as revenue
¥ the sendops ane provided 10 custamer, which s expacted to ocour ower the next 1 1o 10 years (20200 1 1o 11 years)

Thee Group applies the practical expedient in MFAS 15 and did not disciose information about ursatisfied performance
eliligation or cerlakn contracts, whise the transaction price cormesponds directly with the Groug's level af performanc
in the Future,
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24, CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)
(b} Property development

Mowement of contract assets and contract Kabiities. in relathon to Maperty tavelnpmel is anaysad o Tobow:-

Group

RMO00 RM000
AT beginning of the financial year 27.141 [16.154)
Revenue recognised duing the finandal year 235,488 420,087
Progress billings during the tinancial yoar [245,572) {376,5459)
Cost incurred for progect yot 1o be redognicod 2 redinss (80.563) .
Consideration payable to customer 4 (243
At ond of the financal year (63.502) 27141
Representing:-
Confract assets 17,118 20,638
Contract llabities (B0.620) (L4097}

(63,502) 27141

Raverme from propery civlepment Jctivithes is recognised oo r time wsing Tho input methaod wiich 15 Dased on The actual

cost inturred to dale on the properly development project as compared to the total budgetad cost tor the respet tive
development projects.

(i} Unsatisfied parformance obligations

The aggregate amount of the tramacion price slotated 19 the performance oblgations that are unsatistied or partiaky
satistied as ar the reporting date was approomately RMAOL1TI milion (#020: RME5.758 milliong, of which the Group
PR 10 OGN &% PR within one year frm the Tinandial yaar erd
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{c) Construction
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Mavemant af confract assets and comract labilities o relation 1o comtuction & anzlysed as Tollowss-

Group

2020
RM'OO0

At baginning of the financial year

Reverue rocograd during the Tinandial yoar

Cost incumes lor project yol to recognised revenue
Progress billings during tha financial year

2021

RM'000
(26,343) (504,463)
1,514,505 2316,005
[103,630) 37,870

{1.858.085) [2019.670)

Comideration payable 1o customar = os

At end of the financial year (716,553} (#65.343)

Comctruction contracts repeesent the tening differences in revenus recognition and the miestone bilings. The milestons bilings
e structured andior negatisted with customens to reflect physcal completion of the confracts.

Contract assers ane tarmsfered 1o recehalbes when e ghts 10 economic Denelits beoome uncondilional, This usualy ocowrs
whan e Gioup sswes llig 1o the oustomser, Contract Baldlities ane recogrived ay everme s perlommance abligatiom.
e satisfied

Thore ware no Significant Changes in he commacT J55eTs and Raniises during the Tnancial yoas

Indiudad in aggregate costs incurred to date of the Graup (s 1he depreciztan capitalied during the financial year amounting
o AMA.271 million {2020; AME.290 millan],

Inscl et i e eonract liabilitios i amount due 1o customer on contract with amount AMET 696 milion (F020: RMETEDE million)
ropriiant the halinda of tha 16t puithusse corsideration of ot ke thas RMIDSETS million for the quisiticn of tha Sankul
Raya Development Froject Site from Keretapl Tanah Melayu Berhad (KTMB"), which is to be settled by way of phased
development. constructian and completion of the Ralway Village by a subsidiary, Sentul Rays Sdn. Bhd. ("SRSEY) for KTME at
its sale codl and expeni inadconrdano with the provisions of the Devalopmant Agroeman dated B Decotriber 1993 botwaen
SRAE ard KTME, as amended pursuant to the Supplementary DCevelopmant Agreement with KTME dated 21 Decembar 2000,

(i} Unsatisficd performance obligations

Tha aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated 1o the performance obligations that am unsatistied or partially
satisfied as at the roporting date was approximatoly BM3.78 bitfon (2020 RME.A2 billion). of which the Group oxpects
10 b fecoqnised a5 ewenad in the fmancial Stlatements in thie pext two o Three years

Tha unsatistied perfarmance obfigation (s yet to recognised &s revenue for amount toe to Customer on Contract s it
cannat be measured reliably dug 1o uncertain circumstances,
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24, CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)

[d} Hotel operations

(e}

Thie Ghoup iecogiises contract labtses whis 2 customer pays consklerathon, of 1 contractually requied to pey conssderation,
Dl thie Group pecognises The redated revenue, T conTract BRabsiiies ang expedtod b be reognised as revenue within
8 year,

Confract Liahilites 29,934

Group
2021 2020
RMODOD RM'ODO
Significant changes to contract labilities balances dwing the period are as follows-
Crantract linblities as a1 thie agenming af the peniad meognived as revnie
during the yaar 29.934 36,532
Adhvances recisved dueing the year Fa 424 151,70

Ailvances represent advance payment by customers for future bookings of hoted rooms, food and bewerages and fransport.

Cemant
Group
2021 2020
RM000 RMO00
Amaun receved in sdvarce of delvery of goods 3127 ]

Rayesniie b rednnived whien 1he doithal ol tha goods 5 Transtorred B the tuatomer, Being & the paint The goads o delvered
o the customer, When the customer inifially purchases the goods. the transaction pree rerelved at that paint by the Group
Is recogritsed as contract latulity until the goods have been deliverad 10 the ustomes.
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TD RELATED PARTIES

Croup Campany
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM'DO00 RM'O00 RM'OO00 RMOO0
3] Amoamis due trom releted parties
Amounts dus from:
- Halding company 24 17 - -
= Subsidiaries - - 1.338.469 1289810
= Relaled compansss 22,080 &£3.3859 4,082 34498
- AssOciated companies 39,614 27,549 48 &0
= joint wentures 3.192 2739 - -
92,910 51604 1,342,599 1,303,468
(s} Amounts due to relsted parties
Amcunts due e
- Haldfing company Fd4 324 = F
= Subridiaries - - 4,409 4655
- Related coempanses. 8.267 5946 51 53
- Associated companies 474 10,139 - -
« Joint wentures 29,321 72,798 - .
38.411 Fa712 4.460 4,708

{t)  The amounts due frammo related parties pertaen mainly 10 trade recenablespayables, advances and payments on behal. The
outstanding amiunts ane ursecured, interest Tree and poyable on demand except Tor advances given 1o subsidiates amaunting
AMZGG million {2020: AMZLA milllon} which bear interest ate of 37%% per annum (2020: 4.1% per annumj

{d} The significant related parties transactions of the Croug and of the Company ame disciosed inMote 40 fo the financial stastements.
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group Campany
2021 2020 2021 2020
Note RM00O0 RM'0O00 RMODO RMO00
Deporaits wirth lKersed banks 11,522,776 10396221 247,147 102000
Cash and bank balances 2,155,871 L2ES.0N 3,071 a9
Cash and cash aquivalents in the
statements of financinl position 13,670,647 11661232 250,218 103,992
Bark overdratts 1 (26.051) (45,147 - -
Deporsits with matuety 50 days and mone - [516.01% -
Cash and cash equivalents
as per statements of cash flows 13,652,596 1L100,0686 250,218 103,999

Cash and bank bafances of 1he Group ncuded amounts totalling RM3.930 milkon (20200 AMEE682 mBlon] held pursuant 1o Sectian
74 of the Housing Developers [Control and Licensing) Act 1966 Thase amounts were restricted from use in other operations.

Ihe range of interest rates of deposits thet were effectva ai the reparting date were as follows:-

Group Company
2021 2020 Z0EL 2020
L L3 Y T
Deporsits with lkeised banks 0.01 - 4.90 003 - 4.25 0.01 - 3.35 0.03 - 335

Deposits of the Group and of the Company have maturities rangsng from 1 daly to 365 days (2020 1 day to 365 days). Bank balances
are dapasits held at cal with banks,

Included dn the depasits with licensed banks amountng fo RME2012 millan [2020 RMST.BAE milan) Is pledged as a Looiity far
a borowang o disclosed in Nato 31

The Group and of the Comgany seek o eyvest cash and cash equivalents safely and profitably with oregimworthy local and affshose
lcened Banks, The credit quality of the lacal and offshone icensed banks are PL as rated by RAM Rating Senvices Bhd, and Moody's
Iwestors Service, Inc. respedtively,

AMMUAL REPORT 2021

500/616



EDINETOOOO

Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)

Oooooooa

pa iz FINAMOIAL STATEMENTS

Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june £021

27. SHARE CAPITAL

hcioicieidboi A
Number of shares Amount

2021 2020 2021 2020

‘aon ‘000 RM'O00 RMOO0
Issued and fully paid:-
At beginning of the fimancial year 11.022.76.2 10,910,560 3,467,555 4, 340:111
Shara Exchange Cffer - 112202 - 127444
AL end of the financial year 11.022.762 11022762 3,467,555 3467555

Cut of a total of 11,022.762,340 [2020: 11,022.762.310) ordinary shares sswed and fully paid-up ordnasy shares, the Company
holds 58,673,950 (2020 372.905,610) ardinaty shaed ot theamuny shares At at 30 [une 2021, the mmber of ondinary thands i
tssue and fully pakl ot of treasury shares are 10,964.068,390 (2020 10,649,855.722)

The helders of ordinary shares {except treasury shares) are enfitied to receive dividends a5 and when declared by the Company.
Al pedirary shares carmy ane vote per share and rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets

{a) Treasury shares

The sharehoders of the Company granted a mandate to the Company 1o repurchase its owe shares at the Anmeal General
Meeting held on 1 December 2020, The Directors of the Company are committed to enhance the value of the Company to its
shareholders and Believe 1hat thie repuichase plan can be sppied in the Best menest of 1he Company and i1 sharsholters.

Curing the Mnancis year, the Company epuichased 40,750,100 {2020; 31.044,200) ordnary shares of i1s issued share capital
Proam nhie open marke. The syerane poce o Tod 1he $hares repurchased was RMO.TE (20200 RMO,54) per shate, Thie repurchase
transad tions were Tinanced by nternally penerated Tunds, The shares repunthated e being held a5 treasury shares in
acoordance with Section 127 6] of the Comganies Act 2016

As ol 30 june 2021 the Company held as theasury shares a total of 58673550 (2020 372.906.616) of its 11022762340
[0 TLOZE Ao 2 JA08) ssued ordinary shares. Such treasusy shares are held at a camndng amount of BMS4 4500601 (2020
RAME0T, B3E, BEY).

{b) Employees' Share Option Scheme 2011 (“ESOS 20117

Om 1 April 2011, 1the Company Emplemented a new share Bsuance scheme known a5 the Employees Share Option Scheme
witich wias approved by the sharahalders of the Company al an Extraordinary Genaral Maeting hald on 30 Movermber 2010,
the BSOS i for efigibie employaes and directors of the Comparny and/of its subsiciarias wha meet the criteria of eligibility Tor
participation as set out in the by-laws of the ESOS (By-Laws”), The E305 2011 has expired duning the financial year on
31 Mareh 2021.

¥TL CORPORATION DERMAD

501/616



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooood

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g 233

MNotes to the Financial Statements
= 30 June #021

27. SHARE CAPITAL (CONT'D.)

(b} Employees’ Share Option Scheme 2011 ["ES05 20117) (cont'd.)
The salient tenns of the BSOS 2001 ane as fallows-

{1 The ESC5 2011 shall be in forca for a panod of ten (10] years, effective from 1 Apnl 2001,

fily  The maximum numbes of shates to be alloted and ssued pursuant 19 thi coorcse of the eptions which may be grarnted
under tha %005 2011 shall not exceed if teen per cent (15%) of the total lssved and paid-up share tapital of the Company
al the point of fime throughout the duratian of the ESDS.

{illy  Any employee (inchiding the directors) of the Group shall ba eligibda to partaipate in the BSOS 2001 if, as at the date of
offer of an eption ("Offer Date?), the peruon-

a)  has attaned the age of eghteen (18) years:
by s & director or @ emplayee smpkoed by and on payrell of a comparmy withen thee Groug; ang

£l inthe case of employees, has Been in the employment of the Group for 3 period of an least one (1) yoar of contimons
soiad e piar tooand of o the Offer Date, intluding serwce dunng the probation pedod, and i< confirmad s wnics,
The options commities may, at its discretion, noménate any employee (inchuding directorsy of the Group o be an
ehgible employes despite the ehgibiity critera under Oause 31(6) of the By-Laws nat being met, at any tme and
fram time to tima.

{iv) The subscription price for shares under the ES0S 2011 dhal bo determined by the Board upon recommentdation of the
aptian commithes and shall be forod based on the walghtod iverage markot price of shanes, 25 Guated on Bursa Soouritics,
for the five [5) market days immediately preceding the Offer Date of the options with a discount of not mare than ten
per cent (10%), If deemed appreprate, af such ke o togher it in accordance with any presaling guidelines Bsued
by Bursa Securities of any other relevant suthetities as amended from time 1o time.

() Subject 1o Oause 13 of the By-Laws, the options commities may, at any time and from time 1o time, before or alter an
opton is granted, kmit the exercise of the option to @ maximum number of new ordnary shares of the Company andfar
such percentege of the ot ordinary shares of the Company comperised in the options during such perlodis) within the
option peeiod and impose any other Teomes andio! conditions. deemied sppropriate By the options commities B s sole
distretion inchyding amemsdingSrarying sy v sl condd o mposed earlies, Notesathstarelng the aboye, and sulseit
1o Clauses 10 and 11 of the By-Laws, the options can only be exercised by the grantes no earller than three (3) years
aftes thit Dffer Date or such athir pefid @5 may be detenmined by 1he oplicds committes at its absolute d@sortion, by
neticd i wiiting o the aptions commitliae, proviced howover that the oglions commitiese may at s dscredian or upon
thie request In writing by the graniee allow the options 1o be exercised at any earker or other period.

{w) A granbee shall be profibied from disposing af the rew ordinary thares of the Company aliotted amd sssued to him far
a period of one (1) year from the date on which the option is exarcieed or such ather penod as may be determined by
e oo commitieg a1 irs Aol i otion,
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27. SHARE CAPITAL {CONT'D.)
{b) Employees’ Share Option Scheme 2011 ("ES0S 20117) (cont'd.)
The iravesments during e finarndls year o e il of shate optans of the Compary are a5 Tollees-
Financial year ended 30 June 2021

(rrererarresrerareereersee~ NUSTDEF of SharE WII..H'I!- oer nfm S e itsio oD

At baginning

Expiry Exercise of the At end of the
Grant date date price financial year Lapsed Expired  financial year
RMishare ‘000 ‘000 (0] ‘00

Schome
16072002 303 165" 119,435 {2.070) [117.425) -
14032008 103208 L7 247,973 [3.221) [244,752) +
367,458 [5.291) (362,177} =

5 The eseriee price AME B3 weas odiirsnod from AMETD,
" The exerche prce RME 2] v ocfusterd froe @M1.20

Financial year ended 30 June 2020

Lt -~ Number of share options ower ordinary Shares - - ——- e -3
At beginning

Expiry Exnrcise of the At end of the
Grant date date price financial year Granted Lapsed fimamcial year
RM/share Ri] 1] oo L]

SCheme
16072002 Ja2A n 120,500} - (L435) 119,485
403208 L3202 126 25294 {4.321) 24T g3
373,194 = (5.7286) IET A68
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27. SHARE CAPITAL [CONT'D.)

{b) Employees’ Share Option Scheme 2011 (“ESO5 20117 {cont'd.)

Thie fak value of options granted Tor which MFRS 2 apphes. was detemiined aslng the Trinomial Valustion model. The signllicam
Inputs i thie moded are o5 Mollows:-

Share options  Share options
granted on granted on
16.07.2012 14.03.2018

Valuation assumplion:-

Expected volatity 23.6% 22 1%
Expected dividend yisk] 4.5% A5
Expecied optioe Mle 3 - 4 years 3 - 4 years
Hnsk-free interest rate per annum (based on Malaysa sequrities bonds) 3.1% 14%

The expacted wolatiity reflects the assumption that the historcal valatiity i indicative of Future trends, which may not
necssarily be the aciual autoome.

Willue of employes services recened for Bsue of share option:

Grotp Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Share option expanses
by the Company 11,558 L] 11,558 16.509
e thie salreicliany 3,517 EREE] - -
ABacation to subsidanes - - [6.659) S50
ABacation to related companies i) 15 {4} {5
Taotal share option eapenses 15,071 21,637 4.695 5654
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2B8. NON-DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
{a) Other reserves

it
:

Fareign
cumancy
trasndation
reane
RHOO0
Group - 201
At megnarg ol B Rrancil war &7,170 7023 480,495
R0
RO
197
B03.03%

S
1

{henges infar e
Enrfnge cilterences

Torta comprebeive ncomes|ioss]
i P e - =

i3
88 3

Fuesberadfcmion gnen dsposal of

Peritnents desgred ot VO

Share nplien sxenmes - -
Sha opticn apsed : =
Subeidany's shore gt lapsed . -
Cumeney ranslston diferences 15 -

K e of B Financial ear 97.305 3

.6 8|58

g
s BRec § BEE fes

.. BEE.
..
B E.

15096 (124355}

Group - 2020
Kt Segnnrg af tha Broncil oo cLE L] ik S2hE 15082 () (En]
Changes infar vale - - - - - 0235 (Fute ]
Eatharge ciltiracces . - [ET4.165) - -
T comprebesmive low o

=TS . - [ET4155) . - 2%5] [PaGES [Exan ]
Comversion of LLS . [HEEES] - - . - - (45625
Eharg poticn 2uenses. - - - 10343 - - 19343
Shar optin pad . [=4] . . - =
Subscicdanys share ngtion pues . - . ) . - . [R5}
Cumeny translation dfferences [4m - ¥ - 5 - [l -
Kt et of e finangial year o 0 IR0 & .3 ] et o |£235) [IELOTR} SLESTS

Hate::
Tl recresernty o feseve wivch nesics (o e 580 osiee pursoon| B ioonl Sotueeey reguiisrent of oh oudioled ooy,
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28. HON-DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES (CONT'D.)
(a) oOther reserves (cont'd.)
Shamne Total
options Fair valua othar
Teserve reserve reserves
RMO00 RMO00 RM000
Company - 2021
At beginning of the financial year B0.022 2,759 Be.781
Share option expanses 11,558 - 11,558
Share option lapaed (91,580} = {9L.580)
At erd of the financial yaar - 2,758 2,758
Company - 2020
At heginaing of the financial woor 54,040 2636 GEETE
Chandges in lar viakie - 173 123
Share option expanses 16504 - 16.504
Share option psed 57} - 527
At erd of the financal year Bo.0E2 2,759 B2.781
29, LONG-TERM PAYABLES
ﬁmup
2021 2020
RMDOO RM0O0
Deferred income 1,285,291 1,087,304
Deporits 50,795 A8.662
Payable to non-controllng intefeuts 116,710 120,241
Dhet payabiles 11,845 1,093
1,464,641 1257, 3000

Deposits comprise amount collected From retal customers in relation to the provision of electricity and deposits receved from developers
of heoming dessopment in relation Lo the provision of watir and sewerage infrastrociune and security deposits {rom propey e nants.
The deferred income s i relation 10 wsets tansfered fom customens arc] serdces of the wates and sewerage segrment which s
yet to be provided and shareholder loan Interest revanue. The falr value of payabies appeodmates thelr canying vahues,
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30. BONDS
Croup Campany
2021 2020 2021 2020
Hote RM'OO0 RM'000 RM'OO00 RM'O00
Current:-
Madum Term Modas g a) B45,000 220,000 -
4.0% Guarareed Unseured Bonds ELCTH] 1,726,924 - - -
2571924 220,000 -
Hon-current:-
Medium Term Motes Ia) 8,768,631 9,652,636 3,240,000 2,500,000
1528 Retail Prizo index Cuaranteed Bornds 307k} 484,047 435 557 - .
5.75% Guaranterd Unsecured Bonds 1 4] 1,995,257 1,624,667 - -
5.375%h Cuaranieed Unsaowed Bonds J0{d) 1,144,932 1046940 - -
1. 7o Indens Linked Cuaranteed Bonds Jike) 1,302,127 L1FL95S -
1.359% and 1.374% index Linked
Guaranieed Sonds 300t 1,302,127 L17L955 -
LABT, 1. 405% and | 499% Intox Linked
Guaranieed Sonds ) 1,237,197 1,104,074 -
2186% Index Linked Cusamesd Bands 30[h) 399,300 AR0,010 - -
4.0%: Guaranteed Lnsedured Bamds F0) T 1583640 = =
1 5% Guaranteed Unacuied Bornds EXE 1] 1,425,701 1.304,105 -
1. 25% Guaraniesd Unseoured Bonid k) 1,696,814 - - -
20,756,133 19,655,639 3,240,000 2,500,000
Total 23,328,057 19875639 3,240,000 2,500,000
The barsds are repiyable-
Graup Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM'OO00 RM'D00 RM'OO00 RM'0O00
Mot later than 1 year 2,571,924 220,000 - -
Latia than b yaar But not @tor than 5 yeas 5. 158,957 7073115 1,240,000 1,000,000
Lates than 5 years 15,587,176 12576524 2,000,000 1,500,000
Tatal 23,328,057 19.875,639 3,240,000 2.500,000
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30. BONDS (CONT'D.)

The welghted average elfective interest 1ates of ke bonds of 1he Group and of the Company &5 at the mporting dale are as

Tellows:
i 4 SRy
2021 2020 2021 2020
% L L Y
Medium Teem Naotes 4,69 198 4.25 4563
Donids ez 440 = -

The tair values of e bonds of e Groug and the Company a5 at e réepoming dane ane a5 Tollows-

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM"000 RM'000 RMO00 RMO00
A58%h Aeitl Pl iraber Guaramesd Bords 309,401 202651 -
5.75% Guaranteed Linsecured Bonds 2,871,768 2.763,782 -
5.375% Guaranteed Uinsecured Bonds 1.432.230 1,354,507 -
1.7%%0 Index Linked Guaranieed Dards 1,934,326 1735032 =
1.3609% and 1.3074% Indes Linked Guarantesd Bonds 1,905,210 L.743,250 -
1.489%, L495% and L499% Index Linked
Casarantesd Bonds 1.897.627 1,737,765 -
2186% Index Linked Guaranteod Bords 470,366 424,060 -
AD¥ Cusaioed Unseowad Bonds 1,739,531 1.635,886 -
1.5% Cuaranteed Unsecured Bonds. 1,138,740 1,327 959 -
1.25% Gusearteed Unsecurad Bords 1,558,430 - - -
Madium Tevm Nafes 10,882 630 IO 450567 32,118,920 2475974
£6.,140,.258 23 4H5.454 3,118.920 LA7M5.904

AMMUAL REPORT 2021

508/616



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

pa 240 FINAMDIAL STATEMENTS

Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june £021

30. BONDS (CONT DL}
{a) Medium term notes ("MTHs")
{ij The MTHNs of the Company were Issued pursuant to:-

@ Commeclal papers (TPST and Mediunm teim notes [MTHsT) Programme with a combned master limi of AMS.0 bdljon
and @ suly-Tiniy o the 0P programing of RSO0 milion jofied iy he Bond Proqrminses”) pursaant Lo a progiammie
agreemant dated 17 june 2019,

A nominal value of RMS00 million of MTNS wins isseed on 25 Juse 2009 1o refinase e Company's existing
HMS00 milion nominal value MINs. The coupon rate of the MINs is 4600 (2020: 4.60%) per annum. payable
semi-annualy in amears and the MTHNs are redeemable on 24 june 2034 at nominal value,

A nominal value of RMS00 mélion ol MTRs was ssoed under the programme on 24 July 2020 a1 a coupon rate 365
jpr annum, payabie womi-anmsaly In srears. The MTNs ane redeemable on 24 july 2030 at nominal value.

A nominal value of RM240 milkon of MThs was issued under the programme on 4 September 2020 at & coupon
rate 310% par annum, payable semé-annually in armears, The MTNS ane redeamabde on 4 Seplembar 2023 at nominal
LETITEN

B} A MTHs lssuance programeme of up to RM20 Blion constituted by @ Trust Deed and Programme Agreament, both
dated 26 March 2013,

A pominal valie af RMLO billion of MTNG was Ssued nder the programme on 25 April 2013 af & coupon rate 4.30%
(2020 4.30%) por annum, payable semi-annually in arrears, The MTHS se redeemable on 25 Apeil 2023 at nomnal
valug.

A nominal value of BMS00 million of MTRS was lsued under the programme on 1] Bovember 2006 at o coupon rate
515% (2020 5.15%) per annum, payable seml-annually in amzars, The MTNs are redeemable on 11 November 2036
At nsiminal valye,

A& nocminal vaue of M500 mitlon of MTHS was ssued undar the orogrammea on 11 Hovember 2016 at a coupon rate
A 53% (2020 4.53%) per annum, payabia serni-anmsaly in armears. This MTHS are redeemable on 11 November 2026
at maminal valie.

fil} The MTHs of YTL Power International Berhad ("YTLPI™) were [ssued pursuant to:-

) Thi MTHS oF YTLPM witne SSutd oursuant 1o .a MTNS progrimime of op 10 RS0 bilion constituted by a Trust Deed
and MTMs Agreement, bath dated 11 Asgust 2011 The faciity bears inferest rates ranging from 4,49% to 4.99%
(2020 4.4%% 0 4 93%) per annum

Bl The lslamic MTHs af YTLP were Baved pursuant to ldamic Medium Tem Notes facility of up to BRM2.5 billian in
nominal vaue under thie Shanah principle of Murabahah (via Tawarneg Amangement) which constituted by 8 Trest

Deod and Facillty Ageacy Agreamant, beth dated 20 Agdl 2017. The taciity boars a prefit mte of 5050 (2020
5.05%) per anmum,
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30. BONDS (CONT'D.)
(a) Medium term notes [“MTHs") ([cont'd.}
(iii}) The MTHs of YTL REIT were issued pursuant to:-

Thie MTHs al the Croup wire iSsued pursuant to & MTNS issuance programme al up (o BMLESO milion constituted by a
Trust Deed and Programme Agreament, both dated 11 May 2016

A a1 pnd of the teparting period, RME10 million (2020 AMBLD millon) wese Ssoed o6 Tolows-

a) A maminal value of RMBS milicn of MTHs was ssued on 23 May 2017 1o finance the renovation costs camed out at The
Ritz-Cartton, Kualy Lumpur - Suite Wing and Hatel Wing, The MTHs ae redeemabile on 23 May 2022 at nominal valiae

B) A naming value of RMIE5 mafllen of MTNS wis issuad an 3 November 2017 to Tnance The acgutsiticon of The Maastic
Hortel ¥uala Lumpur by ¥TL REIT. The MTNs &e redesmaiie cn ] November 2024 at nominal value

£l A nominal valuo of RMEES million of MTRS was Ssused on 23 November 2017 10 refinanoo tho gadsting bormowings
of ¥TL REIT. The MThs are redeemable on 23 November 2022 at nominal value,

di A nominal valie of RMLD milion of MTHS was issieed on 24 May 20019 o refnence YTL BEIT exdsting RMIO milion
noaninal walue MTHL. The MTHs are redeemable on 23 May 2022 at nominal value,

@) A nominal valse of RMES milkon of MTRS was issued on 28 June 2019 to finance the renovation costs carmied out
ol W Marion Hated Kuala Lumpue. Tha MTRS are redesmabie on 28 [une 2023 at nominal valis,

Thie FTHE DEar Coupon rates ranging from 3.31% 1o 505% (20200 4.21% 10 5.05%) pir annum, payable semi-annisaly
I armears. ard Is secured by certain properties.

[iW) The MTHs of ¥TL Cement Berhad ("YTL Cement”) were isued pursuant to:-

In 2016, Bedab Cement Sdn. Bhd, o subsidiany of the Group, had established a Suluk Wakalah Programime (Sadok Wakalab?)
far the Issuance of up to RMS00 milkan in nominal value of Swkuk Wakalah, it prowedes KC58 the flaxibilty to raise funds
fiam time to timd wihich can Bo wtilised 1o finance ard/or 1o reemburse the aoquisition ol prapery, plant ard qulpment)
Irvestmenits 1o fund working capital reguirements and to refinance exsting bank bormgwings of KCSE. The Suuk Wikalah
Brogramme has a tenure of 7 years from the date of st suance of the Sulkuk 'Wakalah,

On 13 january 2017, KCSB made s second ssuance RMEBO milion n nominal value of Sukuk Wakalah, respectively based
an the Shariah principle of Wakalah and Murabahah under the Sukak Wakalah Programme to fund working capleal
reguirernents of KCSE, The Suluk Wakalah bore profit based at 4.60% per annum and has been fully settled 2020,

On 13 Decamber 2017 and 10 |uy 2009, KISE mate its thind a1d fourth issuande of AMLDD millien in nominal value of
Sulai Wakalah, based on the Sharah principie of Wakalah and Murabahah inder the Suiuk Wakalah Programme to fund
WEking capl requirements of KISE. The Sukauk Wakalah are due on 11 Degember SO0 and & |uly 2022 and bear profit
al 5009 o S06% per anfum, payatde semi-snnually, The thind Subkuk Wwiskatah Ras been fully senled in 2020

O 10 fuly 2019, KOSE made 15 [fth issuance of RM120 millian in rominal value of Sukuk Wakalah, based on the Shariah
principle of Wakalah and Murabahah under the Sukuk Wakalzh Programme to fund working capital requirements of KCSB.
Thie Sukuk Wakalah bore profit at 4.10% per annam and has been fully setiled in 20200

Cin 13 Jariary 2020, 9 juby 2020 and 11 Decembar 2020, X058 made its sheth, seventh and eighth Esuance of BM1B0 million,
RM1P0 mifonn and G100 millian in nomin salue of Skl Wakalal, Based an the Shadish prinfiple af ‘Wakalsh and
Mugababiah undar the Suiuk Wakalah Programme to fund warking capital reguireriems of KCSB, The Sukuk Wakalah ase
dus on 13 January 2023, 7 July 2023 and 11 Decemnber 2023 and bear profit at 460%, 4.55% and 4.40% per anpum
e tely, payalblie s anually,

AMMUAL REPORT 2021

510/616



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

pa 242 FINAMDIAL STATEMENTS

Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june £021

30. BONDS (CONT'DL)

{b) 3.52% Retall Price Index Guaranteed Bonds (“RPIG Bonds™)

The RPIG Bonds ol Wessex Water Services Finanue Ple. baar imberest semi-annually on 30 Jamiary and 30 |uly 41 an inlerest
e of 3.52% initially, indexed up by e Nflaton rate every yoar. Tha effective nenest e as an 30 june 2021 5 438%
(2020 5.779%) ped annum, The RPIG Bonds will be redeermad in full by Kssar on 30 july 2023 at their indexed vale togather
with @il accrued interast.

{c) 5.75% Guaranteed Unsecured Bonds

Un 15 October S004. Wessex Water Sarvices Finande Plc [(ssuer’). 3 subsidiary of the Group, fssued GBIF3S0 million nomenal
valLe 5./5% Luaranteed Unsecured Bonds due 2033 (75 75% LU Bonds™) uncanditionally and imevocably quaranteed by Wessex
Water Sendces Limited, o subsidiany of (ha Gioom Tha 5.75%% GL] Bonds ane comBitutad oandar & Trnd Dead dated 15 Octobes
2003, The nominal value of 5.75% GLI Boncs isseed amounted to GBPIS0 million and as at 30 june AP GEPI4R.TIT.T74
(2020 CEP346,532.441) remained outstanding, net of amortised fees and dscount. The net proceeds of tha 5 755, CU Bonds.
were usad for ralinancing of axisting financial indeatedness and for ganaral corparata puiposes

Thi Bonds baar intedest at 5.75%: por annum, payable annually on 14 October of each year. The Bonds will be redeemi< in
full by the ssuer on 14 Octobor 2033 at thair nominal valus together with all acomed inenest

{d) 5.375% Guaranteed Unsecured Bonds

On 10 March 2005 Wessex Waler Serdces Finando #c, (1sswer”), & subrichary of the Group, ssued GEFZ00 milkon namehal
value 537586 Guaranteed Unsecurod Bords due 2028 [75.375% GU Bonds™) unconditionally and imevecably quarantoed by
Wessen Water Services Limited [[Gusrantae™), a subrsidiany of the Group, The 5.375% U Bonids are constituted under & Trest
Cepd dated 10 March 2005,

Tha nominal vzlue of 5.375% GU Bonds rsued amounted to CEP200 millian. of which CEFF196,955.933 (2020 GBP198,830.1497)
remained eutstaniing a5 at 30 june 2021, net of amenised fees and discowent. The net proceeds of the bards wede wed Tor
refinancing of existing financial indebtedmess and for general corporate purposes.

The Bonehs Bezar ivtenest at 5375 % pirn anmusn, payabbe aronsally on 10 March of each yeer. The Dorsds will be redismed i
full by the Msuer on 10 March 2028 a1 ther nomingl value 1ogether with all accrued intenist,

(8] L.75% Index Linked Cuaranteed Bonds

O 31 |uly 2006, Wessex Water Senios Finance PIC (ssuer) issued two (2) ranches of CEPTS millan noming value |75%
It Liftkeesd Guaranteed Bonds (MILG Bonds 17} unc onditianally and irrevocality guarantesd by Wiesses Water Senvices Limited
[Camrantor~). The ILG Bonds 1 was each constituted under a Trust Deed dated 31 jufy 2006 and s unsequred.

Tha ILG Bonds 1 bear intevest seme-annually on 31 january and 31 ey at an interest rate of 1 75% intially, indexed up by the
inflation rate every year The etfective interest rate as at 30 june 2021 s 2561% (2020: 4.0084) per annum. The bonds will

I rocenmed in full by the Issues an 31 Uiy 2086 far one trenche, and 31 July 2051 for the athor Trochs 51 Thesr inciod
value tpgathar with all accruad inteest
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30. BONDS (CONT'D.)

() 1.369% and 1.374% Index Linked Guaranteed Bonds

On 31 january 2007, Wessex Waler Services Finanie P Mhsuer™) bsued GBRTS million nominal value 1.369% ndex Linked
Cudsaneed Bands and GBPTS million nominal value L374% index Linked Guaranteed Bonds, bath due 2057 (LG Bands 27)
unconditionally and Irrevocably guaranteed by Wessex Watler Senvices Limifted (“Guaranior), The ILG Bonds 2 wara sach
constimmed under a Trast Deed dated 31 [anuary 2007 and are ursecursd,

The ILL Honds ¢ bear interest semi-annually on 31 january and 1 July at an interest rate of L365% and 1.4/4% initally,
Indexid up by thee inflatan rale every year, The sffective ntemest rate as at 30 jung 2021 5 223% (2020 3.62%) per annum,
The boruds. will he redeamist i full by The Faer an 31 july 2057 ar thalr indieed valis eogether with all srcmed imoread.

(g} 1.489%, 1.495% and 1.499% Index Linked Guaranteed Bonds

On 28 September 2007, Wessex Waler Servicos Finanze Pl (Tssuer) issued GBPSO million mominal value 14899 index Linkod
Caprarteed Bands, CAPSO milkon nominal vakee 1495% trde Linked Guarantead Bomds. and GBPS0 million nominal valis
14%% Index Linked Guarantesd Bonds, all due 8058 (UG Bonds 57) uncondithonally and imevocably guarantesd by Wessey
wate Services Limited ("Guaraniod™), The ILG Bonds 3 wone each constitited unded & Trost Desd daed 28 Saptember 2007
andl are unseduned.

The LG Bands 3 bear nferest semi-annually on 29 November and 29 May at an inteest rate of 1.489%, 1.495% and 1199%
Initialy, indexod up by the inflation rate overy year, The offective intemest rate as at 30 june 2021 B 2/ 95% (2020: 4.12%)
per annum, The LG Bonds will be redeemed in full by the lssuer on 20 November 2058 at thelr mdemed value togethar with
all seerued intenest

{h} 2.186% Index Linked Guaranteed Bonds

On 7 September 2009, Wessex Water Services Finance Pic. (Tssuer®) tssued GBPS0 milkon rominal value 2186% Index Linked
Cuatamess Donds due 2039 (LG Bends 47) unconditionally ard irrevecably guaranieed by Wesses Water Services Limited
(“Guaranter”), The ILG Bonds 4 were constifuted under @ Trust Deed dated 7 September 2005 and ane unsecurned,

The ILG Bty 4 [aear aritenest seni-annualty on | Deoimdee snd 1 e ot an inberest rabe of 2186% nitially, islexed up by
the inflation rade eyery hall year. The effective inberes fite a5 ot 30 june 2021 ks 366% (2000 2.74%) per anmum. The ILG
Bands 4 will be redeemed In full by the ssuer on 1 june 2039 at thelr indesed value together with all accroed Interest,

(i} 4.0% Guaranteed Unsecured Bonds

On 24 January 20012, ‘Wesses Water Seevices Finanee Pic. (lssuer’). 8 sutsidiary of the Group, Bsued GEPZ00 mloh poeninal
walse 4.00% Guaranteed Unsecured Bonds due 2021 (4% GU Bonds™) unconditionally and imevocably guarantesd by Wessex
Water Serices Limitad CGualantor), a subsidiany of the Group. The 4% GU Bonds are comstitnted woer a Trust Deed dated
24 |anuary 2002, The nomnal value of 4% GU Bonds issued amounted 1o GBPZ00 mion. of which GBP199,933.431 (2020
GEP 59 867.155) remained cutstanding as at 30 june 2021, net of amortised fees and discourt. The net proceeds of the 4%,
CAl Bands wene Leed for refinanding of existing financial mcehtedness and far genedal corparate pirposes
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30. BONDS (CONT'DL)

{l} 4.0% Guaranteed Unsecured Bonds (cont'd.)

O 30 Augisst 2012 ‘Wessex Water Services Finance PG [asuer™) a sulsidany of the Group, ssued GBPIOD millkon nominal
vilue 4,00% Cuarantoed Unseoured Bords dup 2021 (4% GU Bords™) uncandiionally and irrevocably guarantoed by Wassex
Water Senvices Limited (MCuarantor), a subsidiary of the Group. The 4%, CU Bonds are constituted under @ Trust Deed dated
30 August 2002 The nomingl value of 4% GU Bonds Bsued amounted 1o GEFL00 million of which GBP100,155815 (2020
GEP1O1.090,703) reruired cutstandng @ at 30 june @021, ret of smortised Tees and discount. The met eocecds of the 4%
Ll Honds were used Tor refinancng of exsting finanoal indebtedness and for general corporate purpases.

Tha Boaids Baar interps1 @ & 00% per annum, payabie anmually on 24 Septembe of each year, The Bonds will ba medaemiad
in fuill by the bsuer on 24 September 2021 a1 their nominal walue togethar with all saccroed interest

Thit 4% GU Bonds GEFI00 millon due 24 Septormber 2021 wera comolidated to form a single sedes with the 4% GU Bonds
CBF200 millian which was issued on 24 January 2012,

(i} 1.5% Cuaranteed Unsecured Bands

O 17 Septomber 2009, Wessex Water Serdded Finance Pl (Clsuee™). o subsidiary of the Group, Hused GEP2E0 millon nominal
value 1504 Guaranteed Linsecures Bonds due 2025 (retaining CBPS0 miion) (1.5% GU Bonds™) unconditionally and irravocably
guarantoed by Wessex Wates Senices Limited ("Guarantor”), a subssdlary of the Group, The 15% GU Boands ane cofvstituted
undes & Trust Deed dated 17 September 2019, The nemiral value of 1.5% CU Bonds issued amounted to GBP200 million, of
which CEP108,568,097 {2020; GBP198,438,600) remaled cutstanding as at 30 june 2021 net of amartised fees and dsoount.
The Aiet procesds of the 1.5% OU Bonds were wsed Tof sefinancing of existing financal indebtedness and lar general compatars

TR

On 15 June £020, Wessex Waled Seniies Finance Pic, (TSswerT), & subdidiany of (e Group, Ssue the rétained CBPS0 mlion
rimiiral value 1.5% Guatanteed Unsecured Bonds duer 2029, The nomingl value of 1.5% GU Bonds msued amounted 1o
CBPSO milion, of which GBP49.157,361 (2020: GBP49.231,124) remained outstanding a5 at 30 June 2021, net of amorised
fees drnl discount The ret proceeds of the 1.5% GU Bomds were used Tol efinancing of exsting Ffinandial iIndelslediness and
for gerieral Compoiate purposes.

Thir Boanis Doar interest al 1.5% par annum, payable annualy on 17 Soptember of pach yoar, Thie Bonds will e edesmed i
full by the ssuer on 17 September 2029 at heir nominal vales together with all accrued snerest.

(k) L.25% Guaranteed Unsecured Bonds

On 12 january 2021, Wessex Water Services Finance Fic. (lssuer), a subsadiary ol the Croup. issued GEPI00 million nominad
vale 1259 Guarantead Unsaoured Bonds due 2036 (71.25% GU Bonds™) unconditinnally and rrevocably guamntes y Wessex
Water Services Limited ((Guarantor), 3 sstidiary of the Gmup The 1.25% GU Bonds are constituted under a Trust Deed dated
12 Jarmary 2021, The romenal value of 1.25% GU Bonds sl smeunted to GEP300 millian, of which CBRFS4EST 025 remained
outstanding o5 at 30 June 2021 net of smortived fees and dicaunt. The nat proceeds of the 1.25% GU Bends wers used for
refinancing of existing financial indebtedmess and for general coporate purposes.

Thi Bones bear intarest at 1.25% por anmum, payabie anmually on 12 January of each year, The Bonds will be redesmed n
full by the ssuer on 12 [anuary 2036 at thelr nominal value together with 2l aconied interest.
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31. BORROWINGS
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Note RM000 RM'000 RMOD0 RM000
Current
Barkers' aoceptances I1ia) 30,864 28,726 -
Dark oreerdralts L[k 26,051 45,047 - -
Hre purchase oreditors {41 1.542 16,882 140 411
imedeemable conyertible unseoured
foan shacks AL(d) 1122 2103 - -
Revalving credit Iie) 2,770,314 /688,005 1,066,855 L750.654
Taorm laans EL T 4,262,079 7333571 = .
7.091.972 11.114.438 1.066.995 L751L06S
Non-current
Hre puant haso oroditons ey 1,905 1,404 - 1 40N
innidaemahle comyertille uvsecured
faan stacks AL} 2,417 1,539 -
Resvahving it i) 1,554,002 L7 204 -
larm lnans =} 1] 13,096,000 10541, a0 -
14,654,414 12,596,167 - (e
Tatal
Baniers’ acteprintes lia) 30,864 28,726 -
Bark overdrafts A1k} 26,051 45,147 - .
Hre purchase cheditors EIl4] 3,447 20,365 140 551
Inedeemable comertible unsatured
laan stocks () 3,539 5542 - *
Revaving credit e} 4,324,406 SAE 213 1,066,855 L, 720 654
Tarm loans EH] 17,358,079 18175511 - -
21,746,386 23.710.505% 1,066,905 L.751.205
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31. BORROWINGS (CONTD.)

The bormowings of the Cous and the Campany are repayable as folioes:-

Later than
1 year but
HNot later not later Later than
than 1 year  than 5 years 5 years Total
RM'000 RM'Q00 RM'OO00 RM'O00
Group
At 30 June 2021
Bankes aceplances 30,064 - - 30,064
Bank overdrafts 26,051 - - 26,051
Hire purchase creditors 1,542 1,905 - 3,447
ICULS 1122 2,417 - 3.539
Fevolving credit 2.770.314 1,554,002 % 4,324,406
Term loans 4,262,079 12,156,531 939,469 17,358,079
7.091.972 13,714,945 939,469 #1.746.386
At 30 june 2020
Hankes acCeMances o WL - - s ]
Eank oymndralts 45,147 45,147
Hire prurchass Credinms 16,862 3A84 - 20,366
ICLLS 2103 3539 - 5,04
Revalving oedit 3.688,009 L#47.204 - 5435213
Tetm loans 7333571 10,173,500 EEE 440 18,175511
11.114.438 1L82r727 GEH 440 23710,605
Company
At 30 June 2021
Hire purchase creditors 140 - - 140
Revoluing credit 1,066,855 - - 1,066,855
1,066,995 - - 1,066,995
At 30 June 2020
Hire purchase omeditors 411 140 551
Revohaing crodit 1.750, 654 . L750,654
1751065 140 - 1751205

Thié camyireg amauts of thi bordeasngs of e Group aid of e Comparmy &5 at e reparting date approdmated thei Tair values
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The weighted average effective inerest rates ol the borrowdngs of the Goup and the Company &5 at the reporting date &e as

Tellows:
i 4 s e
2021 2020 2021 2020
% L L Y
Bariery’ aotoptancos 1482 4.0 -
Dark overdralts 110 110 -
LS 7.49 TA9 - -
Revalving credit 2.45 416 272 2B5
Tarm loans 2.02 18 - -

{a) Bankers' acceptances

Al the bankary stcepantes se unsecued and repayable on dermand

b} Bank overdratts

Al Thix bank oeerdralt faciities ane unsecured and epayabile on demand,

{c} Hire purchase creditors

The Group's finande lease bears mierest rates ranging from 156% to 4.97% per annum and the Company's finance laase

Dears inteeest fate of £27% per anmim,

Emup Company
2021 20z0 2021 2020
RM 00O RM'O00 RMODO RMODO
Mayabde not Later than 1 year L.540 171659 141 A6
Payabls later than 1 year and nat Iater that

5 years 2,135 3,450 - 141

Later than 5 years - 11 -
Tatal minimum lease payments 3,675 20,780 141 567
Lirss: Fiance clhangos (228) 414} 1) {15]
Present walue of minimum lease payments 3,447 20366 140 551
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31. BORROWINGS (CONT'D.
{d) Irredeemable convertible unsecured loan stocks [“ICULS")
ICULS 201172021
On 31 October 2001, YTL Land & Development Beshad {YTL Land™), 8 subisidiary of the Growp issued 992,378,023 ten {10}
years 3% STopping up 1o B% I0ULS at a ncmingl vahse of RM0S0 each, maturing 31 Ocober 2021 {"Matwity Date’),
The salient terms of the ICULS 20112021 are as folows-

[ The KCULS 200172021 bear a coupon rate of 3.0% per annum from date of issue (Clssue Date”) up to fourth annversary
of the Eswe Date and 4.5% per annum from the date af ter the fourth enniversary of the Bsue Uate up to the seventiy
anniverany of tha lssim Date, Thareal ter, tha K0S 200172021 héaar 3 enifon rate al B0%% per anmn U 16 1he maturity
date The interast ks payable semi-anmualy in amears,

[®)  Tiso BULS 201172020 are comsertibla an amy Timo an ar after its issuanco date imo now ondinary shaees of Y¥TL Lard a1
the corversion price, which ts fived on a step-down basis. as folows -
= For conyersion at any time from the date of issue up to the fowrth annkeersary, corversion peice |s AM132;

= For conversion at any time after fourth anniversary of issue up to the seventh annversary, Corversion oice is AMO 95
and

= Fof Gorvirsion ot any Time afted sevanth anniversary of i u@ 1o the maturity dofe, convorsian prico i AMOGE

(W) The ICULS 201142021 are not redeemable and any ICULS 201172021 remaming immediately after the matueity date shall
b randatarily converted into ordmary shanes ab the comersion price.

(i) The ness codinary shares issued friom the conversion of ICULS 201172021 will be deemed fully pakd-up and rank pari passu
in alll respects with o existing cidinary shares af YTL Land.

A certain amount of the ICLLS 2001/2021 are held by the Company {refer Note 15 to the finandal statements) The relevant
amounts have been elimnated in the Statements of Financial Positian
{e) Revolving credit
Save for AM3A7.905 mdlion [2020: AMZSE.209 million) revodving credit faclity of the Gioup whidh secured against proparties
ol thee subsidiaries, o8 1he revobing credit facilithes ste unsecuned amd 8 1he revolbving credit Facilities are repayabie on demand.
{1} Term loans
(i) Term loans denominated In Great British Pounds
It i the teim lnans are-

@) The term loans of RM43]602,500 [CBFFS millon] (2020; RM394,2)2,500 [GBPTS milon]) dre uiseowed loans of
Wirssim Waler Sevices Litndled arud arie guarantend by Wiessen Watis Limiled T loares Dear inteoed foles ranging
Trom 0,72% 1o 1.21% (2020 1.21% 10 1.27%) per annum and are repayable in Tl on 22 july 2021,
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31. BORROWINGS (CONT'D.)

(fy Term loans (cont'd.)
(I} Term loans denominated in Great British Pounds [cont'd.)

By The tem iosns of RMLIS0.940 rilion [GEPZ00 milan] (2020: RRMLOS3100 mdllen [GEP200 millken]j are urseuned
Iars of Wissser Water Servoes Limited snd aoe quaraniied by Wessex Walo Limdd T fiest losi of GBPSO millon
wis drawm down on 30 fanuary 2005 bears [nterest rate ranging from of 216%: to 2.36% (2020 216%:) per annum,
the sprond loan of GEPS0 mllion was drawm down on 9 Manch 2015 bears interest rates ranging from CL74% 10
0.94% (2020 L.27% 1o [ 4156 per anrum, he thind lcan o GEPS0 millon was drawh down on 9 Apil 2015 bears
interest rate ranging from L99% to 2.19% (204k 1.99%) per anmum, and the fourth loan of GEPSO million was
drawn down an 25 May 2UE bears interest rates rangang from LUV fo 161% (U2 LES% to 1/E%)] per annum.
All the bans aie repayahlie in full Betwesn 30 Lanisy 2024 and 25 May 2025

€] The term leans af AMI104.002 400 [CEP200 mikan] [2020: AMILOS3,100,000 [GEP200 milllon]) was drawn by
Wirising Water Senvices Limitod of which RMLO97.047.188 [CEP1S90.534.552] [2020: 1,044,436,968 [GER19A, 354, 756])
remanad outstardng as &t 30 june 2020, net of amortized fees. The inans bear Interest rates ranging from 109%
0 LEZ% (2020: LA1% to 203%) por annwm and are replyable with a 60% bullet repayment on 31 januady 2026
with the remaining £0% heing repaid in equal semi-amnual nstaments commencng 31 jJanuary 2021

Al the torm laans are unsooured.

(i} Term loans denominated in US Dollars
Included im the term oans ane:

aj  The tesm koan of RML038.575 milkan [USD250 milben] (2020: AM1.070 mililon [USD250 millon]) was drawn down
by ¥TL Ponwer International Berhad (YTLPT) on 31 March 2017 of which RM1,035, 850,635 [USD245, 344 206] (2020
AML, 0631537, 133 JUSD248, 482,584]) rmainpd outstanding as at 30 june 2021, net af amortised fees, Thi borowing
bears interest rates ranging from 1.29% o 13465 (2020: 1.37% to 3.60%) per annum and ts repayaale on 31 March
2022

by The term loan of RME30.660 millan (USD200 millien) was drewn down by YTL Utilities Finance 4 Limited an
25 MNowemnber 2020 of which BMB24, 761488 (USD] 98,532 million) emained outstandng & ot 30 Jure 2021, net
ol armetised Tees, The term (oan & guaraniesd by YTLEL The bonowng Bears inteest tates ramging liom §44%
£ L50F pear annum and s repayabie on 25 Novembar 2023,

€] The tem |ean of RMBSE milllen [USD200 milon) of previous finandlal year wars drmn down by YTLP on 17 Decormber
2015 and was fully repakd during the financial year, The borrowing bears Interest rates ranging from 1.20% to L25%
[202(k 1.25% t 3.36%] per annum

Al the term loans are unsecured
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31. BORROWINGS (CONT'D.)

{f} Term loans (cont'd.}
{1} Term loans denominated in Ringglt Malaysia

Save for e tenm laan of BM1.925.206 milllen (2020 AML954 450 milon) of the Grougp whah secued ajainst gusted
shubies ared propoesties of thie sutrsidinrics, all Uhe 1enm ioars ane unsecuned

{iw) Term loans denominated In Singapore Dollars
Included In the temm oan are:-

d)  The temm kaan of AMG,006,519 854 [5001,943,741 458) (2020; RME,064,279,851 [SG01,974,177 958]) was drawn
down by ¥TL PowerSeraya Ple, Limited [YTLPST) on 14 Sepramber 2007 and repayable in full on 12 September
2022, The bormowing i an ursecured loan and bears interest rates ranging from 1.55%% to LB45% (2020 1.55% to
3. 16%4) el SnnLm

The hank harrowings are subgect to laan tovenant clases stipulated in the lnan agreement. As at 30 june A2,
the Ceonap did not maet the requirement of a certain loan covenants and as @ resull, the borrowings have boen
classified A% currend it in the Statemont of Finanoal Pasition aof the Group. On 23 Septembes 2020, the Group
received a walver from the consortium of banks on the requirement to comply with the above loan covenants as at
30 pumi tEst datie The walwer Elltcl‘.ll.'ﬂ,' exfended the loan covenants compliance requinemants to 30 Maveamibied
2020, The extension provides tha Group with the oppartunity 1o meat two key requiements namely complation of
the secuntbisation documentation and Tuaspring Ple, Lid, (Tuaspring?) acquisition. As 2t 30 june 2021, the Group
matt the requiremant of all the loan cevenants, Undar the terms and canditions af the knan agrooment and as &
rasult of the compliarde a5 at 30 [une 2021, the breath of the loan covenant prior to 30 jung 2021 it deemed to
be remedied and na lenger continuing with effect on and from 30 june 2021, Hence. the borrowdngs hove been
clarssified as pon-curment labdities in 1he Statement of Financial Position of the Group for 30 june 2021,

Save for the term loan of RM275.729 million (2020: RM1,102.464 million) of the Group secured by first flxed charge over
the properties of the subsidiaries. al the term lbans are wnsecuned.

(v} Term loans denominated in Australian Dollars
All the term loans are secured by first fed charge over the propertles of the subsidaries,

{vi) Term loans denominated in japanese Yen
All the 1erm loarms are secured by first Mied charge over the properties ol the sulmsldaries,
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32. LEASE LIABILITIES
The details of lease Nabilities are as follows-
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM000 RM'OOO RMO0O0 RMOOO
Preseniod a5

Curment 180,091 159613 6.716 6,843
Mon current 1,303,867 1,443,868 9.056 2339
1,483,958 1,603,481 15,772 o182

Thie Grow's mansity prodile of kease laDickes ane desclosed in Nate 38(F) 10 th Tinancial statements.

Extersion and temmination options are included in @ number of property and equipment leases acmoss the Group and the Company. These
ane s o mandmese operational Teotity n tenms of managing thie assets used in the Growp and the Comgany's cperations. The magsny
o tention and hermnation options hald one exercsabiie only by the Group and B Company and not by 1he respective lessor,

Some property lBases contan varishle payment terms that ane koed 1o sales with percentages ranging fiom 1% to 5% of sales.
Wariahle lease payments that depend o0 sales are mecognised in Income Statement in the perind which the cordition that triggers
those payments ooours,

{a) Metinvestment in leases

Group

2021 2020

RMODO RMO00

A beginning of the financal year 15,886 16,739

Additlons - s.o87

Interest incoms 573 LiZa

Leais paymants recohed {4.76E) 17,068]

At ard of the financal yaar 11,6493 15,686
Presanted as-

Clrngnmt 4,107 4,193

Mam-Curmeant 7.586 1693

11.693 15,886

The Group keases concrete mixer tnecks to thind parties. Each of the leases contalns an iritia non-cancelabla period of 7 yaars,

Thesa leases transfor substantially all the risk and rewards incidantal to ownenship of the concrete miser trucis. Theso leases
do not incude buy-back agresments or residual value guarantees.
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32. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONT'D.

{a) Metinvestment in leases (cont'd.)
The ledse payments to be rece el are o lollows-

Group
2021 2020
RM'O00 RMO00
Less than 1 year 4.507 4,766
1to 2 years 3.524 4,507
2 1o 3 years 2,597 3,524
3 18 4 yiars 1,345 2,508
4 o 5 years 537 L3345
Mare than 5 years - 537
Total undiscounted lease payments 12.510 17277
Unearned intesest noome (|17} {1.351)
Met Investment In leases 11,693 15,6886

33. GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

Group
2021 2020
Note RM'O0O RM'DO0O
A1 beginning of the hinongial year 506,669 SG0.B2E
Cumrency transdation ditferonces 48,011 LB&S
Amortsation of grants and contributions 7 {21,548) {15,166)
Rexaivied during the financial yoar 38482 43343
A1 end af tha finandial year BE1.614 GOGRGRS

Crants and contribautions mainly comprise government grants n foreign subsidanes in respect of specific guality ng espenditure on
mlias iUt ture aisels and & cog@heration phant.
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34, DEFERRED TAXATION

The fodlowing amounts, detenmined alter spproprate ol setting. &e shown in the Statements of Finanoal Position -

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM D00 RM'DO0 RMDO0 RM 000
Defarred tax Eablitien net 3,060,348 2.1654,004 13 113

Thi gross moyement on i getered income Tax acoount 5 as Tolkmes:-

At beginning af the financlal year 2.164.004 2073139 113 113
Chargod fo incoma Statemanty 611,681 144,558 -
- Progerty, plant and squpment 598,755 184,067 =
- Property devalogiment [1.621) baz -
= IV Tment propertses 3.602 2.dl =
- Rotinmnent bening 12711 16,550 -
= Prowision (167) o7 -
= Limailised capinad allowanoe (301 {20.625) -
= Unalmoibeed o ossin 15,355 [#.677) -
- beases 335 (3575 a
= Cthers (17.988) {12.807) -
Curency tramlation diffeences 179,819 10,234 -
Acqusition al subrsidinny 6431 4,933 -
Chargedd{credited] to Other Compreharsie income® 98,414 (49,984) -
Domacognition of subsidiany - [VB.E7E) -
At end of the financlal year 3.060.349 2,154,004 13 113

* ThNY I I PETO0N 10 Ae-meTsement of post-amplsyment benefir obliporions
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONT'D.)

Defemed tan assets and lisbilibes are offset when thede s a legally enloiceatie right 1o 58t ofl Inome tax assets against incoms
Tan Babilities and when the dieferred taxes relate 1o the samse tax auihorty. The Foliowing amoents determined after sppropiate
offsetting ane shen in the Statements of Fnanclal Positkon::

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM'OOD RM'ODO RM'OO0 RM'OODO
Deferred ta assets provided ane in respect of -
Ceferred tax assets before offsetting
Uniitilised eapital abmaantes 176,227} {iEE.E99) - -
Retirement benefits (108,232) [174,567) - -
Unabsorbed tax losses (231.754) (225.587) - -
Proseson (5.612) {5,915) - -
Leases [1.963) [R.166) - -
Others [102.999) {113.352) - -
[626,722) [MO0.48E) - -
Offsetting B26. 792 Toh.486 - -
Dfemied tax asdets alter of fseting - - - -
Deferied ta liabilities provided ane In redpect of -
Deferred tax liabilities before offsetting
Propesty. plant and eguipment
- capital allowances In excess of depreciation 3,619,999 2800277 113 13
Land held for property developmant 47,077 I6EZS -
Cthars 20,065 25,368 - -
3687141 2 BE4.480 113 113
(ffsetting (626, 792) (FO0486) = =
Deferred ta liabilities after offsetiing 3,060,349 2164004 113 114

¥TL CORPORATION DERMAD

523/616



EDINETOOOO

Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)

Oooooooa

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  pg 255

MNotes to the Financial Statements

- 30 June 2021
34. DEFERRED TAXATION [CONT'D.)
Delered fax assets have not been recognized in respect of the lolowing ems:-
Group
2021 2020
RMODO RMOOO
Unabrsarbed tar losses 1,379,207 1,393,101
Unistised capital alfowances 2,682,431 1,300,968
Deductible temporary diff erencos 167,565 170,634
Taxable ternporary ditferences - property, plant and oquipmant |352.6495) (B20.424)
3.876.508 2.241.359

The watrsoebied tax sses and iutiilsed capilal allowences aie subject to sgresmedt with the inlaed Reves e Board On e other
Tand, @lfectpae Brom wear of assessment 2019 &5 anraunisd n thi Annual Budget 2009, 1hi wunised Lax losses of (R Groos a5 at
3l December 2018 and thereafter will anty be avallable for carry forwand for 3 perod of T oonsecutive years, Upod expiry of the 7
years, the unahsoroed T3 lassas will be dksreganded.

35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 ZOED
Hate RM'0DO RM'DODO RMOOO RMDOO
Defined contribution plans - Current
Maliysia A5(a) 7.048 5281 ns BT
Defined benefit plans - Non-current
Malaysia 351k} 21,764 21,937 -
- United Kingdam 35(c) 437,922 B69,215 = =
= Indamesis 35(d} 21,996 19716 -
481,682 10,898 -
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35, POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT DBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)

{a) Defined contribution plans
Crosip companes incoipodated in Malaysia contribute to the Employess Provident Fund, the national delined contribution plan.
Cnce the contribution Rave been paid, the Group and the Company have no furhéer payment obligations,

(b} Defined benefit plans - Malaysia
Tha defined benefit plars typically expases the Group 1o actuanial rigks sech 2 longewity risk and salary risk.

(i) Longevity risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability s calcubated by reference to the best estimata of the mortality of
PE PAMTICIPIN TS Guring This employment, An inoease in he e epedtandy of the plan participamts will ncneesoe the
s llakaliny

{il} Salary risk
Thee presient watue of the defined benefin plan labidity is cakoulated by relerence o the funee salaries of plan participants.
An scich, an nerpade in th wlary of the plan partcipants will incresse ths plan' liablty.

Thir most recent actuanial valuation of the plan assets and the present valse of the defined benefit oblgation were camied
out on 28 Auguest 2020 by an extarnal actuary,

Thit proent valse of the delined benelit abligation, and tho related cunont Serdte Sast and past SoMvion cost, wono moaared
using the projected unt crodit method,

Thit princpal octuaial assumprons at the end of the reparting pesod ane os Talows-

Group
2021 2020
B L]
Ciscount rate 39 34
Future salary Increase rate 5.0 50

Srisitivaty afushysis-
Sxpnifichn actusial assumptsan for the determination of the defined benefit cbiigation i the discount rate. Thi sensitivity

analysls below has been detenmined based on reasonably possible change of the respective assumption occuering at the end
of the repoiting petod while hoidng a8 other sssunption constant

It the discount rate increasef{decrease] by 0.5%, the defined benefit obligation would decrease by RMS59,471Ancrease by
RMLOEZ, 212 (2020 dedroase by RMLO1E. B16/Anmeas: y RMLOB1, 738)
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)
(b} Defined benefit plans - Malaysia (cont'd.)
Sensitivity analysis- (contd)
Thie muwements in the et Bability recognised In the Statements of Financal Position ane as laolkaws-
Group
2021 2020
RMO00 RMO00
At beginning of the financial year 21,937 55, 146
Charge/(Reversalj for the financial year 201 (19487
Benefits paid/payables {1.074) [16.261)
Artuarial lowms recogrised in othaer comperehensyve income - 2333
At ard of the financal year 21.764 21,837
The amounts recognisad in the Stitements af Financial Position are analysed as folows:-
Group
2021 2020
RMO0D RM'000
Presant walve of unfunded ohilgation 21.764 21,937
Reconciliation of the present value of unfunded chiigation are as follows:-
Group
2021 2020
Ll gilili] RMOOO
At beginning of the finandial year 21,937 55,346
Actuarial lows - 2339
Berefits paid/payabley {1.074) [16.2E])
Current senvite cost 70 [LEGS)
Curtaitmant gain - 17679
Inferost cost |31 87
At and of the financial year 21.764 21,937
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS [CONT'D.)
{b) Defined benefit plans - Malaysia (cont'd.)

The amounts recogrised i the ncoms S1atements are as Tollows:-

Group
2021 2020
RM'OO0 RMO00
Curmen] SeMvice oo 70 {LE95)
Interest cost a3l a7
Curtaiment gain - (17875)
Total charge to InCome Statements 801 (19,487)

(e} Defined benelit plans - United Kingdom

A subisitliany af the Group operates final salany delined benalin glans foe 1S amployees e United Kngdam, the assets of
witich are hiold in separate trustoe-adminisioved Tunds. The latest actuarsl valustion of the plan wos undertaken by o gualifed
aciuary as at 30 September 2019, This valuation has been adjusted 1o the reporting cate as at 30 june 2021 taking atoount
of eHperience over ta pefiod since 30 September 2019, changes In markst corditions, and differerces in the inanclal and
demographic assumpbiors by the guakfiad actuary,

(i) Profile of the scheme

The gdeired beni it chigations include beneils for Lt amposse, fonmer smployies and cument penconors. Broadly,
about 28% of the Rabilses are atfribiutabie 1o current employees. 1% 10 Former empioyees and 55% to cusrend pamsloness,
The schame duration &5 an indicator af the weghted-awerage time until benedit payments are made. For the scheme a5 a
whol, The duration i around 18 years reflecting the approxmate spit of th defined bonetit ahligation between curmant
employess [duration of c24 years), deferred mambers [duration of <24 years) and current pansioners [duration of ¢13 yaars).

{il} Funding requirements

LI legislation requines that pention sthemmss dre fundad prudently. The bst nding valsstion report, 30 September 2019
shawed a daficit of CBFIS7.0 milban (RMS03.5 million). The subsidiary = paying deficht contributions of:-

+  GEPL4 B0 milion (RMES.2 milkan) by 1 July 2021:

= GEPIG.ED millicn (RMA5 S milllion) by 1 july 2083

= CEPLEA0 mion (RM105.9 milkon) by 1 july 2023;

= GEP20.20 milon (RMI1G.2 milkon by § july 2024,

+  GERPZZO0 millon (RM126.6 million) by 1 july 2025

*  GEPE3E0 milon (RMI3T.0 milion) by 1 Apeil 2026

which, alondg with irvestment Feruins Trom menum- Seeking assets, i equecred to make good 1his sharial by | April 2025

The next funding valuartion s due no later than 30 September 2022 at which progress Bowarcs full-funding will be
P
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)
{c} Defined benefit plans - United Kingdom {cont'd.)
(§) Funding requirements {cont'd.)

Thie subsiciany aso pays contributions of 24 6% of pensionabés salaries in respedn of ourrent acciual and nan-imestment
Fokatid goopenses, weith aCTive members paying 4 Turiher 7.8% of pensionatibe salifes on imerage. A contribution of GEPL4.80
miltan [RMES.2 milion) Is expected 10 be pakd by the subsidiary duing the year ending on 30 |une 2022,

(lif} Risks associated with the scheme

Agset volatility - The lalwlines are calculated Lang o dsoount rata set with referende 1o comporate bond yeldy if assets
undemperform ths yiekd, this will oeate a deficit. The scheme holds a significant poportion of growth assets [equities
inchiding @ divirsitiod growth Tund and a clobal atrsolute return fund) which, Thoogh CocTad 10 GuUtpamem (rparate
bonds N The long tarm, oraate velatiity and sk in the shisrt-tarm, The allotitan to grovdh wse1s s monifored 10 ensies
it remains appropriate ghen the schema's ong-tem okgectives,

Changes in hand yislds - A dedroate in comparate band yiekls will incroase the value plated an the schara’s labilitiow for
arcounting purposes, although this will be partially offset by an intrease in the value of the scheme's bond ho'dings

Inflatice risk - The magority of the scheme's berefit obligations are linked to infiation and higher inflation wil lead 1o higher
lizhilities {althowgh. in most cases, caps on the level of inflatiorary increases are in place 1o protect against extreme
irflation]. Thi: majesity of the sesets aee ither unatfeciod by ar only leosely correlatod with inflation, meaning that an
Inomase in inflation will also introase the defict,

Ll expest tancy - The majariny af the schermes abigatiens ame 1o provide benefits Tor the (e of the member, 5o inereases
in e gxpectancy wil mesull in an incroasa in the liobiities. The tustees insure cortain benefits payable on death bofode

retirament.

The movements during the financal year In the amounts retognised in the Statements of Finandal Position ane as follows-

Group

2021 2020

RM 000 RM0OO

AT 1 fuly H69,245 BAT.O50
Pansinn rost 73,632 FL ]
Comributons and benetits paid {120,782) {125,949
Currency translation ditferences 63,158 L0B3
Ra-measuremeant (gain)loss (447.331) 229,403
AL 30 june 437,922 869,245
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS [CONT'D.)
{c) Defined benefit plans - United Kingdom [cont'd,)
The amounts reccgnised in the Statements of Fnanclal Positon are as lolloes:-

Group
2021 2020
RMOO00 RMO00
Present value of lunded ctiligations 4,722,344 4,424,366
Fair value of plan awsets (4.284,422) 13.555.121)
Lishility in the Statements of Financial Position 437922 BRO,245
Changes in present walue of defined benefit obligations are as followsi-
Group
2021 2020
RM'DO00 RMOO0

At July 4,424,366 4,081,555
Currency transation differences 407,168 9,610
Intefest cost 75,574 95,364
Current service oo 55,850 SRS
Contributions by schema participants - 530
Past sorico oSt 556 -
Net berafits paid (142,257) [LASLO4EY
R mssasuremend (ganifons:-

= ArTuanial gain aring from demographic assumplions - [73,647F)

- Artuanial {gain)loss arlsing from financial assumptions (38,343) 21,589

- Actuarial {gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments (60.570) 1h.232
Presant vaiue of defined benefit chligatkors, at 30 juns 4,722,344 4,424,366
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)
(e} Defined benefit plans - United Kingdom {cont'd.)
Changes in far valbue of plan assats are as followa-
Group

RMTODO RMO00
AL T July 3,555,121 1,393,605
Currency tramslation ditferences 344.010 8,547
Interest income 61,682 FRATO
Centributions by employod 120,782 125,949
Contributions by schame partidpants - 530
Net benefits paid [142.257) 1143.046)
Adlminstration espenses [3.334) {1,709
Re-measapemeant gain:-

- Retum on plan assats eacheding intanest income 348.418 93,075
Fair value of plan assets, at 30 june 4284422 3555121
The pertsiun cost recognised s analysed a5 ollows:-

Group
2021 2020
RMODO RMO00
Clirtint Sefviie cast 55,850 57175
Interest cost 13,892 15,834
Past semvice cost 556 -
Addrinstration espenses 3,334 1709
Tatod chamge 1o Income Statements 73,632 ]
The charge to Income Statements was Inchuded In the following e (fems:-
Group
2021 2020
RM OO0 RMOOO
Cost of sales 54,165 ASBE3
Idminesiration aupenses 5,575 15221
Intanest cost 13,882 15,894
Total chafge 1o lncome SEatamants 73,632 ThRTTR
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS [CONT'D.)
{c) Defined benefit plans - United Kingdom [cont'd,)

The peirdgal assumpleon wsed in e sriusiis] caliufaling wete ab fobmes-

Group
2021 2020
o L]
Ciscount rate 1.90 160
Rate of Increase in panson payment 210 - 2.90 190 - 260
Rate of increase in salares 190 180
Iniflation - RM .00 2710
Inflation - CRI 2.50 220

Mty assLmpions:-

Thir miitalicy assumpitions aie based wpon the recent actual mertaity coperence of sthemss membirs, and allow lor expecied
Tuture imononements in mormling raes,

2021 2021 2020 2020
Male Female Hale Female
Years Years Years Years
Life aspectancy - cument age 60 259 28.4 2.9 2.3
Lifa expectancy - cument aga 40 471 49.6 470 455

The mitaity tabke adupted B besed uptn 105% of standaid tabdes S3IMMYFIA aljusted 1o alluw for inileadiaal years ol i,

Future Enprovements are assumed (o ba in line with the O 2018 core grogaction, with a long-term improvement rate of 1.0%
pa for al members.
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)
(e} Defined benefit plans - United Kingdom {cont'd.)
Seqsitivity andlysis-

Thiz iy assuimnglions used fon MFRS 119 Employes Benelits” ae: discount rate, inflation and mortaling, i1 dilferent assumgiions
arg sl 1his Could have a mateial #Tect on e tesulis dischosed, The sensilivity of tha resalts 10 1hise FSsumglions ae set
out below. For the puposes of these sensitivities, it has been assumed that the change In the dscount rate and mflation has
ne impact on the value of sCheme assers

Seheme llabilities Seheme delicit
Incresse by Imcrease frem Increase to  Increase from Ingrexse to
Key assumpticns AM000 RHDO0 RMODO RMO00 RM000

W infuE Bon 5 the Ssiounl e of 1%

{irom 1.5% m L5%) B4 4723 4, B06,938 437988 52516
&2 incregse in the inflation assumgtion of Q%

{Irem 2.5% o 255 for [P and 309 1o 11%

o BP9 Bd.853 A TELS4 Ly =T 43 am 502375
& increase in ife expectency o 1 year 196,811 ATELIH 4319155 A3z [:EL REE]

Thue plan sty compimed thie Following::

2021 2020
RM000 % RMOO0 %
Efuity Instrument 1,790,287 41.8 1142087 321
Detit Imstrument 2,097,588 49.0 1,948,235 Lo N
Pronerty 240,546 56 193,770 55
Others 156,001 A6 27029 75
4,284,422 100.0 3555021 leele]

Group
2021 2020
RMODD RMODO
Artual relurm an plan #sets 410,100 173,245
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS [CONT'D.)
{d) Defined benefit plans - Indonesia

Sunmary of abligalions ielating 1o employes benefits dues wider prevaling Law and requlations as well as under the Indonesiz
Subsidian’s requianions are il presented Dfaw:

__ e S
2021 2020
AM'OO0 RM'OD00
Chligation relating to post-employment benalits 18,310 17.261
Chligation reating to other bng-Term ergioyes benedits 2.686 2455
Total 21,996 19,716

A subsidiany of the Group has a defined contribution pansion plan covering its quakfied permarent national emaloyees in
Indannsiz Th subsidianys contribution is 6% of empoyes basic salary, whie the smpioyses” Contriouton ranges fram 3%
o Ld%h

Thie cartributians made in the defined contritation plan are acoeptable foe funding the past-employment Benet s under this
labarr requistions.

Thir ablgatiant for pott-ompleymant and athor lang-term amplvyed bonelils wone moognned with reforends ta actuarial
reparts prepared by an indepandent actuary, The latest actuarial report was dated 30 jure 2021

(i) Post-employment benefit obligations

T movemonts diring the linancial yoar in the amaunts redogied in e Statoments of Fnsncial Pasition aro a5

Folaws-
_ ey B
2021 2020
RM'OO00 RM'O00
Ar july 17.261 14,021
Fensian cost 2,200 1924
Contrutans and benetits paid (659) LEEEY
Currency trarslation differences (785) 534
Re-aeasuramant bss L1264 1415
AR 33 June 19,310 17.261
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)
(d} Defined benefit plans - Indonesia (cont'd.)
(I} Post-employment benefit obligations {cont'd.)

Thie pldigations refating 10 post-employment benetits recognised In thi Statements ol Fanancial Position ane a5 Dollows:-

Group
2021 2020
RMODO RMO00
Present walue of oblgation 19,310 17.261
Chargies 0 present value of datined Deoent ablgations am a5 Folaes.
Group
2021 2020
RMODO RMEO00
ALY July 17,261 14.021
Curmency ranslation differences (765) 534
Interest cost 1179 L1013
Cusrant sefvice cosl 1,030 a1
Met benefits pakd [659) (B33
Fia-measuroment lessa{gain:
= Actuarial bss from demographic assumptions - LE9a
- Actuarial ks arring from financal assumptions 1,650 -
- Actuarial gain arising from expenience adjustments [386) (283
Prissont vadue of defimed benedit ohiigations ar 30 june 19,310 17.261
The penssan cost recognised can be anatysed a5 folmas:-
2021 2020
RMODO RMOOO
Custent senice cosl 1,030 i1
Interest cost 1.179 Lai3
Tatal chargie 16 IRcoms Stalamants 2.209 La24
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS [CONT'D.)
{d) Defined benefit plans - Indonesia [(cont'd.}
{ii} Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The '.ltﬁqdl.l.'l’l‘a il'ld'.ll'k.] Lo ather luHr-'l:"III'I NI“WM Eenefies {1 o W} lEave Service Ll}‘.'ll'fllh:l reCogresed in the STatements
of Financial Pasitian are a5 Tollows:

Graup
2021 2020
AM'O00 RM'O00
Present vahue of obligations 2,686 2455

Thea movements dunng the firangial year in the amount recognised in the Statements of Finencial Position ae a5 follows:

Group
2021 2020
RM'OO00 RM'OOO
AL july 2455 2329
Psrrsdan Cosl 478 503
Actuarial bassi[gain) 20 32
Contrisutions and benefits paid (158} (424)
Cutroncy trardation diffemntes [roa) M
At 30 |une 2,686 2455
Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:-
Group
£0z1 2020
At 1 july 2455 2329
Currency trarmslation differences (Lo9) T2
Current “emice it 473 485
Actuarial less/figatn) 20 EF]
Interest cost 5 18
et berafits paid {158) (&24)
AR 30 june 2,686 2A55
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35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)
(d} Defined benefit plans - Indonesia (cont'd.)
(i) Other long-term employee benefit obligations (cont'd.)

Thie amixunis rélating 19 athes ong-term employee benel s obligation recognised in ihe Irome SEisments ae as

Tollowrc
Group
2021 2020
RMOD0 RM000
Cireent senvice cost 473 485
Intedest cost 5 18
The change shove wat intludad in 1he cost of sales
Thee peincipal assumptins used in the acruarial cabrulations wene a5 follows:-
Group
2021 2020
Y% Yo
Disdonunt rate 63 73
Future salary Incresse rats 9.0 an
Sensitivity analysis
Reasonasly possible changes to thi key assampbons, would heaee aff ectod the dofired Benelit chligaions by the amounts
showm below-
2021 2020
RM'00D0 RM 000 RMO0DO RM'O00
Increass Decrease Increass Decrease
Diseonmt rate (1% movermant) (935) 1,044 {1472} 1.3n3
Futufa salary inCrease Fte
(1% mwement] 1,778 (1.631) 1,7m {1,562)

This analysis depices thi aaprodmale sensitvity of the benefits abligarion o a redssnatile possible change i pssumptions,
bt does not take accaunt of the varlabifty in the fiming of desmmbution of benefit payments expected under the plan
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36. PROVISION FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

Rectification Damages
works Restructuring claims
F6(a) 36(b) 36[c) Total
Note RM'DO0 RM'O00 RM'O00 RM'O00
Group - 2021
A1 beginning of the hinancial ye 4,810 28,417 103,374 136,601
AchiEtiain - 19,250 - 19,250
Accretion of interests - S0z - 902
Cuwrency transiation differences & 40 2.339 2.385
Credited 1o mcoms STatements Fi - |7.204) - {7.304)
Transfer from othar cument Rabilities (781) - - (781)
Papments = {1,977} (95) (2.072)
At end of the finandial year 4,035 39,324 105,618 148,981
Presented as follows:-
Cimrent 4,035 11.576 105,618 121.229
Mon-cument - 27,752 - 27,752
4,035 39.328 105,618 148,981
Group - 2020
A1 baginning of the financial year 6528 39.903 101182 147613
Ciprercy transtation ddterences (B 43 FA LS 2228
Credited 1o Ieome Statements ! . (4.437) ) {345
Payments LA [#.092) - (BB04)
At end af the Minasgial year 4. 810 eBA17 103,374 136,601
Presented as follows:-
Cumresin 4. 810 28417 10374 136,601
Mon-cument - - -
4,810 2BA17 103374 136,501
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36. PROVISION FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES (CONT'D.)

37.

(a) Rectification works

The provision relates to the estimated cost of recti®icathon works for compieted project.

{b} Restructuring
The proweson for labiites and chages relates o waling down of opamaficns, environmental liabilities and assat mtiremant
obfgation

{c] Damagaes claims

The provisson of damages claims relate 1o projects undertaken by subsidianes and ore recognised for expected damages daims
based on the term of the applicable agreaments.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM'0OO RM'0O00 RMOOD RM'OD0
Trade payables 1.892.457 L3315 - -
et payahiles 380,588 B, 750 1Lio2 AT
Detesred incoma §9.266 ZAE] - =
SOty oeposits 118,185 117802 - -
Actrued expenses” 1,295,442 5a1.268 26,956 16.583
3,695,939 3,044,525 28.058 17462

* Rrrnasd DEPRNTAE MOl COMPR AR pIpekes, MeguicTory rows and ropinl sependitim

The credit terms of trade payables granted to the Group vany from 30 days to 180 days (2020: 30 days to 180 days). Other credit
torms dnd assessed and approved on a case-ty-tase bass
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3B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s and the Company's 0Rerathons 4re subject 1o foreqgn cuimency exchandge sk, nterest rate sk, prcs risk, credit risc and
Iiguidity risk,

The Group's and the Company's Taancial 15k managemant palicy Seeks 10 BNGUNe that atequate resounes are aallable 10 manage
hié aboe tisks angd 10 croate vahe for s shareholdors. 11 15 not tho Groups and the Company's policy to 8ngade = specuiative
Transaclions.

Thie Boadel ot DirecTors reviews and agoees polickes and pracedunes for managang each of thess risks and they ane summarsed
beslore-

{a) Forelgn currency exchange risk

Fareign curanty axchange rsk i the rek 1hat the Tair valug o future card Tlows of a financal Instrumant will flucise becmne
of changeat in foreign exchange rates.

Thi Gresp b eaposce b ks arsing froim anaus curronty experures. primadily with raspect 1o tha Groat Britrh Paunds [GEF7)
and Singapare Dollars ("SG07). The Growp has investmends in forelgn operations whose net assets are exposed 1o foreign
cusrency translation risk Such exposures are mitigated through borrowings denominated in the respective functhanal cumendles

Where necessary, the Group enters into fonsand foreign curency exchange contracts 1o limit its exposwe on foreign curesncy
recefyables and payables, and on cash flows generated from anticipated transactions denominated |n foregn curentes.

There is no significant exposare to foreign cuency exchangs sk for the Group and the Company,

{b) Hedge of a net investment in Australia

A1 the reporting date, the Group's investment in its Australin submidaries are fedged by ALD bank laan with a carrying smount
of AMBES million [AUDETE millon] [(2020: B2 billan [AUDA0E1 mdlicn]) which mitigates the cumency risk artsing from the
sulrsifianys nil ssers, The loa s designatied &5 4 nel invesimes) hedge,

Tha Groun datermings the existence of an economic relatiorsaip batween the abave hedging instrument and hedged item
based én the curency and amount This Group has estabinhed 3 hedg ratio of 112 (2020 10E) a5 e undervng risk of
fthe hedging instrument 15 Menical 1o the hedged rsk component, The Group has assessed the effectivenass of the sbove
hedging relationship at the reportng date by comparing changes in the camyming amount of the lnan that « attributable 1o
Changes in The exchange rate with the changes in the net investment in e To@ign operation cue 1o Movements in the
e LAnGE Falo.

{c) Interest rate risk
Intetest e fik & the sk that the fwr walue ar future cash o of the Group's and the Cempany's financkal instraments
will fluciuate becase of changas in markal iMarest rates.

Thir Greug's anid the Company's eapoture to Intene<t e sk Mise primarily from thalr flaating rte bonds and bomowings,
which i partially offset by the deposts and short-term mvestments held at varishle rates. The Group and the Company managa
thedr cash flow interest rate risk by wusing @ mix of fiked and variable rate debits: Derivative financial instruments are wsed,
whehe apprepriate, 1o genarate the desired ienest rate profike.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.)
[c} Interest rate risk (cont'd.)

Thie interest rate profile of the Groips and the Comparys significant interest-beaiing Mnanci instumeis, based on Lhelr
CAMTYEU] OIS a5 at The reparting date, ane s follows:-

___..p ———— S— , S——
2021 E0Eo s § Z0E0
RM0O0O RM'0O00 RMO00 RM'ODO
Fized rate Instruments

Financial labsities 22,943,057 19,511.005 3,240,000 2500,000

Variable rate instruments
Finarcial assets 12,243,775 113091668 901,855 B57.269
Financis liabifities 22,131,386 24,075,239 1,066,985 L75L205
34,375,161 35,384,407 1,968,850 208474

AL e pepoiting date, (T U diter st rotes had been 50 basis points lowen g, with all abhers variabdes Tedd constant, e
Group's ardd The Company's profit after tax woud be higheower by approximately RM110.6 milion (2020 RM120.4 milion)
and M3 méllion (2020 B8.8 millon] ’E’M'I’EHI’. &% a resuit of H:mer.l'n;her INTEr@st EXDense o Wh’m

The Geoup and the Cormpary do nat account for any fixed e mstruments at fair value through profit or loss. Tharefore, a
change in interest rates at the regorting date would net affect their profit after tac

The ewress funds af the Group and the Company are invasted i bank deposits and other shart-term instrments. The Groim
and thee Company manage thedr Bquidity risks by placing such excess funds an short-term maturities 10 match s cash Tow
nende. I intoresr depersit rates inerpasdddeomaued Iy 10 bakis ponts, intoest [neoma af he Giodp and the Company for the
financial year would incregsefdecraase by RM1Z2 million {(2020: RML1.3 millon) and RM0S milllon (2020: BMLO million),
respelthiely

{d] Price risk

Equity price risk
The Group's and the Company’s exposure to equity price risk anse prmarily from their investments in quoted securities.

To manage thi [afice risk atEing from imostments in oquily securitien, thi Group and thi Company desrsily thain portolic.

At the reparting date, the Group's and the Company's caposure to guoted oquity Evestments at fair value ane BML 759,730 millian
{2020 AMLA22.160 millipn) and AM1 2687 million (2020; AMI0E80 milllen), resoed thiehy,
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (CONT'D.]
{d) Price risk (cont'd.)
Equity price risk (cont'd.)

The following talde demcnstrates the indicative effecs on thie Group's and the Compaiy's equity appheng reasonably foiesesatihe
markel mosimenis in the quoted marked prces a1 the reporting date, assuming all othor sarisblis remain constant,

Increasel
Decrease
In quoted
Carrying markiet Effect an
amounts prices equlity
RM'DO0 % RM'ODO
Group - 2021
Local equities 363,799 +f- 10 36,380
Faredgn equities 1,425,931 +f- 10 142,593
Group - 2020
Local equities AET270 ++ 10 A8, 727
Faredgn emqilties 534,890 /10 93489
Company - 2021
Lotal oguitios 4,‘5! +f- 10 485
Farsign equities 7.834 +f- 10 783
Company - 2020
Local afpaties 3,071 #/- 10 7
Faredgn equities 7809 #= 10 o1
Fuel commodity price risk

The Group hidges its Tued commotiy price fisk by the use of derhwative nstrumsants aganst fluctuations in fuel oll pces, which
afect the cost of fual.

Thia Grtmipy Fad confrcts fad he dake of elsctncty 1o this Segapore alecticily pool 01 prces that ane Heed in shvance ey
three months and 1o retall customens (Those meeting a minimarn aeerage monthy corsumpton) at prces that @e either fued
in amownt or o priceg fommala for perinds up 10 8 nomber of years. The fodng of the prices under the confracts s based
lnrgesy on the price af Tuel of regiered 1o genefate the electtcity. The Groap enters into fuel ol swaps i hodge agains
adverse price movements of fuel ol prices. The Goup typlaly enters info a swap to pay a fixed price and receive 2 variable
price (ndaxed 10 2 benchmark fuel price index,
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.)
[d} Price risk (cont'd.)
Fuel commodity price risk {cont'd.)
Exposune 10 pice furiuatons artsing from the parchase of fuel oll and naneal gas ae sutstanidly managed da saaps whee

the prico is intexed 1o o benthmark Fuel price index, for exemple 180 CST Tuel oil and Dated Brent. Thee Groug’s ssposure 10
the thetuation of forwand price cuve s immaterial

(&) Creditrisk

Credit risk ks the potential finardeal kss mesufung from the falure of & cownlemmanty to sattie Ther abligations (o the Group
and the Company,

The Group's exposine 1o cred? sk arises grimarily fram trade and other eoeivatiles. Meanwhie, the Company's expasiees 10
credit risk arise fiom other mecefvables. For other financial assets (including investment sacirities, cash and cazh equivalents
and decivathos finandal instruments), thi Group anid the Cempany minirses credit sk by deatng seolshael with high onedit
Faiting CoumBrEarios.

Cancentration of credit risk

Due to thie nature of the Group's business, customers @8 manly segregated according to busingss segments. in the Group's
poer generation business in Malinsia, trade recenables are solely from its off taker, a national electricity utility comgrany and
the tounterparty risk s considered to ba minimal, As for the Group’s powser genaration bisiness i Singapore, credit reviess
ang performed on 3 oustomers with estaliished credt limits and gonarally supported by colatedsl in thi Teem af guaraniecs.
For the Groug's veator and severage busingss, the crodit risk of recenables is mitigated through strict collection progeduncs.
The Darectoss are of the view that credst risk ansing from these businesses is limfed due to the large customer hase,

Trade receivables, unbilled receivables and controct assets

The Group applies the MFRS 9 simplified approach fo measwre ECL which wses a ifetime expected loss allowance for #l trade
recalvaiies, unbiied recelvables and contract assets To measwe the ECL. trade recelvadles, unbilled recelvadles and contract
fmaats have boen grouped based on sharsd credit rise charactentics and the days pat due,

The expected loss rates are determined based on 1 year to 13 years of historical ageing profile and the cosresponding histarical
cidi! hrsairs oxporhnced waithin [his peilod Thie hstoncal koss rates s sfjusted 10 fellect Tomwsd-looking iinfocmasl=n aii
makroeconoimic factors affecting the abikly af the customens 1o setile the receivables, Some of B factos which the Group
has ideniied indude unemployment rate, econamic trends, and annual Geoss Domestic Product (COOPT) growth and has adjusted
thie histoncal 155 rates based o expecied changes in such Tactons.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.)
{e) Credit risk [cont'd.)
Trode recefvables, unbilled recelvables ond controct ossets {cont'd.)

Dn that biasis, the loss allpwance was determined a5 Tollows fow raie necerdalles, unbilled recesables, contralt assets and

rivfatid partios:
L Past II.I.IE »
Current 1-90days 91 - 120 days » 120 days Total
RMDOD RMOOD REODO RM'DOD RM"000
Group - 2021
Grorss, carmying amauni
- Trade receivaies 1132.272 226,779 37.135 HE9.052 2.265.238
= Unblked receivables 946467 - - - 946,467
- Comract ety lgz. 72 - - - 19z.712
2,271,451 226,779 37,135 BES,052 3,404,417
Allowance for impament
- Trade recehvatles (57.781) {18,349) {6.723) [454,353) {537.206)
Unbiled raceivables {E.191) - - - {8.191)
Comntract assots {lﬂj - - - il’]
(B5,991) {18,349) |6, 723) (454,353) (545.416)
Mat carrying amount 2,205,460 208,430 30,412 414,699 2,859,001
[ R TSNS - {4 ] |17 ————— 3
Current 1-80days 91 -120 days » 120 days Tatal
RMDDD RMDDD RMODOD RMDODD RMDDO
Group - 2020
Gross canrying amau
- Trade recehralies 1,045,367 169,582 45,814 B44,668 2105431
Unbiled mecivables 766,106 766,106
- Comract asels 202118 20 11E
2,013,541 169,582 45,614 Ba4,668 3073,655
Allew ance for impasmesn
- Traa racaivaties (1263) {21.203) (10.353) {513.043) (557,230
= Unbdied receivahles (#.566] £ * o { F.568)
= COMFACT JSS00s (L) {110
[ 201, 30%] {21203} (10.353) (513.043) {564,908]
Met carrying amount 19932482 148,373 5,461 331,625 2508747
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.)
(e} Credit risk {cont'd.)
Trode receivables. unbilled recefvables and controct assets foont'd. )

ALt reporting date, the makimum exposue to oredit dsk of the financisl assets af the Geoup and the Company ane represented
by ths caryiing wmounts in e Stements of Fingncial Position. escegt Mo the Group's tode rocevabies on electicivy and
steam saies whene the Group will assess each customer Individusily and typlcally require collateral in the form of bankers
guarantess or depesits from selected customers,

Cash and bank balonces

The Group and the Company place its cash and bank balances with a mumber of creditwortty finandal mstitutions, The Group's
and tha Compamy's pokcy Bmit the congentration of Tinancal expature 1o any single Tinancial instiution. While cxsh and bank
Balences are o sulject o the impairment requirements of MERS 9, the identilied impssement oss was imvmatesial
Derivative financial instruments

Tranmsactions involvirg denivative finandial instruments ane alowed only with Counterparties that ane af high cedn quality. As
surh, management does nod espact any countedparties ta Fal to mest thair abigatione. The Goup and the Companmy considar
the risk of matenial loss o the event of non-performance by & financial counter party to be unkoaly,

Other recoivables

The Groap and tha Cornpany e the 3-stages spproach for the ECL on the ather reoavables. and smount dus from related parties.
The 3-stages approach reflects thelr recesvables oredit rsk and how the boss allowance is determined Tor sach of those categories.

B summary af the assempleons anderpinning The Group's ard the Company's ECL model is a% followe::

Category Group's and Company’s definition of category Basis for recognising ECL
Parforming Debrors have @ low risk of defautt and a strang capacity to mest 12 monih ECL
comtracieal cash fiaws,
Unidenpercaming Dittibors for which theee is a denificant increase in credit risk is presumed — Litetime ECL
il Intorest anddar principal ropayments ane 90 days past dun.
Mon-performing Dabtors ant repaymants anre mone than 385 days past due Lifatima ECL
wiite-off There 5 evidence mdicating 1hat there is no reasonable axpectation  Asset is written off

af recovery based on unavailabdity of debtor's sources of income
ar assats 1o generate sufficient futune cash fiws 1o repay the
Amaunt.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.)
{e) Credit risk {cont'd.)
ather recelvobles (cont'd.)
Based on ihe asove, |oss allwance 1s measuied on eithier 12 moanth ECL o lifetime ECL using a P« LGD x EAD methadalogy
Wi
* PO [peobability of default] - the likelihood that the detvior would not be able to repay during the contractual pefioc

= LGD (loss goven cefadt) = W percintage of contrat el o o vl ot Der collected 7 defasl lapgens and
+  EAD [exposure at default] - the cutstanding amount that is esposed to default rsk

I Aeciving The PO and LG tha Gioup and the Caingany condder histadloal date Iy aach debitar by rateqony amd acpsts fod
Frrwarrl-Inoking macmeconomic data The Group and the Company have dentitiad the industry and geographics: amea which
the debiior operates in to be the most relevant factors; and accordingly adposts the historical loss rates hssed on expected
changes m these faztor, Loss allowarce s maaured a1 a probability sasighted amount that refBacts the podsiblity that &
cradit lass occurs and the possibiity that ne credit loss aoours, No significant dhanget to estimation techniques o assumptians
wore made during the reparting period

Thie mawimum credit rick exposure of the financlal assets of the Group and the Company are approxdmately thedr camrying
NGUNLS 35 at the and of the reponing perod.

Movement on the Group's and the Company’s koss allowances Is as follows:-

Trade Unbilled Contract Related Other
recelvables  recelvables assets parties  recelvables Total
RM'O00 RM'O00 RMO00 AH'DOO RM'DO0 RM 000
Group - 2021
ALl July 202D 557,230 7.568 110 134 156,748 T21. 790
Alowance for imparment ol
Tetithiatie 107,121 - - 623 4,752 112 4596
Wirite back of impairment of
receivalies {36,085) 78) (91) - (69.114)  (105.368)
Wiritten off during the Tnendal
yeai ay ungollectibie [112.,623) - - - (1.952] [114,575)
Currency transiation
differees 21,563 701 - - 22 22,286
At 30 June 2021 537,206 8,191 19 757 90,456 636,629
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.)
(e} Credit risk {cont'd.)
Trade Unbilled Contract Related Othar
recoivables  receivables assats parties  roceivables Tatal
RAM OO AMOO0O ‘000 RM'000 RMOOD AM0DO
Group - 2020
A1 july 2019 4507 - 388 34 150,580 B52119
Arising from acquisition 7158 - - - 199 7357
Abawarce far impairment of
recevatles 166,965 1615 - 100 1979 170,659
white back of impairment of
recevables [12.285) - (E7E) - [4,62) [17.192)
Derecognition of subsidlary it . . E . et
‘whittern off durirg the financial
year as uncobectible [BEL238) - - B (L B9 {5 B
Curtency ranmlitian
d#ferences Tis 41 - - 318 565
At 30 june 2020 557230 7.568 g 134 156,748 721750
Related Other
partios receivables Taotal
RM000 RMO00 RMOD0
Company - 2021
AL 1 fuly 2020 116,859 1,765 118,624
Wwhite back of impairment of receivables {194) - (194}
At 30 June 2021 116,665 1,765 118,430
Company - 2020
At 1 July 2019/30 june 2020 116659 1,765 116,624
)y Liguidity risk

Liguidiny risk is the risk thar thi Growp and the Comisamy wall sndourted Aoty inmessting fnancia olfgations due o shorage
of furds. Thie Groigs and T Companm’s exposune 1o bgudiny sk amses prmarly from mismatohes of the matunsaes of financisl
assats and lahilites

Thie Group’s and the Company™s abyective are 10 mantain & balanoe between contimiity of fundng and fexibility through the
use of stand-by credit facilities.
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3B8. FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (CONT'D.]
{f} Liguidity risk {cont'd.)

The talile below summalses the matwity prolie ol the Group's and the Compaigs Tnancl® labites al the repoiting date
Inateie o con s ual undscoumntied repayment ofligations:

On demand

or within
1 year 1to5years  Ower 5 years Total
RM'000 RM'DO0 RM‘DOD RM'0O00
Group - 2021
Man-derivative:-
Trade anid other payahles 3,686,673 179,350 - 3866023
Bonds @nd hoerowings 10,742,683 21,586,915 25,260,213 57.589.811
Leasa latiites 288,825 871,706 1.096,338 2.256.869
Redated parties 38,411 - - 38,411
14,756,592 22,637,971 26,356,551 63,751,114
Derivative:-
Fusd ol savaps 792 121 - 7313
Currency fomsards 11,629 592 - 12,221
Electricity futures 15,253 - - 15,253
34,074 713 * 34,767
Company - 2021
Man-darivative:-
Trachs and other payabies 28,058 . - ZB,058
Bonds and botrowinigs 1,208,125 2,155,560 2,035,200 5,398,885
Lease lintiitis 7.074 9,432 - 16,506
Reated parties 4. 460 - - 4 4E0

1,247,717 2,164,992 2,035,200 5,447,909
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38, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.)

iy Liguidity risk {cont'd.)

The table below summarises the matuity profile of the Group's and the Company's financisl Balslitles 21 the reporing date
based on contractual urdrcounted repayment obligations:- {contid)

on demand
or within
1 year l1toSyears Over 5 years Total
RM'ODD RM 00D RMODO RM'OOO
Group - 2020
HNon-derivative:.
Trade and other payabies 3,096,791 160,996 - 3206787
Bands and bormwings 12,764,580 17,744,755 2T T4 520 SH.25LAT
Lersa Batilities 20 B30439 L1574 Le93dre
Ralated parties 39.212 - - 39217
16.110.703 18745150 28.935.252 63.751.145
Derivative:-
Fuel il ywgrs 7L 329 - 185,010
Currency forwaids 3,094 2102 - 5196
Electricity futures 139 - - 139
174,944 15,41 - 190,345
Company - 2020
Non-dervativa:.
Trade and othor payabes 17462 - - 17.462
Bardks amd bonowlngs 1,938,236 1375,080 2007650 5352166
Leasa Bahilities GiB43 2339 - Glae
Related partics 4,708 - - 4.708
1968247 1377419 2037850 5383518
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

{a) Caregories of financial Instruments

The tabie belew prosdes an snatyus of Nnandkal imstiimenits ategoised as lolloeas:

< Financial Assets H
Falir value Derivatives
Amodtised through used for
cost  prafit or lass Ioiedgiirag FuDLI Taital
Note RM'DDD RM000 RM'000 RMO00 Q00
Growp - 2021
Hon-current
Investments 16 - 50,783 - 254,935 306,718
Trade and otfer recetvabies 0 1,536,579 2EO.178 ® a 1,805,757
Cerpvtve finandial intturents zl - E 26,461 . 26,461
Current
Irmstmenis 18 - 2473454 - - 2473454
Dertvate financal instrurents il - 42 263,677 . 263,719
Trafe and other retenvalies 20 3.230.086 E . . 3,230,088
Amouiit dus Protn elaied parthes ) 42910 - - - 92,910
Fapd depomits 6 L5223, 776 - E - 11522776
Cah aned hank balanoss e 2155871 - - . 2,155,871
Toed 18,538,222 2,793,457 200,138 254,935 21,876,752
Y = 11T P T Rt (1] ] S ———
Fair value Derivathves
through used for Amoitined
prafit or koss hedging rost Total
Nota RMO00 RMO00 RH000 RMQ00
Group - 2021
Man-current
Liarg-term payabies 29 - - 174,350 178,350
Bonds o - . 20.756.133 20,756,133
Bomowings 3l - - 14,654,414 14,654,414
Lazse habilties 3 - - 1,303,867 1,303,867
Derivatves financal mainumenss il E ] 674 - na
Current
Trade and other nayabies n - - 3686673 3.686,673
Derfvatnves finandal rstiuments Fd - 34,074 . 34,074
Amaunt dug 1o related parties 25 . . 38,411 38411
Bonds 30 B - 2,571,924 2571524
Bomowengs = || - - 7,081,972 7.091.972
Laasa kabibties 4 - - 180,091 180,091
Tous I 34,740 50,462,835 50,497 622
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39, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.)
{a) Categories of financial instruments (cont'd.)
Thie table belowr rovites ah analysis ol Tnanclal astroments calegorised o followa:- {(ontil)
L e s e Financlal Assets -———-eormmmemieees E
Fair value
Amaortlsed through
cost  profit of loss Fvoa Total
Nate AMOO0 AMO00 RAM'000 RM'000
Company - 2021
Hon-curramt
nyEsiments 1B - 44,300 9,595 53,855
Curment
Trade and othes recehables Full 7.383 - . 1383
Amoun due from related panes =] 1,342,593 - - 1,342,559
Invesimants iB = 654,708 = E54,708
Fined deposts fa} c47.147 - - 24T 147
Cash and bank batances ] .0m - - .07
Total 1.600,200 699,008 9,595 £.308,807

:.-—-—.I-;hlnd.a-l IJ.lhdItthl ------ ¥

Amaortised
cost Total

Note RMO00 RMO00
Company - 2021
HNon-cument
Baoruds 0 3,240,000 3,240,000
Leass fabilities 37 9,056 9,056
Cumant
Trade and other payables ar 28,058 28,058
Amaunt due 1o related parties 25 4,460 4,460
Borrowirgs 31 1,066,995 1,066,995
Lioase lahilities 32 6. 716 EB. 716
Tatal 4.355.285 4,355,285
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359. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.)
{a) Caregories of financial iInstruments (cont'd.)

The tabie belsw prowoes 4n analyss of financkal IRstruments categoitsed a5 lollimws:- ILHI!'U.:I

< Financial Assets H
Fair valug Dorivatives
Amodtised through used for
cost  prafit or lass iedgirng FuDLI Taital
Note RM'DOD RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RHa00
Growp - 2020
Non-current
Iestments 18 = 362195 = 4278 404,511
Trade and other recefvaties 20 L353.360 . . - L5130
Dervartne: financial instnoments 21 - - 10585 - la585
Curramt
It ments 18 2300589 - 2300589
Derivatye financial instruments i | - anz ES547 . 74,259
Trade and other receivables 20 2B44313 - - 2844373
Amount due from related parties Fal G564 - = = CIRG4
Farsl riagerirs 6 LI = Py | = C - 10325271
Cash znd bank Balanies 2B LA5s011 - - - 1265001
Towl 15982559 LET2E96 a1 A2TIE 1B 704,403
e s e -erveeem= FANENCIRE LIBDAlIEIRS - moeemm i £
Faif valug Derivatives
through used for Amortised
prafit or boss hedging sl Total
Hote RM'000 RM'000 RMDOO RMra00
Group - 2020
Man-current
Larg-berm paiyabies 29 - - 168,998 165,596
Bonds 0 - L 19655635 12655635
Bonowings E | - - 12596167 12596167
Dertvatrves financial instruments £l 13575 LB2G - 15401
Liaaie habitthes R’ - . Ledzace L443868
Current
Trade and other payabies B - - i0m.Ta 03T
Dertvates financial mtruments. 2l - iTa54a - 174,544
Amount dup 1o related partiies F - . £ ) E el
Bonds 30 - - 220,000 220,000
Bomowings 3 E . 1134438 1104438
Linasa il s @2 - - 159613 158613
Totad 1351 e £5435.024 & bhUEY
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39, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.)
{a) Categories of financial instruments (cont'd.)
The iable below provides an analysis of Tinanclal mstruments categorised & followa:- (comil)
L e 4 |11 L T ety E
Fair value
Amaortlsed through
cost  profit of loss Fvoa Total
Nate AMOO0 AMOO0 RM'O00 RM'000
Company - 2020
Hon-currant
InwEsimants 1:] : L] 5559 a4 s
Cument
Trade and othes recehables 20 B2 - E G012
Amouin die from related pantes e} L3468 . - L3408
Investmants. 1] - 755199 - 755199
Finedd deposts % 16207 - - 102.0t0
Cash and bank batances % 1523 ' . L3239
Tatal 141347 100425 059 2213503
¢ Finandial Liabilities ——3
Amartized
ost Total
MHate RMODOD RMODD
Company - 2020
Non-curment
Baorvls. =0 2500,000 2500000
Borrowirgs 31 140 1400
Lease Gabilities - 2339 2333
Cumrant
Trade and other payabdes 37 17462 17462
Amaunt due to misted parties 25 4,708 4,708
Barmowings a1 1751065 L7SLDES
Lease labilities X G4 6843
Tt 4, 782557 4 FHESST
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.)

{b) Fair value measurement

Thie talle below analyses Tinancal irstmments carbed at lalr value, by valuatlon method. The dilferent evels have been
dafined as Fallows-

(i Liwdl 1 Quoted prices (wnascljusted) in active markers for identical assens of Exbilivies.

(®) Ll 25 puits ot D quotiod peices ndhedied wikin Lisvel 1 that ane atnosdalile for this 35500 o lalbidity, sither dimtly
(le. prices) or Indrectly (|2, deried from pices),

(M) Lewel 31 inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on obsarvable imarket data (unobservable irputs)

Ar the repofting date, 1he Group and the Company held the Tollowing mantal instrumants carried at fair value on tha Statements
of Financial Position:-

Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 2 Total
RM 000 RM'DO00 RM'OO00 RMOO00
Group - 2021
RAsseis
Financial assets at fair value through profit o
loss-
- Trading derivatives - a2 - 42
= I cmededquity Fands - £.505,067 - 2,505,067
- Eiqusty investments 12,687 6,483 - 19,170
Derivatives used for hedging - 290,138 - £90.138
Financial assats at Tair valse through athar
comprehensve incoms 24,588 45 230,302 254.935
Talal 37,275 2,801,775 230,302 3,069,352
Liabilities
Financizl Gabilities at fair value thraugh profit o
I -
- Teading derivatives - L - 19
Cervative used for hedging - 34,748 - 34,748
Total - 34,787 - 34,7687
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39, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.)

(b} Falr value measurement (cont'd.}

ALt reporting date, the Giowp and the Comparny hekd the Tolowing linancial instnements camied 3t {ar value on the StHements
ol Finincial Position:- (iontd.)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RE'O00 RMO0O0 RMO00 RM000
Group - 2020
Assats
Financaal assets an 1air value thiougn
profit ar loss-
« Trading derieatives - B,712 87z
- InComesaquity funds - £326.334 373,363 2bi9nar
- Buity Investments 10,680 3,607 - 14,487
Dertvirtives used Tor hedging . 76,132 . 76132
Finantkal assets o1 ar value thiough
oiher comprahantve incone 22238 a1z 0,066 42716
Totwl 33,116 2415197 349 278114
Liabilities
Financidl llabsiines at fair vaue through
profit or kss-
- Trading desieatives - 13575 - 11575
Dertvative isied Mol hedging 176,770 - 176,770
Tulsd = 190,345 = 190,345
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359. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.)
{b) Fair value measurement (cont'd.)

AL repoting date, thie Group and e Company held the Tollosding Dlnsnoa retuments caed ab fal value on the Stalements
of Financiad Position:- [cent'd)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RM'OOO RM'DO0 RM'OO0 RM'OO00
Company - 2021
Assats
Financial assets at tair valise IlII'.'II.ﬂh PN o
Irss 12,687 654,708 31.613 E946,.008
Fincial assats at tair vals iheowugh othar
comprehensie incoma 5 . 9,584 8,598
Total 12,692 654,708 41,207 708,607
Company - 2020
Assats
Fimancial astoes at Tair wal thioigh profiy o
lerss 10.BED 5515949 24,34k 790,425
Fimancinl astees at Tair valse throgh athpr
comprehensve income 5 - 6,594 8,559
Toral 10,HES 755,199 33.940 800,024

[uring thie curront financial year, them wend nd transloed betweon Losel 1 and Lovel 2 Tair value messu eimants
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40, SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the purppse of hese inancia stalemsents; parties ére consibered to be related to the Group |f the Group of the Company has
the ity directly or Indireily, o control the party of exencse signilicant influance ower the ey in maiing Rnsnclal and operating
detisions, o vice versa, or where the Group or the Company and the party are subject to common cantrol of common significant
influence. Related parties may be iIndeiduals of other entities.

Koy management personnel ane defined as thowe persons hawing authaority and responsiblity for planning, directing and contralling
the activities of the Group sither directly or indirectly. The key managemant personng indude all the Directars of the Group.
{a) Significant related party transactions

(I} Inaddition to related pany discosures mentianed alsewhere in the financial statemants, set out below e other significant
related parfy ransactions.

Group
2021 2020
Entity Ralationship Type af transactions RMODO RMODOD
Aliance Concnete Singagare jeant yenture Sale of cemert and concrate 95,053 B
Pa Lid company
Business & Budget Hatels Basndiated Lease rental of investmant 3.150 6,300
{Kuantan) S¢n, Bhd Company property
Bristnl Wessax Biling Services |eént venture Billing ared debts collsction Bl.221 54,040
Limitod company
East West Ventures Sdn. Bhd. Subrsidiary of Lease rental of investment proparty 10.813 2L626
halisng comparny
Rantal income from cutsource of 6,716 17602
hotel roams
Eloctradet Py, Lid. Assodlateg INEEasT Moome 26,370 24,271
company
Express Rl Link Sdn. Bhd Asspciated Progress bllimgs related to civil a:,.un' TAZ0
company enginesning & comstruction woeks
PT. [awa Power Assnciated Managament, operation and 61,949 G116
comany Fantensnce Toes
Starhlill Global REIT Associated Lease expemes G2 889 13,653
COMpEny
Progress billings of construdtion 83,833 TE510
WS
Burka Management leas 44,533 10267

Property management fees, leasing 17,464 R
COMMILSion, snicer fees and ather
fees

AMMUAL REPORT 2021

556/616



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

P B3 FINAMDIAL STATEMENTS

Motes to the Financial Statements
= 30 june £021

40. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D.}

{a) Significant related party transactiens {cont'd.)

(i

I bt 1o refasted party dscloswes memtioned ebsswtie in thee franclal statements, set oul beiow o e other skjinilzn
relited parmy ransacoions, [Contd.)

Group
2021 2020
Entity Relationship Type of transactions RMOD0 RMOO00
Syarikat Palanchongan Fanghkor Sutrsiciary of Lease rental of investment property 4,043 8820
Lanit Sendirian Berhad hoidirg company
¥changing Malaysia Son. Bhd. Jaint wenture IT Comsultancy & ralated services 34,064 36,425
company EXpEnGes
Campany
2021 2020
Entity Relationship Type of transactions RHM'O00 RM'O00
WTL Land b Dewelopment Barhad Sulrddiary ICLALS InEcrost motme a 9731
Pinnacle Trend Sdn. Bhd Subsidiary Rentad of premises 7.698 4,716

The folawing significant transacikans which have beon transactod with close family members of koy managemont
parsannal and entities controlled by key management personnel and chose Family members are as folows:-

Group
2021 2020
RAM'DO0O RM'DO0O
Progress bilings related to purchase of propertias - MH. 766

The DireLars are of thie opinion that thie sboe transactions heve bisen entered into in the narmal course of Husine
and haye been establishad on terms ard conditions negatisted and agreed by the related parties,
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40. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS (CONT'D.]
(b} Related party balances

The sh;rul'runl Teddled party balane o5 at linancial year ended excep discosed i other notes Lo the Tinsnclal statemesis as

Tl g -
Group
2021 2020
RM 000 RMO00
Starhill Clobal RETT
- Tenan deposits 7.140 14,281
Progress billings 162.343 Ta510

(€} Key management personnel compensation

K@y Managemont persanngl arg those persors having sauithoety and responsibility for planning. deacting and contralling the
actwitios of the Croup and the Compary, dieclly o adeectly, mcluing amy Director (wihether esscutive or olherwise) ol the
Comparry.

Koy maragemant personnel of 1the Growp and tha Company inclhsles the Dirsctars of tha Company,

Graup Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
RMODD RM'ODD RMODD RMODD
Directors’ and key managemant personneds
remineration
- short-erm amployee benefits 45,101 S5.882 1,558 1585
- difined ontiibution pliss 2,568 4,616 3 134
- benefits-in-kind 971 1294 - -
- shiare opicn Expenses 5.604 1909 3.351 4,735
54,244 Fa,ml 4,982 BG4
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41. COMMITMENTS
{a) Capital commitments

e L :
2021 2020
RM'ODO RM'O00
Authorised but ot cortracted for 644,980 TH2.205
Contracted but not provided Tos 711,181 1,088,500

The above commitments mainky comprise purchase of SPare parts and proparmy, pLANT a0 BGUREMENT

Group
2021 2020
RM'TO0 RMOOO
Capital commitments in redation 1o addition kvestment 74,912 75174

{b) Operating lease commitments
(i) The Group as lessor

T Group leasers oot s land amd Duiding, telecommunicatiors eguipment, plant amd inschinery, The Group dessiflied
thise leases a5 operaling leases, because hey do not transfer substantially & of the risks and rewards inckdental io the
owniianip of i a5, Thie following ralile $e1% out the manfity schodule of undscounted lrase payments 1o b
receivad after the mporting cate.

Group

2021 2020

RHM'ODOD RM'OO00

Less than 1 year 182,310 le8.860
Detween 1 1o 2 years 134,703 121113
Between 2 1o 3 yaiars 118,459 ne0s
Between 3 to 4 years 110,107 110,862
Betwoon 4 10 5 years 108,115 4,272
Later than 5 yaars 51,670 734714
Todal undiscounted lease paymants 1o be received 705,364 65121

Thase lesses clessilied as finance leses ae disdosed In Hote 32{a).
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42, SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The GEowp has seven reportabie seqments as described below-

{g) Construction

(b information Techmalogy & e-commaeroe redated Dusniss
{t] Hotel openations

{dy Cement and bidlding materials indusiry

{e} Management sarvices & othars

{f} Froperty invesbrent & development

{0y Unilities

Management has determined the operating segments based on the mports revewad by the managing director’chied exenfive
officers [MDsCEDST) that are used to make strategic dedsions.

The MD=AEDs recelve separata reports for power generation (contracted), Multi utidities business (merchant). water and sewerage
ard mobile broadband network, they have been aggregated Into one repontable segments (UiEes) as they have similar economic
charactoristics and thase detal segments infodmatien disthased In YTL Poweet International Barhads anmial repoet which wallalia
Tor publc use,

Althaugh the information technolopy & e-commerce related business segment does not meet the quantitatiee threthokds requined
try MIFRE B for reportable segments, management has conchudad that this segment should be reported.

The MOLCEQs consider the business from both a geographic and business segqment perspective, Geographically, managemant
manages and monitors the business in three pimasy geographic aneas: Malaysia, United Kingdom and Singapare. The detads of the
gpeagraphical segrments are disclosed in the below nate of the Ninencial statemems
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42. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTD.}

The sagirent infonmation orvsded to the MOSACECS for the repartalle seqments is 45 Toliows:-

Infmmatien
necknolagy & Cement and
E=0Ommeron builfing  Managemest Fropeity
relzted Hotel materizls Senvices  |mvestment &
Lonstruction business  opeatiens adustry Gethers  develapment Utlithes Tetal
REG00 RHOO0 L1 ] RED00 RH000 L] RWO00 REG00
2021
Bwenus
Total reverus L5E3.261 B4 A58 47417 52117 SALEES 10590570 19774616
o o R P ey @Ean pam o ) e
Extertal revenug L514.505 22 42012 4093509 195,768 366,59 lOSTRILY 1R.EM0.419
Results
e o 15287 ft] w3 25182 4183 457 6,011 58,360
Finangz (mts [7.243) i} 24,568 [183,455) [536.961) [175.724) [E17.056)  [LS55.04T)
Share 2l ety of vgialed
COMpEnies and jpirt venbnes . - {6.609) 18,049 [#4.305) BLAT 367,113 9,523
Segment profil befe la 217403 @159 [153,565] 562,886 40,179 (380,299 2.7 BILTH
Segment aets
Inertrent n aotited
CompaRes A o] veriune . . ELE B4.538 589 073, Tad04n 4,405,122
Dtwe seqren aviets Laea gLy s0070  2E04.770 ST4RETZ 133ELI20 E2TAE4 DEMAETE  BA4SEA4
Segment fiahiities
Dares ard bervowngs 19,169 - 2,96 430163 M4ITEET  R20208W 22073000 45074440
Ot segmen labénes 726,384 (351 325,952 1103323 BETA13  L2eSd4Ed  BOERET 12450162
Grher seqment infarmatien
Laprlal pupeniitern 1.5 E 96748 1a474 3 2338 L3 2018, 754
Irpurnanl faits back) . [5) 3.2 5531 34m [25.445] 21738 40,822
Degreciaon and amorisabon 2433 540 BO iM.002 10134 140,003 LI6LEDG Lol
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42. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT'D.)
Thie segment information provided 1o the MOSTEDS for the reporiabie seqmens is & [olows:- (oont'd)
Infsrmation
techeslogy & Cemen! md
eCommerce beiiding  Management Property
retaled Hatzl materals services  Eavestment &
Coastnuctan business  pperatons Indasry Eofers  deveiapment \milmies Tatal
RM000 REE00 FrOO0 FM000 OG0 RM000 REC00 AMD00
o
#ovinue
Tetdl rvirum 23551 23] 134146 41TER ELETOR Laog sl WML Fer.0s0
e segment een e [25504) i) 24 21EH [M0.95 AL e BEEL
Extermal e 2300 hud| LIZLESS 409178 o T34 uersm JENEE
Resuins
IR, png 17482 167 e 0544 1758 10213 12883 ot
Firen(e (st =4 13 [EZ94m (5255 fEasEs [Enog; 27RO
Sraw of nnults of oo
CONGANes 3Kl joiTT VeTiueS. - = al A i {LFz256| 45155 257,199
Seqreni profit before tax Lt & 58563 (2456 M58 [FBETES) 1618 Ltk
Segnen] ety
vmtreet n piioceted
[ AT o et . . L SN 5L EELE0 22350 438000
Crher segmeest ety LI Erik] LLTE GE&D M ER ] 7259250 TATRIE FE526418
Segment Fabililses
Bords and bortwingl i il + am LT i] 14FE0E7 905054 Jticnf ) 415650
(e gt habelbes b ] & ras Lo a2 L EL] LS GAENT nnzes
Qther segnend information
Capetal eencitur 4543 -] 115418 125520 = -kt LE1TM 2HESR
rpamritwity bads) . L7es L2 554 FLL] peril:) 123 18220
Deprecaton and andrtisation 18 =] BLe Ll L85 Hazs LT 18288
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42. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT'D.}
{a) Geographical information

The Grip's seven bisiess sements operdte in three main gecgraphical areas-

(i} Msaytia - Constriction
- Information technology & e-commerce related business
= Hotel oparations
= Comint and bidlding mated sk industry
- Management services & others
= Praperty imeestmen? & developmant
= Lidnes

(B} Lmited Kingdom - Lidtes
- Hatel operations

[H) Sngapan - LnEes
- Coment and building materaks industry
= Property investment & developiment

Revenue Hon-curment assets
2021 2020 2021 2020
RM'O00 RM'ODO RM'ODO RMO0O
Malmysia 5,775,438 FA30T6E3 11,850,527 12,305,103
Unitad Kingdam 3852723 3,647.137 21,373,358 18,786,918
SEgapme E,450,301 6,841,129 8,135,788 B.243.533
Other countries 1,191,957 1259420 4,017,163 4346176
17,270,419 19,176,445 45,376,836 43680730

Kor-Cutrént Fisers informatan prosenied above consist af the falisings (tBms as presentisd in the Stalemants of Finanial

Podition
Hon-current assets
2021 2020
RM'OD0 RM'ODO
Property, plant and equipmant 32,120,318 30,475,254
Right -of-use pssets 1,712,517 1.636,035
Irvesiment proparties 1.976.498 1811126
Deneloprment expanditunes 1.067.428 LigE.221
Intangitle aswols B,500,075 B E3L.004

45,376,836 4366130

¥TL CORPORATION DERMAD
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42. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT'D.)
(b} Major customers
Trie followiing = the major custoimer with fevenue equal or more than 10 per cent of the Groud's revenue-
2021 2020
RMO00 RHMOOD Segment
Energy Market Company 2,620,109 2452877 Ulites

43, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Tha primay objectives ol the Group's and the Company's capital management ame o ansure hat It maintaing healthy capital ratioy
Inorder to support Its existing business and maximise sharehalders” value,

Thee Groug and The Company minddges ity ceptal structure and imakes adastments 1ot in the light of changes in sconaim oonditions,
Ta maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group and the Company may adiust the dividend paymient to shareholders, returm
capital to sharehokters or issue new shares. There were no changes (n the Group's and the Company's aoproech to capital management
g The Yoo,

The Growp and the Companmy montars capital using a debt-1o-capital ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.
The Group indhados within mat detit, 1ot DoeTowings ks Cxih and cash oqidvaionts, Cagiral inchuades equity Artrbutatie 1o The
owners of the parent.

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

Note RM000 RM'000 RM OO0 RMOO0

Bonids 20 23,328,057 15,875,639 3,240,000 2,300,000
Homowings. 3l 21.746.386 2370605 1,066,995 1751205
Bonds and barrowings 45,074,443 43,586,244 4,306,995 4,251,205
Less: Cash @nd cash eguivaients 26 (13.676,647) (11.661.232) (250.218) {103,999
LS o) 31,395,796 31925012 4,056,777 4,147 #0
Equity artributabie to camers of the parent 12,788,485 12,460,336 6,307.840 .0, 744,
Capital and net debt 44,184,281 41,385,348 10,364,617 10.#33.950
Debt-10-capital ratio () 71 72 39 4]

Undor the requaement ol Burss Makiysia Secuntics Berhad Peactice Node Noo 1772005, the Company & reguired 1o masntain a
comsalidsted shaneholders’ equity equal to or not less than the 25 percent of the issued and pakd-up capital (esciuding treasury
shares) and such sharehalders’ eguity ts not less than AMA0 millicn. The Company has compliied with this reguiremant.

AMMUAL REPORT 2021
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44, SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING AND AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(3] The outtreak of the COVID-19 pantdemic has imgacted economic activities worldwide. Mary counties have impased restrictons
o non-essentil sarvices and business aperations, and have also implemented Tavel restrictions, bonder dosures and ather
tuarantine maasures that have significantly curbed the narmal mavemant of goods, sarvices and pecpre. For the Tinancial year
ended 30 june 2021, the impact of COVID-19 have been reflected In 1his set of financial statements.

As the situaticn s stil evalving and will be atfected by the degres to which povemments ae able to contan the spread af
thee wne in countries where the Croup eperates. the full impact of the COVID-19 pandemic an the Group's perarmance for
Thr tirins il yoar ending 30 e 2072 could Aot be reasonably isoertained wion this sp af Tinencial Statements wisk athorsad
for ssuanca.

Tha Graup and the Campany are takdng steas 1o proastively manage the busnetses and taks the nacessary actions 19 emune
that the long-term business prospects of the Groug and the Company remain stable.

(b} Cn 28 Septombor 202]. SIPP Powor Sdn Bhd, (SIPP Power™), o T0%-0wnad subisidiaey of YTL Power entored inla a Sale and
Purchase Agreement with Boustead Plantations Beshad to purchase Kulal Young Estate In johar for a purchase consideration
of AMAZE 8 million ("Proposed Acquigitian™). The Proposed Acgulsition i expecied 1o be complated by end December 2021,

SIPP Power Intends to develop the land into a lange scale solar power faclity with a ganeration capacity of up to S00MwW, This
Is I fne with the Growup's shift towards imeesting in more sustainable, renewable energy sohutions moving forwand.

Save for the above, there were no other matenal events subsequent to the end of the ourrent Financkal year ended 30 june
2021 that have not been iellected B the Tinancial statements

45. AUTHORISED FOR I55UE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financlal statements have bieen authorised for ssue in accondance with & resolution of the Boam af Dirertars on 30 Septemnes
2021

¥TL CORPORATION DERMAD
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Company No: 198201012898 (92647-H)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of YTL Corporation Berhad, which comprise the Statements of Financial
Position as at 30 June 2020 of the Group and of the Company, and the Income Statements, Statements of
Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows of the Group and of the
Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, as set out on pages 100 to 302.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the Company as at 30 June 2020, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics,
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in

the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

1. Impairment assessment of goodwill
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 19 to the Financial Statements respectively.

As at 30 June 2020, goodwill arising on consolidation amounted to RM8,118 million which represents 11.6%
of the Group’s total assets. The goodwill is primarily allocated to the multi utilities business in Singapore,
water and sewerage business in the United Kingdom and cement manufacturing business in Malaysia. The
goodwill for these businesses comprises 92.7% of total goodwill.

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units (“CGU”) are determined based on VIU calculation.
The key assumptions and sensitivities are disclosed in Note 19(a) and 19(b) to the Financial Statements
respectively.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires
significant judgement on the future cash flows, terminal growth rate and the discount rate applied to the
projected cash flows.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors audit procedures included the following:

agreed the value-in-use (“VIU") cash flows of CGU to the financial budgets approved by the Directors;
discussed with management the key assumptions used in the respective VIU cash flows and compared
the revenue growth rates to the historical performance of the respective CGUs and assessed the
potential impact of Covid-19 outbreak of the VIU cash flows;

checked the reasonableness of the discount rates and terminal growth rates with the assistance of
valuation expert by benchmarking to the respective industries which included the impact of Covid-19
outbreak as at year end,;

checked the sensitivity analysis performed by management over discount rates, terminal growth rates,
and revenue growth rates, used in deriving the respective VIU cash flows; and

compared historical forecasting for the current financial year to actual results achieved to ascertain the
reasonableness of management’s estimates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

2. Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) of the mobile broadband network business
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 11 to the Financial Statements respectively.

The property, plant and equipment of the mobile broadband network business accounts for 8.8% (RM2,688.5
million) of the Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2020.

The Group performed an impairment assessment on the carrying values of the PPE due to losses recorded
by the segment which is an impairment indicator.

The impairment assessment was performed by management using fair value less costs of disposal
(“FVLCD”) cash flows which requires significant judgement as the timing and quantum of the cash flows is
dependent on the achievement of the next five years’ business plans and financial budgets which are
dependent on the use of key assumptions comprising its growth targets and sourcing contract renewals.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires
significant judgement on the future cash flows, terminal growth rate and the discount rate applied to the
calculation of the FVLCD.

Our response:

Our audit procedures include the following:

agreed the FVLCD cash flows of the CGU to the financial budgets approved by the Directors, adjusted
to reflect market participants assumptions;

checked the assumptions used, in particular average revenue growth rate and useful life of the assets
and benchmarked against the comparable companies within the industry, including assessing the impact
of Covid-19 outbreak using industry data;

discussed with management the rationale applied on the assumption of sourcing contract renewals by
considering the Company’s historical experience;

assessed reasonableness of the discount rate which reflects the specific risk relating to the PPE based
on inputs that are publicly available; and

checked sensitivity analysis performed by management on the discount rate used in deriving the
FVLCD.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

3. Capitalisation policy on infrastructure assets of the water and sewerage business
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 11 to the Financial Statements respectively.

The water and sewerage business’s net book value of infrastructure assets comprise 25.9% (RM7,889
million) of the Group’s total property, plant and equipment. The infrastructure assets comprise capital
expenditure incurred to meet the development and regulatory requirement of the business, employee and
overhead costs that are directly attributable to the construction of the asset.

There is a significant judgement involved in determining whether costs incurred, specifically employee and
overhead costs meet the relevant criteria for capitalisation in accordance with MFRS 116, Property, Plant
and Equipment (“MFRS 116").

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

tested the operating effectiveness of the controls over capitalisation and authorisation of selected
projects’ infrastructure assets and identification of capital expenditures attributable to the infrastructure
assets;

understood the nature of costs incurred through discussion with management and corroborated with
supporting information provided and checked whether the costs incurred met the capitalisation criteria in
accordance with MFRS 116; and

compared the level of employee and overhead costs capitalised against prior year balances and current
year budget information to identify material changes in the nature or quantum of costs capitalised, with
any significant variances discussed and corroborated with management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

4. Assumptions used in determining the present value of the funded defined benefit obligations of the water and
sewerage segment

The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 35 to the Financial Statements respectively.

As at 30 June 2020, the water and sewerage business’'s post-employment benefit obligations comprise
94.9% (RM869 million) of the Group’s total post-employment benefit obligations.

The present value of the funded defined benefit obligations depends on a number of assumptions determined
on an actuarial basis. The key assumptions are disclosed in Note 35 (c) to the financial statements.

We focused on this area due to the key assumptions used in determining the present value of the funded
defined benefit obligations and any changes in these assumptions will materially impact the carrying amount
of the post-employment benefit obligations.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

understood and assessed the scope of work by the external actuary engaged by the management;
assessed the fair value of the scheme assets by obtaining the valuation from the relevant fund
managers as at balance sheet date and corroborated with independent sources;

assessed the competencies, objectivity and capabilities of external actuary;

obtained the external actuarial report and understood the key assumptions used in determining the
present value of the funded defined benefit obligations;

compared the key assumptions used by the actuary on discount rate, expected rate of increase in
pension payment, and price inflation against external market data and similar schemes with assistance
of an actuary specialist;

evaluated the impact of Covid-19 outbreak on the valuation of assets held within the pension scheme;
compared the expected rate of salary increases used by the actuary against historical trend; and
checked the disclosures in respect of the sensitivity of the carrying amounts of the post-employment
benefit obligations to changes in key assumptions, performed by the actuary.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

5. Impairment assessment on trade receivables of the Group’s water and sewerage segment
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 20 to the Financial Statements respectively.

The trade receivables of the water and sewerage segment accounts for 29.0% (RM448.6 million is net of
expected credit losses of RM244.8 million) of the Group’s trade receivables as at 30 June 2020.

As this segment operates in the UK, there is a statutory requirement to continue to provide water to all
customers who has defaulted in payment. Therefore, the Group has estimated the expected credit losses of
trade receivables on a portfolio basis for the year based on the historical cash collection trends and
economic trends, which are subjective in nature.

We focused on this area given the use of significant estimates and judgement in determining the appropriate
level of expected credit losses for trade receivables.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

tested the controls over assessment of impairment of trade receivables and the operating effectiveness
of the key IT systems used for generating billings and cash collection data used for the expected credit
losses assessment;

obtained the historical cash collection trends of each ageing bracket of the trade receivables and
payment methods and compared against the percentage of expected credit losses used by management
against each ageing bracket and payment methods;

checked the appropriateness of the forward-looking forecasts assumptions used to determine the
expected credit losses, which included management’s scenario analysis of the impact of Covid-19
outbreak; and

compared the level of expected credit losses applied against similar companies within the industry in the
UK.

6. Revenue recognition from construction contracts
The risk

Revenue and cost of sales recognised from construction contracts during the financial year as disclosed in
Note 3, 4 and 5 to the financial statements is RM2,316 million and RM2,061 million respectively.

The Group has significant long term construction contracts. The recognition of revenue and profit on these

contracts is based on input method (on the basis of the entity’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

Revenue and profit recognition on long term construction contract is a key audit matter because of the
judgement and estimates exercised by the management based on the assessment of performance
obligation, revenue recognition arising from variations to the original contracts, assessment of progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation and contract costs and appropriate of provision
for foreseeable losses and liquidated damages.

Our response:

Our audit procedures include the following:

reviewed and assessed the forecast budget and appropriateness of assumption used based on historical
performance in the Group and industry knowledge, including obtained and assessed information
provided by management to determine whether the forecast assumptions are consistent with the terms
of the relevant contracts;

evaluated the management’s updated budget costs and forecast costs to complete by assessing the
basis of their calculation;

recalculated the revenue using approved contract sum, actual costs incurred to date that reflect the
progress towards completion of the agreed works to customer and latest revised budgets; and

inspected the actual costs incurred to the corresponding supporting documents.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are
also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing
the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s and of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible

for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries of
which we have not acted as auditors, are disclosed in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.
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Other Matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266
of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to
any other person for the content of this report.

HLB LER LUM PLT
201906002362 & AF 0276
Chartered Accountants

WONG CHEE HONG
03160/09/2022 J
Dated : 30 September 2020 Chartered Accountant
Kuala Lumpur
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Our ref: GEN/0922/2021

Your ref:

10 December 2021

The Board of Directors
YTL Corporation Berhad
33rd Floor, Menara YTL
205 Jalan Bukit Bintang
55100 Kuala Lumpur

Dear Sirs,

You have informed us that the accompanying financial statements of YTL Corporation Berhad and the Group

financial statements of YTL Corporation Berhad and its subsidiaries as of 30 June 2021 and 2020 together with our
reports thereon dated 30 September 2021 and 30 September 2020 are being included as part of the Annual
Securities Report.

At 10 December 2021, we are not aware of any matters which would prevent the inclusion of our audit reports in
the aforementioned Annual Securities Report.

HLB LER LUM CHEW PLT
201906002362 & AF0276
Chartered Accountants

WONG CHEE HONG
Partner of the Firm
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Company No: 198201012898 (92647-H)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of YTL Corporation Berhad, which comprise the Statements of Financial
Position as at 30 June 2021 of the Group and of the Company, and the Income Statements, Statements of
Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows of the Group and of the
Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, as set out on pages 99 to 296.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the Company as at 30 June 2021, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics,
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in

the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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1. Impairment assessment of goodwill
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 19 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

As at 30 June 2021, goodwill arising on consolidation amounted to RM8,026 million which represents 10.9%
of the Group’s total assets. The goodwill is primarily allocated to the multi utilities business in Singapore,
listed cement manufacturing business in Malaysia and water and sewerage business in the United Kingdom
(“UK™). The goodwill for these businesses comprises 86.5% of total goodwill.

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units (“CGU”) are determined based on value-in-use (“VIU")
calculation. The key assumptions and sensitivities are disclosed in Note 19(a) and 19(b) to the Financial
Statements, respectively.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires
significant judgement on the future cash flows, terminal growth rate and the discount rate applied to the
projected cash flows.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors audit procedures included the following:

» agreed the VIU cash flows of each CGU to the financial budgets approved by the Directors;

« discussed with management the key assumptions used in the respective VIU cash flows and compared
the revenue growth rates to the historical performance of the respective CGUs and assessed the potential
impact of COVID-19 outbreak of the VIU cash flows;

e checked the reasonableness of the discount rates and terminal growth rates with the assistance of
valuation expert by benchmarking to the respective industries which included the impact of COVID-19
outbreak as at year end;

« checked the sensitivity analysis performed by management over discount rates, terminal growth rates,
and revenue growth rates, used in deriving the respective VIU cash flows; and

« compared historical forecasting for the current financial year to actual results achieved to ascertain the
reasonableness of management’s estimates.
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2. Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) of the mobile broadband network business

The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 11 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

The property, plant and equipment of the mobile broadband network business accounts for 6.8% (RM2,196.7
million) of the Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2021.

The Group performed an impairment assessment on the carrying values of the PPE due to losses recorded
by the segment which is an impairment indicator.

The impairment assessment was performed by management using fair value less costs of disposal
(“FVLCD") cash flows which requires significant judgement as the timing and quantum of the cash flows is
dependent on the achievement of the next five years’ business plans and financial budgets which are
dependent on the use of key assumptions comprising its growth targets and sourcing contract renewals.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires
significant judgement on the future cash flows, terminal growth rate and the discount rate applied to the
calculation of the FVLCD.

Our response:

Our audit procedures include the following:

» agreed the FVLCD cash flows of the CGU to the financial budgets approved by the Directors, adjusted to
reflect market participants assumptions;

» checked the assumptions used, in particular average revenue growth rate and useful life of the assets and
benchmarked against the comparable companies within the industry, including assessing the impact of
COVID-19 outbreak using industry data;

« discussed with management the rationale applied on the assumption of sourcing contract renewals by
considering the Company’s historical experience;

» assessed reasonableness of the discount rate which reflects the specific risk relating to the PPE based on
inputs that are publicly available; and

» checked sensitivity analysis performed by management on the discount rate used in deriving the FVLCD.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
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3. Capitalisation policy on infrastructure assets of the water and sewerage business
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 11 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

The water and sewerage business's net book value of infrastructure assets comprise 28.4% (RM9,137.4
million) of the Group’s total property, plant and equipment. The infrastructure assets comprise capital
expenditure incurred to meet the development and regulatory requirement of the business, employee and
overhead costs that are directly attributable to the construction of the asset.

There is a significant judgement involved in determining whether costs incurred, specifically employee and
overhead costs meet the relevant criteria for capitalisation in accordance with MFRS 116, Property, Plant and
Equipment (“MFRS 116").

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

» tested the operating effectiveness of the controls over authorisation of selected projects’ infrastructure
assets and identification of capital expenditures attributable to the infrastructure assets;

« understood the nature of costs incurred in relation to employee and overhead costs through discussion
with management and corroborated with supporting information provided and checked whether the costs
incurred met the capitalisation criteria in accordance with MFRS 116; and

« compared the level of employee and overhead costs capitalised against prior year balances and current
year budget information to identify material changes in the nature or quantum of costs capitalised, with
any significant variances discussed and corroborated with management.
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4, Assumptions used in determining the present value of the funded defined benefit obligations of the water and

sewerage segment
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 35 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

As at 30 June 2021, the water and sewerage business's post-employment benefit obligations comprise
89.6% (RM437.9 million) of the Group’s total post-employment benefit obligations.

The present value of the funded defined benefit obligations depends on a number of assumptions determined
on an actuarial basis. The key assumptions are disclosed in Note 35 (c) to the financial statements.

We focused on this area due to the key assumptions used in determining the present value of the funded
defined benefit obligations and any changes in these assumptions will materially impact the carrying amount
of the post-employment benefit obligations.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

» understood and assessed the scope of work by the external actuary engaged by the management;

» assessed the fair value of the scheme assets by obtaining the valuation from the relevant fund managers
as at balance sheet date and corroborated with independent sources;

« assessed the competencies, objectivity and capabilities of external actuary;

» obtained the external actuarial report and understood the key assumptions used in determining the
present value of the funded defined benefit obligations;

« compared the key assumptions used by the actuary on discount rate, expected rate of increase in pension
payment, and price inflation against external market data and similar schemes with assistance of an
actuary expert;

» evaluated the impact of COVID-19 outbreak on the valuation of assets held within the pension scheme;

« compared the expected rate of salary increases used by the actuary against historical trend; and

» checked the disclosures in respect of the sensitivity of the carrying amounts of the post-employment
benefit obligations to changes in key assumptions, performed by the actuary.
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5. Impairment assessment on trade receivables of the Group’s water and sewerage segment
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 20 to the Financial Statements, respectively.

The trade receivables of the water and sewerage segment accounts for 31.4% (RM543.1 million is net of
expected credit losses of RM248.7 million) of the Group’s trade receivables as at 30 June 2021.

As this segment operates in the UK, there is a statutory requirement to continue to provide water to all
customers who has defaulted in payment. Therefore, the Group has estimated the expected credit losses of
trade receivables on a portfolio basis for the year based on the historical cash collection trends and economic
trends, which are subjective in nature.

We focused on this area given the use of significant estimates and judgement in determining the appropriate
level of expected credit losses for trade receivables.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

» tested the operating effectiveness of the key IT systems used for generating billings and cash collection
data used for the expected credit losses assessment;

» obtained the historical cash collection trends of each ageing bracket of the trade receivables and payment
methods and compared against the percentage of expected credit losses used by management against
each ageing bracket and payment methods;

« checked the appropriateness of the forward-looking forecasts assumptions used to determine the
expected credit losses, which included management’s scenario analysis of the impact of COVID-19
outbreak; and

« compared the level of expected credit losses applied against similar companies within the industry in the
UK.

6. Revenue recognition from construction contracts

The risk

Revenue and cost of sales recognised from construction contracts during the financial year
as disclosed in Note 3, 4 and 5 to the financial statements is RM1,515 million and
RM1,254 million respectively.

The Group has significant long term construction contracts. The recognition of revenue
and profit on these contracts is based on input method (on the basis of the entity’s efforts
or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation).

612/616



EDINETCI I
OooooooooooooooooooOonooOn(enss21)
OooooOodd
Company No: 198201012898 (92647-H)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

Revenue and profit recognition on long term construction contract is a key audit matter
because of the judgement and estimates exercised by the management based on the
assessment of performance obligation, revenue recognition arising from variations to the
original contracts, assessment of progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation and contract costs and appropriate of provision for foreseeable
losses and liguidated damages.

Our response:

Our audit procedures include the following:

» reviewed and assessed the forecast budget and appropriateness of assumption used based on historical
performance in the Group and industry knowledge, including obtained and assessed information provided
by management to determine whether the forecast assumptions are consistent with the terms of the
relevant contracts;

« evaluated the management’'s updated budget costs and forecast costs to complete by assessing the basis
of their calculation;

« recalculated the revenue using approved contract sum, actual costs incurred to date that reflect the
progress towards completion of the agreed works to customer and latest revised budgets; and

» inspected the actual costs incurred to the corresponding supporting documents.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are
also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing
the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s and of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.
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» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries of
which we have not acted as auditors, are disclosed in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.
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Other Matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person
for the content of this report.

HLB LER LUM CHEW PLT
201906002362 & AF 0276
Chartered Accountants

WONG CHEE HONG
03160/09/2022 J
Dated : 30 September 2021 Chartered Accountant
Kuala Lumpur
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